—— ﬁf?ﬂ%'!‘..}féﬁ.’,},?.ﬁ?w cotteges ~ EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

LEADE=RSHIP. EMPOWERMFENT. VOICE.

Friday, January 8, 2016 — Cerritos College
11110 Alondra Blvd, Norwalk, CA 90650
Automotive Partners Building / Room 11

12:00 p.m. to 12:30 p.m. Lunch
12:30 p.m. to 5:30 p.m. Meeting
6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. Dinner: To Be Announced

Saturday, January 9, 2016 — Sheraton Cerritos
12725 Center Court Dr S, Cerritos, CA 90703
Room: Garden Terrace
8:00 a.m. to 8:30 a.m. Breakfast
8:30 a.m. to 11:00 a.m, Meeting
11:00 a.m. — 12:15 a.m. Closed Session Board of Governors Interviews
12:20 p.m. — 12:45 p.m. Working Lunch (continued closed session)
12:45 p.m, to 3:00 p.m. Meeting

The meeting is accessible to the physically disabled, A person who needs a disability-related accommodation or
modification in order to participate in the meeting may make a request by emailing the Senate at
agendaitem@asccc.org or contacting Sandra Sanchez at (916) 445-4753 x103 no less than five working days prior
to the meeting. Providing your request at least five business days before the meeting will help ensure availability of
the requested accommodation.

Public Comments: A written request to address the Executive Committee shall be made on the form provided at the
meeting. Public testimony will be invited at the beginning of the Executive Committee discussion on each agenda
item. Persons wishing to make a presentation to the Executive Committee on a subject not on the agenda shall
addvress the Executive Committee during the time listed for public comment. Public comments are limited to 3 minutes
per individual and 30 minutes per agenda item. Muterials for this meeting are found on the Senate website ai:

hitp //www.ascce.org/executive_committee/meetings.

I ORDER OF BUSINESS

A. Roll Call

B. Approval of the Agenda

C. Public Comment
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the
Executive Committee on any matter not on the agenda. No action will be taken.
Speakers are limited to three minutes.

D. Calendar

E. Action Tracking

F. Dinner Arrangements

1I. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. November 4, 2015 Meeting Minutes, Stanskas
B. Resolution Assignments, Morse
C. Noncredit Regional Meetings, Aschenbach
D. Professional Development College Modules, Rutan



III.

Iv.

ZErRS-mamm

Professional Development College Module on Peer Review, Rutan/Davison
Personnel Manual, Adams

Online Education Regional Meetings, Davison

Accreditation Institute, Beach

Curriculum Technical Assistance Visits, Adams

AA to MA Program, Morse/Bruno

. The Best of the Rostrum, Adams

Strategic Plan Status, Adams

. Spring 2616 Annual Report, Adams

Audit Fee Survey, Bruno

REPORTS

President’s/Executive Director’s Report — 30 mins., Morse/Adams
Foundation President’s Report — 10 mins., May

Liaison Oral Reports (please keep report io 5 mins., each)

Liaisons from the following organizations are invited to provide the Executive
Committee with updates related to their organization: AAUP, CCA, CCCI, CFT,
FACCC, and the Student Senate.

ACTION ITEMS

A.

Legislative Update — 15 mins., Bruno

The Executive Committee will be updated on recent state and federal legislation
and take action as necessary.

Board of Governors Interviews, 1 hour and 15 mins., Morse

The Executive Committee will conduct Board of Governors interviews in closed
session and take action on which candidates to send forward to the Governor.
2016 Academic Academy — 20 mins., May/Smith

The Executive Committee will make recommendations and consider for approval
theme ideas and a preliminary draft program for the 2016 Academic Academy.
Update to the Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications Paper — 15 mins.,
Stanskas

The Executive Committee will provide input to the Standards and Practices
Committee regarding the revision to the Equivalence to the Minimum
Qualifications paper.

Online Education Initiative Pilot Colleges MOU — 20 mins., Freitas

The Executive Committee will provide feedback and guidance on the draft MOU
on the operation of the OEI course exchange between the OFI pilot colleges.
Local Curriculum Committee Visits and the Role of SACC - 20 mins.,
Freitas

The Executive Committee will discuss the implementation of the curriculum
technical assistance program and the role of SACC in local curriculum visits.
Attendance Accounting Issues — 20 mins., Davison/Freitas

The Executive Committee will provide guidance on how to proceed with
discussion about attendance accounting issues.

. 2016 Spring Plenary Session Schedule — 20 mins., Adams

The Executive Committee will discuss the changes in the 2016 Spring Session



program to accommodate the other organizations in the joint program.

Basic Skills Definitions — 10 mins., Freitas

The Executive Committee will provide guidance to the Curriculum Committee on
how to best address Resolution 7.05 F14 urging the development of a standard
definition for basic skills courses.

Workforce Task Force Recommendation Implementation — 40 mins., Bruno
The Executive Committee will consider for approval the Board of Governors
Task Force on Workforce, Jobs, and a Strong Economy implementation strategies
including those recommendations that the ASCCC should iead, advise, or
monitor.

Dual Enrollment Frequently Asked Questions — 20 mins., Davison

The Executive Committee will review a draft document from the Educational
Policies Committee regarding frequently asked questions for dual enrollment and
implementation.

Launchboard — i mins., Adams

The Executive Committee will consider partnering with other groups to enhance
the Launchboard dashboard and increase its usability across all 113 colleges.

. Open Educational Resources — 20 mins., Aschenbach/Davison/Morse

The Executive Committee will be updated about the activities of the California
Open Educational Resources Council, will consider next steps to inform local
senates regarding AB 798, and will consider the exploration of a community
college specific OER initiative.

DISCUSSION
A, Chancellor’s Office Liaison Report — 45 mins., (Time certain 1:30 pm)

B.

A liaison from the Chancellor’s Office will provide Executive Committee
members with an update of system-wide issues and projects.

Board of Governors/Consultation Couneil — 10 mins.,

The Executive Committee will receive an update on the recent Board of
Governors and Consultation meetings.

Part-Time Faculty Priorities — 30 mins., North/Freitas/Adams

The Executive Committee will discuss recommendations from the Part-Time
Faculty Task Force regarding part-time faculty priorities.

ASCCC Audit — 10 mins., Adams/North

The Executive Committee will discuss the 2015 Fiscal Year audit.

Budget Performance, 10 mins., Adams

The Executive Committee will discuss the budget performance for the first half of
the fiscal year.



VI. REPORTS (If time permits, additional Executive Committee announcements and
reports may be provided)
A. Standing Committee Minutes
i.  Faculty Development Committee, Rutan
ii. TASSC, May
iii.  Curriculum Committee, Freitas
iv.  Accreditation and Assessment Committee, Beach
v. Legislative and Advocacy Committee, Bruno
B. Liaison Reports
i.  SACC, Freitas/Shearer
ii. COERC, Davison
iii.  Open Education Resources Conference, Davison
iv.  EPI Rico
v.  OEISC, Freitas
vi. SSSPAC, Adams
C. Senate Grant and Project Reports
i. C-ID, Rutan

VII. ADJOURNMENT



E.A Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges
LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.
Executive Committee Agenda ltem

SUBJECT: Calendar

Month: January | Year: 2016

temNoi D, -

Attachment: YES

DESIRED OUTCOME:

The Executive Committee will be updated on
upcoming ASCCC meetings and events.

Urgent: NO

Time Requested: 5 minutes

CATEGORY:

Order of Business

TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:

REQUESTED BY: Julie Adams Consent/Routine
First Reading
STARF REVIEW": - lulie Adams | Action
JL . Dl 4 Information X

Please note-: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

Upcoming Events and Meetings
* January Executive Committee Meeting — Cerritos — January 8-9, 2016

* CTE Curriculum Academy — Napa Valley Marriott — January 14-15, 2016
¢ Innovation and Instructional Design — Riverside — January 21-23, 2016
* February Executive Committee Meeting — Folsom — February 5-6, 2016

* Accreditation Institute — San Diego — February 19-20, 2016

* March Executive Committee Meeting — Walnut/Pomona — March 4-5, 2016
* Academic Academy — Sheraton Sacramento — March 18-19, 2016

* Area Meetings — April 1-2, 2016
* Online Education Regional Meetings (North/South) — April 8-9, 2016

* April Executive Committee Meeting — Sacramento — April 20, 2016

* Spring Plenary Session — Sacramento Convention Center — April 21-23, 2016
¢ Career Technical Education Institute — Anaheim — May 6-7, 2016

* May Executive Committee Meeting — Catalina Island — May 27-29, 2016

® Faculty Leadership Institute — Riverside — June 9-11, 2016

* Curriculum Institute — Anaheim — July 7-9, 2016

2015-16 Event Timeline is attached.

Reminders/Due Dates
January 21, 2016: Agenda Items, Committee Reports, and Action Tracking updates for Feb., Executive meeting

January 31, 2016: Written updates to the Strategic Plan due to the Executive Director (see II. L. Strategic Plan)

February 18, 2016: Agenda Items, Committee Reports, and Action Tracking updates for Mar. Executive meeting

February 27, 2016: Paragraphs for the Annual Report due to the Executive Director (see I1. N, Annual Report)

April 4, 2016: Agenda Items, Committee Reports, and Action Tracking updates for Apr. Executive mesting

May 12, 2016: Agenda Items, Committee Reports, and Action Tracking updates for May Executive meeting

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.







b

e Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. YOICE

LEADERSHIP,

EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

2015-2016 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
MEETING DATES
*Meeting will typically be on Friday’s from 11:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. and Saturday’s from 8:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.!

Meeting Type

Date

Campus Location

Hotel Location

Executive Meeting

Angust 21 — 22, 2015

Los Angeles City College
355 N. Vermont Avenue
Los Angeles, CA 90029

Embassy Suites
800 N, Central Avenue
Glendale, CA 91203

Executive Meeting September 11-12, 2015 Sacramento City College Citizen Hotel
3835 Freeport Boulevard 926 J Street
Sacramento, CA 95822 Sacramento, CA 95814
Executive Meeting October 2 -3, 2015 MiraCosta College Hilton Resort & Spa
One Barnard Drive 1775 East Mission Bay Drive,
Qceanside, CA 92056 San Diego, CA 92109
Area Meetings October 23 — 24, 2015 Various Various
Session Executive November 4, 2015 n/a Marriott Irvine
18000 Von Karman Avenue,
Irvine, CA 92612
Fall Plenary Session November 5 — 7, 2015 n/a Marriott Irvine
18000 Von Karman Avenue,
Irvine, CA 92612
Executive Meeting January 8 — 9, 2016 Cerritos College Sheraton Cerritos
11110 Alondra Boulevard 12725 Center Court Dr S
Norwalk, CA 90650 Cerritos, CA 90703
Executive Meeting February 5 —6, 2016 Folsom Lake College Lake Natoma Inn
10 College Pkwy, 702 Gold Lake Dr,
Folsom, CA 95630 Folsom, CA 95630
Executive Meetings March 4 -5, 2016 Mt. San Antonio College Sheraton Fairplex
1100 North Grand Avenue 601 W. Mckinley Ave
Walnut, CA 91789 Pomona, CA 91768
Arca meetings April 1 -2, 2016 Various Various
Session Executive April 20, 2016 n/a Sacramento Convention Center
Spring Plenary Session April 21-23, 2016 nfa Sacramento Convention Center
Executive/Orientation May 20— 22, 2016 n/a Metropole Hotel Catalina Island
Faculty Leadership June 9 - 11, 2016 n'a The Mission Inn
EVENTS?
Career Technical Ed January 14-15, 2016 n/a Napa Valley Marriott
Innovation and Instructional January 21-23, 2016 n/a Riverside Convention
Design Center/Mission Inn/Marriott
Accreditation Institute February 19 — 20, 2016 n/a Matriott Mission Valley San
Diego
Academic Academy March 18 — 19, 2016 n/a Sheraton Sacramento
Career Technical Edu. Institute May 6 —7, 2016 n/a DoubleTree Anaheim
Curriculum Institute July 7-9, 2016 na DoubleTree Anaheim

! Times may be adjusted to accommodate flight schedules to minimize early travel times.

! Executive Committee members are not expected to attend these events,







o
4

3

1

=)
I~

i

"Blisqem ajeuas eu 0} ssinuUlW Jeqojog) paacidde eyl jsod Jwm Jeig ST0Z 1eqoR0|  sedwe) ainng 3eig vl ST0Z| laquisacy sANul bugesiy Jaqopp
G U] pjey e [ puE 9oXT AG PoAGIDE Uesq SAeY S[BUOT 5102 uM_Q_.&z 5 shupeepy
“AdeL ssboid U alnyn. uos| a’ JAqUBAD
o} Joud Bupds eu ) sBundsw [euciBial Jo 188 B oY (I SHWWES) UBHEINPH BUIUQ our__m . mnd rea . e 4 N [euciay uogeonp3 aujug
UBAG BU} US SSAUWIOD WNYNILLING pUB UGHENPAIS0Y U LI SHOM [l D7 310 @il S1ejdwicau] eJnng PIoRD ‘8°Al ST0Z 134030 B8RWWSS WANIWINg J10
*SUONEPUSUINEC0a) alajdiroouy 3Jmnd PES 8 "AllsToE SUOLIEPUALIWOSS
J1-M B4} JO LoejUBLIRLdLLY Sy WIGHU) j58] O] MOY SSNOEIP O] JeBUl [ SI20[0) 8L L : o 8 Jaquizydas i .
AIBUI[d T2 18 Paloliol SBM HOW ‘SL0¢ JOqUSADN N3y IO ERTEI DT SIRQUIBI 33RILILIOY BA1IN39X]
"@a]|LULIGT) 2ARNDSXT BY] Lo SI|AISS Jjeuy ssaiBoud uj J3Wio4 JoUoH 03 sUopRN|osaY
40-10U0Y U UBLIIIH-SSWINE) efleydiy pue dwinud Ue( a} suojinjosed Juasaud [im asiop Jaquisydas
SeqIULOZ aANdeX] A LONNQHSED 10] peAcIddE ns Yeiq ‘G| 0z JOqUISAcN Siupnig pastysuejuasiq
wejshg 2bai0g Aunuwos Bilue)ies ssauSoud u| aimng|  uosisegfien WA STOZ|  #nSny 8| oy saawaas uo Aning DSSYL
Bl Ul SIUBPNLS PBSIIUBYUSSIP 4o} s3oiues Bulsie uo Asains e ajnquisip (1M DSSYL .
liE4 Y
youeasel Bugonpuos Joy sse00ud SB [[om . . uswdoleas(] yueasay
e 'seljuoud uojnjoses SSaIpPE 0] MOy Jo) Ukid YoIEBsel & 4oeq BULIG M UoNepuNaS By L c_m___.a._sa_._wu_muuw.._.—_uu seiduwesu) amnd Aew a’ STOZ|  Yew gL = UOGEPUNGY HODISY
Supaapy Adenler
“Bupsaw saxq AlenuEr up Joj PERLIGNS UASq SBY 8{Y) LO Leay 2pusle Uy :5L0Z a2aq| ays o3 jesodoud e oy : SIBIA
“Jueloduio 1509 ay) yeiaes — deauco U paaciddy heq Suuq pue 1no seidwool| smnd seyaly 21 StoT HHEIN L by ininowns esusisey [eajuyoe.]
113503 [[tm Swepy
. od oty B " "lle} =ly3 ajpoly
‘Aiapeay ouepeDdy 319 18ed sy Bujpniul sseoad wnnaLung ayl . .
Liojeayl a0 DODSY U} ustalduy O] JIBUD SENILILLICS (d SU) YIM UDRRIOAEID U] 'sWepy |uyum pajuswsjdu| eqefduaat emng L i Stoz( Aleniged 9 e attS
aq |IIM
"Bupieew paZILILIOY BANISXT JIMNY B 0] UOKEPUSILILICOD) B Y384 Buly PUE Jeyln) Bep) snJels L ) SMBIARY BUNPNRSg
S| @10]6x3 |l SENWILLOD JUSSSESSY PUE UHZYPEI0Y PUB LONEINDT SUBISIC AL | YDIEaS3) OF Poap Sjefduicaul eimnd uosiaeq 4°Al ST0Z|  Asenuer s pue amom%%%hﬁ@oﬂe%wﬁ
“‘2ouepInG Jaypny
1sanbau o) Bugesw sexg Lenuep ayy ._owbms_sasw uaaq sey wey epuabe uy i5L0Z deg apa)dwodu] umnd| uesiaeg/senald Al Stoz| Adenuer-g Mo_o«wm__.._wmmo:w:ﬂm_n wu_m!ouwwn”_"_
UIBDB DIV 1 PASIEI 0} SPASU WY S| (G LOZ AON IBIASH
B 5 dupasw Aender
hy mwﬂ__hwmh«_ m“%u#“uﬁ%hmﬁﬂﬁﬂhﬁ%ﬂ: St hﬂﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁ:ﬂﬁ% ﬂ.._wzﬁ _w__..,_.__,_mﬁ”_%“ sjsiduwoau) amng swepy R ST0Z| Asenuer'g Wwnysoy auy) Jo j6ed 8y L
0] MOY UD SaPULLIO BARNISXT B 0} UOGEPUSLULLODIS) BYEW u:w.uwﬁunm “Mww__ ﬁﬁmw IeaA 1 ayajdwosy] smnd \pwg TA +T0z| Jaquianay “p Jnessy
0} MO JNOgE LONESIBAUCS & BABY [II (V() BspiluIng UOjoY Asieng pue Agnbg| SSMAsIP 14 Ovia3 ' fenxes :49eg WapnS 106 98
“BuRoa sIN B 1€ Dg o) == )
Aq uogesepisucd o) seu|RMNE swos Buelp pue saied ey Buisiass uo ._._o.w. I M.Emue_ apziduicou) 2N swepy TAl vi0z| 1390130°E UogEUNULIOD SERILIIGS
(G10¢ IewWngBuNds
XaJdde) supuowt mﬁ, 13U ) YN Jesunco |eBa) b_ﬁc m Bujaey seedopue O3 w..._._. 4
“uesola 5| jesunod jefis| meu & [uh OJ ay woy uaiudo [86s| ujeldgo o} ejgeun :ejepdn| 0D yim dnamojjoy oy - ) ea)luILo) J8S
o ° “UcISSNosip H_E Jjeya s siajdwoau] s.nng ueny H'Al VIOT|  1R90R0E| gy fening (Rousnay) juaund)
Haluny Joy seRiWIO] AQNDISXT L) o} ¥28q We)l |y} fuug pue [eBa) s| Aousoel Buippe jou
4o JByisuym suLsiap o} 63O SJ0fISIUBYD Byl Lym dn mo||0) [IM UBNY 11|02 JeGoi0
“eded u|of & Buidojeaap m” Bopl 8l 0o Ww elojdxe o) asiopy 1510Z "deg| 0402 Yum ufede
"[eaoidde ._nw UojjeLap{suUc Ja} Bugeslu selILLIOY aAJRDEXS JBtRoue 0} Jaded al} dn Mmoo} |(1m aja|dwoouy) ainjng asion BM PIOZ|4equandas 'z| Jeded suoneley UojUySBUGS
104 AU Ue $OBQ B [|M Seliuc] SAR0IIC Je UOREINPT el Jo Neyd 2yl w10z 1deg|  asiopy-Fuipuad
“9l0g Aenuer
Ul pejeulluassip aq [ pue Bugipe (Buy Ut ale siaded s)ym oMy 8y 1G10Z Jeqiusoag
“Bujjesil Juenhbasqns B }8 aeyiLLIOT
eAlncex3 2u o) pejuessid aq |||m steded auym oM Jelgo sy “seoporid BARIIYS
pue loisiy el uo sieded s)lym am oY) peydope aeyjUWon g::qum._u.._._. SL)Z 1890
"S80[BI BAl0BYT pUR SO, PUB (-0 Jo Ao)SIH €4 ) :Bupeaw
eI SANNISXT JEqOIsg) aL 1B PeRjUIgNs aq ||m sleded apym om] i5L0Z Jequisides
“1eaA s\ sseded agym sseuboid u) aunjng oung Al 102 |saqundas -z leded yeiq 1OV
Pueau0) BUNG pUE BUBWINSOP JUALIMS MBIAS (1M BEY|d B]j9YoNY PuE g SN :5L0Z 1SNBNY|
‘Buesw ainjny e je SUOjlepUBWILIOIS) YIeq Buuq
Pue Bpus) 23x7 ay) A pasie) SWSILs ssaIppe o) sbenbue] Yeuo m surug GLoZ __._hnm
53]
o) uo 2saded a|ym ysijgnd o} Jeded sy 0 JUDUOD BY) BN 0 5] LOOE 10 35IN03 18eq
ay] 'PesamSUBUN PaU|EWa) Sucsent BoUIS JEY) PEU|ULISISp SaJ)jUWOD) SANNISXT 9y |
“Bupeus 23IWIWOYD IANDSXT YUEB ay) o) WBnoq sem saded | qy Uy SL0Z |
SHONATIRIS  ajaidwio] Jeva Sodwoy  awdwes 21rq ang oL paudsty gway peudissy  paudmsy iuay Uaipy
Yo uy/a|dwo)y a!.uu_z aee) Yoy
“Aup

S[X"G 10T ‘8¢ Jequiaoa( Jo se Bupjoed) uonoy "3 |



~Joded SUCRESR|END WNWUIF 81 6) . T6deg SUONESIen
asusieanbs oY) 2S|A61 0} SRILIIOY SEORIBI] PUE PIEPLEIS Bl WM 3OM ||# SeYSUEIS sjerduigou) ainng SexsuRIS 4°Al STOZ| JBGMBAONT nunugy ewy o) salisjeAlnbs
“SBUGesLl GJ0Z VOIBH PUS AJBrLGaJ O1) 12 MAIna] 10} 555885010 — SUIRNG 16dEg
LUNNoLING sAoele uo Jeded ) JEIp 0} SEIWILICS) WNINSLLING BlY) U HI0MW [ SEyel] sieduicoul emny seield aAl STOZ| 43GUWRAON| gog3a00i4 wnpnowng eALoeyS
“11 BuisiaApE pjey sy} o) ebessalw B pUSS M SWepy sT0Z Jaquanon]  sejdwen eunny swepy 9l §TOZ|  Jaquiancn puE cm_ﬂwm:_ruwmu_ﬁw:o«u““
REMed iy O 'y PUB 758jEs Shlita W50 "S90pdss eey e
‘Jeanidde esunoo eLole pUE)S ‘33) JIPNE SPNIOUL 1SEIBIU) Jo SEaly BUesiL JBqUIBAON
aul e epuaby anleisiiaT 9LOZ oL percidde seywion BAINoeXT eyl i5L0Z 96 sseiBoud u| amny ounig Al SToT|  Jequasay epushy sApe|sBe
‘epuaby angeis|Be 910z ey) dojeaap O] SNUPLICD pUB Jse.ell
40 SE8UE B\ S|l B.0|dXa 0) SARIULIOT AOBICADY PUE sAge(siBsT 24} WM MIOM UM ounig
“JUSAB [EIBAG BU} PUE UG|S5 JI0YGaX] HoBe J0) WEI30Jd STiew] - SUOesag JN0Yeeig [enprpa]
UORBADLL pue UBISBQ EUGKINTSUI B0 BU) Ui SBUIOING SPNISUI 1A LBINY PUS SULEPY alduiosu) ainnd|  Ueihdsuiepy i stoz| Jequianon| SR el vy Soweono
ebiejjon Jusdojen: . G860
|BUCISSS0IY B4} 10} S8[NEOW MaU X9 dOJRASP |IIM oos_EEo:Dum:n«_w-Eno_F:wn b_:ow_n_ ww_m_, atajdwioou] einng ueny H STOZ|  Jaquiaaon EmEnherhn_m%u“__uﬂﬁn
“RIEle]] DUPMD[|0] ABNUOW AGAINS BjA Pue o
otsseg Areusig 12 51,07 o4 12 ABAINS Wewsssswy SpaN od) ISP I DS TN ||, SR - = DL o ROZ]] FONMSNOA(] SSATIE mEESSY Seo
"[enGId0E Jo] Bpuabe AIENUET Guj UG S] W) S 610z 550
5,02 Buuds ejeidwoau| aimng ourug =N stoz| Jequisnon Aeq Aoeaoapy 9008V
40 AEp AIEIOADE DDOSY UE USIIEISS [l BORILIWICY AJEIOADY PUE LORERIBeT 8yl
SONENES  ejejdwo) 1ea,) ARdaion  sejdwas srEgeng 0] paudissy ¥Woy  poudissy paulisy Way uopy
Yo ul/epdway 3:».._ Je0) Puo
‘U

S[X'GLOZ ‘QZ 1oquaoa(] Jo se m_..__v_om._._.. UoldY "3 |




I.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEEING
Draft Minutes
Wednesday, November 4, 2015

ORDER OF BUSINESS
A. Roll Call

President Morse called the meeting to order at 12:40 p.m. and welcomed members
and guests.

Members present: J. Adams, C. Aschenbach, J. Bruno, D. Davison, A. Foster, I.
Freitas, G. Goold, V. May, W. North, C. Rico, C. Rutan, C. Smith, and J.
Stanskas.

Liaisons present: J. Escajeda, Chancellor’s Office; Rich Hansen, CCCI; Shaaron
Vogel, FACCC

Guests present: Dan Crump, American River College; Nancy Golz, Merced
College; Conan McKay, Mendocino College; Michelle Sampat, Mt. San Antonio
College

Staff present: Sandra Sanchez, Exccutive Assistant

. Approval of the Agenda

Adams pulled item V. D. ASCCC Audit because it is not ready for discussion at
this time. This item will return in spring. The agenda was approved as amended.

. Public Comment

McKay requested that the Executive Committee consider a discussion on funding
for CTE Leadership Committee members to visit colleges and faculty who cannot
attend the CTE regional meetings.

. Calendar

Adams reminded members of upcoming meetings, events, and due dates. The
January agenda deadline is Thursday, December 17, 2015. 'The Rostrum deadline
is Monday, January 18, 2016.

. Action Tracking

The Executive Committee discussed the action tracking spreadsheet. Adams
updated members on items that are in progress or were recently completed.

. Dinmer Arrangements

The Executive Committee discussed dinner arrangements.

CONSENT CALENDAR
A. October 2-3 Meeting Minutes, Stanskas
B. Noncredit Liaison Expectations, Aschenbach

1



Legislative Liaison Position, Bruno

Online Education Regional Meetings, Davison

ASCCC Advocacy Day, Bruno

TASSC Survey on Services for Disenfranchised Students, May/Davison
Needs Assessment Survey, Rico

New Modules for the Professional Development College, Rutan
Outcomes for Institutes and Individual Breakout Sessions, Rutan

SEQEEEA

Items II. B. and II. C. were pulled.
MSC (Davison/May) to approve the consent calendar as amended.

Action:

o [Item A: Staff will post the approved October minutes to the Senate website.

¢ Item D: The Online Education Committee to hold a set of regional meetings in
the spring prior to plenary.

e Jtem E: The Legislation and Advocacy Committee will establish an ASCCC
advocacy day for spring 2015.

e Ttem F: The Transfer, Articulation, and Student Services Committee will
distribute a survey on existing services for disenfranchised students in the
California Community College System.

¢ Item G: The Relations with Local Senates Committee will administer the
Needs Assessment Survey at the 2015 Fall Plenary Session and via Survey
Monkey following plenary.

e Jtem H: The Faculty Development Committec will develop six new modules
for the Professional Development College (PDC).

e Item I: Adams and Rutan will include outcomes in the 2016 Instructional
Design and Innovation Institute program for each breakout session and the
overall event,

B. Noncredit Liaison Expectations
This item was pulled to clarify that the expectations outlined for the noncredit
liaison position are recommendations for local senates and not requirements.

C. Legislative Liaison Position
This item was pulled to clarify that the guidelines outlined for the legislative
liaison position are recommendations for local senates and not requirements.

MSC (North/Aschenbach) to approve items II. B. and II. C.

III. REPORTS
A. President’s Executive Director’s Report
President Morse opened his report with a brief update on Chancellor Brice Harris’
retirement in April. He acknowledged Chancellor Harris® outstanding job in
leading the system and in respecting the faculty voice and the ASCCC. The Board

2



of Governors will begin its process for naming the next chancellor soon, and the
ASCCC plans to have representation at these discussions.

The Accreditation Task Force Report received endorsement from the Chief
Executive Officers (CEOs), Chief Instructional Officers (CIOs), Community
College Independents (CCI), FACCC, and numerous local senates.

ASCCC representatives recently visited the UC Academic Council to present on
C-ID. The UC faculty were engaged and interested in the possibilities of
participating in C-ID, and they invited the ASCCC to return as the conversation
continues.

Morse alerted the Executive Committee of recent issues with C-ID. In May 2015,
the Chancellor’s Office repositioned the C-ID grant from the Los Rios
Community Coliege District to Mt. San Antonio Coliege. The ASCCC is
currently working without a contracted budget for C-ID in place, which is of great
concern. The Senate is using its reserve funds to host C-ID meetings and DIGs,
pay stipends to faculty reviewers, and employ C-ID staff. Additionally, there are
significant concerns with the Senate’s role in the C-ID, which has not been
formally agreed upon. The Senate recognizes these issues as high priorities and
discussions with the Chancellor’s Office will be in order very soon.

Morse acknowledged the success of the recent Area meetings and thanked all who
participated for a job well done. He also informed members of his recent
technical assistance visit to Antelope Valley College.

Adams provided the committee with an update on the audit. Due to delays with
both the auditors and the Senate Office, the audit is not ready for discussion at this
time. This item will return for discussion in the spring.

The Professional Development College modules are closer to launch. A glitch
was discovered in one of the modules and there are plans to correct it and launch
soon.

Adams attended the Basic Skills Advisory Committee meeting. Aschenbach was
elected to be the committee’s Co-Chair. This group will define the process for the
$70 million dollars on Basic Skills. Adams also attended the north CIAC
meeting, the north CTE regional meeting, and a southern C-ID DIG.

Adams updated members on the current registration counts for the ASCCC’s
upcoming institutes. This year’s Fall Plenary Session will host more attendees
than ever before.



B. Foundation President’s Report
May informed members that the ASFCCC’s Annual Fall Report 2015 is now
available on the Foundation website. The Professional Development College
Basics 101 modules is anticipated to be available later this month.

The Areas will compete in a raffle at the 2015 Fall Plenary Session to raise funds
for the Foundation. The grand prize will include registration to any three ASCCC
events through July 2016. The other four prizes are registrations to each of the
following institutes in 2016: Curriculum Institute, Accreditation Institute,
Academic Academy, and the Faculty Leadership Institute. The area that
purchases the most raffle tickets per person attending will win the coveted
Monkey Trophy. The Foundation will also host a reception on Thursday evening
at Plenary for its donors.

C. Liaison Oral Reports
¢ CCCI — Hansen updated members on CCCI’s 2015 Fall Conference.
CCCI also completed its second training session with legal advisors. The
first session focused on negotiations and relationships with legal advisors,
while the second session focused on investigations. Hansen closed his
report with legislative updates on several cases that CCCl is closely
following.

e FACCC — Vogel updated the committee on upcoming FACCC events.
The Part-Time Faculty Symposium will take place on November 7, 2015
and will focus on advocacy and other part-time issues. The FACCC will
also host the 2016 Policy Forum on accreditation in January and the 2016
Advocacy and Policy Conference in February.

FACCC is interested in working with counselors to develop an annual
counselor conference. Members of the Executive Committee expressed
concerns, as this interest may overlap with the work of the ASCCC. The
Executive Committee requested that the ASCCC be included in these
discussions if the interest persists.

Vogel completed her report with an update on legislation. The FACCC is
focusing on mental health/health services, as well as its continued fight for
part-time faculty service.

IV. ACTIONITEMS
A. Legislative Update
Bruno provided the committee with a brief update on legislation. AB 288
(Holden), AB 404 (Chiu), and AB798 (Bonilla) have all passed. On the other
hand, SB 42 (Liu) and AB 968 (Williams) were vetoed by the Governor.



In accordance with the ASCCC Strategic Plan, the Legislative and Advocacy
Committee (LAC) is developing a legislative agenda aligned with goals of the
ASCCC and actively pursuing bills of interest. The LAC recently identified three
areas of interest for inclusion in the ASCCC 2016 Legislative Agenda: Audit Fee
Change, Stand Alone Course Approval, and Student Mental Health Services. The
LAC is interested in partnering with the Chancellor’s Office, FACCC, and other
system partners to explore these areas further. Bruno noted this is a preliminary
agenda that will likely grow as the 2016 legislation session advances.

MSC (Freitas/Davison) to confirm the development of the Legislative Agenda
with the three areas of interest and to approve further exploration of these
areas with our system partners.

Action:
Bruno will work with the Legislative and Advocacy Committee to explore its
three areas of interest and continue to develop the 2016 Legislative Agenda.

. Accreditation Institute

The ASCCC Accreditation and Assessment Committee developed a draft program
for the annual Accreditation Institute in February. The Executive Committee
reviewed the program and offered suggestions for breakout topics, including
online education, student learning outcomes, and the Task Force on Accreditation

Report.

The draft program is a first read with anticipated approval at the January
Executive Committee meeting. No action was taken at this time.

. Instructional Design and Innovation Institute

The Executive Committee reviewed the draft program for the Instructional Design
and Innovation Institute (IDI) in January 2016. Members did not suggest any
major changes to the current draft. Because the Executive Committee will not
meet again until January, any modifications to the program will be resolved by
Rutan and Adams in collaboration with other members.

The registration count for this event is low. The committee discussed ways to
advertise the institute better and encourage more faculty to register,

Action:
Adams will send a message to the field advertising IDI.

. Effective Curriculum Processes Paper Outline

At the 2015 Spring Plenary Session, the body approved Resolution 9.01 S15
calling for a paper on effective practices for local curriculum approval. Following
the release of the report and recommendations from the Board of Governors Task
Force on Workforce, Job Creation and a Strong Economy, the ASCCC
Curriculum Committee recognized the urgent need to spur local senates and



curriculum committees to review their local processes. The Committee drafted a
white paper on effective local curriculum approval processes, which was
approved by the Executive Committee and distributed to the field this fall. The
Curriculum Committee is preparing to write the full paper and developed a draft
outline for review.

The Executive Committee reviewed the outline and offered suggestions to
incorporate information on the relationship with SLOs, effective practices for
legislative curriculum, role of program and academic planning.

MSC (Goold/North) to approve the outline for the paper on effective
curriculum practices.

Action:
Freitas will work with the Curriculum Committee to draft the paper on effective
curticulum processes for review at the February and March 2016 meetings.

. Workforce Taskforce Update and Direction

The ASCCC CTE Leadership Committee held three regional meetings in October
to review the recommendations from the Task Force on Workforce, Job Creation
and a Strong Economy and discuss implementation strategies for those
recommendations that fall within faculty purview., Bruno noted that the CIOs are
also discussing implementation with special attention to regional coordination and
funding.

Overall, the regional meetings yielded good attendance; however, the fourth
meeting in the central region was cancelled due to a lack of registrants. Goold
suggested that the committee consider different ways to reach out to campuses or
smaller departments that find it difficult to participate in these meetings because
they are too far away.

Bruno and Goold provided the Executive Committee with an informational report
on the findings of the regional meetings. No action was required at this time.

. Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications Paper

In Fall 2014, the body passed Resolution 14.01 calling for a revision to the
Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications paper. The Executive Committee
reviewed the outline submitted by the ASCCC Standards and Practices
Committee and provided feedback.

MSC (North/Rutan) to approve the outline for revision to the paper
Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications.

Action:
Stanskas will work with the Standards and Practices Committee to revise the
Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications paper.



V. DISCUSSION
A. Chancellor’s Office Liaison Report
Escajeda provided the Executive Committee with an update from the Chancellor’s

Office;

The Chancellor’s Office has received positive feedback on the new
curriculum process for policy hours and units, and there are plans to
incorporate this into the PCAH. Work is also being done to develop an
auto-approval system for non-substantial credit courses.

The Chancellor’s Office is working with CCC Tech Center to develop a
new curricular inventory system that will be effective July 1, 2016 and
replace Governet. It is important to note that incomplete records in the
current Curriculum Inventory will not be transferred to the new system.

A Title 5 workgroup is developing a handbook to provide strict parameters
for the implementation of Bachelor’s Degree programs at the 15 pilot
colleges. A draft of the handbook will go to Consultation Council on
November 19, and then to the Board of Governors in January 2016 as a
first read. A $750,000 Request for Applications (RFA) for the Bachelor’s
Degree Program will be selected on November 30, and will go to the
Board of Governors for approval in January.

Fifty-eight community colleges have met the SB 440 requirements to
develop ADTs. Currently, there are 32 Transfer Model Curriculum
(TMC) Templates and 1973 approved Associate Degrees for Transfer
(ADT).

The Chancellor’s Office is in the process of surveying the field to identify
courses that students are awarded for prior military experience.

A $60 million Request for Applications (RFA) for the Community College
Basic Skills and Student Outcomes Transformation Program and a $10
million RFA for the Basic Skills Partnership Pilot Program are under
development and will be released in December 2015.

B. Board of Governors/Consultation Council
The Board of Governors have not met since the last Executive Committee

meeting, so there are no updates at this time.

The Consultation Council met on October 8, 2015 and discussed allocation of the
Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Fund. The EEQ Committee forwarded a
set of possible allocation metrics to Consultation for advice and input. More
information is available in the Consultation digest. Morse noted, as these metrics
become more defined, the Executive Committee may consider developing a
resolution. However, at this time, the metrics are still very general.

Legislation, the Accreditation Task Force Report, and the Workforce Task Force
recommendations were also discussed at Consultation.



C. Fall Plenary Session
The Executive Committee discussed final plans for the Fall Plenary Session
beginning on Thursday. Morse and Adams informed new members about
processes and protocol regarding the participation in the plenary session.

D. ASCCC Audit
Adams pulled this item from the agenda because the audit is not yet complete.
This item will return for discussion in the spring.

E. GEAC General Education Area B4 Update
As recommended by the CSU Chancellor’s General Education Advisory
Committee, the California State University will allow the statistics pathways
curriculum to satisfy the Quantitative Reasoning requirement through Fall 2019.
The CSU Academic Senate has expressed a desire to open a conversation with
several groups, including the ASCCC, about what the expected minimum
competency in quantitative reasoning is for those earning Baccalaureate degrees.

This item served to inform the Executive Committee and provide it the
opportunity to discuss these developments. A breakout will also be held at
plenary to alert the field. This item will return for further discussion, and possible
action, as new developments occur.

F. Approval of the PCAH 6" Edition and the Consultation Process
The 6™ edition of the Program and Course Approval Handbook (PCAH) is
currently being drafted by a writing team of faculty and CIOs, under the guidance
of SACC, with the goal of obtaining approval from the Board of Governors by
May 2016. The Board of Governors Standing Order 332(c) requires that “the
Academic Senate be primarily relied upon whenever a policy involves an
academic and professional matter.” This raises the question as to whether the
Executive Committee will need to adopt a resolution recommending that the
Board of Governors approve these revisions to the PCAH.

Morse clarified that the Academic Senate has deputized the faculty members of
SACC to approve these changes. Regulatory changes, however, must go through
the Senate’s resolution process.

VI. REPORTS
A. Standing Committee Minutes

L. Faculty Development, Rutan

ii. Noncredit, Aschenbach

ii. Online Education, Davison

iv. Relations with Local Senates, Rico

v. TASSC, May
B. Liaison Reports
in COERC, Davison



i. FACCC, Crump

iii, Online Teaching Conference Planning Group, Davison
iv. SACC, Freitas

V. SSSP and Student Equity Directors Training, Rico

Vi. TTAC, Freitas

vii.  Helmsley Charitable Trust Convening, Freitas

VII. ADJOURNMENT
The Executive Committee meeting was adjourned at 5:00 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by

Sandra Sanchez, Executive Assistant
Julie Adams, Executive Director
John Stanskas, Secretary






E‘ﬁ' Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBIJECT: Resolution Assignments Month: January ] Year: 2016
{tem No I B.
Attachment: YES

DESIRED QUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider for Urgent: YES

approval the resolution assignments from the Time Requested:
2015 Fall Plenary Session.

CATEGORY: Consent TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: David Morse Consent/Routine X

First Reading X
STAEF REVIEWL: 1 Julie Adams ' ' Action

Information

Please hote: Staff will complete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

Immediately following each plenary session, the Resolutions Committee chair is required to bring
forward the resolutions for assignment to individuals or groups. Specifically the resolution’s manual
states,

The President and Executive Director meet to develop a list of draft resolution assignments to
Senate committees, task forces or appropriate individuals. At the first Executive Committee
meeting following the plenary session, the Resolutions Chair submits an agenda item for first
reading and action of the draft resolution assignments and the resolutions referred by the body
at plenary session. The Resolutions Committee will provide the Executive Committee with
recommendations on how to dispose of the referred resolutions. The Executive Committee will
approve the resolution assignments and act on the recommended dispositions of the referred
resolutions and make assignments as appropriate to complete the tasks included in the referral
instructions. Prior to the next plenary session, the Resolutions Chair will monitor the work on
the referred resolutions and ensure that any revised resolutions are submitted to the Executive
Committee in time for review and recommendation to Area meetings per the timeline assigned
in the referral.

The President has suggested assighments for the resolutions as noted on the attached spreadsheet.
The Executive Committee will consider for approval these resolution assignments.

! staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






Resoluti_on

Aésigned

g Year [Title -
« ~ 2,001 F15 |ACCREDITATION @ wrre wra o -
2.01| F15 |Adopt the ASCCC Paper Effective Practices in Accreditation Executive Director
2.02{ F15 |Endorse the CCCCO Task Force on Accreditation Report President
- 7.00] F15 |CONSULTATION WITH CHANCELLOR'SOFFICE =~ == -
7.01] F15 |[LGBT MiS Data Collection and Dissemination President
7.02| F15 |Support for Authorization Reciprocity Agreements President
7.03] F15 [Ensuring Accurate Information in the California Virtual Campus Catalog |Online Committee
7.04] F15 |Economic Workgorce Development (EWD) Program Evaluation CTELC
9.00] F15 J{CURRICULUM e
9.01] F15 |Creation of Local Online Education Rubrics Online Committee
Defining the Parameters of the California Community College
9.02| F15 |Baccalaureate Degree inTitle 5 SACC
Baccalaureate Level General Education at the California Community
9.03| F15 [Colleges SACC
Limitations on Enroliment and Admission Criteria for Baccalaureate
9.04] F15 |Programs SACC
Upper Division General Education Curriculum for Baccalaureate Pilot
9.05 Fi15 |Programs President
9.06| F15 |Support for Baccalaureate Pilot Programs President
9.07| F15 |Definition of Regular, Effective, and Substantive Contact Online Committee
9.08| F15 |Evaluation of the Effectiveness of Local Curriculum Processes Curriculum Committee
9.09( F15 [Revisit the Title 5 Definition of the Credit Hour Curriculum Committee
9.10| F15 |Professional Guidelines and Effective Practices for Using Publisher OEl Representatives
9.11] F15 |Oppose External Honors Programs Curriculum Committee
9.12( F15 |[Support Local Development of Curricular Pathways Curriculum Committee
9,13 F15 |Develop Descriptors for Alternative Prerequisites for Statistics C-D
9.14] F15 |Resolution in Support of Credit ESL Noncredit Committee
- 10.00f F15  |DISCIPLINES LIST - -
Minimum Qualifications for Instruction of Upper Division Courses at the
10.01| F15 |California Community Colleges Standards and Practices
+ 12.00] F15 |FACULTY DEVELOPMENT E1E ] ' i
Professional Development
12.01| F15 |Hiring Culturally Aware Faculty Committee
12,02 F15 [Mutually Agreed Upon Criteria for Setting Hrrlng Priorities Campus-mde President/FDC
13.00] F15 |GENERAL CONCERNS - ¥ s s ~ s el
Addition of Course Identification Numbers (C-ID) to College Catalogs and
13.01| F15 |[Student Transcripts c-ID
13.02| F15 |Update System Guidance for Noncredit Curriculum Noncredit Cormmittee
Opposition to Compensation for Adoption of Open Educational
13.03| F15 {Resources President
13.04| F15 ([Faculty Participation and Leadership in CTE Regional Consortia CTE LC
13.05| F15 |Condolences for Colleges and Universities Affected By Violence President
15.00] F15 |INTERSEGMENTAL - - - - - -~ .. .
15.01] F15 |Adoption of Statement on Competencies in the Natural Sciences President







ﬁ‘ Academic Senate
{_ for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIF, EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.
Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBIJECT: Noncredit Regional Meetings Month: January | Year: 2016
dtem No: 1L C. ‘
Attachment: NO
DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider for Urgent: NO
approval Noncredit Regional Meetings for Time Requested:
spring 2016.
CATEGORY: Consent TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Cheryl Aschenbach Consent/Routine X
First Reading
STAFF REVIEWL Julie Adams Action
Discussion

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

In Spring 2015, the Noncredit Committee held two regional meetings, north and south, for the first time to
provide the field with noncredit information and help colleges formulate plans for using noncredit to
accomplish AB86 and CDCP objectives.

Since those regionals, noncredit has been a popular topic at the Curriculum Institute, Curriculum Regionals,
and Fall Plenary. Plus, technical visits with a noncredit emphasis have been conducted, and faculty at other
events like the Association of Continuing and Community Education (ACCE) regional meetings have requested
opportunities for more training about noncredit and more ideas about how noncredit is being used at other

colleges.

The 2015-2016 Noncredit Committee would like to held another set of regional meetings in Spring 2016. The
intent is to share information with the field about noncredit basics and the potential for an expansion of
noncredit to address objectives within Student Equity Plans, Student Success and Support Program Plans,
Adult Education Block Grants, the Basic Skills Initiative, and Workforce Taskforce recommendations. The
committee would seek two colleges, one north and one south, willing to host the events.

The structure of the regionals would be similar to the structure of Curriculum and Online regionals: a general
session in the morning with updates from the Noncredit Committee and Chancellor’s Office and perhaps a
noncredit nuts and bolts presentation. Following the general session would be breakouts with topics that
may include program and curriculum examples; mare information about the potential for noncredit to
address current grants, plans, and initiatives; technical assistance for CDCP course entry; and others. While
some of these topics have been and continue to be covered at other ASCCC events, the audience is expected
to primarily be noncredit practitioners and faculty leaders or administrators interested in developing
noncredit, which is different than most plenaries and institutes.

1 Staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.



Given other ASCCC events already scheduled for spring 2016, the Noncredit Committee suggests scheduling
Noncredit regionals for April 15 &16, 2016 {preferred, before Plenary) or April 29 & 30 {second choice, after
Plenary).



4

LEADERSH

Academic Senate
for California Community Colleges

P, EMPOWEHRMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Professional Development College (PDC) Modules Month: January I Year: 2016
Kem No: Il D
Attachment: NO
DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider for Urgent: YES
approval tasking the suggested Time Requested:

groups/committees with the development of
the approved modules for the Professional
Development College (PDC).

CATEGORY: Consent TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Craig Rutan Consent/Routine X

First Reading X
STAFE REVIEW!: Julie Adams ‘ Action

Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:
At the November meeting, the Executive Committee approved the development of five additional
modules for the Professional Development College (PDC). These modules were

Basics of Academic Senates

Inmate Education

Minimum Qualifications and Equivalency

Increasing Inclusivity Through Better Communication
Hiring of Diverse Faculty

At the December meeting of the Faculty Development Committee (FDC), the committee discussed
possible individuals or committees to develop each of these modules. The FDC recommends that
the Executive Committee assign the development of these modules to the following committees or

groups of individuals.

Basics of Academic Senates: Relations with Local Senates Committee using a PowerPoint
presentation originally prepared by Mark Wade Liu and the newly adopted Local Senates
Handbook.

Inmate Education: Julie Adams and Cleavon Smith

Minimum Qualifications and Equivalency: Standards and Practices Committee

Increasing Inclusivity Through Better Communication: Faculty Development Committee
Hiring of Diverse Faculty: Adrienne Foster and the Equity and Diversity Action Committee
(EDAC)

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.







4 Academic Senate
SN for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP,. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.
Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBIJECT: Professional Development College {PDC) Module on Peer Month: January | Year: 2016
Review Ttem No, I E.
Attachment: NO
DESIRED QUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider for Urgent: NO
approval the recommended direction to Time Requested:
address Resolution 19.03 52013.
CATEGORY: Consent TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Rutan/Davison Consent/Routine X
First Reading X
STAFF REVIEW!: Julie Adams - n Action
' | Information

PIeasé note: Staff will complete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

At the August 2015 Executive Committee meeting, Resolution 19.03 52013 was assigned to the
Faculty Development Committee (FDC). The resolution includes the following resolved clause:

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges work with statewide
bargaining organizations and other relevant constituencies to develop training materials
and/or other guidance to help local colleges and districts establish effective training
processes for faculty engaged in peer evaluation

Previously, the Academic Senate has assigned this resolution to a task force in 2013-14 and to the
Professional Development Committee in 2014-15. Following the end of 2014-15, the Professional
Development Committee recommended that this resolution be assigned to the Educational Policies
Committee to be completed. Following conversations between the chairs of the Faculty Development
Committee and the Educational Policies Committee, we are recommending the Educational Policies
be tasked with collecting the best practices on peer review and that Faculty Development Committee
use the information collected to develop a new module for the Professional Development College on
effective peer review.

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






L :
Academic Senate
(E for Californ::: Coﬁl':'mnity Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: ASCCC Personnel Manuai | Month: January | Year: 2016
temNotILF
Attachment: YES (via ASCCC webSIte)
DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider for Urgent: YES
approval revisions to the ASCCC Personnel Time Requested:
Manual.
CATEGORY: Consent TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Julie Adams Consent/Routine X
L - First Reading
 STAFF REVIEWS | Juiie Adams F - = = | Action
I e R i T TR Tt | Information/Discussion

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

There have been a number of new laws affecting employment practices that passed recently which
required our Personnel Manual to be updated. Since our manual has not been reviewed for over 5
years, we hired a human resources professional to review the entire manual. The human resources
professional suggested numercus changes which are reflected in the attached manual. Please note
that the human resources professional comments have been left in to assist you with understanding
why the changes were made. In summary, most changes were suggested because of new laws and
others were to bring our policies in line with effective personnel practices.

The changes to the Personnel Manual were sent to Executive Committee members in December and
only one comment was received.

The revised Personnel Manual is available on the ASCCC website under the January Executive
Committee Meeting: http://asccc.org/executive committee/meetings

! Staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion,






»

= 2 A :
cademic Senate
SIS for California Community Colleges

LEADERSRHBIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda ltem

SUBJECT: Online Education Regional Meetings Month: January | Year: 2016
ftem No il G.
Attachment: YES / NO
DESIRED OQUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider for Urgent: YES / NO

approval the draft agenda for Online Education | Time Requested:
Regional Meetings.

CATEGORY: Consent TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Dolores Davison Consent/Routine X
First Reading X
STAFE REVIEW!. Julie Adamis ' B Action
Discussion

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas. |

BACKGROUND:

The Online Education Committee has created a proposal for the agenda for the Online Education
Regionals, to be held April 8-9, 2016. Additional suggestions for inclusion in the breakouts and/or

the general sessions are requested.

Online Education Regionals

Friday, 8 April 2016, College of San Mateo

Saturday, 9 April 2016, South Location (TBD)

Draft Schedule:

8:45-9:30
9:30 - 10:30
10:30—10:45
10:45 - 11:45
12:00—12:45
12:50—1:50
2:00 -- 3:00

3pm

Registration and Continental Breakfast
General Session — Updates

Break

General Session Continued

Lunch

Breakout #1 (2-3 breakouts)

Breakout #2 (2-3 breakouts)

Dismissal

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.




Breakout Session Possibilities

Online Education and Accessibility

Regular and Effective Contact

Online Professional Development

Course Design and Online Instruction

Canvas Transition — Struggles and Successes

DE Addendum/Accreditation/Other issues

Cool4Ed/OER

Equity and Online Education

Academic Advising for Online

Non-DE online resources - using DE tools for non-DE courses
Online student success and how to move this needle
Nontraditional online - labs, CTE, basic skills, noncredit, inmate education



b

=" Academic Senate
C*: for California Community Colleges
LEADEESHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: 2016 Accreditation Institute Program Maonth: January Year: 2016
ftem Ny Il H.
Attachment: YES
DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider for Urgent: YES
approval the program for the 2016 Time Requested:
Accreditation Institute.
CATEGORY: Consent TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Randy Beach Consent/Routine X
First Reading
'STAFF REVIEW™: Juhe Adams Action
| Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND: The Accreditation and Assessment Committee will host the annual Accreditation
Institute February 19-February 20, 2016. The committee has finalized the breakout and general
sessions and has identified many presenters. Additionally, ASCCC Executive Committee members
who plan to attend are asked to consider participating in breakouts where they have expertise. This
is a second read and action needs to be taken in order to finalize the presenters and complete the
planning of the institute.

! staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






ASCCC Accreditation Institute
February 19-20, 2015
San Diego Marriott

PEER REVIEW: COLLEGIALITY, COLLABORATION,
OPTIMISM, AND EXCELLENCE

ALL PRESENTERS ARE TENTATIVE
Friday, February 19

9:00AM Continental Breakfast and Check-In
10:00 — 11:00 General Session 1

Welcome

“Peer Review in Action: The Institutional Effectiveness Partnership Initiative and the
Benefits of Peer Consultation for Accreditation.”

Theresa Tena, IEPI

Julie Bruno, ASCCC Vice President

Presenter, TBD

Presenter, TBD

Look for presenters who have served on a PRT, Have been visited by a PRT. SP 15
PRT groups. Work with Matthew Lee and look for names.

The importance and value of peer review were reaffirmed in the CCCCOQ’s Accreditation
Task Force’s report as benefit of the accreditation process, and the CCCCO’s
Institutional Effectiveness Partnership Initiative (IEPI) seeks to engage community
colleges in that spirit of collegiality that makes peer review valuable, This general
session is a conversation with stakeholders on the benefits of peer review as the
primary driver of accreditation. Panelists and representatives with the IEPI discuss
success stories and new ideas and innovations that have resulted through the peer
review process, including advancements in SLOs, integrated planning, and resource
allocation models.

Outcomes: Attendees learn about and understand the IEPI approach to peer review and
innovations that have happened as a result of peer review collaboration.

11:15 — 12:15 Breakout Session 1



Breakout 1: “Accreditation 101"

Craig Rutan, ASCCC Area D Representative
ACCJC Representative TBD

Presenter, TBD

So, this is your first accreditation institute, huh? This breakout provides the general
overview you're looking for. Learn about the accreditation process and the four
standards that work together to define the institution’s competence to promote student
success, academic quality, institutional integrity, and excellence in all academic
programs including career technical education programs. This session will also describe
the requirement to establish and report Institution Set Standards and Substantive
Change.

Outcomes: Attendees will learn fundamentals of the accreditation process and the
ACCJC standards, including the requirement for Institution Set Standards and
Substantive Change.

Breakout 2: “The Infrastructure of Accreditation: The Department of Education and The
Regional Accreditors”

Alice Taylor, West Los Angeles College

Rebecca Wolniewicz, Southwestern College

Presenter, TBD

Many myths and questions continue to surround the role the federal government piays
in the accreditation process and the regional accreditation system currently used in
higher education in the United States. In this breakout, presenters clarify the roles and
responsibilities of the regional accreditors, the Council for Higher Education
Accreditation, National Advisory Committee on Institutional Quality and Integrity.
Presenters will outline the steps required to become accredited by a regional accreditor.

Outcomes: Attendees will explore the steps to become accredited by a regional
accrediting agency as well as the role of the Higher Education Act and government
agencies in community college accreditation.

Breakout 3: “Effective Practices in Accreditation: Standard | Mission, Academic Quality
and Institutional Effectiveness, and Integrity”

Maria del Rosario C. Biddenback, Napa Valley College

Stephanie Curry, Reedley College

Presenter, TBD



The ASCCC recently approved the paper “Effective Practices in Accreditation: A Guide
To Support Colleges In The Accreditation Cycle.” This workshop strand highlights
changes in the standards and effective practices from colleges throughout the state that
have demonstrated exemplary ways to meet the standards. This breakout focuses on
effective practices for Standard I: Mission, Academic Quality and Institutional
Effectiveness, and Integrity. This presentation will also discuss the relevant Eligibility
Requirements and ACCJC Policies.

Outcomes: Attendees discuss Standard | and effective practices for meeting relevant
ACCJC eligibility requirements and policies.

Breakout 4: “Disaggregating Student Learning Outcomes Data: The Next SLO
Frontier?”

Randy Beach, At-Large Representative

Jarek Janio, Santa Ana College

Mike Howe, RP Group

Craig Hayward, Irvine Valley

Colleges now held to the revised ACCJC standards (1.B.6) are required to collect and
analyze student learning outcomes data in order to disaggregate that data and identify
achievement gaps for subpopulations of students. While some see potential for
achieving greater student success equity with this requirement, others question the
validity, even the morality, of the practice. In this joint breakout with the RP Group and
ASCCC, presenters and attendees will engage in a conversation about outcomes data
disaggregation and what challenges and opportunities may face colleges related to this

standard.

Outcomes: Participants will become aware of standard 1.B.6 as well as the variety of
viewpoints on the use of disaggregated data to improve student success for identified

subpopulations.
12:30 — 2:00 Lunch
General Session 2

Welcome
David Morse, ASCCC President
Ginni May, ASCCC Foundation President

“Meeting the Standards: Data and Evidence’
Matt Wetstein, RP Group



Kelly Cooper, West Valley College
John Stanskas, Executive Committee

{t's one thing to have data on your institution’s effectiveness, but sometimes the hardest
part of an accreditation process is working with that data and then telling your story
effectively. In this general session, presenters will provide concrete effective practices
for using data to meet the standards, analyzing data for improvement, and documenting
your institution’s dialog on effectiveness data.

Outcomes: Attendees will develop a list of concrete practices for working with data to
meet standards and tips for facilitating meaningful conversations regarding data that
lead to program improvements.

2:15-3:30 Session 2

Breakout 1: “How To Help Your Evaluation Team Help You: Peer Review and Your
ACCJC External Visiting Team”

Maria del Rosario C. Biddenback, Napa Valley College

Stephanie Curry, Reedley College

Alice Taylor, West Los Angeles College

ACCJC Representative TBD

The external visiting team is the face of ACCJC for most college staff and faculty during
the time of a visit. But what is the role of the team in the process and how can your
college ensure the team has all it needs to do a comprehensive and fair evaluation?
From the moment you begin collecting data to write your self-evaluation to the moment
the team leaves your campus, there are concrete ways you can create your report,
catalog the evidence, provide updates and information for the team, and prepare for the
team’s visit that will support a positive experience for all involved. Presenters will
discuss those actions and suggest dos and don'’ts for working with your external team.

Outcomes: Attendees will learn ways to prepare a self-evaluation report that is user-
friendly and anticipates the needs of the visiting team. Attendees will also learn from the
experiences of past site team members and share their own experiences.

Breakout 2: “Designing Data Metrics in Program Review: What Are the Questions to
Ask?”

Kelly Cooper, West Valley College

Presenter, TBD

Presenter, TBD



Collecting, managing, and analyzing data can be a daunting task for colleges when
completing institutional planning efforts such as program review. SLO data,
achievement data, and institution set standards data are just a few data points upon
which colleges should take action, but often faculty and others without training in
research analysis fall short of meaningful data analysis. This breakout focuses on the
kinds of data colleges should consider collecting and tools for analyzing the data.

Outcomes: Attendees will identify important data points for institutionai planning and
learn strategies for analyzing the collected data.

Breakout 3: “Effective Practices in Accreditation: Standard || Student Learning
Programs and Support Services”

Rebecca Wolniewicz, Southwestern College

Randy Beach, At-Large Representative

Presenter, TBD

The ASCCC recently approved the paper “Effective Practices in Accreditation: A Guide
To Support Colleges In The Accreditation Cycle.” This workshop strand highlights
changes in the standards and effective practices from colleges throughout the state that
have demonstrated exemplary ways to meet the standards. This breakout focuses on
effective practices for Standard Il: Student Learning Programs and Services with a
focus on the requirements regarding student learning outcomes and distance education.
This presentation will also discuss the relevant Eligibility Requirements and ACCJC

Policies.

Qutcomes: Attendees discuss Standard !! and effective practices for meeting relevant
ACCJC eligibility requirements and policies.

Breakout 4: “The IEPI Framework: Integrated Planning And Disaggregating Data”
Ginni May, ASCCC South Representative

Andrew LaManque, Associate Vice President for Instruction, Foothill College
Presenter, TBD

The Institutional Effectiveness Partnership Initiative (IEPI) Policies, Procedures, and
Practices Work Group is creating a Best Practices Framework/Guide that could be used
by Partnership Resource Teams (PRT) and colleges for institutional effectiveness
efforts. The first two areas for this framework/guide are Integrated Planning and
Disaggregation of Data as these pertain to college practices and processes. Members
of the work group will present their work thus far in these two areas, and invite
attendees to share suggestions and feedback for approaches to identifying these “best
practices”.



Outcome: Attendees wili learn about effective practices for integrated planning and data
disaggregation based on the work of the [EPI.

3:45-5:00 Session3

Breakout 1: “Education Centers and Off-Site Locations: Addressing the Standards in
Every Location”

Craig Rutan, ASCCC Area D Representative

Stephanie Curry, Reedley College

Presenter, TBD

Single and multi-college districts that offer courses at education centers recognized by
the CCCCO must ensure planning processes are equitable throughout the district.
Presenters will highlight standards where attention should be paid to your district’s
educational locations in areas such as instructional quality, student services, facilities
maintenance and planning, human resources, technology, funding allocations,
integrated planning, and other aspects of the accreditation process.

Outcomes: Attendees will develop a list of accreditation standards which are most
relevant to their Higher Education Centers and discuss strategies for addressing those
standards.

Breakout 2: “The A to Z of DE: Accreditation and the Online Classroom”
Dolores Davidson, ASCCC Area B Representative

Alice Taylor, West Los Angeles College

Presenter, TBD

External evaluation teams often enter online courses as part of the team site visit
process, but what exactly are they looking for? What are they looking for in terms of
equitable student services for online students? What about effective student-teacher
contact? This breakout with the ASCCC Online Education Committee highlights what
team members will consider when reviewing online courses and services and what
areas colieges should focus on to comply with standards and improve institutional
effectiveness.

QOutcomes: Attendees will understand key elements of online classes and services that
are emphasized in the accreditation process and what practices to encourage among
their faculty teaching online.



Breakout 3: Equity and Accreditation
Cleavon Smith, ASCCC Exec

John Stanskas, Executive Committee
Presenter, TBD

The term “equity” in the context of accreditation standards includes many areas:
academic quality, student services, institutional integrity, human resource practices,
disaggregation of SLO assessment data and other areas. This breakout with the
ASCCC Equity and Diversity Action Committee will focus on institutional practices
intended to increase equity and how to leverage student equity initiatives to meet
accreditation standards.

Outcomes: Aftendees will review standards related to equity and learn practices for
addressing them, especially in light of the student equity initiates statewide.

Breakout 4. Effective Practices in Accreditation: Standard 1l Resources
Randy Beach, At-Large Representative

Matt Wetstein, RP Group

Presenter, TBD

The ASCCC recently approved the paper “Effective Practices in Accreditation: A Guide
To Support Colleges In The Accreditation Cycle.” This workshop strand highlights
changes in the standards and effective practices from colleges throughout the state that
have demonstrated exemplary ways to meet the standards. This breakout focuses on
effective practices for Standard Ill: Resources including an emphasis on part-time
faculty involvement, student learning outcomes in evaluations, and addressing total cost
of ownership for facilities and budget planning.

Outcomes: Attendees discuss Standard |l and effective practices for meeting relevant
ACCJC eligibility requirements and policies.

5:30 ASCCC Foundation Reception
Saturday, February 21
8:30 —9:45 Session 4

Breakout 1: Data Visualization: Making Sense of the Numbers
Kelly Cooper, West Valley College

Stephanie Curry, Reediey College

Presenter, TBD



Analyzing and discussing data can lead to improved student success and institutional
effectiveness practices, but presenting the data in a digestible format is a crucial step in
facilitating college-wide dialog. in this breakout learn about tools to help you present
and disseminate data for all types of audiences and effective practices for involving
everyone in the discussion.

Outcomes: Attendees will learn about tools and practices for presenting data to all
constituencies on campus.

Breakout 2: Student Learning Outcomes and Program Review: Student Learning
Assessment as the Driver for Program Improvement

Randy Beach, At-Large Representative

Jarek Janio, Santa Ana College

Jim Fillpot, Dean, Institutional Research & Resource Development, Chaffey College
Laura Hope, Dean, School of Instructional Support and Library Services, Chaffey
College

Student learning outcomes assessment data constitute grassroots advocacy for
program improvement and student success, as well as innovation in the classroom, and
colleges that are still struggling with closing the ioop on outcomes assessment as
change mechanism for program improvement face rigorous scrutiny by accrediting
teams and sanction. In this breakout, ASCCC Accreditation and Assessment Committee
members and Institutional Effectiveness Partnership Initiative presenters will provide
models for using outcomes assessment data in program review not only to comply with
the standards but also to increase student success and bring about program
improvements.

Outcomes: Attendees will review basic principles of student learning outcomes
assessment as a means of defining program improvements and examples of program
review processes that integrate student learning outcomes data.

Breakout 3: Effective Practices in Accreditation: Standard IV Leadership and
Governance

Craig Rutan, ASCCC Area D Representative

Presenter, TBD

Presenter, TBD

The ASCCC recently approved the paper “Effective Practices in Accreditation: A Guide
To Support Colleges In The Accreditation Cycle.” This workshop strand highlights
changes in the standards and effective practices from colleges throughout the state that



have demonstrated exemplary ways to meet the standards. This breakout focuses on
effective practices for Standard IV: Leadership and Governance including participatory

decision-making, and the expectations for CEOs, Governing Boards, and multi-coliege
districts.

Outcomes: Attendees discuss Standard |V and effective practices for meeting relevant
ACCJC eligibility requirements and policies.

Breakout 4: The New Standards: Conversations and Reflections
Alice Taylor, West Los Angeles College

Maria del Rosario C. Biddenback, Napa Valley College

ACCJC Representative TBD

Presenter, TBD

As more and more colleges are held accountable for the newly revised standards,
dialog and conversation among community college faculty and staff is essential to help
colleges interpret the new standards and take actions now to address them. In this
breakout, faculty and staff from colleges such as Napa College and the Los Angeles
Community College District will discuss their experiences with the new standards to

date.

Outcomes: Attendees will discuss the newly revised 2014 ACCJC standards with faculty
and staff from colleges that have been visited or wil! soon be visited by a site team to
learn tips and advice for their own district.

10:00 - 11:45 General Session 3

The Quality Focus Essay
Bob Pacheco Dean of Institutional Planning, Research and Grants, Mira Costa College

and Assessment Chair for the Research and Planning Group
ACCJC Representative TBD
Other Panel guests

The newly revised standards now expect colleges to submit a Quality Focus Essay that
explains and commits to two or three areas for further study, improvement, and
enhancement of academic quality. These areas of further development are intended to
enhance student cutcomes and student success. In this general session we will discuss
the requirement, what a QFE should and should not do, and strategies for writing a QFE
that lead to meaningful and sustainable change.



Outcomes: Attendees understand the purpose of the QFE and learn strategies for
writing one.

Closing Remarks
Randy Beach

10



/“‘.’ " Academic Senate
E for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP., EMPOWERMENT, VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Technical Assistance Curriculum Visits Month: January | Year: 2016
tem Na: 1. 1.
Attachment: NO
DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee to consider for Urgent: YES / NO
approval the costs associated with providing Time Requested:
technical assistance on curriculum issues.
CATEGORY: Consent TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Julie Adams Consent/Routine X
First Reading
'STAFFREVIEW! Jufie Adams | Action
: Information/Discussion

Pledse note: Staff will complete the jrey areas.
BACKGROUND:

At its March 2015 Executive Committee meeting, members approved by consensus the following
technical assistance process for addressing local curriculum issues. The original costs proposed in
the March item was $1,000 per visit to cover the travel costs of the ClO and curriculum chair or
representative. However, the Executive Committee directed the Executive Director to bring back a
cost proposal to a future meeting for consideration and possible approval.

The Executive Director proposes that the colleges requesting Curriculum Technical Assistance Visits
be charged for actual costs of travel for both representatives. However, in those situations where
technical assistance is urgent and the college does not have funding, the ASCCC would cover the
travel costs and explore if the CCCCIOs would do the same. The purpose of the technical assistance
is to help local colleges and funding should not be a barrier.

ASSISTANCE TO ASSURE EFFECTIVE PARTICIPATION IN DISTRICT AND COLLEGE CURRICULUM
APPROVAL PROCESSES

(A Joint Program of the Academic Senate and California Community College Chief Instructional
Officers (CCCCIOs)) The Academic Senate for California Community Colleges and the California
Community College Chief Instructional Officers have joined together to offer a program of assistance
for local colleges and districts. The purpose of the program is to help districts and colleges
successfully implement state law and regulations involving curriculum. The services offered will be
most effective if used before major conflicts arise and prior to a heightened level of local unilateral

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.



action by any of the parties involved in the local curriculum processes. The jointly-sponsored
program does not replace the individual services offered by the CCCCIO ta chief instructional
officers and by the Academic Senate to local faculty. Yet it is recognized that challenges to improve
curriculum processes can be aided by the mutual support of the statewide organizations, Because
the services are carried out by volunteers of the CCCCIO and Academic Senate, the services will not
always be available on short notice and scheduled assistance should be arranged well in advance.
The program includes four distinct services that are available. Local college and district CIOs and
faculty leaders who are interested in assistance should meet together to consider the services and
to agree mutually on what assistance would be most beneficial. Although the program is intended
to be flexible so that a mix of the four services or optional services may be available, the CCCCIO and
Academic Senate may not be able to help with some requests which vary too much from the four
defined services or from the goal of improving the effectiveness of curriculum processes. The
president of the Academic Senate and the president of the CCCCIO are available at this early stage
to answer questions and to help in identifying the best approach. These two persons will reach
agreement as to whether the mutual request for assistance can be carried out. No joint service will
be provided unless there is a written request for assistance signed by the college president or
district chancellor and local academic senate president. This joint program is coordinated and
implemented by the President of the CCCCIO and President of the Academic Senate under policies
established by their respective boards. Each district or college using the service is expected to
reimburse the travel expenses for the assistance team members, The following provides a summary
of the four services available within the assistance program: 1) informational presentation, 2)
advisory assistance, 3) issue resolution and 4) special workshops and presentations.

INFORMATION PRESENTATION

The informational presentation service is intended to provide a basic overview of the state law,
state regulations, and guidelines concerning curriculum. The presentation is done by a
representative of the CCCCIO and Academic Senate and takes approximately two hours. Handouts
are provided, good practices highlighted, and questions answered. This service is best used at a
college or district where there are no significant issues of conflict but a recognition that many
participants in local shared governance roles are new and need an orientation or refresher on the

required processes.
ADVISORY ASSISTANCE

The advisory assistance service is intended to provide a facilitated and structured opportunity to
identify possible areas of conflict or different interpretations of the law and regulations and to
develop ways to resclve the differences. The service is conducted by one to two representatives of
the Academic Senate and the CCCCIO over four to six hours. The time includes a basic overview
presentation for all interested parties and separate meetings with the faculty and with the
administration. A written advisory report is provided by the assistance team to the district or college



within six weeks of the visit. The advisory report seeks to clarify the key issues identified by the
team during its visit, makes recommendations for addressing the issues, and suggests who might be
responsible for embarking on the solutions.

ISSUE RESOLUTION

The purpose of the issue resolution service is to provide mediation assistance to a college or district
when the parties have reached a stalemate and are unable to resolve their differences on a major
issue. This service will not be provided unless the ClIO and academic senate agree in advance and are
committed and open to address seriously the recommendations of the assistance team. Prior to the
six to eight hour visit of one to two representatives from the CCCCIO and Academic Senate, focused
discussions and investigation occur to clearly delineate in writing the issue to be resolved and the
approach to be used. During the visit there will be focused interviews with individuals and groups. A
written advisory report is provided by the assistance team within eight weeks of the visit. Prior to
the formal presentation of the written report, the local parties involved will be given an opportunity
to clarify, correct or refine the recommendations or statements in the report. The assistance team
will return to the college or district to present the report and to answer questions publicly. In
addition, a follow-up training session to provide guidance on implementing the recommendations
will be provided if requested.

SPECIAL WORKSHOPS AND PRESENTATIONS

The fourth service involves special workshops and presentations on topics that help local personnel
better understand particular issues and various aspects of effective curriculum processes. These
jointly presented workshops are designed under the direction of the President of the Academic
Senate and the CCCCIO, working with local college representatives.

COSTS

In an effort to offset travel costs associated with the CCCCIO and ASCCC President participation in
these events, colleges will be charged a small fee of $1,000 per visit.






A :
(— Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOILE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBIECT: AA to MA Program Month: January | Year: 2016
tem No: 1),
Attachment: No
DESIRED QUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider Urgent: No
authorization to pursue the AA to MA program. | Time Requested:
CATEGORY: Consent TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Morse/Bruno Consent/Routine X
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW': | Julie Adams Action
Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey aregs.
BACKGROUND:

Faculty diversity has been an important topic for the ASCCC for many years, and increasing faculty
diversity was included as an aspect of the ASCCC 2015-2018 Strategic Plan adopted in Spring 2015.
One suggestion for addressing this issue has been that we recruit our own students to become
faculty members. This strategy might not only help to diversify our faculty, given that our student
population is significantly more diverse than our faculty ranks, but would also help us to create
pools of potential faculty who better understand and can relate to our students and our mission.

To this end, Chancelior’s Office Interim Legal Counsel Thuy Nguyen has proposed the creation of an
“AA to MA” program that would encourage our students to pursue master’s degrees, both MA and
MS, and to then consider careers in community college teaching. The program may include loan
forgiveness for students, developing programs for tutoring and teaching assistantships to create
student interest, and other aspects. In consultation with the ASCCC President and Vice-President,
the Chancellor’s Office has proposed a task force of representatives from the ASCCC, CCLC, the Chief
instructional Officers, the Chief Human Resources Officers, FACCC, and the CCCCO that would work
to develop this program. Each of the other organizations would likely appoint one representative;
the ASCCC would have several appointees.

The intent of this agenda item is for the Executive Committee to endorse and authorize ASCCC
participation in this project.

! staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






y
ademic Senate
C_: for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda ltem

SUBJECT: The Best of the Rostrum

Month: January | Year: 2016

| ltem No: fl. K.

Attachment: NO

DESIRED OUTCOME:

The Executive Committee will consider for
approval creating a compendium of still
relevant Rostrum articles.

Urgent: NO

Time Requested:

CATEGORY: Consent TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Julie Adams Consent/Routine X

First Reading
STAFF REVIEW: | Jutie Adams | Action

Information/Discussion

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

in January 2015, the Executive Committee approved by consensus the creation of a compendium of
still relevant Rostrum articles. Similar to the “Red Book”, published by the AAUP, an ASCCC volume
of this type could be an important ongoing resources for local senates. The Executive Director was

directed to bring back a proposal on how to build such a compendium for discussion to a future

Executive Committee meeting.

As stated in the January 2015 agenda item, “articles can largely be divided into two categories.
Some are written to address immediate concerns or issues or to offer guidance on potential or

certain changes that are happening at the time of the publication. Others are more philosophical
and could be applied to almost any time period.” All articies are available on the ASCCC website,
but older articles that could still be helpful are outnumbered and buried by the more immediate
issue-driven type of articles so faculty are less likely to access this information that may be useful

and relevant to them.,

Each Standing Committee has a listing of relevant articles published by committee chairs or

members. The Executive Director proposes that each standing committee {not just the chairs)

review the list of Rostrum articles for inclusion in the Rostrum compendium following the criteria

listed below:

e Philosophical or dealing with standing ASCCC principles
o Offer guidance that can apply to any time period, regardless of the context of the original

publication

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.




¢ Deal with issues that are perennial faculty concerns not bound to a specific time period

The Executive Committee will consider for approval directing standing committees to create a list
of possible articles for inclusion in their end of year report due in May. The Local Senates
Committee and all Executive Committee members will also review past Rostrums not necessarily
authorized by a committee for inclusion in the compendium.

In May, the Executive Committee will consider for approval the articles for publishing in the
compendium and approval for funding to publish the document.



A‘ 3
+ Academic Senate
E. for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOILE.

Executive Committee Agenda Iltem

SUBJECT: ASCCC Strategic Plan

Month: January | Year: 2016

Item No: L L

Attachment: YES

DESIRED OUTCOME:

The Executive Committee will review the ASCCC

Urgent: NO

Strategic Plan and provide updates as

Time Requested:

necessary.
CATEGORY: Consent TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Julie Adams Consent/Routine X
First Reading
| STAFF REVIEWS: Julie Adams Action
! Information/Discussion

BACKGROUND:

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

The delegates approved the ASCCC Strategic Plan last spring plenary session and the Executive
Committee approved its strategic priorities for 2015 — 16 at its May meeting. During this fall term,
progress has been made in a number of the priorities identified by the Executive Committee. On the
attached Strategic Plan several updates to the priorities have been added based on the Executive
Director’s interactions with standing committees, discussions with Chancellor’s Office staff, as well
as her conversations with other groups and Executive Committee members. The Executive
Committee will review the Strategic Plan and provide written updates to the Executive Director no
later than January 31st. The updated information will be used to inform the ASCCC Annual Report.

! staff will review your item and provide additional resources to infarm the Executive Committee discussion.







# sada||o3 €171 |jB 128 03 payaune) 3g
i ™ uSiedwied e ‘Sulids uj ‘uosiel| !
; IAB|SISD| JDHSY ue Julodde
: 31eUs |B20| Yoea eyl Sunisanbal H
uolinjosal e panosdde sey HHosy B
i 3Y1 ‘uopuppe u| ‘aieudoidde se
Jo333.1(] 41BUD 931wy S]UBAB J3Y10 pue suoissas Aleus|d 'SJUDAT DSy dleudoudde
gT07 aun| g op 2A1IN23X3 Adedonpy aalesidan 12 pajuasaid ase soidoe) Aseoapy | e saido) Asedonpy sanejsiSa apnpau) Y |
"s3jeuds pue Ajndej Joy djysiapes| pue Asedoape Jo sian3ew ul ssiiunuoddo Suiuieay ajdinw ysjqeass :z'1 B3A13[qO !
B ' 22D Jo sanijod B2 Y] 3dUBApE :
Ajleninw Aew am Moy pue s3salajul
. UOWIWOI SSNSIP 0] uoiednpa Jaysiy
* VLD PUB ‘L3 900V 4O sAeluasaidal
Jopaaia pue 1s1Aqqo] aae|siga) ayl
ON aAI3N2AX] saAnejuasalday 0400 YaMm yj4om pue sdiysuolie|as a1ealyny -3
B TSR _| . "Siapew |eucissajoid pue djwapese
sduepuajle Jopang _ ; 0] pale|aL S92UBI3UO0D [euoljeu
32UBIBJUO0I-SIA 2AINIIXT siley) aapjwwo) ", pue 21e315 pusie pue yaieasay Qg
| - 1] "30JSV 2U3 40 AL[IQISIA 33 d1ouwoud
9TQZ BUN[ | S|BIIBIN--SBA  J01D8.IQ IAI1E30D 40132110 9AIIN33X] 01 udiedwed suorjefds Jgnd e dojsaaq D
F= = ‘Bunaaw Jax3 Asenuer ay) | "}5319)3U1 JO S|Iq ansand AjpAaipe
§1502 3ullIsw 103123410 A1BYD 23RIWWog . 1Eepuade ue |eaoidde Joy Japisuod pue 3008y 3yl Jo s|eos ayi yum
9T0Z SUNM | 3313UIWO0Y-SBA anIINDaxy Aaedonpy sane|sidsy |1lM 2a13WWo] annaxy ay| pausi|e epuade aAlle|s183) e dojanaq g
o i = e Jieyd 3911Wwwo) ~ ‘sspiepuesioesiSa;
l0129.11Q Aoeaonpy anjle|siSal pue puUe SI9CWIW I3THWWIOT) BAIINIIKT
[DABSY — SBA 3AINJ8X3 ‘JUBPISAI DA WUBPISDIA 2205V usamiaq sdiysuone|al ysigesy 'y
a21eq 2ng 2lanosay Joddng peaj suoay saldajells
"Anjod uoi3EINP? |BUOIIEU JO 3PIMIILLS Ul PIAJOAUI SUOEZIURSIO JO ‘SIaued WalsAs
‘si03e|s13a) anl 15ED] 1€ PUB BIINWIWOD FARNIAXT 243 Uam]aq sdiysuoiie}as si8a3ess uayiSualis pue dojaAdq T°T anPalqo

"SNOILVSH3IANOD ADIT0d
TYNOILVN ANV ‘31VLS “1¥O071 NI dIHSH3AV31 ANV 3JI0A ALTINOVH FHL LHISSY il 1VOD

9T02-ST0Z NV1d NOILVLNIW3ITdWI DIDILVHLS



B

sdiyssejoyss 10123110 ““ nﬂ
91/0€/9 —oN annIaxg siley2 333unuo) | 'SOIIANDR YIEAINO BsEIDU| g
i 51500 " i : !
EEM TN ] lopang : .
91/0£/9 —saj aAIINDaxX3 | s91luwo) u<n_m_ - -ueyd Asusjadwod jeinyjnd e dojaalq 'y ;

‘2|UJIOJI|ED) $O Ausianip ayy ﬁ.m_mﬁ 191134 0} S3|poq uoeNSUOI WaysAs J9Y30 pue ‘9awwo) ! i

aA1IN23x3 3ay3 Sulpnput uuum< 343 Jo S331WILIOI UO ‘UoleuasaIdal Ayjndey Jo AYSIdAIP BY3 asEaIDU| Z°T w>_UaEO

sdiysaejoyas -
-~ S3A

$1509
9T0Z sunf JAd—s9A
ajeqg ang asinosay

AAIENIBXT |BUoIss310.d wawdolaaap |euoissajoud peal 'y

"S1UA3 DDDSY 1B Ajnoey
| 9SIDAIP JO IJUBPUIIE IYJ 5R24IUI
40133417 =A1IN39x3 SNyl pue puny o0} sa34nosas Ayjuap| 'g
| ‘S31AIIE 318Las |
BpIMalels pue [edo] uj uoizedidnled
‘ue|d 40} Alnde} 8s19Ap JO JUBWIINIIAY
Qd Yeip DDJSY ayl jo med sijeod sy ajowoud o) pausisap sanuniioddo

Jopang Jiey) yuawdojanag

Sa3ON/SNieIS saidajens

"SUOIIESIBAUOD DpiMmale)s pue [edo) pea| pue ul ajediiled
03 patedaid ase Aayy jey yons Ayjnoey as1aAIp Joj sapjjunuoddo Juswdofeaap diysiapes| aseasnu| -7 aAIalqo

«8dN0IF 3SIFAIP,, JO UOUIULIP JOF JUSTW)EYS ANAISTIU] DDISY 39S% ‘dIHSHIAVYIT T¥D 01

ANV 31V1S 40 ST3A3T 1TV LV ALTNOVH 40 SAdNOYD ISHIAIA* HIMOJWI ANV IDVHNI :Z 1VO0D

diysiapes

pue Adexoape jo siajjew

1o} 3uiuiely ajdi3jnw apiaoad

(1M $3INAIDE 3531 JO || "SBIlAIDR
SAIRRISID| Ul duasald 5,005V

3y1 aowoud |im epuale anle|siga
23Sy pascadde Ajmau ayy ‘Afjeulq
Uosier anilejsiga) B U odde o3




"SJUBWIUSISSE INWILLO0I Y)ISY
JI3y3 01 JUBAR|2 SBIUIIIJUO)

ajuepuaye puale 0} 4e1S pue SIaguIaW
30UBIBJU0D | 99IwwoD 3A1INISX3 Joj 398png
g1z aunj —sa\ 4033311Q 9NdaX3 ! 30UBpUSIE BIUDIBHUOD B ysIjgeIs] '3

‘sdnoJd Byl pue ..u_u._mmu_ ‘f
‘10V22 ‘SOID Yim uoissas Aleuald DSV |
3yl pue ‘JOVIID YIM I1NISU| WNINDLINY §

31D DY) ‘SS2UBAIIIBYD [eUOIININSUI SUSAS
uo Jawdojaaap |euolssajoad |43| uo suoneziuesio wawdolasap
‘spwiwing Aynb3 ay3 uo 1Y §,40)2ueY) | |RUOISSAJOJd JAYI0 YIm 31RI0qE||0D
910z aunr | ON sdaquiawWl B3 IV _ 33Ul yum passuped sey )OSy aul pue diysuonelal dojsasaa "a
1 i Jualidojaaap (eumssagoud
b ul Azewnd 3DJSY 93 aunsus uswdojaasp
5 01 5dnoJ3 Jay10 pue 31O S,40)|32UBRY) [euoissajoud Aynoey ui Asewud

101340 93U} YUM payiom aAey J0123JIp “ $,200SV 3y} 3.NSU3 01 SPOYIaW Uo

FALNIENT pue "Juaplsald adia “Waplsald | S3H0 SSO[@0URHD YT Yim Ansuo]
‘suonedjjdde juess
Ul JDJSY @Yl Jo uoisnjoul 38an
pue sjueadde 1oejuod AjajeipawiLug
‘pased|al ale SAAIIRIIIUI WAISAS
Joj saipunuoddo jJues8 usym 'g
"Suol1eIOqR||0D
pue sdiysiauyied Suidojaaap Aq
$anIAIde JUDWdojaAap |euoissajoid
J00SY BulpJedal sfenpiapul pue
ON 31W) Qd ‘Wsplisald suoneziuedio o} Yorano aseadu] y

2ieg ang J3Inosay jioddns S230N fsnieis wm_mm.._m._u.m

=

10z aunf oN BAIINIEXF “dA QUSPISIId

oN 10133.4]Q 3A1IN28xX3

10199410 9AANI8XT JieYy)

"JJJSV 341 Yiim uopjeloqe||od
U] $Jn220 s333|(0) Ayunwwo) eluscy|e) Ul JUBWIHO[IAIP |euUOISS0Id Ajndey SpIMm-walsAs lie 1.yl aunsu3 "T°g€ 9AIDIqO

"W3LSAS ID3T710D
ALINNWHOD VINHO4ITVD IHL HOd LNIW4OT13IATA TYNOISSIJ0Hd ALINIOVYH AV € 1VOD



J
=il
R 205y Ag SUSIA 31EUSS |B2O] JO) __

im32a0 | . _
qT0Z Sunr ap annoaxy ¢ o HILWOT Fleuas (E307 uejd aduei-Sud) pue -Joys dojsaag. vy §
i —— - R — |
1
*$939]102 32D || USIA "€t dBAIAIQO !
—_— _— - m.
Heis 1013310 SARNIDXI ‘$JUSAD JO JEpUI[ED J2]SEW B 91B3)T 'g ﬂ

Sigquudiu I
SRR ey g

i T i
gTOZ aun| oy JninIang ¢ G410 SAnmIax uerd LONENUNUWIOD B 3)8aS) 'Y

-ssoupied wajsAs pue sajeuas |eao] ‘A naej woudy indu] Supsayies jo spoylaw anoudwi "z aARIGO

*92uasald
Anoey 210w 918343 01 SADUBIDJUOD
pue s3unaaw sdnoud Juanyisuod
S4aquiBiy 33 1e sauasasd DJIsY a3 puedxy g

i "SUOISIAIQ 20140 S Jo|j2auey)
i i slaquiBy D3 a3yl yum diysiauned usyiBuans 'y

ajeq ang 32In0s3Y voddng sajon/snieis saldajens

‘ssoulied
wajsAs Ag pa1onpuod sSUIdIW pue SJUDAR Je saAleuasaldal JDISY [eyo jo uonedied ayl asealdu| ‘T'y aadalqo

"SdNOYD LNINLILSNOD HIHLO ANV ‘SHINLHVH WILSAS ANV
S3LVNIS TVIOOT HLIM SAIHSHANLHVd ANV ‘NOILVOINNAWOD ‘LNIWIDVYONI IONVHNI ¥ 1VOD

== i = [Eansdde
oy uoljesapisucd 4oy epuady dax3 Alenigad
101311q ay) uo uejd ay) Saey 01 sadoy SUwwo? ‘ue|d Juawdojanag
’ 341 wepd yualLdoEARD [BudBsaycd |euOoISSaj04d DSV SAlsusyadwod
QTOT Iunr Hujigai—sa) SAIINJSX3 pue Jieys Q4 Heip e dunesin jo ssadiad Byl ul s 304 8yl e luawajdw pue udisagn. 'y
‘ue|d Juawdojansp jeuoissasoid JJDSY anisuayasdwod e Juawajdwy pue ugisaq '€ AIRRIGO




J012edi] S#Anian]

gLOE IUng HIBpIsEL 3 SIUBIT JUBLIND LIBILIBN 'y

"S3IHAIIE ))ISY puny 0] saluow juesd jeuoiippe yaos pue ‘ajedosdde i ‘syuels Juaaind uieluiel “E°S aAaIqo -

u K.
; "200SV 33 Joj Sulpuny
1039841g pasea.toul 2.n23s 0] sisulped
WaisAs/sio1e|siB8a| pue siaquiaw
INIUWILLOD JAIINIBXF UIamlaq

. paysijgelse sdiysuonejas aferana] ‘g |

2AIINIEX] pue ‘Jusplsald

m 3JIA “W2pIsald

_ ‘ueid Juswdojarap
|euoissajoad ansuayaidiuod

W , §,2005V 3y3 uawa|dun
1UBpISId 40333410 @Af1Nax3 W_ . 01 s22.nosa4 deudoidde aundag -y _
"1edA J3d XXX$ §0 202SY Y3 01 Suipuny aseq s,JOUIIA0D DY} U SSEIIIU] WNWIUIW  dZI[edy "Z°S 3AIIDIGO |
wopang "SJUIAD JE UOjjepUNO .
BAlINIaxX3 juSpIsald uoiepunod ,m 2005V 40 Suisiespuny puedxy 3
_ “Buipuny 7JSY 9sealoul
10133, § 0} sAem INoge 82140 S,40fj9duey)
aANJax3 HU9pISald 9Y1 YUM SUOIIESISAUOI 0JUI I9JUT g
= - Sipguuall . =
s[nIWWo) .
AIIN2X] RIS RTIPED]
Isyumiuess  pue siopsup 3103334 uoheplnay -8u0| pue wual-Hoys aleldoidde
gToz aunr | alaissod—saa uonEepuno 140333110 3AINI3X3 Joj suonealjdde aseasou| 'y

31B(] anq 21INosay Hoddng PES] s2]0N fsn1els saldalens
*1edA 19d ooo.mNm JO mc__u:_.._n— JJ24SV ul Iseadul wnwiviw e azjjeay *1°s w>__—uw_,90 _

0008V
dHL1 40 ¥HOM 3IHL ANV NOISSIW FHL LHOddNS ANV NIVLSNS Ol SIDHNOSIH IHNDIS S 1v0D






A

EETERN

Academic Senate
for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP., EMPOWERMENT, VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Spring 2016 Annual Report Month: January | Year: 2016
tem No: fi M.
Attachment: NO

DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider for Urgent: NO

approval of the development of an Annual Time Requested:

Report for Spring 2016.
CATEGORY: Consent TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Julie Adams Consent/Routine X

First Reading

STAEF REVIEWY: Julie Adams " i Action

Information/Discussion

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

In Spring 2013, delegates passed resolution 1.04 directing the Executive Committee to develop an

annual report. The resolves state:

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges, similar to other
nonprofit organizations, develop an annual report to publicize its self-review results and
ongoing accomplishments on behalf of the faculty statewide, with the first publication of this
report to be completed by Fall 2014.

Last year, the Spring 2015 annual report was well received. This item proposes that the Executive
Committee develop an annual report for Spring 2015. All Executive Committee members will be
asked to provide a paragraph for the annual report. The following are suggested assighments:

President: introductory letter and his overall vision for the Executive Committee and the
Senate.

Vice President: IEPI and WFTF

President of the Foundation: a foundation report.

Secretary: Executive Committee meetings

Treasurer and Foundation Treasurer: financial report

EDAC/TASSC Chairs: summary of work on Equity and 3SP plans including regional meetings
and the ASCCC competency plan.

EEO Representatives: Diversity hiring and regional summits

Professional Development chair: professional development college

Initiatives: brief summary of status

Curriculum chair: CTE and fall curriculum regionals

1 Staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.




¢ C-ID liaison: update/status {including change to Mt. SAC)

e SACC, Shearer

e ASCCC Strategic Plan status, Adams

# ASCCC Cultural Competency Plan, Smith

e Other standing committees: any topics you feel should be highlighted this year.

This item contains suggestions about topics and are not all inclusive. Executive Committee
members can still submit any topics that he/she feels should be reported out to the field. The
president and executive director will work together to identify other areas for inclusion and
members should submit ideas as soon as possible. All paragraphs are due to Adams by
February 27%. The annual report will not be approved by the Executive Committee as the
creative director will need time to publish; instead the officers will review and approve the final
annual report.



/‘&» =
= Academic Senate
= for Californfa Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

approval the Legislative and Advocacy
Committee’s Audit Fee Survey.

SUBJECT: Audit Fee Survey Month: January | Year: 2016
temNo Il N 3
Attachment: NO

DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider for Urgent: NO

Time Requested:

TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:

CATEGORY: Consent

REQUESTED BY: Bruno Consent/Routine X
First Reading

STAFF REVIEW: Juhie Adams Action
Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areuas. |

BACKGROUND:

The Legislative and Advocacy Committee determined that a survey of the field on audit policies
would help inform the work on the ASCCC Legislative Agenda.

Audit Policy Survey

In Fall 2011, the body passed resolution 06.02 F11 Proportional Audit Fee Increases calling for “the
Academic Senate for California Community Colleges recommend a change to California Education
Code §76370 to make the fee for auditing courses proportionally greater than the fees charged per
credit unit of instruction.”

06.02 F11 Proportional Audit Fee

Whereas, California Education Code §76370 states,

a. If afee for auditing is charged, it shall not exceed fifteen dollars (515} per unit per
semester [boards may charge fees proportionally for quarter system courses, summer,
intersessions or short term classes].

b. Students enrolled in classes to receive credit for 10 or more semester credit units shall
not be charged a fee to audit three or fewer semester units per semester.

c. No student auditing a course shall be permitted to change his or her enrollment in that
course to receive credit for the course.

d. Priority in class enroliment shall be given to students desiring to take the course for
credit towards degree or certificate.

e. Classroom attendance of students auditing a course shall not be included in computing

the apportionment due a community college district;

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.




Whereas, Discussions of repeatable courses, maintaining access, and alternative curricular
solutions to student success have provided reasons why this section of Education Code should
be carefully revised; and

Whereas, The Academic Senate has taken positions over the years opposing fees for students,
but as fees continue to rise, the California Community College System needs an audit fee
structure that is proportional to regular student fees;

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges recommend a change to
California Education Code §76370 to make the fee for auditing courses proportionally greater
than the fees charged per credit unit of instruction; and

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges recommend a change to
California Education Code §76370 to remove section (b) “Students enrolled in classes to receive
cradit for 10 or more semester credit units shall not be charged a fee to audit three or fewer

semester units per semester.”

To fulfill this resolution, the ASCCC has included this issue in the 2016 ASCCC Legislative Agenda and
tasked the Legislative and Advocacy Committee (LAC) with researching the efficacy of the proposal
and begin working with our system partners to propose legislation to alter the audit fee. This survey
will help inform the work of the LAC by capturing information on audit policies at local colleges and

districts.

1. What is the name of your college?
2. What is your position at the college?
Senate President
Cio
CsSsO
CEO
Dean
Other, please describe.
3. Does your college have an auditing policy? If yes, #4. If no, #5
4. Ifyes,
a. Isita college or district policy?
b. In an average semester, how many students audit a class?
¢. How aware are your students/faculty of your auditing policy?
d. Please attach your auditing policy?
5. Ifno,
a. If you no longer allow audits, what caused the change?
6. Please feel free to provide any other comments you feel will benefit our endeavor.
Thank you for your assistance in this matter.

SR of T

Action: Approve the survey to be distributed in January 2016.



C‘é Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBIJECT: Legislation Update I Month: January | Year: 2016

Fitem Mo [V A

Attachment: No

DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will be updated on Urgent: NO

recent state and federal legislative activities Time Requested: 15 minutes
and the ASCCC 2016 legislative agenda as well
as consider to approve an ASCCC Advocacy day

in May.
CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Bruno/Davison Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW?: Julie Adams Action X
| Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:
Legislation Update

The Legislature is on recess.
ASCCC Legislative information including the ASCCC Legislative Reports and letters submitted in

support or opposition of 2015 legislation may be found on our Legislative Update page:
http://www.asccc.org/legislative-updates.

ASCCC 2016 Legislative Agenda

The ASCCC Strategic Plan includes the following strategy that was identified by the Executive
Committee as a priority for the 2015-2016 year:

Develop a legislative agenda aligned with goals of the ASCCC and actively pursue bills of interest.

In November, the Executive Committee approved an initial Legislative agenda and requested that
the Legislative and Advocacy Committee {LAC} further explore the agenda with our system partners.
In December, LAC members met with Jonathan Lightman, FACCC Executive Director, to gather
information on areas included in the Legislative Agenda. What follows is a summary of the
conversation from LAC's December meeting:

1) Audit Fee - This item is on the Board of Governors’ legislative agenda and also appears in
the Workforce Task Force recommendations. One option is to remove the fee from Ed Code
{currently set at $15), but alternative language would need to be included. Originally, the

! staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.



2)

3)

4)

5)

amount was set as a percentage increase of unit fees {150% of $5 fee at the time of
codification). It is presumed that colleges would want the auditing fee to be at least
equivalent to the credit unit fee. Because it is a fee, opposition from system partners,
including the Student Senate, is likely. There is a desire to serve two different populations
with class audits: 1) students who need to take a single course to improve job skills through
additional practice, refreshing knowledge for certification or licensure, or refreshing skills at
one level before entering the next (Spanish Il before Spanish Ill, etc.} and 2} community
members who want to repeat courses for lifelong learning purposes such as art, physical
education, etc. Changing the audit fee may address the issue of serving community
members that were locked out of repeating courses with the changes in the course
repetition regulations. Increasing the audit fee would provide colleges with a viable way to
serve community members, which is an interest shared by many in our system including our
faculty organization partners: FACCC, CFT, CTA and CCCI. Perhaps both populations may be
served by creating a policy that allows for fee changes with each time a student takes the
course {(move from unit charge to 150% or other charges) so that as repetition increases, so
would fee charges. Further investigation is needed including a survey of the field (see
separate agenda item).

Stand Alone Course Approval - Jackie Escajeda, Chancellor’s Office Dean of Curriculum and
Instruction, and Dolores Davison, SACC member, are writing a report for the legislature on
the status of stand alone courses. Vince Stewart, Vice Chancellor of External Relations, will
also participate in crafting the report. It is important to return stand alone approval to local
colleges to address curriculum needs, especially for CTE programs. There is a perception
that curriculum processes lack the nimbleness to respond quickly to local needs. A return of
stand alone approval will help address this issue since it provides a mechanism for faculty to
quickly develop curriculum. There appears to be little, if any, opposition to this issue.
Mental Health Service — This issue is not controversial; colleges should provide some level of
mental health services for students including access to mental health professionals. The
controversy is often expressed in how to provide the services and how resources should be
allocated to address the issue. FACCC is in conversation with interested parties but there is
no proposal just yet. It may take the braiding of funding — nonprofit, local, and state — to
provide the resources needed to address the issue. It would be best to have somethingin
education code rather than a budget request. Mental health services also came up in the
Campus Safety discussion {see below, #v).

Online Educational Resources — Prior to the passage of AB 798, the ASCCC consulted with
other parties interested in OER. The League (CCLC) was supportive of the idea OER but like
ASCCC, thought that AB798 was not adequate to address the needs of the CCC system and
our students. There may be a need to provide guidance to faculty regarding textbook
royalties. Clearly, education and professional development on OER is needed. AB798
provides a small foundation and ASCCC wants to maximize the effect to better serve
community college students. (This issue is also included in a separate agenda item.)
Campus Safety — Campus safety is not a singular topic. It involves a number of complicating
factors including addressing firearms policies and mental health services. There is some
confusion of faculty responsibilities regarding identifying and assisting students with mental
health issues. ASCCC could assist in aligning local policies statewide and educating faculty.
Currently, colleges have varying levels of services for students. It is necessary that colleges



provide the highest level possible to improve campus climate and improving safety. The
system should work toward having a significant level of these services on all CCC campuses.
FACCC is visiting Washington, DC at the end of January to discuss two issues with federal
legislators: accreditation and campus safety. There appears to be a window of opportunity
to address these issues and it is important that all constituent groups are involved.

6} AA to MA Pathway — David Morse and Julie Bruno met with Thuy Nguyen, Vice Chancellor of
Legal Affairs, to discuss creating a pathway for CCC students to complete their educational
goals and return to local colleges to teach CCC students. A larger group, with
representatives from ASCCC, CCLC, CIOs and FACCC, will be formed to discuss the idea and
propose a plan. Many issues will need to be addressed including the binge and bust cycle
for hiring will need to be addressed so that students who enter the pathway will be
provided an opportunity to be hired. it may be beneficial to look for grant opportunities and
maybe even set up a non-profit to address the issue.

ASCCC Advocacy Day

The Legislative and Advocacy Committee has determined that holding an ASCCC Advocacy Day in
May will be the most effective option. Other organizations hold advocacy days at various times of
the year: CCLC in January, FACCC in March, ICAS in April, and CTA in May. A May event would allow
ASCCC to highlight its technical expertise and assist in refining proposed legislation. The LAC
recommends the ASCCC Legislative day be held on Monday, May 9, 2016. Additionally, the LAC
recommends inviting Jonathan Lightman, FACCC Executive Director, to provide advocacy training to
the LAC and Executive Committee members who would participate in the Advocacy day. Friday,
April 29 has been set aside for the training opportunity.

Action: Approve a May date for the ASCCC Advocacy day as well as the advocacy training in April.






c_-z*_—% Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT, VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Board of Governors Interviews

Month: January | Year: 2016

temNG VB

Attachment: NO

DESIRED OUTCOME:

The Executive Committee will conduct Board of
Governors interviews in closed session and take
action on which candidates to send forward to
the Governor.

Urgent: YES

Time Requested: 1 hour and 15 minutes

CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: David Morse Consent/Routine
First Reading
P STAFF REVIEWY: “Julle Adams Action ¥

Information/Discussion

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

The Executive Committee will conduct Board of Governors interviews in closed session and take action
on which candidates to send forward to the Governor.

The Board of Governors — Faculty Appointee Nomination Policy and Procedures states that,

a. December: Uniess otherwise noted, all candidates must be interviewed by the Executive
Committee to be considered for nomination to the Governor.
i. The President, in consultation with the Executive Committee, may elect to not interview past
candidates who were selected to be forwarded to the Governor if there is a 2/3 majority of
sitting Executive Committee members who particinated in that nrevious interview session. The
Executive Committee would still consider whether or not to send the candidate’s name forward
to the Governor for appointment.
ii. The Executive Committee may decide to send forward the name of a sitting Board of Governors
member without an interview.
iii. The Executive Committee will ask each interviewed candidate the same questions; however,
follow up questions are allowed.

After all interviews are completed the Executive Committee will select at least three candidates, by
majority vote, for recommendation to the Governor.

! Staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.




Five applications have been received:

Joseph Bielanski, Berkeley City College, sitting Board of Governors member
Richard Mahon, Riverside City College, 2014 — 15 BoG Faculty Nominations

Gregory Breyer, Cosumnes River College, new application
Cynthia Reiss, West Valley College, prior BoG interviewee {2011)
Lynn Shaw, Long Beach City College, new application

Based on the policies and procedures noted above President Morse recommends that Joseph Bielanski,
as a sitting BoG member, and Richard Mahon, as a previously submitted nomination to the Board of
Governor by at least 2/3 sitting Executive Committee members, be forwarded to the Governor without
interview. Members will interview Gregory Breyer, Cynthia Reiss, and Lynn Shaw for consideration to

send forward to the Governor.



“/. Academic Senate
LEE.. for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT., VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: 2016 Academic Academy

Month: January

| Year: 2016

JtemNo IV C,

Attachment: No

DESIRED OUTCOME:

The Executive Committee will make
recommendations and consider approval
theme ideas and a preliminary draft program
for the 2016 Academic Academy.

Urgent: No

Time Requested: 20 minutes

CATEGORY: Action or Discussion TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Ginni May/Cleavon Smith Consent/Routine
First Reading X
STAFF REVIEW™: julie Adams Action X
Information

Please note: 'Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

The Equity Diversity and Action Committee (EDAC) and the Transfer, Articulation, and Student
Success Committee (TASSC) are planning the 2016 Academic Academy. TASSC and the chair of the
EDAC met on December 11 to begin preliminary discussions on the 2016 Academic Academy.

1. Theme ideas from the meeting were as follows:
o Living a Culture of Equity, Student Success, and Empowerment: Implementing and
Embedding Equity Across the College.

e [Institutional Practice (idea — in order to the “move the needle” the work must be

institutional)

The TASSC and EDAC Chair are requesting recommendations and then approval from the

Executive Committee for a theme for the 2016 Academic Senate.

2. Preliminary Draft Program:
Below is the first preliminary draft program (shell) for the 2016 Academic Academy. Suggestions
and recommendations will be brought back to the TASSC and EDAC. When the TASSC and
Chair of EDAC met on December 11, they considered the 13 submitted proposals. It was decided
to extend the time to accept proposals and recruit additional proposals.

Proposal Categories

Assessment: Effective Practices of Pre-Assessment Processes. Bridge Programs. Test Preparation.

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.




Basic Skills: Sustaining [earning Communities. Start to Finish Models of Basic Skills and Student
Services. Panel Review of the E-Resource on Basic Skills Completion. The Use of Supplemental
Instruction, Tutoring, and Instructional Aides.

Educational Planning: Effective Practices of Workshops, Groups, Classroom, Instructional Courses,
Basic Skills, or Other Contexts to Assist with the Delivery of Academic Advising.

Equity and Intervention: Scaling up the First-Year Experience or First Time in College Course. Going
from Boutique Program to Institution-Wide Program (How to Scale Up Successful Programs). Growing
and Using Your Learning Center: From Tutoring to Supplemental Instruction. Cultural Competency on
Your Campus: Understanding Student and Faculty Culture. Using Disproportionate Impact to Think about
Curriculum and Instruction. Planning for Equity: Institutional Effectiveness and Accreditation.

Follow up Activities — Intervention Practices: Showcasing Successful Results of Working with Student
Services (e.g., effective communication with students in promoting intervention practices, coordinating
student services and wrap around services as an intervention [food, shelter, and health], faculty assistance
in helping students with their career choices).

Institutional Transformation: Building Equity into Your Program Review. Shifting Your Campus
Culture to an Equity Mindset. Closing the “Silo” Gap: Bringing Student Services and Instruction.
Coordinating with Categorical Programs. Building Professional Development for Equity.

Noncredit: Equity and the Noncredit Question. Effective Practices in Transitioning Noncredit Students
into Credits and Plans.

Orientation: Effective Practices of Online and In Person Orientation.

Student Voices: Effective practices in incorporating student voices and qualitative data in curriculum
development and assessment and program review and development. Professional Development Programs:
Programs that embed issues of equity and disproportionate impact into ongoing, iterative professional
development offerings.

Diversity Hiring: Intentional efforts of diversity mindfulness during recruiting, interviewing, and hiring
activities at the college.

Digital Divide: Practices in equity regarding recognizing that technology is not available to all of our
students. It may be assumed that all students are proficient in technology and that they possess it. It
becomes an equity issue because students are not able to do the types of work or perform at the level of
their classmates, if they don't possess the technology that they need to succeed.

Cultural Competency: Creating an environment with ongoing efforts to assess diverse issues of cultural
competency and building mechanisms to respond to the assessment results for a more safe and inclusive
institution.

No particular breakouts have been selected yet. Ideas that were discussed include:

e Veronica Neal (and Mayra Cruz?} would make an excellent keynote presenter — make the De Anza
presentation a general session (Lead the Choir: Senate and Equity) and do a follow up breakout
session

¢ Building the bridge between student services/counseling and instruction; integration of counseling
faculty into senate discussions; removing the sense of isolation from counseling

o Sac City — Creating the Village: Bringing Services Together and Making Equity Part of the
College Culture



e Really Subverting Silos — follow up from last year’s AA
Start dialogue about equity and the disenfranchised students; what do they have (or not have) that
we have to connect them to?
¢ Rooms with an exec member inviting faculty to talk about how to fill out these ideas; now that
you’ve been to the ID1 and the CCCCO conferences, what are other ideas? Bring your team
together with a facilitator from exec/committee members to help work this in shared governance
bodies and discuss topics; working breakout to develop plan to do or continue to do to live equity
in their colleges
* Modeling good teaching by giving them an opportunity to work things through and to create a
relationship with ASCCC and the local senates
Set up these rooms themed/geography/assigned groups? Teams of people
Provide faculty with ideas that can make changes that are small but useful; OER, Starfish, etc, EPI,
OEI can come into play and be part of the equity agenda
» Theme of academic senate integral to this work; how do we implement these ideas and take
advantage of these tools
Organization module; time management
* Presenting something on what OEI has to offer in helping faculty achieve their equity goals
Recognition that the academy must offer ideas of some actions that participanis can take back with
them
Change is not one thing; grow and modify; it’s continnous
Subsequent conversations on equity and student success should continue to focus on how to
integrate successful strategies into our college communities.
Bring students to the AA; transferred to local colleges (make sure that we have various profiles)
Work with students (SSCCC); reaching out and including students in the discussions
Equity and foster youth/formerly incarcerated students
How to achieve equity should/could continue to be a focus, including measuring for equity as well
as developing programs/tools which reach all students, not only isolated, program-specific cohorts.
¢ How do we correlate disaggregated equity data with SLO assessment results? Successful strategies
on this front could be an appropriate discussion through the combined lens of equity and student
success. {rcach out to RP, Andrew LaManque, James Todd?)
Focus on a different audience (counselors) than the CCCCQO’s Academic Academy
Curricular focus
Sierra College and Starfish
CRC Anthropology Diversity Program that won a Diversity Award

Academic Academy Program (shell):

Friday, March 18, 2015

9:00 AM Continental Breakfast and Registration
10:00 AM - 10:20 AM Welcome
Cleavon Smith, Chair, ASCCC Equity and Diversity Action Committee
and/or
Ginni May, Chair, ASCCC Transfer, Articulation, and Student Services Committee
David Morse, ASCCC President

10:20 AM -11:35 AM General Session: Keynote Address:
Dr. Veronica Neal



11:35 AM - 11:45 AM Break
11:45 AM - 12:45 PM Lunch
12:45 PM - 1:00 PM Break
1:00 PM - 2:15PM Breakout Session Block I (3 or 4 Breakouts)

1. Follow-up with General Session Speaker

2:15 PM - 3:30 PM Break

3:30 PM - 3:45PM Breakout Session Block IT (3 or 4 Breakouts)
3:45PM - 4:00 PM Break

4:00 PM - 5:15 PM Breakout Session Block ITI (3 or 4 Breakouts)

5:30 PM-6:30 PM  No Host Reception

Dinner - TBA
Saturday, March 19, 2015

8:00 AM - 9:00 AM Breakiast Buffet

9:00 AM - 10:15 AM Breakout Session Block IV (3 or 4 Breakouts)

10:15 AM - 10:30 AM Break

10:30 AM - 11:45 PM General Session — Bringing it Back to our Colleges

11:45 PM - 12:00 PM Break

12:00 PM - 1:00 PM Lunch Buffet

1:00 PM - 2:00 PM General Session — Don’t Go It Alone: ASCCC®s Relation to Local
Colleges
During this time, attendees will have the opportunity share the challenges
identified during the 10:30 breakout and discuss how ASCCC can help local

colleges address those challenges either through online resources, upcoming
institutes, or local visits.



j‘ A H
- Academic Senate
= for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT, VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Update to the Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications Month: January ' | Year: 2016
Paper temNo: VD,

Attachment: YES

DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will provide inputto | Urgent: YES

the Standards and Practices Committee Time Requested: 15 minutes
regarding the revision to the Equivalence to the
Minimum Qualifications paper.

CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: John Stanskas Consent/Routine
First Reading X
STAFF REVIEW. . { dulie Adarns Action X
‘ _| Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

The Standards and Practices committee is submitting the draft for the paper update requested by
resolution FA14 10.01 (below).

DESIRED OUTCOME:

The Executive Committee will provide input to the Standards and Practices Committee regarding the
revision to the paper Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications.

Revise the Paper Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications

Fall 2014 10.01

Whereas, Education Code §87359(b) states that local academic senates are responsible for
developing procedures for evaluating and determining equivalency to minimum qualifications
by joint agreement with their governing boards;

Whereas, The Academic Senate for California Community Colleges adopted Resolutions 10.06
S07, 10.01 S09, 10.02 F09, and 10.11 S11[1], which cali for further guidance on equivalency
through such actions as the development of criteria and standards and the presentation of
model practices for determining equivalence to minimum qualifications by establishing
eminence;

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.



Whereas, Numerous breakout sessions held at plenary sessions since 2006 on minimum
qualifications and equivalency have included discussions and requests for assistance regarding
eminence, criteria, and model practices; and

Whereas, The paper Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications was last revised in 2006[2];

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges survey the field to
identify local practices for establishing equivalence to minimum qualifications, including the use
of eminence; and

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges revise the
paper Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications and bring it to the body for adoption at the
Spring 2016 Plenary Session,

MSC



Executive Summary
In 1988 the Community College Reform Act (AB 1725) began to phase out credentials
for faculty in favor of a process for establishing minimum qualifications to teach ain a
discipline. Part of that process included a way to determine equivalencies to those
qualifications that are at least equal to the state-adopted minimum qualifications for a
particular discipline. According to Education Code §§ 87359 and 87360, those who do
not possess the minimum qualifications for service may be hired as faculty members if
they possess “qualifications that are at least equivalent to the minimum qualifications...”
The Disciplines List, a list of Board of Governors adopted minimum qualifications for
hiring faculty, uses the term “equivalency” to describe processes to support this
regulation.
Every district must have an equivalency process. Education Code §87359 (b) requires
that “Itlhe process, aswell.ag.criteria, and stapdards by whlcnihe—gevernmg board
reBches its determlnaﬂen regardinq faculty rﬁem‘hers shallibe developed and agreed
ume jointly by’ repreeentatlves of4 ‘the gove;ﬁmg b-mard and ti:ue academlc senate, and
approved by the gevafﬁhg béard While figither tﬁe Educﬁﬁt}ﬁ{jﬁde nor Title §
Regulatlons pybwde addltlonal guiﬂehnes'ﬁor what oanstltL&e:: at least eqrutvalemr each
dlm Wlng b@ard acting hh ﬁhg adwce of its' enedeﬁllc senate, must establish
its standard for equivalency, permitted the standard is not Iees than qualifications
specified on the Disciplines List. Once the local equivalency process has reached a
recommendation regarding an individual applicant, Education Code §87359(a) requires
that the governing board take action on the equivalency before hiring occurs. Because
the equivalency process was created by AB1725 and chaptered into the California
Education Code, districts are not free to ignore provisions within the law.
The Academic Senate has consistently supported the following basic principles for
granting equivalency:

¢ Equivalent to the minimum qualifications means equal to the minimum

qualifications, not nearly equal.
e The applicant must provide evidence they have attained the breadth of
coursework or experience equal to the general education component of an

earned associate’s or bachelor's degree.



e The applicant must provide evidence they have attained the skills and knowledge
provided by specialized course work required for the degree listed in the
Disciplines List.

e Faculty members exemplify to their students the value of an education that is
both well-rounded and specialized and has consistently defined associate’s
degree parameters. Faculty should act as models for students by demonstrating
a breadth of general education knowledge and a depth of knowledge that is
discipline specific.

Many criteria for determining equivalency seem obvious and can be handled in a simple
manner. Others are more difficult. Most district equivalency policies recognize at least
one of three ways of demonstrating equivalency: 1) course work, 2) work experience,
and 3) eminence in the field, a sub-set of experience, or a combination of the three may
bmecagnued But whatever.the means are fopmaklng determinatior Livz

shmlld nevenfm.-an lass than the\“quallflcatloﬁs Qpecmed on 1he D|SC|pI|nes Llsti'
Establishing ectuivaleLi::y through i:aursewgﬂk is qﬂen relaﬂ!.f?ly S|mple as transﬁ;‘lpts

ang. concrete dt;uum “hat: an be cﬂmpared to fxincrete
difficult case o&urs e;:\n the name of jdégree Is Slose tathat speclﬁed on thG[i
Dvsmpltnas l.lst but thp:coursewoﬁ{ IS, slﬁ'ltly dlﬁerenk*\othtr more difficult casq‘g&pccur
when work experience is proposed as the equivalent of aca&emlc work. Knowledge
acquired in a course could also be gained in other ways; however, the problem iies in
obtaining convincing evidence to establish that an applicant has enough necessary
educational preparation through an alternative means to be judged as knowledgeable
as someone with the appropriate degree.

It is important to distinguish between general education preparation and discipline
specific preparation. The Academic Senate supports the principle that all community
college facuity exemplify the qualities of a college educated person. This is why the
universal requirement for all disciplines includes at least an associate degree in
addition to six years of experience. So, when the academic senate determines an
applicant’'s equivalency, an equivalency committee should consider whether the
applicant satisfies the general education qualification for which they seek equivalency.
In addition, the applicant should be expected to provide evidence of equivalent



preparation that is as reliable and objective as a transcript. Thus, the candidate seeking
equivalence should be measured by the same yardstick as a candidate who possesses
the minimum qualifications. Moreover, processes for determining eminence should also
be defined in hiring practice criteria and mindful that, regardless of the discipline,
general education preparation is vital to instruction of any subject to provide an
essential cross-curricular breadth and depth.

As difficult as it can be to make the judgment of whether a specific candidate’s
experience is equivalent to the minimum qualifications, it is clear that faculty in the
discipline are important voices to inform such a decision. However, to ensure that
colleagues in various disciplines function with some consistency across the campus—
as opposed to determining specific equivalencies themselves — the process for
determining equivalency should include faculty from outside the discipline to have a role
in ensuring a fair and consistent processes for.establishing equwalem;y Gniena,-Many
locai acade?mc\senates use an equ#valency whrmlttee to ensure that the equwubncy
process is consmtent' and_fe_lr_ 7Th& penef ts tﬁ! havihg a bre%adth of discipline
representatlves on an equrvaieﬁc‘y commp‘ltee are‘{.he followmg

. The breadth or general educatlon requrrements equivalent to an earned
degree may be more readlly addressed when faculty from other dlscrpllnes
are |nvolved, and

o Committee decisions are more easily communicated because the logic
and credibility of a specific decision is more easily understood by any
external agency or future senate leader when more faculty voices are
involved.

e Decision-making is more consistent when committee representatives are
constant rather than dependent on the discipiine; and their decisions are
made without bias.

The role of the Human Resources office should be limited to collecting, date-stamping,
and forwarding applications and other pertinent information to the academic senate or
equivalency committee. A college district that attempts to use its human resources

office staff to establish equivalence not only risks creating a situation in which



candidates are not evaluated appropriately but is out of compliance with the Education
Code and Title 5 Regulations (see Education Code §87359 (b) and Title 5 §53430 (b)).
It is vital to remember that minimum qualifications in a discipline—and, by extension,
equivalency—are the same whether the position is full- or part-time. Title 5 Regulations
do not allow for a different standard of equivalency for part-time faculty. An applicant is
either qualified to teach the full range of courses in a discipline or net, regardless of
whether applying for a full-time posmon or a part-time position. Education Code §87359
(a) (see also Title 5 §53430) states, “No one may be hired to serve as a community
coliege faculty ... unless the governing board determines that he or she possesses
qualifications that are af least equivalent to the minimum qualifications specified” (italics
added). In addition, minimum qualifications are determined for disciplines, not for
courses or subject areas within disciplines. Legal Opinion L 03-28 (R. Black, 2004) (see

Appendix C), supportlstheposuhon that “a dISI;Fth is not autharized to estabhslg acingla |

course equnraipncy a8 a substituta for meetuﬁg "f"ﬂmmum qualifications in a dlscm]lne .
is hired, he or shtﬁs hired

It malso |mpor1 it fo nundersta_rlc_l/fhat whel,'t'rﬁ fanwty memb r
by & district's gpemmgbéﬁ Ii is the p wiew of faculty ﬂm"-gh’ the academmfsenate
to'datermine lf:h poteiqlial facull;ﬁ membe‘hmeets thé“‘-'mnln m qualifications, butit is the
puwﬁwvfﬁm governing board ar'nil admmlstratlon to g&;tert:me if the appllcantéhall be
hired. The fact that an applicant meets the minimum qualifications does not guarantee
an offer of employment by the administration.

This paper concludes with recommendations for the determination of equivalencies,
including who determines equivalency, that equivalency is granted for a discipline, that
policies and procedures must be consistent, objective, evidence based, and mindful of
general education and specialization, and that local governing boards include action on
the equivalency as part of their subsequent hiring action.

Following the recommendations, this paper provides a proposed equivalency model as
well as a legal opinion stating that local districts are not authorized fo establish a single

course equivalency.

Introduction



This paper is the third revision of the first paper on equivalency adopted by the
Academic Senate in 1989 and was called for by the body by resolution in Fall 2014. The
original paper was intended to help local academic senates develop policies and
procedures in response to Education Code §87359, which requires that each district's
governing board and academic senate jointly develop an equivalency policy. This third
revision adds new considerations and content called for by faculty subsequent to the
2006 version. The Fall 2014 Resolution 10.01 states:

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges survey
the field to identify local practices for establishing equivalence to minimum
qualifications, including the use of eminence; and

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges revise
the paper Equivalence to the Minimum Qualifications and bring it to the body for
_adoptign at the_,Springm1 Q Pienary Sl_gsslion.

o k. c ,- & '\
. hY i L 3
A '\ | “l I 3 |

Like the 2006 mer ihis rewsmn prpwdes ﬂn;om\thorough discussion of equN&{ency
than the orlglnaﬂ papar and Ehe ?@99 rewsﬁn It a{sl;:s mclué‘las-ﬁ;hhg;:al opinion ﬁanm the
General Counz:au of tl;e Callforma Comnjunrty‘ﬁoﬁegus Chfancellor s Office dlstr-ihuted
Dmbm'fa 2003 whlch uphol&!» mef’prohlbltlon Oi"'l ;.%lnglt-:-*-acourse equwalenoiﬁ-s In
ad'dlktmlkohi, |t]ncludes results of the A&:_a;aemlc Senate's 2615 survey on equwalency
practices in California community colieges. The concepts discussed in the first three
equivalency papers remain substantively unchanged in this paper; however, there are
practical suggestions and considerations inserted to help local senates in their

conversations and actions regarding this important academic and professional matter.

The 2015 Equivalency Practices Survey

To determine how faculty are meeting their responsibilities for establishing equivalency
policies and procedures and carrying them out, the Academic Senate surveyed local
senates in fall 2015. The survey results indicated that while most colleges and districts
have equivalency policies, and most senates recognize the need for equivalency

committees, 15% of respondents reported that the administration determines



equivalency on their campuses despite the fact that equivalency is the purview of the
faculty by way of a college’s academic senate.

Further findings indicate the need for regular evaluation, review and revision of
equivalency policies. Only a few colleges reported that a recent review and revision of
their equivalency policy had occurred at the college academic senate. Of the 59
colleges that are part of multi-college districts who responded to the survey, 34 reported
that they coordinate equivalency decisions with the other colleges in their district while
25 reported that they do not.

Only a small number of senates indicated that training is provided by the senate
esquivalency committee or committee chair cn flex days or at department or committee
meetings. One college reported being in the process of developing a handbook with
instructions to be provided for faculty members involved in determining equivalency,
which.would be an effective way.to ensure trqmmg is uniform-and that all, fac.l,.uw
members InMVed in ldetermlnlng equwalen(zy q! any time ofthe year had correiot
m#ormatmn 3 "-' '\‘=

Tha survey resuﬂs and fﬁe——meh]tlon hlngght the”ﬂ&aed fok“this bapeﬂ revision amd for
local dlaiog at,aéade [ senate&fﬂgarﬁmg equwalehus:y pqﬂcles procedures and
PrRCISESE T 4 \ 9 -

The Meaning of Equivalency
The term “equivalency” is found in the Disciplines List, which is a list of minimum
qualifications for hiring faculty adopted by the Board of Governors. The current
Disciplines List can be found in the Chancellor's Office publication Minimum
Qualifications for Faculty and Administrators in California Community Colleges and can
also be accessed through the ASCCC website. Equivalency refers to any qualifications
that are at least equal to the stateOadopted minimum qualifications for a particular
discipline and the process for used for determining faculty preparation that is equivalent
to minimum qualifications.
District equivalency policies usually recognize up to three ways of demonstrating
equivalency: 1) coursework, 2) work experience, and 3) eminence in the field, or a
combination of the three may be the foundation for equivalency determination.



Regardless of the basis for equivalency determination, the applicant’s evidence and the
academic senate’s process must document that the minimum qualifications have been

met or exceeded.

Benefits and Pitfalls of Equivalency

One benefit to having an equivalency process is that it allows for greater flexibility in
hiring by creating a more diverse pool of potential faculty with a variety of qualifications
equivalent to minimum qualifications. Applicants who can provide conclusive evidence
that they have education and experience at least equal to what is required by the
minimum qualifications deserve careful consideration, even if their degrees have titles
different from those recognized in the Disciplines List or if they acquired their
gualifications by a route other than a conventional one. If equivalency were not an
option, some fully qur|:1|1t|ed candidates would pot receive clonsneratlon

Or* :he other hﬁnd the authority o determlnp equgvalent quaITcatlons is not a Iinense
for a district to Twalve pr:lower staMards and acaei 11 Iess—than-quallfled individugls. The

fam that a partlcular anﬂuia @ hs‘the best a m!legqe é:an fi deeshﬁt change the |
reﬁurrement thm he olr she pos!pss qualiﬂmaﬁons at Ieast aqual to the publlshed

m |cat|orps 1\-_ 4 o

boaps e

Legal Requirements

Every district must have an equivalency process. The process for establishing
equivalency needs to specify what the district expects in terms of course work, work
experience, or eminence when considering equivalency applications. Education Code
§87359 (b) requires that “[tlhe process, as well as criteria, and standards by which the
governing board reaches its determination regarding faculty members shall be
developed and agreed upon jointly by representatives of the governing board and the
academic senate, and approved by the governing board.” Subsequent changes
proposed to jointly agreed upon policies or procedures for establishing equivalency
should undergo the same process for approval. The governing board should rely
primarily on the advice of its academic senate and both must jointly agree to proposed

changes.



The goal of any equivalency policy should be to ensure the transparent and fair
determination of equivalency for applicants that possess qualifications at least equal to
the minimum qualifications. The process should be documented and justifiable to
anyone in the present or future who might review a determination of equivalency.
Sound policy dictates that the practice of granting equivalencies must not mean
lowering standards. Conversely, a district is not allowed to refuse to consider
equivalencies in the name of raising standards. The equivalency process was created
by AB 1725 and chaptered into the California Education Code. Districts are not free to
ighore this provision within the law. Academic senates should regularly review their
policy, procedure, and practice of determining equivalency and update them for clarity
as needed as well as to maintain accreditation standards regarding the upkeep of all
policies and procedures.

The academic senate.with ¢cancurrence of thc?dlstrlct board is. responssplefor defining
equivalency aml malrﬂtamlng a pmcess for dare*mmlng equrvalent status for lndeual
app{lcants Iti IS very lmportant thdt aenates focus ﬂ%n soun¢i practices | rather thaiy
e)medlency whsn detFn‘nimﬁg equwalenc,v and polﬁcy and “’:Hoeedureshould ShEI'E that
focus. Pohmes and pmcedures {%:.at are dasugned piumarlly tn address last-minute:
staﬁlﬂg threatm; the pnnmp&a thét“every mstrucmr m fhe California Commmnlty

College system is at least minimally qualified. The Education Code establishes faculty
and the governing board as jointly responsible for developing policies and practices and
designates the academic senate as primarily responsible for determining individual
cases of those claiming equivalency, the Education Code does not establish the criteria
that districts apply to determine equivalency. While §87359 states that equivalency
means “qualifications that are at least equivalent to the minimum qualifications,” neither
the Education Code nor Title 5 Regulations provide any further guidelines for what
constitutes af least equivalent. When taking an action on equivalency, on the advice,
recommendation, or expertise of its academic senate, a governing board sets its
standard for equivalency in the eyes of the law, even if that standard appears weak to a

reasonable person.



Once the local equivalency process has determined a recommendation regarding an
individual applicant, Education Code §87359(a) requires that the governing board take
action on the equivalency before hiring occurs.

It is also important to understand that applicants who are granted equivalency, and
subsequently hired, retain that status for their entire career in the district which granted
that equivalency. When faculty members apply for positions in ancther district, they
may need to go through equivalency processes in that other district because

equivalency is not transferable from district to district.

Principles
The Academic Senate has consistently supported the following basic principles for
granting equivalency:
ub Equjvalent to the minimum qualn‘" catlons means equal to the minimum
qu.'—mﬁf;uimns Fiot nearly equal \; \ |
s The apr)ilcant l nust provrde a;wdencé of a‘ttamlng coursework or expenerm:;e equal

| tothe gemenal ﬁuﬁahsm componentcﬂf an é;amed as"ﬁacudtasﬁr bachelor's

b
3 ;.__

degree: y | 1
e app“hcan' must prowde..i:‘ yldmce of attalmr;g\ thmskllls and knowledg

prowded by speclallzed course work required for a master’s degree or requIte

experience and coursework for disciplines that do not require a master's degree.
The Academic Senate believes that faculty members must exemplify to their students
the value of an education that is both well-rounded and specialized.

Criteria for Determining Equivalent Qualifications

Many criteria for determining equivalency seem obvious and can be handled in a simple
manner. Others are more difficult. The three means of demonstrating equivalency are
coursework, work experience, and eminence.

Any applicant should be expected to provide evidence of equivalent preparation that is
as reliable and objective as a transcript. Thus, the candidate seeking equivalence
should be measured by the same yardstick as a candidate who possesses the minimum

qualifications. Evaluating experience depends on the candidate’s ability to provide



objective, detailed information from some source other than the candidate’s statements
about what exactly they did.

Establishing equivalency through coursework is often relatively simple, as transcripts
are concrete documents that can be compared to concrete criteria. Another clear-cut
example of equivalency through coursework occurs when someone has all the
appropriate courses for the relevant degree, but the applicant’s diploma or degree has a
different title or area of expertise. For example, if someone earned a degree in business
because a particular college or university combined its economics and business
programs but the coursework on the transcript shows the academic work completed is
the same as that for an economics degree, then that business degree is equivalentto a
degree in economics for the potential faculty member. Instances where determining
equivalency when the title of an applicant’s earned degree is slightly different from the
mmimum.que!iﬁcatior?.shaye-mQLegsed with tl?,e{ise of specialized titles atﬂ;eumuens;ty

W
[ : == i I~ il

levEd. “g ‘\ ‘,-:' i Ly ] !

,J \

A somewhat mere dlﬁ’iwlt case \Mwld occur whnn the name of a degree is closato that

'I--.-e_—-- —

in: mEﬁﬁnath is eqtgﬂalent to a c.tegrdl in mathemetu.s ﬁf_lother example of ae fion-
sta;ae;d title may be an earned doctorate in Mythological Studies. The applicant with
such a degree may be equivalent to the disciplines of English or religious studies but a
careful review of coursework is needed.

A perennial question from the field involves applicants who may have advanced to
candidacy for a doctorate, completed coursework at the graduate level, but do not have
an earned degree other than at the baccalaureate level. It is common in some fields to
enter a doctoral program without first completing a Master’s degree. While local
determinations may vary, it is important to note that if the applicant is hired through
equivalency and subsequently fails to complete another earned degree, the district
board has hired a person with only a Bachelor's degree and some units to teach in a
discipline that typically requires a Master's degree. Neither the district nor the academic
senate can revoke the determination of equivalency because it was found that the

faculty member was af least equal to the minimum qualifications at the time of hire.

10



This example serves to illustrate the concept that there is no provisional equivalency.
The applicant must be determined to meet the minimum qualifications at the time of
hire. The advice from the Academic Senate must be that local senates should consider
these cases with extreme caution.

One last example involves using work experience in determining equivalency to the
Master’s degree. For example, a journalist with a bachelor's degree in English who has
12 years of work experience in journalism may be an applicant to teach in the discipline
of Journalism which typically requires a Master's degree. The academic senate or
equivalency committee will need to evaluate the components of a Master’'s degree to
determine if the applicant’'s work experience is commensurate with the an eamed
degree. Typically there is no general education requirement for a degree beyond the
baccalaureate level. So the committee may wish to consult the requirements published
in locaLw:wersnty catalogs;oeam a Master’sdegree in Joumahsmandevaluate the
mhﬁnals sthmitted @;alnst ‘thosa. mqmremen&h\ Of cours[a, no predetermlned emount
off@kperlence or number of years: ef:work |$ unques\tlonably_equwalent to a particular
dg ee For example‘ mnm:\of experlanﬂe may .:n.ot be 'qHWalen{{o any degrae
whﬂé two yeal:a of work: may be e;}uwalg‘ft dependn Fq on | e breadth and depth of the
emrlearm j;.qunvalepc:y depends ontth*nature of tha éxgenence and the expectahons
typically required of a discipline. )

Equivalency to the Associate’s Degree

A problem that may arise particularly when we consider equivalencies for career
technical areas is determining how an applicant who lacks an Associate’s degree has
acquired the broad knowledge that a general education program provides as well as
the discipline specific knowledge. Evaluating experience depends on the candidate’s
ability to provide objective, detailed information from some source other than the
candidate’s statements about what exactly they did. While the provision and
consideration of such evidence can be a challenge for applicants and local senates,
general education preparation should endow instruction of any subject with an essential
cross-curricular breadth and depth while specialization or discipline requirements
demonstrate detailed familiarity with a field of study. Both are important considerations.

11



We must also distinguish between general education preparation and specialized
preparation. The Academic Senate supports the principle that all community college
faculty exemplify the qualities of a college educated person. It is also important that all
faculty can communicate the manner in which the discipline content is relevant to the
myriad other fields of study and the world at large. While the provision and
consideration of such evidence can be a challenge for applicants and local senates,
general education preparation should endow instruction of any subject with an essential
cross-curricular breadth and depth. This is why the universal minimum requirement for
all disciplines includes at least an Associate’s degree.

When a committee reviews an applicant’s possible equivalency, the equivalency
committee should consider whether the applicant satisfies the general education
qualification for which they seek equivalency. One of the most difficult cases occurs
whenwork. experlencerlsmposed as the equalent of academ;c wark meledge
acpqulred inas wurse cauld also be gained |n nihet ways however the problem ligs in
otﬁ&lnlng convlmmg gvidence to/mtabllsh Ahét aﬁ Bppllcant has _enough necessary
educatronal preparatn%;m&thmugh an alterndﬂve means to bs pdged as knowledgeable
as someone Wﬁ‘ﬂ'l the @ppropnale degrea Of courss, no seﬂ amount of experler'ar.zhina is
unquﬁsﬁﬁn&my equwaient toa partwlardegree ten Jears uf experience may not be
equivalent to any degree. Equivalency depends on the nature of the experience and the
ability to document the connection between the experience and the requirement of
qualification.

This has been reported from the field as a persistent concern in some career technical
fields where the minimum qualification is any Associate’s degree and six years of work
experience. For example, a fashion designer without any degree, who has spent two
decades in the fashion industry and can provide documented evidence of a breadth of
work and experience in print and film may apply to teach in the discipline of Fashion and
Related Technologies. It is incumbent on the equivalency committee or academic
senate to consider whether the applicant has the equivalent to the general education
breadth requirements and the equivalent depth of a discipline required of an Associate’s

degree.

12



For this example, the depth of a discipline requirement may not be in question, but the
general education component is. Some academic senates have used the requirements
for an Associate’s degree outlined in Title 5 when examining cases like this. Title 5
Section 55063 defines the components of the Associate's degree as:
e competency in reading
e competency in written expression at the level of Freshman Composition
e competency in mathematics at the level of Intermediate Algebra
e atleast 18 units of discipline specific preparation
e at least 18 units of general education in the areas of
o natural sciences
o social and behavioral sciences
o humanities and
' 5! \Ianguag[eandﬂ!:auonallty y — - =
Sasome colfages may ask appl’bants how tl‘féa)h meet or exgéeed these requwements to
be evaluated by ihe acad-e_rplc_: ser-afe or ecm[vale:rrcy commiitee

In Ehe absencelff a cienrm agreed upoﬂ way to! *letermlﬁawﬁa%mequwalent te the
Beiate’s detiree dalleges might conS|dar using

gensﬁral educaf.cm component od an Asgiee
thau‘ mmﬁtﬂit;nal Iearmng outcome:g; gsﬁmtrlcs for derj»? mlf’img if a faculty memher s
quél;fiééadns are equivalent to an As'somate 's degree. Prospective faculty seeking
equivalency may be asked to provide documentation consisting of examples of work
product or coursework to demonstrate proficiency in those outcomes. This practice may
address the need for a candidate to show they exemplify the qualities of an educated

person.

Determining Eminence

Some districts recognize eminence as a basis for granting equivalency. Although
eminence is not specified in current law, it is not prohibited. The Chancellor's Office
publication An Analysis of Faculty Equivalency Policies (December 1992, p. 43) found
that 20 districts specified equivalency by eminence in their policies, and other districts
seem to have added this avenue in the years since.

13



Common as eminence is in policy, this designation poses problems since districts may
define the term differently. Just what should constitute eminence if there is no legal

definition of the term? How eminent is eminent encugh to be equivalent?

Historical analysis helps us understand how this term has been used. A Title 5
Regulation that has been repealed defined eminence as “superior knowledge and skil!
...} in comparison with the generally acceptad standard of achievement in the subject
field.” Furthermore, this regulation indicated how eminence should be determined
stating, “[d]etermination of eminence should be based on a conviction that the applicant,
if measured by recognized authorities in his subject field, would be judged superior.” An
Analysis of Faculty Equivalency Policies points out that this exact language survives in
Monterey Peninsula College’s equivalency policy (p. 44). Other districts require that an
applicant who claims eminence must be recognized beyond her or his geographic area.
Stlll@ﬂnerdlstncts have, nodearxntena and make dec|5|onsma£ase—by-casehas|s,
to descrlbe it, hu‘t I kn}aw it when, lsee it.” If it cah he known |t__sh__ould be descrlhﬂble
Amother problem !mth thempt of equnétﬂuﬂfence\w emlnemce is{ha‘t it does nat mclude

i

amay be reql::gnlzed by Iwr pdus as havmg aaxtraardmary skills and kr'.lqmledge

W foc

S [ Ry
but not possess the equivalent of completing a general education program. For this

reason, eminence has been used by some districts in combination with other criteria,
such as an associate or bachelor's degree.

Finally, districts that choose to use eminence, especially on a case-by-case basis, risk
exposing themselves to allegations that hiring criteria are not applied equally to all
candidates. For instance, suppose that candidate A is granted equivalency based on
eminence, while candidate B's appeal for equivalency based on eminence is denied.
Absent pre-defined criteria, what prevents candidate B from charging that the decision
is based on bias? Some equally applied test or standard of eminence should be used.
A basic principle within this could be asking the question of those in the field not at the
college but within some reasonably large area including the location of the candidate
about who they would think of when asked to name top people in the field or if they

consider a certain individual eminent. Once a person not connected with the college

14



has named or has agreed with the naming of the candidate as eminent, the person
could be asked to describe what makes the candidate eminent. For example, are they
someocne to whom others in the field turn to ask for definitive answers to questions; for
help in solving problems, especially those requiring a range of knowledge beyond
narrow technical problems; or to critique their work or the work of students in the field?
Answers pointing to broader knowledge and communication skills might meet
descriptions offered by those who are asked about what might be observed about a
person having taken general education coursework.

Most equivalency committees or academic senates are not going to survey people
working in a particular field, but the concept applies when trying to apply a consistent
definition of what equivalency through eminence would look like and to document the
process used to apply that definition. Some suggestions for senates as they craft or
rewewamhcy that mcludesequwalency through eminence m.awequwe anygr angf the
fokowing: N ' ,/ ; \

N |

| ° docume\?ted regional or natibnai peer-revbwed puhl]r*atlons authored by the
Y ,l :

appllcarit o f. ' |
o documm@ed reggional or nﬁﬁonaf ﬁnbhcatlons ft.garcling the applicant’s wLm'k

. national awards pertaining to the discipline

e formal action by the academic senate at large
In any case, the criteria for establishing equivalency through eminence should be
explicitly spelled out and documented. Equivalency is uncommon, as most applicants
should meet the minimum qualifications listed, but equivalency through eminence
should be particularly rare.
Equivalency Committees: Composition and Information Collection
As difficult as it can be to make the judgment of whether a specific candidate’s
experience is equivalent to the minimum qualifications, it is important that faculty in the
discipline are involved to inform the academic senate’s decision. Nonetheless,to ensure
that colleagues in various disciplines function with some consistency across the
campus, the process for determining equivalency should include faculty from outside

the discipline. Most academic senates create an equivalency committee to evaluate

15



requests. Thus having a mechanism that includes the discipline faculty voice and
faculty voices from other disciplines should be written into the process. The benefits to
having a breadth of discipline representatives on the equivalency committee are the
following:

o The breadth or general education requirements equivalent to an earned
degree may be more readily addressed when faculty from other disciplines
are involved, and

e Committee decisions are more easily communicated because the logic
and credibility of a specific decision is more easily understood by any
external agency or future senate leader when more faculty voices are
involved.

o Decision-making is more consistent when committee representatives are
constant rather than dependent on the dlsc:|p||ne and thelr demswns are..

*-‘:made WIthout bias f

To ensure that r&levaﬂt mformatlm is avallrihile f‘or the facuity cherged with detenmmng
ecr.xtvalency, tha applﬂc&tmnimwemploymeni must'prowde !afptaee for candldates to
indicate wheth& they DDSSess thti‘\mlnlﬂmm quaﬁﬁ@ﬂ nons m' if not, why they thiirk they
POSSaBs) eqmyalent qp&ht‘ catlons ~The Mer part coUlct be a Beparate page W|th aome

detailed inquiries. The following are sample prompts for a supplement to the application.

Discipline for which you claim equivalency.

2. Indicate the educational preparation on which you base this claim.
Indicate the educational preparation on which you base this claim for the
general education requirement of this degree

5. If you are using courses to establish equivalency, please submit both an
official transcript and copies of the appropriate pages from the college
catalog.

6. If you are using publications or other work products, please submit them or
links to online copies where appropriate and if possible.

7. Describe in detail work experience which you believe establishes equivalency
to the minimum qualifications. If you are using work products or other items

16



which cannot be submitted, provide detailed information from an objective
source about the nature of this work product or experience along with contact

or reference information about the source.

Faculty Responsibilities and the Role of the Human Resources Office
Determination of equivalency is a faculty responsibility. While the governing board
provides the legal authority to determine equivalencies, academic senates are
responsible for determining whether an applicant possesses the equivalent of the
published minimum qualifications. Faculty in the discipline in question possess the
academic expertise needed to understand qualifications in that discipline; however, the
urgent need to staff classes can sometimes lead to questionable judgment in
equivalency determinations. Colleges should create an equivalency committee external
to,ahmng committee. anciexterna\l\fo the part -time faculty hmng process to evaluate
amcatlonswhere equlvalencym s Y questloﬁ a‘: d to deteriﬁsne equnvalency ‘

Many local achemlc senates use an equwﬁlency @ommltlxeer tow ensure that the
equ}valency prmcess s wﬂmeﬁﬂy and fairiy appﬁéd fora mﬁnmtejor review from al!
dlscipllnes Thase equt’valency cﬁmmlttgas typicaif*:: consLl of three to five members
eachﬁmbﬂr selected for a term \U& at )wst one yea* Oﬂani as the commlttee meets

E, ZRE B

to evaiuate each request for equivalency from across the disciplines, a representatlve
from the discipline in question is invited to pariicipate. This ensures at least one
discipline expert for each consideration of the committee. As with all appointments to
committees, the academic senate should ensure that faculty appointed to the
equivalency committee represent the diversity of the faculty and the community they
serve. In some cases, equivalency committees may include administrators, but this
practice should be discussed by your local senate fo determine advantages and
disadvantages. The equivalency committee should be trained on the role of the
committee to determine whether qualifications meet or exceed the minimum
qualifications only. Other parts of the hiring process will evaluate teaching ability, and fit

- the equivalency process is only determining who may be considered as part of the

pool of applicants.

17



The role of the Human Resources office in determining equivalency should be limited to
collecting and forwarding applications and other pertinent information to the senate or
equivalency committee. Human Resources office staff should not be the arbiter of
equivalency. A college district that permits its Human Resources office staff to establish
equivalency risks hiring candidates that do not meet minimum qualifications and is out
of compliance with the Education Code and Title 5 Regulations (see Education Code
§87359 (b) and Title 5 §53430 (b}). The Human Resources office should ensure that the
necessary information is collected from applicants at the time the application is
submitted to support an effective equivalency process. Many districts use a
supplemental form to the application to collect information should a determination of
equivalency be necessary. The Human Resources office should also keep track of the
outcome of the equivalency process.

The. Mngcommltteerchapged with screenlng Jull-time facultyapphcams shonJewew
apphcatlonsip determiﬂe if an ehumalency detqa mlnatlon Es needed before beglnmng
the paper screening process. Whén ‘a detefmma uun of eq ivalgqpy is needed, the
eéﬂ.ﬂvalency comm ittw&i;h;uld meet after 4'ecewmg inaterials ﬁlbwéed by the appilcant
request:ng eqyl J'.Faleng;y andlor thg Human Resourcm:\ofr ice.' At least one member of
thp i‘m iy -:am'amlttee fbt a full- tlme Tacult.yv posmon shfmld rmet with the senate{
eduwalency committee to provide background. If faculty in the discipline participate at

the heart of the equivaiency process, and if care is given when coilecting the necessary
information to determine equivalency , the process can be done fairly and expeditiously
while still maintaining the standards set in Title 5 Regulations. Lastly, a hiring process

without an equivalency process is unlawful.

Determination of Equivalency for Part-time Hires

It is vital to remember that minimum qualifications in a discipline—and, by extension,
equivalency—are the same whether the position is full- or part-time. Title 5 Regulations
do not allow for a different standard of equivalency for part-time faculty. An applicant is
either qualified to teach the full range of courses in a discipline or not, regardless of

whether applying for a full- or part-time position.

18



One problem that coilege instruction offices face often is how to provide a means by
which the academic senate can make a determination of equivalency for part-time hires,
especially during times when few faculty are on campus.

Ideally, part-time faculty should be hired from a pool of available faculty whose minimum
qualifications or equivalencies have already been established before classes are
staffed. Unfortunately, pari-time faculty hiring is frequently done under duress and a
dean or department chair may seek equivalency to avoid closing a course section due
to a lack of applicants that meet minimum qualifications. Provisions in your local
process should attempt to strike a balance between minimum quaiification requirements
and the need to expedite the equivalency process. The equivalency committee should
consider ways to be flexible and provide the faculty oversight needed when determining
equivalency, even at times when full-time faculty tend to be off-contract. However, the
mabnhty#n convene trf,e—eq,wvale.ncy commﬁte;e&hould notb&seenasa reasnniorme

for an appllcani who eioes not En_ee? the mlmfrium wahf cal _

Whan faculty are: hlred ;&;aqmvalency but haVs not beangfaﬂ%ed equnvalency by a
process agreedto byrthe acadétmc senaﬁa those h»,r-=\s may be legally challenged and
stydents ﬂjﬂg fose the units they h@ve nned while E:ﬂ.,' ttlng rlhe entire district at r‘:qk
Facu.;lig_( \.;;10 have been granted equivalency incorrectly may challenge the district if the
district does not rehire them in the future, the district may lose state apportionment, and

the students may lose units earned.

The Single-course Equivalency Issue-Randy

Education Code §87359 (a) (see also Title 5 §53430) states, “No one may be hired to
serve as a community college faculty ... unless the governing board determines that he
or she possesses qualifications that are at least equivalent to the minimum
qualifications specified” (italics added). In addition, minimum qualifications are
determined for disciplines, not for courses or subject areas within disciplines. In short,
Education Code and regulations do not allow for a faculty member to be granted a

single course equivalency.

18



To verify this interpretation of relevant Education Code statutes, the Academic Senate
requested a legal opinion from the California Community Colleges Chancellor's Office’s
legal team in 2004. In response, the Senate received Legal Opinion L 03-28 (R. Black,
2004) (see Appendix C), which supports the position that “a district is not authorized to
establish a single course equivalency as a substitute for meeting minimum qualifications
in a discipline.” This opinion reaffirms the importance ASCCC’s “Disciplines List
Revision” process as the foundation of the minimum qualifications handbook (see
Education Code §87357 (b)). L 03-28 also affirms that single-course provisional
credentials are no longer valid. L 03-28 concludes firmly and simply that “a district is not
authorized to establish a single course equivalency as a substitute for meeting minimum
qualifications in a discipline.”

Some disciplines faced with a scarcity of faculty to teach courses have attempted the
smgle—cpurse equwalancy selution. Although feasons for circumventing these
regulatlons ‘rnay\stem fom undewmndable g*rmwltles suck problems are no excise for
hli'mg someone who is: not quallfmi to teach rh tha dlsmplme Those hired as fanuity
mambers, both‘fl:ill- ané gaarttat;mu, are expected i(i have the expertise to teach a fange
oficourses in the mscgphne for V\ﬁwﬂ.h therywere hlreql To ramure less from som& faculty
wcpum i ‘ﬁ d,evelop a second clau ost qualifi ed rgulty and thereby compremise

the integrity of the entire faculty. If a district hires a faculty member under an
equivalency to teach one or two courses in the discipline, such as keyboarding in
computer applications or basic firearms in administration of justice, that person has
been granted equivalency to teach any course within the discipline and could request
and be assigned to teach a course he or she is not prepared to teach. Colleges can
solve some of the hiring problems they face by creating more full-time positions to
attract fully qualified applicants.

Those responsible for staffing may attempt to craft special adaptations of equivalency to
the minimum qualifications to justify hiring applicants who are qualified to teach only a
certain course or subject within a discipline. At first glance, such a solution may appear
reasonable, but it is essential that local senates and governing boards do not grant
single-course equivalencies. Suppose, for example, a department head of kinesiology

requests that an equivalency committee grant equivalency to a person who has taught

20



aerobics based on the applicant’s experience in that specialty and bachelor's degree in
exercise physiology, a related discipline. Even though this individual may seem to be
very well qualified to teach aerobics, the applicant does not meet the minimum
qualifications for physical education. Even if the department head assures all concerned
that this individual would be assigned to teach only aerobics and no other course
offered as physical education, tempting as it may be, a decision tc grant such an
equivalency would constitute a violation of Education Code §87359, which calls for
“qualifications that are at least equivalent to the minimum qualifications.” For the sake of
maintaining the integrity of our profession, we urge local senates to resist attempts such
as the above example and demand that their college's equivalency processes comply
with code and regulation and not allow for any such adaptations which diminishthe
minimum qualifications by permitting single course equivalencies.

Mtsapphcatlons of equivalency. regulatlons cleacly undermine ﬂae:equuedrstandardsof
mmsmum qualdmatlorém As stated &bove eqysvafancy mesMs that an appllcant’e -
prpparatlon is equa! t!n the pubhshad mlnlmu-n quahf" catlo?s for a part:cu.‘ar d:spmhne

Amother solutlon, whlbn 18 bcﬁxexpedlent and appmpnate;s la%u-asslgn a course m a

range of dlsclpllnes based on th’&D?SCIpﬂnLS List. 'N us prahlr:'tk:e will increase the fumber
of: wmi#ﬁ.ﬂ ﬁmlty to keach the coqme Lqee Academu: Sena"le 1994 adopted pa;bsr

Placement of Courses in Disciplines). It is perfectly appropriate, for example, to assign a
course associated with coaching soccer to the discipline of coaching as well as to the
discipline of physical education, and if the individual were granted equivalency only in
coaching, he or she would not be able to claim equivalency to teach courses in physical
education.

Likewise, it would be pedagogically sound and appropriate to assign a course such as
word processing to a range of disciplines. Instead of assigning this course only to the
discipline of business, it could also be assigned to computer service technology,
computer information systems, and office technology. An instructor with minimum
qualifications in office management who is hired to teach a word processing class could
not then legitimately request assignment to other courses in business without meeting
the minimum qualifications for business.

Determining Equivalency In Multi-college Districts

21



It is important to understand that when a faculty member is hired, they are hired by a
district, not a college. In most multi-college districts, faculty members can be assigned
to any facility or combination of facilities in that district, although practice varies
according to negotiated policies defining rights of assignment and transfer. A variety of
possibilities exist for establishing and applying equivalency in multi-college districts.
Each college may have its own equivalency policy and procedures that the local board
accepts, although the local board is likely to insist on consistency between or among the
colleges in the district. If colleges have different policies and procedures, each college’s
faculty would have to accept the possibility that someone hired under the equivalency
policy in a sister college may be assigned to their college, unless bargaining
agreements or other policies preclude this possibility.

An alternative arrangement is to have a district-wide equivalency policy and set of
pracedures. to WhICh the academic senate of each college agrees. Hiring . .comm:ttees
weild submitt ihe dooiumentatlon f,xf appllcants ()vhp claim e@.uvalency to an equllmlency
comimittee, whlcﬂ werid make a demswn bﬂ*a‘ed ‘tpn the d[sh';lt,t WIde accepted

pracedures and*stan ards afw'fﬂence TI‘ﬂs arreng&ment Ihae thc, ‘advantage of allowing

a pw’c—tlme lns._;:juctcr whose eq\awalencyfhas been %stabllthed to work in any chillege in

Some dlstrlcts may also create a dlstrlct equwalency co;nmlttee typically compnsed of
members from all colieges. Such a commitiee may have regular meetings to process
applications for potential faculty as they are received by Human Resources.

A critical obligation of any equivalency policy in a multi-college district is to ensure, to
the extent feasible, equal application among the colleges. The colleges are not well
served if there is a case where a person rejected at one college within the district is then
accepted at another and then transferred or deemed automatically qualified at all the
colleges in the district. On the other hand, having separate judgements at different
colleges allows for periodic discussions and norming activities which help maintain rigor

and broader perspectives concomitantly.

Conclusion

22



AB1725 provides the intent language of equivalency and is explicit concerning faculty
responsibility: Faculty members derive their authority from their expertise as teachers
and subject matter specialists and from their status as professionals. As a resulit, the
faculty have an inherent professional responsibility in the development and
implementation of policies and procedures governing the hiring process. Equivalency
considered in this light will remind us that our guide must be the published minimum
qualifications. Legal Opinion L 03-28 reiterates and supports adherence to minimum
qualifications for a discipline. To maintain the academic integrity of the community
colleges and their faculty, equivalency to those minimum qualifications for hire must be
granted with careful consideration.
Recommendations

1. Equivalency should be determined with input from discipline faculty.

2. Equwalencyhpr@cesses for part-timg. faculty andr"emergency hl.re”shauldgbef.,

| nodﬁferent from equr\mbncy for f}.tﬁ—tkne faculty T
3. Loca! senm must er)éufe that ﬁ‘il}ll’ Mrlct and college policies and

.-._,

procesSes kio-not g j.W for smgle-acoursb equwalenefes
| ".nld assﬁﬁ'e conSIsﬁaa cy of the equivalency pr0||Jsss
'E@ﬂvalenoy decisions shc»ul& be based on urec:t “evidence of claims ge g.,

BRL e

transcripts, publications, and work products).

6. The determination of equivalency should be documented and justifiable to an
external review.

7.  Claims of equivalence must include how both general education and
specialization are met.

8. Human resources offices should NOT screen for equivalency but should
maintain records of the outcomes and documentation of equivalency
requests.

9. Local senates must never allow equivalency to be delegated to administration
or classified staff or to allow determinations to degenerate into becoming a
gathering of signatures without discussion.

10. Equivalency policies should be reviewed regularly.

23



11. Ciriteria for the acceptance of eminence as a means to establish equivalency
must be clearly defined in hiring policy.

12. Once the local equivalency process has reached a recommendation regarding
an individual applicant, Education Code §87359(a) requires that the
governing board take action on the equivalency before hiring occurs.

Faculty equivalency to the minimum gualifications should be an uncommon occurrence,
but an important mechanism to ensure a diversity of qualified applicants are considered
to engage and enhance student learning. Additional training materials may be obtained

from the Academic Senate Office and/or at its website.

Appendix A: Sample Board Policy and Procedure

No;37122 BP ) " Human Resources

; ,.' |
Minimum Qualifications, and'Equivaleney |\ |

| '._\_.I. 3 5.: -|‘III:I l-. | | l
Reference: Education Code Sections 87355-87359.5; 86360

Title 5 California Code of Regulations Sections 53410 - 53417

The Community College District shall establish procedures for

determining faculty service areas that adhere to collective bargaining agreements,

In addition, the College District will establish procedures to determine minimum
qualifications and equivalencies for minimum qualifications for hiring faculty that are
compliant with relevant sections of the Education Code and Title 5 regulations and
include reasonable procedures to ensure that the Governing Board relies primarily upon
the advice and judgment of the Academic Senate to determine that each individual
employed under the authority granted by the regulations possesses qualifications that
are “at least equivalent to the applicable minimum qualifications” per Education Code
Section 87359(b). These procedures will ensure the hiring of highly qualified faculty who

24



are experts in their subject matter areas, who are skilled in teaching and serving the
needs of a varied student population, who can foster overall college effectiveness, and
who are sensitive to and themselves represent the racial and cultural diversity of the

College District community.

NEW PROCEDURE
No. 7211 AP Human Resources

Minimum Qualifications and Equivalency

Reference: Education Code Sections 87001, 87003, 87355-87359.5; 86360, 87743.2
Title 5 California Code of Regulations Sections 53406, 53410 - 53417

THE ROLE OF HUMAN RESOURCES

|

Thﬂ role of the Human Resources m‘F ice is 16 CO\lebt date-pmmp, and forward
apphications antl Dthem' pertinentinformatiof to the @ppropriafAisci

committee (fullk ujne) ur d|SC|p]Tm or deparh:mf ﬁﬂuﬁy an% tean (part-time).

i ‘-._ L .-'__;:-.,' 3
- "I | N ¥ |,r- \ |

In 'addiﬁbn, Human Resources ensUre“g‘that the established tinimum qualifications for

ne selection:

the position will be listed in the job description/announcement. The District criteria for
equivalency will be available at the Human Resources Department. A statement will be
included in the application materials requiring all candidates who do not possess
minimum qualifications to indicate in the application material how they meet the
equivalent qualifications for the position and to provide supporting documentation. The

burden of proof for minimum qualifications and equivalency is on the applicant.

Human Resources staff will verify that applicants have the appropriate credential, or that
applicants claiming the required minimum qualifications show the appropriate degrees
on their transcript. If there is an experience requirement, College District Human
Resource staff will verify that the applicant has the required number years of

experience, but will not judge if the experience is appropriate.

25



If the applicant claims to possess the minimum qualifications, but the degree titles are
significantly different from those listed in the “Minimum Qualifications for Faculty and
Administrators in California Community Colleges,” that application shall be considered
under the equivalency process even if the applicant did not claim equivalency. Human
Resources will rely primarily on the Academic Senate, in consultation with
administration, to determine equivalency of degree titles based on an examination of an

applicant’s transcripts.

Human Resources forwards all applications which satisfy the credentials requirement,
satisfy the minimum qualifications requirement, or are deemed to be equivalent to the
college selection committee (full-time) or to the dean and chair in that department (part-

time).

Sqmpiemen'@a'{EguivajIGncy Apﬁl@ﬁpn 2 =

' '., ! ‘ y .4 “-‘ y
Human Resourx.@s is! respar‘ss"ﬂp for malnia rnlng & “Supple*mental Egulvalency
Appilcatlon 9 If:a 'Joteh‘éial empioybe app}fe.,w;—;#mtlon 8nd wishes to complete a
“Sugplemental Equwa ency Appli‘mﬂmnfﬁ'qr Academlt. Emplnyment" the followmtg
mformatuoﬁshould be provided:

1. Degree for which the applicant claims equivalency.

2. The educational preparation on which the applicant bases this claim for the major
of the minimum degree.

3. The educational preparation on which the applicant bases this claim for the
general education requirement of the minimum degree.

4. The relevant courses the applicant has taken or other evidence that the applicant
has the equivalent of the General Education portion of the minimum degree.

5. An official transcript and copies of the appropriate pages from the catalog of the
instifution that granted the degree upon which the applicant bases a claim of
equivalency.

6. Publications or other work products that support a claim of equivalency.

26



7. A detailed description of work experience which the applicant believes
establishes equivalency to the minimum qualifications. If the applicant is using
work products or other items which cannot be submitted, provide detailed
information from an objective source about the nature of this work product or

experience.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS O

The goal of the Community College District is to provide a faculty of highiy
qualified professional educators who are experts in their fields, skilled in teaching, and
serve the needs of a varied student population. The District also seeks those who can
promote overall college effectiveness and who are sensitive to the diversity of the
District community. [1The College District shall employ faculty who possess the
mlmmum quallﬂcatlons _as. established by the Callforn ia State_Chanoellorstche Lsee;
puhhcatlon ‘%lmum Quallﬂcatlms for Facu 'mwld Admlmstrators in Cahforma

Cammunity Cdﬂages") _ | i.‘ b
> j f. ‘.'\‘ .‘-
. -

Famlty are rejﬁmnsuﬁe for mclqdmg a mﬁiﬁﬁum qt,,aliﬁcatnlcm‘ on all new curriculitm or as
pm af @ @m‘ﬁﬁﬂlum rgwew proce&s., A":WI’I’ICU'UH‘] s"rt;fufd be placed within a d:smphne
that is |dent|f|ed as havmg a mlnlmﬁm quallflcatlon It is best practlce to place currlculum

in the discipline that best matches the course content and for which the minimum

gualifications of faculty best match the course content.

For departments that include courses with dual designators, deans and chairs from all
relevant programs will coltaborate to ensure the most qualified faculty teach these

courses and minimum qualifications are met.
EQUIVALENCY

All community college faculty should exemplify the qualities of a college educated

person.

27



Pursuant to Education Code Section 87359, the equivalency process "shall include
reasonable procedures to ensure that the Governing Board relies primarily upon the
advice and judgment of the Academic Senate to determine that each individual
employed under the authority granted by the regulations possesses qualifications that

are at least equivalent to the applicable minimum qualifications.”

Equivalency may be recognized in three major ways: course work, work experience,

and eminence in the field or a combination of the three.

Equivalency Committee

The Equivalency Committee is a subcommittee of the Academic Senate. The committee
is comprrsed of three faculty members appomted by the Academlc Senate fpre5|dent
and up ’tcr*iwu Bdmlnlstrators whq are deagne.tad by the VPM and-are ad\ﬁsorr tothe -
prnoesa For detiermmatlon of eqmvhlencyzfof un academic administrative pos:’ﬁﬁn the
administrators fm the. ommitte ‘wﬂl have*ﬂ;il votlmrlghts; The Equivalency Committee
is ot subject to 'lhe Brown Acffﬁ‘ Publlc; ’Meeﬁﬂgs |

'|

Process for Ije/termin%\tiOn of Equib“éiéﬁ’c’iy a |

In order to determine when an applicant for a faculty position who lacks the specific
degree or experience specified in the “Minimum Qualifications for Faculty and
Administrators in California Community Colleges” Handbook possesses qualifications

that are equivalent, the following process has been established:

1. When Human Resources stipulates that a determination of equivalency is
needed, the Equivalency Committee will be called to meet as soon as possible.
Human Resources will provide the Equivalency Committee with the necessary
information to determine equivalency no Iesé than three working days prior to the
meeting.

2. The dean, discipline faculty, and applicant may address the committee and

provide additional information prior to the committee making a decision.

28



3. Determination of equivalency to the minimum qualifications for hire shall be
decided, by majority vote in the Equivalency Committee and is final. The
Equivalency Committee will document their determination in writing and send it to
Human Resources within 5 working days.

4. If new information becomes available, a new request for equivalency may be
submitted.

5. Human Resources will forward the written rationale from the Equivalency
Committee explaining the equivalency decision to the applicant and dean.

6. The results of the Equivalency Committee decision shall be documented by
Human Resources and records kept of all decisions. Individual voting by
Committee members will not be recorded.

7. Education Code §87359(a) requires that the governing board take action on the
equmalency befo;ehmg Joceurs. Equwalencres shall be forward ta.the Office of-

" the Suwlntendent Presni&m to be plaseﬂ. ;on a Governmg Board agendg
| ¥y B l

Stendards And Gnterha aﬁu;,;pkcabie For Def.ermmmg Equwallaney -

Tha fouew; Ag ﬂandards and crlterie Qripfy when detar"nlnlng equivalency: !

1. Mlnlmum quallflcatlons in a discipline—and, by exi:ensmn equivalency—are the
same whether the position is for a full-time or part-time faculty member.
2. Equivalency is determined for an entire discipline, not on a course-by-course

basis, per legal opinion | 03-28. The granting of equivalency is on a case-by-case
basis and does not set precedence for future hires.

3. Past equivalency decisions in the discipline will be made available as needed to
the Equivalency Committee or to the dean and chair in that department to aid in
their defiberations and can be considered when determining equivalency, though
they do not establish precedence.

4. Should an equivalency be granted, that decision shall not give the applicant any
more or any less consideration than other applicants. In addition, granting an

equivalency neither guarantees an interview nor a job.

29



5. It is the applicant's responsibility to provide all documentation in support of
equivalency and to be available for questions. Applicants wishing to establish
equivalency through work experience should provide objective, detailed
information about those work experiences. Any applicant who fails to provide
evidence to support his/her claim of a credential, or of minimum qualifications, or
of equivalency may be eliminated from the applicant pool.

6. Various occupational experiences may be combined to total the required number
of years established by the minimum qualifications; all experience must have
taken place within the ten years preceding the date of application with at least
one year of qualified experience occurring within the three years immediately
preceding the date of application.

7. For the Performing Arts, a bachelor's degree in the discipline plus advanced
degree from anacc::edlted |nst|tut|on s !f' ic to thata.rt. Gr&bachelmsdeg;eem
the dedpllne nd four yeamof profe%ibﬂsl experlem:e in the d|SC|pI|ne,.§s -
requwed m be |¢an3|dered inr equwaiency

‘8. No candfrﬁate fora fulls ‘Jme posmori shall ba mcomrlhena‘eé as a flnallst to: the

Preadein% W|thaut meetlng §he mlrzt'i‘mum quéﬂﬁj:atlonslor having been vetified as
me&uag the ecuu-valency *_ ,c_ Tf' 'L h
9 No candidate for part-time employment shall be hired without either meetlng the

minimum qualifications or having been verified as meeting equivalency per these

procedures.
Provisional Equivalency

Effective beginning in fall 2015, the Equivalency Committee will not grant “provisional”
or "temporary” equivalency. All faculty hires must possess the minimum qualifications or
be determined to possess equivalency to the minimum qualifications to be employed by

the college district.

Additional Criteria for the Equivalency Committee

30



All deliberations of the Equivalency Committee and all records involved in the
proceedings shall be confidential.

In all cases in which equivalency is granted or denied, an officially signed form shall be
filed with the Office of Human Resources and the Office of Academic Affairs. This form
shall include a complete description of the Equivalency Committee's reasons for
determining that a candidate does or does not have the equivalent of the minimum
qualifications for the position. The Human Resources Office is responsible for creating

and maintaining this documentation.

Minimum Standards for Consideration of Equivalency to Minimum Qualifications in

Disciplines Requiring a Master's Degree
L Py .

N R Sy 1
= S I g .f

‘.

In:order to be mnadaaied for equmaiency, In the mase of digciplines normally reqmring a
Master's degree, the i""’!ii]"ii"ﬁ* i @ndard sh&l’l be W one dfitiie Wllowing:

‘\ \ ." ]
|' - ...

1. A Mam;‘s degme ina discipiine.whlch is not: ap,%ecn‘lically named in “Minifpim
Qualifications for Faculty and Admmistrators in California Community Coiieges”

for the particular discipline in question, but which, when courses {(and course
descriptions) are carefully reviewed, clearly constitutes parallel and/or closely
related coursework to the discipline which is specifically listed in “Minimum
Qualifications for Faculty and Administrators in California Community Colleges”.
2. In specific disciplines as named by the “Minimum Qualifications for Facuity and
Administrators in California Community Colleges”, a bachelor's degree in the
discipline, plus licensure by an appropriate state agency, plus at least two years

of professional experience, verified in writing.

Minimum Standards for Consideration of Equivalency to Minimum Qualifications in

Disciplines That Do Not Require a Master's Degree

31



In order to be considered for equivalency in the case of disciplines not normally
requiring a Master's degree, the minimum standards shall be one of the following;

1. An Associate degree plus six years of related experience

2. Bachelor's degree plus two years of related experience,

3. Associate degree plus graduation from an institution specific to that field, plus
two years of professional experience in the discipline, verified in writing, plus
appropriate certification to practice or licensure, if applicable.

4. Pursuant to Title 5 § 53406, all degrees and coursework must be from
colleges/universities accredited by one of the intersegmental accrediting
agencies: Western Association of Schools and Colleges, Middle States
Association of Colleges and Schools, New England Association of Schools and
__(lolleges North Central Assomatlons of Colleges and Schools, Southern ,
Assoaataon of. Colleges and Schools and Northwest Association of Schoois and
Colleges ! ; ‘-‘ ] ‘\.‘ |

o E b
L T |

" 1
4 /- v |

Qualifications Exstabhshed by Degrees and Geﬂrsewurk from Educational Instltutifbns

Omdeaf ttfas Unlted S'tates A S 'iH | |

Applicants wishing to be granted equivalency based on coursework completed at an
educational institution outside of the United States must provide the following:

1. A transcript assessment by a third party degree assessment service.
2. Proof that the institution is accredited in its country of operation or in the United
States.

Local Minimum Qualifications and Equivalencies

Disciplines wishing to add “local” qualifications for hiring to their discipline beyond the
minimum qualifications established by the "Minimum Qualifications for Faculty and
Administrators in California Community Colleges”) may do say with approval of the

Academic Senate with a recommendation from the Equivalency Committee. Local

32



requirements may not be added on a course-by-course basis. Equivalency for the local

requirement will be determined through the equivalency process.

Eminence

Although no legal definition of eminence exists, eminence shall mean that qualifications
which, as evidenced by prominence and celebrity, is established by the specific industry
and/or community at large and may be deemed equivalent to minimum qualifications.
This may include appropriate local, state, national and/or international associations,
trade unions, guilds or communities comprised of experts, who are themselves
renowned in the specific field, and who can attest, in writing, to the prominence and

celebrity of the applicant.

EMMEnceﬂ!om is ndt sufﬁc’rentip grant equkaiyncy An 4 pﬁcaﬂonof equrvaiency
baaed on emlrmmce must be accompanied bg/cd*ﬂ‘luswe € 1ﬁ:]sdence that the applli::ant

knawledge ang -ﬁ'blhty o teach\«sﬁ'ectlvely mmm l%umt?jﬁi*oﬂege level. The aga;ullcant
muat prowa!e decumelniatlon supm*"undﬂie status c;T'Emlruence In addition, the
appllcant must prowde clear and preponderant ewdence of his or her understarlldlng of
the principles of teaching and that he or she possesses the skills necessary te teach

effectively at the commuinity coliege level.

Appendix B Relevant Education Code References
1. Assembly Bill 1725, Section 4 (p) (1) “The laws, regulations, directives, or
guidelines should help the community colleges ensure that the faculty and
administrators they hire and retain are people who are sympathetic and
sensitive to the racial and cultural diversity in the colleges, are themselves
representative of that diversity, and are well prepared by training and
temperament to respond effectively to the educational needs of all the special

populations served by community colleges.”

33



2. Assembly Bill 1725, Section 4 (s) (2) “The governing board of a community
college district derives its authority from statute and from its status as the
entity holding the institution in trust for the benefit of the public. As a result,
the governing board and the administrators it appoints have the principal legal
and public responsibility for ensuring an effective hiring process.”

3. Education Cede, Section 873592 "No one may be hired to serve as a
community college faculty member, instructional administrator, or student
services administrator under the authority granted by the regulations unless
the governing board determines that he or she possesses qualifications that
are at least equivalent to the minimum qualifications specified in regulations
of the board adopted pursuant to Section 87356. The criteria used by the
governing board in making the determination shall be reflected in the
governmg board’s. acnons employmgihe individual Therprocessrasweu as-.
crl‘brﬁa and: Btandardsby whlch thﬁ governlng beard reaches its |
detewmnatlnns shall bﬁ develop%d an‘d agreed p.mon jomtly by
repreaentakives tithe governlng board arid the | eadbfhfesenate and
appmVed by the goveﬂ‘mng boﬁrd The aﬂraed u;)in process shall mo:ll;:de
.ras;sonabla procedures i:a ewre that the gavemhg board relies prinarily
upon the advice and judgment of the academic senate to determine that each
individual employed under the authority granted by the regulations possesses
gualifications that are at least equivalent to the applicable minimum
qualification specified in regulations adopted by the board of governors. The
process shall further require that the governing board provide the academic
senate with an opportunity to present its views to the governing board before
the board makes a determination; and that the written record of the decision,
including the views of the academic senate, shall be available for review
pursuant to Section 87358.”

4, Education Code, Section 87359(a) “No one may be hired to serve as a
community college faculty member or educational administrator under the
authority granted by the regulations unless the governing board determines

that he or she possesses qualifications that are at least equivalent to the

34



minimum qualifications specified in regulations of the board of governors
adopted pursuant to Section 87356. The criteria used by the governing board
in making the determination shall be reflected in the governing board's action
employing the individual.”

Assembly Bill 1725, Section 4 (s) (3) “Faculty members derive their authority
from their expertise as teachers and subject matter specialists and from their
status as professionals. As a result, the faculty has an inherent professional
responsibility in the development and implementation of policies and
procedures governing the hiring process.”

Assembly Bill 1725, Section 4 (t) “While the precise nature of the hiring
process for faculty should be subject to local definition and control, each
community college should in a way that is appropriate to its circumstances,
establish am;ngprocess that ensyres that (1) Emphasaslsplaced on the

' rewﬁnsmrlm of the fam&v to ensure-n.}we quality'of their faculty peers'

y | \' \
Appendlx C Legal Adws—n;y Regardlng Slnglemurse iﬁliency
smTE OF CAL.JFDRM.A. Y { \ Ftw
Cﬁﬁamaammumty q:oaeges ‘,g’f 4 I.'E. u
Chancellor s Office
1102 Q street
Sacramento, Ca 95814-6511
(916) 445-8752

http://www.cccco.edu

December 23, 2003

Mark Snowhite, Secretary

Academic Senate for California Community Colleges
428 J Street, Suite 430

Sacramento, CA 95814

Re: Single Course Equivalencies
Legal Opinion L 03-28

35



Dear Dr. Snowhite:

You requested our assessment of the ability of a community college district to establish
a single-course equivalency for hiring faculty. We understand your question to focus on
whether a person may be considered to meet minimum qualifications for purposes of
teaching a single class where that person does not possess the minimum qualifications
(usually a master’s degree or its equivalent) in the discipline under which the single
course falls.

As you know, Education Code section 87356 requires the Board of Governors to adopt
regulations to establish minimum qualifications for service as a community college
faculty member. Education Code section 87357 requires the Board of Governors to
engage in various activities in establishing those minimum qualifications. Subsection (b)
of section 87357 requires the Board to issue a list of disciplines that is to be distributed
tothe districts “for their.use.in.2pplying the mlmmum quallﬂcauensiorsewm

Tithe! 5 of theC&Jlfornli: Code of R«agulatlons’fr ilﬁe 5”) secm 53407 reflects the Board's
adoption of dlsc}plmes lists. Althoth the disclpllrms lists axe! not fully set out in the
regulations, thay are mcurpar:ated by referemce Swlon 5111”3? car'emplates d ismpllnes
whare a mast/ers degwe is reqqﬁ.d as amlmmum -:;ﬂ,allflca’ﬂon and dISCIpIIneS mere a
T|tle 5, sectlon 53410‘;ets the baS|c minimum quallflcatlons for credit mstructors WhICh
include either a master's degree “in the discipline of the faculty member’s assignment”
or a master's degree “in a discipline reasonably related” to the assignment and a
bachelor’s degree “in the discipline of the faculty member's assignment.” We believe
that these Education Code and title 5 sections establish a firm relationship between the
disciplines and minimum qualifications.

Education Code section 87359 requires the Board of Governors to adopt regulations
setting forth a process to allow local districts to employ faculty members who do not
meet the minimum qualifications adopted by the Board of Governors. The section
provides that a person may be hired to serve as a faculty member if the district
governing board determines that the individual “possesses qualifications that are at
least equivalent to the minimum qualifications specified in regulations of the board of
governors adopted pursuant to Section 87356.” The section requires a process to

36



ensure that “each individual faculty member employed under the authority granted by
the [equivalency] regulations possesses . . . minimum qualifications specified in
regulations adopted by the board of governors.” (Emphasis added.)

Title 5, section 53430 establishes the standards for hiring faculty based on
equivalencies, and it echoes the language of Education Code section 87358 that each
individual faculty member must possess minimum qualifications. As noted above, the
regulations contemplate a relationship between minimum qualifications and disciplines.
Education Code section 87356 verifies that each individual faculty member is expected
to possess minimum qualifications under the regulations. The regulations demonstrate
that the focus of minimum qualifications for “teaching facuity” is on the qualifications of
persons to teach in a discipline, not to teach individual courses.

The concept of expertise within a discipline is reflected elsewhere in the regulations.
Title 5 section 53403allows persons who havebeen empl wad “to {gach Jnadmplme
tormntlnue I’wchlng wen  if the mﬁ'aamum qqﬁilﬁcatlons or disuplmes list are amended

." -

aftar the person is |n|ﬁaily hired. / ,'- ‘1\

It L4 likely that ths cornca;;-afilu;fT ;ﬁme coursé Equwa‘lenmes qr&w etﬂ_eﬁhe prowsﬁnnal
crad‘entlal that/"vms a\:ailable whm a cre&enflaﬁng swtem Fﬂas used to establish
el@ﬂ’ﬁ%ﬂyﬁr g@mmunﬂy college dl‘sﬁ'ict&culty emplottﬂent. Under that system,i@person

could secure a “provisional” credential that listed a course that the individual could

teach. The credential allowed its holder to teach the specific course, but the
circumstances authorizing such services were very narrow. Former title 5, section
52223 provided the particulars, as follows:

“52223. A District shall establish the existence of the following facts:

(a) The district has made every reasonable effort to locate and to employ a person
holding a credential other than a provisional credential to teach the particular course to
be named on the credential.

(b} No such credentialed person is ready, able, and willing to accept such employment
in the district.

(c) The district shall employ the applicant to teach the course to be named on the

credential.”

37



Former section 52225 provided an alternative to the conditions of former section 52223.
Under section 52225, a provisional credential could be issued if a local board made a
finding that there was an inadequate number of credentialed persons availabie in the
state who were qualified to instruct in a particular discipline or skill and the board found
the discipline or skill to be an emergency area of instruction.

The services of a person who taught under a provisional credential did not count
towards tenure. The initial term of the provisional credential was one calendar year from
issuance, and reissuance of the credential could not result in employment to teach the
same course in the same district for more than three calendar years. (Former title 5,
section 52228.) Thus, even under the predecessor credentialing system, the norm was
that districts would hire faculty who were qualified to hold “regular” credentials, and
service only in specific courses was allowed in very narrow circumstances.

The. current. mlnlmumqua.hﬂcauons closely resemble the f?cmer credentlal"rngemems
in‘many areae tt is teﬂing that no current reg* ia,nans clearly ‘carry over r the standards of
the: prowsaonal credential If a pepsm werefahle ‘w producs a prowsmnal credential that
was reissued pmr to lItlm é;ﬁgiaﬂon of the:ﬂr&denﬂaimg syﬂtem ‘andthat person has not
exhausted thenﬂaxlrlum three ng}endar ’g‘ﬁars of | mstrtxctlon authorized by the farmer
regﬂia’ﬂms. !hat perspn may be ehmblé w serve undPr thet terms of the prowsmrrql
credential up to the maximum authorized three calendar years of service. (See Ed.
Code, § 87355 that authorizes service under an unexpired credential notwithstanding
the replacement of the credential system with the minimum qualifications system.)
However, we believe that such a circumstance is highly unlikely, and we would need to
make a specific assessment of the credential and a fuller review of the former
regulations in order to make a definitive determination regarding the continued viability
of the provisional credential.

Based on the foregoing, we conclude that a district is not authorized to establish a
single course equivalency as a substitute for meeting minimum qualifications in a
discipline.

Sincerely,

Original signed by Ralph Black

Ralph Black

38



General Counsel
RB:VAR:sj
cc: Fusako Yokotobi, Human Resources

Bobbie Juzek, Human Resources

39






‘A‘ Academic Senate
(E for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Online Education Initiative Pilot Colleges MOU Month: January | Year: 2016

ltem NQ. V. E

Attachment: YES

DESIRED OUTCCME: The Executive Committee will provide feedback | Urgent: YES

and guidance on the draft MOU on the Time Requested: 20 minutes
operation of the OEl course exchange between
the OEl pilot colleges.

CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: J. Freitas Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW.: Julie Adams Action X
Information

Please note: St&ff will complete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

The Online Education Initiative course exchange is scheduled to offer its first courses in fall 2016.
Key to this is the agreement between the eight “full-launch” pilot colleges on an MOU that details
the OE! course exchange reciprocity policies and business processes. The draft MOU is attached,
along with a Chancellor’s Office memo that provides clarification on some of the original proposed
language in the original MOU.

The “full-launch” colleges have until January 31, 2016 to sign the MOU. The signatures will include
those of the local academic senate presidents. The OEl steering committee will review the current
draft of the MOU, consider possible revisions and take action on a recommendation to approve the
draft MOU. In the meantime, OEl members were instructed to take the MOU back to their
appointing organizations for review and comment. The Executive Committee is therefore asked to
review the draft MOU, the attached Chancellor’s Office memo on the draft MOU agreement, and
the attached FAQ list and provide direction ahead of the January 15, 2016 OE|l steering committee

meeting.

I staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






Online Education Initiative for the California Community Colleges
Memorandum of Understanding
Between Foothill-De Anza Community College District
and Selected Colleges Piloting the OEl Course Exchange

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU?”) is entered into by and between the Foothill-De Anza
Community College District (“FHDA”) representing the Online Education Initiative (“OEI”") and
(“Participating College”). The purpose of this agreement is to establish the
responsibilities of the Participating College in its role as a member of the Full Launch Pilot Group for the
pilot phase of the OEI Course Exchange (“OEI Exchange™). The scope of this agreement encompasses
the participation of colleges in the OEI Exchange and does not establish any agreements or requirements
related to the Canvas course management system outside of its use for the OEI Exchange. This agreement
remains in effect through the pilot phase of the OEI Exchange, from time of signing through June 30,
2017.

This agreement augments and supersedes the agreement dated June 2014 entitled “Online Education
Initiative for the California Community Colleges Memorandum of Understanding Between Foothill-De
Anza Community College District and Selected Colleges Piloting OEI Resources”.

PROJECT GOAL: During the timeframe of this agreement, the Full Launch Pilot Group will work
together with the FHDA OEI management team (“OEI management team”), the California Community
Colleges’ Technology Center at the Butte-Glenn Community College District (“Tech Center™), and
others to pilot the OEI Exchange. The goal of this component of the OEI is to provide a seamless
pathway for students to register for and complete online courses across participating colleges, facilitating
student completion of educational goals in an efficient manner, saving both time and money.

I. DEFINITIONS:

A. Common Course Management System (“CCMS”): The Common Course Management
System and associated components that are required to implement the OEI Exchange.
Instructure’s Canvas course management system is the core platform for the CCMS.

B. Home College: An accredited California Community College from which a student can
access the OEI Exchange to take classes from other California Community Colleges
participating in the OEI Exchange.

C. Teaching College: An accredited California Community College that offers courses
within the OEI Exchange to students from their own college and to students from other
California Community Colleges via the OEI Exchange registration mechanisms.

D. Online Education Initiative (“OKEI”): The overarching California Community College
(CCC) initiative, funded by the CCC Chancellor’s Office, that provides support to college
online teaching and learning programs and coordinates resources and services available
to the entire CCC system. Resources include the CCMS and other components such as
student resources, faculty resources, other technology resources, and research and policy
documentation.



E. OEI Course Exchange (“OEI Exchange™): The component of the OEI that facilitates
students registering for online courses offered by the participating colleges of the Full
Launch Pilot Group, reduces and/or eliminates barriers and duplication in the application
and matriculation processes, and automates associated business processes. Enabling
students to enroll in courses that are critical to completing their educational goals but are
not readily available at their Home College, the OFI Exchange is intended to facilitate the
timely completion of educational goals that students establish at their Home Colleges.

F. OEI-Related Courses: Online courses that have been submitted by Participating College
faculty and selected for course review to assess alignment with the OEI Course Design
Rubric for design and accessibility.

G. Exchange-Ready Courses: OEI Courses within the CCMS that have been determined to
be aligned with the OFEI Course Design Rubric for design and accessibility. The OFEI
Chief Professional Development Officer shall have the authority to determine when
courses are sufficiently aligned and, consequently, Exchange-Ready.

H. Exchange Courses: Exchange-Ready Courses that are offered through the OEI
Exchange in a given term.

I. Full Launch Pilot Group: Initially, this group is composed of the eight colleges that
signed an agreement in 2014 entitled “Online Education Initiative for the California
Community Colleges Memorandum of Understanding Between Foothill-De Anza
Community College District and Selected Colleges Piloting OFEI Resources™ to confirm
their participation in the OEI Full Launch pilot. Additional pilot colleges that have
signed the 2014 agreement may be invited to participate during the timeframe of this
agreement.

J. Single Point of Contact (“SPOC™): A designee, or designees, of the Participating
College who is/are responsible for communicating and coordinating the OEI efforts at the
Participating College.

II. BENEFITS: The Participating College party to this agreement shall receive the following from
the OEL

A. Free access to the CCMS and Canvas support assistance (Canvas help desk) for all OFEI
Courses throughout the term of this agreement.

B. Free access to all additional OEI-provided technologies and services for OEI Courses
during the timeframe of this agreement, including but not limited to Online Student
Readiness (with assessment), Online Tutoring, and proctoring solutions.

C. Free course preparation assistance to each faculty member at the Participating College
who is interested in offering his/her online course or courses through the OEI Exchange
and whose online course or courses have been selected for course review. Assistance to
faculty includes migration assistance, instructional design support, accessibility

Page 2 of 11



assistance, and other support to establish course alignment for OEI Exchange
participation.

A complimentary registration for both the @ONE Online Education Standards and
Practices (OESP) course and @ONE Introduction to Teaching with Canvas courses for
faculty with OEI Courses.

'Technical assistance provided as part of a mini-grant reimbursement program to provide
SIS integration and authentication support to integrate OEI Exchange functionality into

existing campus administrative systems.

F. Free technical support for all OEI-provided products and services.

Inclusion in decision-making processes with staff and faculty of other colleges in the Full
Launch Pilot Group regarding the implementation and operation of the initial pilot of the
OEI Exchange.

III. RESPONSIBILITIES: As a Participating College, the undersigned shall agree to the following:

A,

B.

Adhere to Reciprocity Policies in Attachment A.
Adhere to Business Processes in Attachment B.

Work with the FHDA OEI project team and Tech Center to continue to develop, test, and
pilot the processes necessary to facilitate the OEI Exchange.

Actively participate in the Full Launch Pilot Group activities and meetings.

Identify a SPOC who will serve as the Participating College's representative and provide
on-going communication to the Participating College.

Participate by offering Exchange Courses within the OEI Exchange as well as by
allowing its students to enroll in OEI Exchange Courses offered by other colleges.

For students registered in OEI Exchange Courses, continue to integrate available OEI-
provided technologies and services such as Online Student Readiness (with assessment)
and Online Tutoring as well as offer additional OEI-provided technologies and services
as they become available such as test proctoring, plagiarism detection tools, resources for
underprepared students, and participation in the online counseling network.

Promote the robust and effective use of the OEI Exchange.

Provide or give access to data and systems, as necessary, for the effective implementation
of the OFI Exchange including read and write access to selected data in the Participating
College's SIS system.

Page 3 of 11



J. Work with the OEI project team and Tech Center to determine the appropriate way to
provide or give access to data and systems, as required for the effective implementation
of the OEI Exchange.

K. Participate in the evaluation of the OEI Exchange, including providing information,
which is necessary to assess the effectiveness of the OEI Exchange resources and
functionality.

L. Timelines:

1. For the Fall 2015 term, faculty teaching OEI courses will continue to participate
in the review process and take action to align OEI Courses to the OEI Course
Design Rubric as needed.

2. For the Spring and Summer 2016 terms, offer OEI courses hosted within the
CCMS to its local college students while working to ensure all OFI courses are
Exchange-Ready prior to the scheduling of courses for the Fall 2016 term. Online
Student Readiness (with assessment), Online Tutoring, and any additional
services as they are made available to the Full Launch Pilot Group, shall be
available to students taking these selected courses. Upon the request of the OEI
management team and/or Tech Center, test OEI Exchange-related technologies
and solutions associated with the OEI Exchange implementation process.

3. Starting the Fall 2016 term, offer Exchange-Ready Courses, which are hosted
within the CCMS and facilitated through the OEI Exchange, for this and each
following term during the timeframe of this agreement. OEI Tutoring, Readiness,
Proctoring and any additional OEI-provided solutions shall be available to
students taking these selected courses.

IV.  MODIFICATIONS: To successfully accomplish the goals of the OEI Course Exchange, the
Participating College shall agree that, through collaboration between the OEI management ieam,
Tech Center, and Pilot Colleges, the Reciprocity Policies and Business Processes in attachments
A and B may be updated from time to time as needed. The Participating College designates its
SPOC with the authority to approve such updates.

Signatures:

CEO/President Date

Page 4 of 11



Vice President of Instruction

Date

Vice President of Student Services Date
Academic Senale President Date
Chief Technology Officer Date
Distance Education Coordinator Date
OEI Executive Director Date
P:]])A_Spo_nsor— . Da: _

Page 5 of 11



Online Education Initiative for the California Community Colleges
Memorandum of Understanding
Between Foothill-De Anza Community College District
and Selected Colleges Piloting the OEI Course Exchange

ATTACHMENT A: OEI Exchange Reciprocity Policies

To successfully accomplish the goals of the OEI Course Exchange, the Participating College shall agree
to adhere to the following policies:

I.  Policies: Application/residency determination

A, The Teaching College and the Home College agree to the minimum standards of
residency established through OpenCCCApply. However a college is allowed to require
additional documentation from students when the residency information via
OpenCCCApply does not suffice, in order to determine residency.

B. The Participating College shall agree to use OpenCCCApply.
II.  Policies: Course offerings

A. During the period of this agreement, all OEI Courses shall be courses that have the
appropriate C-ID designation as specified by the OEIL The list of courses eligible for
offering in the Exchange will be maintained by the OEI on its website.

B. An Exchange Course must be approved for C-ID and its prerequisites must be consistent
with the specification in the C-ID designation. An Exchange-Ready Course ihat is not
approved for C-ID or has prerequisites in addition to the specification in the C-ID
designation shall not be made available for registration in the Exchange.

C. An online course offered in the QEI Exchange must:

1. Have been determined to be aligned to the OEI Course Design Rubric and any
related policies including those applicable to accessibility for disabled students.

2. Be offered in the CCMS using both Online Student Readiness (with assessment)
Online Tutoring and Online Proctoring services.

3. Have already been offered in the CCMS to Home College students using Online
Student Readiness (with assessment), Online Tutoring and Online Proctoring for
at least one term.

D. When an Exchange Course is made available, students at both the Home College and
Teaching Colleges shall be able to view the course in a course list. A Teaching College

Page 6 of 11



shall determine which Exchange-Ready Courses from its college appear in the Exchange.
Note that the timeframe in which a student may register for a course in the Exchange is
described in the following section.

I.  Policies: Course registration/enrollment

A. The Teaching College shall accept Home College designations of priority registration,

B.

C.

D.

which must be consistent with Title 5 Section 58108 registration and enrollment
procedures. Therefore students choosing courses in the Exchange will receive registration
dates and/or times based on their Priority Enrollment status at their home college.

A student shall not be allowed to register for an Exchange Course if s/he:
1. Has not completed the Home College matriculation process where existing Home
College rules require such completion.

2. Has already registered for another course with the same C-ID designation, during
periods with overlapping start and end dates.

3. Has already enrolled in two Exchange Courses in the current term.

4. Has already reached the maximum number of credits for that term as determined
by the Home College.

5. Has the following status as determined by the Home College:
a) International F1 Visa
b) Students with an address outside of California
¢) Incarcerated
d) Vacation or Visitor Visas (B Visas)
e) ABS540 with out of state addresses
f) High school dual enroliment

The Teaching College shall honor the Home College’s Board of Governor’s fee waiver
eligibility determination.
The Teaching Coliege shall honor a student’s DSPS classification determination

(regarding the level and status of accommodation required) if the student so chooses to
share this information.

From a student’s perspective, the Teaching College is responsible for providing
information and responding to inquiries associated with its Exchange Course once the
student is registered in that class. All other information and inquiries arising from
participation in the Exchange are the responsibility of the Home College.

Page 7 of 11



Iv.

V.

F. Through the establishment of a Financial Aid Consortium Agreement, the Home College
shall be responsible for including Exchange Course units in its determination of Financial
Aid and for any associated processing and Financial Aid distributions.

G. A student shall have the opportunity to opt-out of local non-tuition related fees of the
Teaching College.

H. The Add/Drop/Withdrawal deadline for an Exchange Course shall be determined by the
Teaching College offering the Exchange Course.

Policies: Matriculation

A. Verification of student matriculation status shall be the responsibility of his/her Home
College. The required matriculation processes shall exclude any local additions and be as
defined by Title 5 and the Chancellor’s Office for provision of the Student Success and
Support Program (SSSP).

B. Requirements for certificates and degrees to be awarded shall be determined by the Home
College.

C. Once the Exchange course/s has been completed, the student’s transcript at the teaching
college shall be updated within a timeframe deemed reasonable by the participating
teaching college. The Home College’s student academic history shall also be updated
within a timeframe deemed reasonable by the participating Home College.

Policies: Reconciliation

A. During the timeframe of this agreement, the Home College shall be responsible for
determining Financial Aid eligibility.

B. The Home College shall receive credit for degree completion and/or transfer attainment.
C. The Teaching College shall receive apportionment for Exchange Course enrollment.

D. The Home College is responsible for including their students’ Exchange Course progress
in the Satisfactory Academic Progress report (SAP).

Page B of 11



Online Education Initiative for the California Community Colleges
Memorandum of Understanding
Between Foothill-De Anza Community College District
and Selected Colleges Piloting the OEI Course Exchange

ATTACHMENT B: OEl Exchange Business Processes

To successfully accomplish the goals of the OEI Course Exchange, the Participating College shall agree
to adhere to the following business processes:

I.  Processes: Application/residency determination

A. For the purposes of this agreement, a college in which a student successfully completes
matriculation and attempts to register for Exchange Courses shall be considered his/her
Home Coliege.

B. A student who registers for an Exchange Course may be required to provide
supplemental information to complete his’/her OpenCCCApply application process.

II.  Processes: Course offerings

A. The Participating College may identify up to five online courses for OEI review each
term.

B. The maximum number of courses available for the Exchange shall be determined by the
Teaching College. The Teaching College may withdraw an Exchange Course at any time
during the enrollment period.

III.  Processes: Course registration/enrollment

A. Exchange Course registration shall be determined in accordance with the following
precepts:

1. A student shall have the opportunity to register for an Exchange Course based on
his/her Home College priority designation and the next available Teaching
College enrollment period.

2. It is anticipated that Exchange Course registration for students whose Home
College is not also the Teaching College shall require more time to complete than
registration by students at the Teaching College due to the additional steps
required to complete the process.

B. From a student’s perspective, a student shall obtain access to Exchange Course
information and registration through his/her Home College’s registration system.

Page 9 of 11



Iv.

V.

C. A student shall acknowledge that s’he is aware that an Exchange Course is offered by
another college and agree to OEI Exchange policies/guidelines before s/he can register
for the Ixchange Course.

D. A student shall choose whether to provide informed consent to allow a Teaching College
to know and honor his/her Home College’s DSPS classification determination.

1. The Teaching College shall be responsible for notifying the Exchange Course
instructor regarding the necessary accommodations.

2. The Teaching College shall be responsible for providing the appropriate
accommodations once the student’s DSPS status has been classified by the Home
College.

E. Ifa seat is available and all other criteria are met, a student registering for an OEI
Exchange Course shall receive preliminary acknowledgement of successful registration
and notification of next steps including fees to be paid and applicable institutional policy
and regulations related to grading, enrollment, drop, and withdrawal.

F. From a student’s perspective, a student shall have the ability to access his/her combined
course schedule.

G. The Home College shall be notified of any change in its students Exchange Course
enrollment status. This notification must occur within one week after the census date for
drops or withdrawals and within one month for any other changes, including final grades.

Processes: Matriculation

A. The student’s academic history at the Home College shall include attempted and
completed Exchange Courses. Attempted and completed Exchange Courses shall appear
as transferred in and articulated courses in the student’s academic history at the Home
College.

B. An Exchange Course shall only appear on the Home College student transcript if the
student makes a request to the Teaching College to transfer the transcript to the Home
College. Therefore a student completing an Exchange course shall be notified that, if so
desired, s/he must request that a copy of his/her transcript is shared with the Home

College.
Processes: Reconciliation

A. During the timeframe of this agreement, the Teaching College shall be responsible for
collecting its Teaching College Exchange Course enrollment fees and issuing any
refunds.

B. During the timeframe of this agreement, the Home College shall be responsible for any
applicable student financial aid processing for the combined enrolled units.

Page 10 of 11



C. The initial implementation of the Exchange may require some manual processes to
perform reconciliations between colleges.

VL Processes: Technical Considerations

A. The Tech Center shall provide assistance to the Participating College to determine how
and in what timeframe its local data is synchronized with the OEI Exchange and/or other
associated databases.

Page 11 of 11






Date: October 28, 2015

To: Online Education Initiative (OEI) Project

From: Alice van Ommeren
Interim Vice Chancellor of Technology, Research and Information Systems

Re: Memorandum of Understanding {MOU):
The Online Education Initiative’s Exchange Colleges Reciprocity Agreements.

Cc: Erik Skinner, Deputy Chancellor
Pam Walker, Vice Chancellor of Educational Services
Denise Noldon, Vice Chancellor of Student Services and Special Programs
LeBaron Woodyard, Dean of Instructional Programs and Services
Gary Bird, System Software Specialist of Technology

The leadership of the Online Education Initiative (OEI) requested the Chancellor’s Office provide
clarification on possible conflicts with state regulations as related to several of the consortia included in
the “Exchange Colleges Reciprocity Agreements,” a component of the Online Education Initiative’s
Course Exchange Registration Description, Process Map, & Consortium Agreements developed in July,
2015. The specific three agreements of concern were:

#5 - All colieges/districts agree to follow minimum CA residency requirements and can have
their own justification for additional criteria. If deemed feasible, the home college will verify
state residency and take responsibility for any audit situations that might arise.

#6 - Colleges agree to allow (between home and teaching college) the transfer of student
application data, student transcript data from home college, registration data e.g. prerequisite
info, and matriculation data

#7 - Students will register for all home and teaching college courses, based on home college
priority designation or next available enrollment.

The review of California State Education Code and California Code of Regulations, title 5, as well as
discussion among the Divisions of the Chancellor’s Office and input from Legal Counsel led to the
following discussion and findings in regard to each of the following topics in the Exchange:

Determining Residency Requirements

Discussion: The foundation of higher education residency requirements are outlined in California
Education Code (ECS) 68000 as “it is the intent of the Legisiature that the public institutions of higher
education shall apply uniform rules, as set forth in this chapter and not otherwise, in determining
whether a student shall be classified as a resident or nonresident.” California Code of Regulations (CCR)
title 5, Section 54010(a) under Residence Classification Procedures, it specifies that “Residence



classification shall be made for each student at the time applications for admission are accepted or has
not been in attendance for more than one semester or quarter.” The definition of residency is
established by ECS 68017 as “resident” is a student who has residence, pursuant to Article 5
{commencing with Section 68060) of this chapter in the state for more than one year immediately
preceding the residence determination date.

State code provides flexibility at the local level with ECS 68023 indicating that the “residence
determination date” is a date or day established by the governing boards or district governing boards, as
appropriate, for each semester, quarter, or term to determine a student’s residence. On the other hand,
state regulations attempts to provide consistency with CCR, title 5, Section 54002, that the “residence
determination date” is that day immediately preceding the opening day of instruction of the quarter,
semester, or ather session as set by the district governing board, during which the student proposes to
attend a college.” This sets policy on the residence determination date but not on the opening day of
instruction which differs for colleges across the system.

Agreement #5: The OEI Exchange is a consortium of colleges that operate under a set of agreements,
“Exchange Colleges Reciprocity Agreements,” approved by each of their governing boards. One of the
agreements says:

All colleges/districts agree to follow minimum CA residency requirements and can have their own
Jjustification for additional criteria. If deemed feasible, the home college will verify state residency and
take responsibifity for any audit situations that might arise.

Issue: The concern is that in certain situations, depending on colleges’ semester or quarter term start
dates, students may qualify as a resident in the home college’s district but not in the teaching college’s
district. Start dates can range significantly if one of the colleges is a semester term college and the other
is one of the three quarter term colleges. Therefore each college is responsible for separately
determining and verifying each student’s residency in accordance with the established requirements
and procedures applicable to that particular college and district. If the teaching college’s term starts
prior to establishing residency, the student would need to pay the applicable nonresident tuition fees to
cover the cost of instruction at the college.

Recommendation: The second sentence of the agreement needs to be revised since it’s the college
where instruction is being provided (home college and/or teaching college) that is required (not “if
deemed feasible”) to determine and verify residency status, as well as take responsibility for any appeal
processes and audit situations. At this time, the Chancellor’'s Office believes that modification of the
California Education Code (ECS) and California Code of Regulations (CCR) title 5 is not required.

Modified Agreement #5 - The teaching college and the home college agree to the minimum standards of
residency established through OpenCCCApply application. However in order to verify residency, a college
is allowed to require additional documentation from students when the residency information via
OpenCCCApply does not suffice.




Transferring the Application

Discussion: In part, the means for identifying the residency status of students is specified in CCR, title 5,
Section 54012 (a), which indicates that “Each community college district shall use a residence
questionnaire in making residence classifications.” The reference to making the district-based residence
questionnaire a legal document is specified in ECS 68041 as “Each student enrolled or applying for
admission to an institution shall provide the information and evidence of residence as deemed
necessary by the governing board or district governing board, as appropriate, to determine his or her
classification. An oath or affirmation may be required in connection with taking testimony necessary to
ascertain a student’s classification. The determination of a student’s classification shall be made in
accordance with this part and the residence determination date for the semester, quarter or term for
which the students proposes to attend an institution.” Affirming of this statutory provision, CCR, title 5
Section 54010(c) indicates that “Community college districts shall require applicants to supply
information as specified in this subchapter and may require additional information as deemed
necessary” and subdivision {d) of the same section also indicates that “Applicants shall certify their
answers on residence questionnaires under oath or penalty of perjury.”

Agreement #6: The OEl Exchange is a consortium of colleges that operate under a set of agreements,
“Exchange Colleges Reciprocity Agreements.” One of the agreements says:

Colleges agree to allow (between home and teaching college) the transfer of student application data,
student transcript data from home college, registration data e.g. prerequisite info, and matriculation
data.

Issue: Each college is responsible (home or teaching college} for determining and verifying residency
status with a signed application for admission that serves as a legal document. According to CCR, title 5
Section 54300(a){b) “Community college districts may authorize the electronic submission of any
admission form or student form or document. Electronic signatures in lieu of manual signatures maybe
used on any documents requiring a signature,...” (see that section of title 5 for applicable electronic
signature standards). The transfer of student application data is certainly possible but the requirement
to determine residency still falls on the institution of instruction.

Recommendation: The OEIl project should develop technology solutions which will enable colleges to
transfer student information between districts, in compliance with FERPA regulations, to support an
efficient and timely application and enroliment of a student from a home college into courses at
teaching colleges. Using this solution, the home college will be able to extend the data it has collected
on the student to the teaching coliege as a legal document using appropriate student awareness and
data transfer methods.

Coliege Priority Registration

Discussion: Per title 5 Section 58108, districts that utilize a priority enrollment system must grant
highest and equal priority to Veteran, Foster Youth, CalWORKs, DSPS, and EOPS students. Those five
groups have priority enroliment by statute (EC 66025.8, 66025.9, 66025.91, 66025.92). The second tier
of priority is provided to new students that have completed orientation, assessment and an education
plan and previously enrolled students below the unit cap (100 units or a lesser number per local policy)

3



and not on academic and/or progress probation for two consecutive terms. After those two groups
have registered, it goes to open enroliment.

Any additional priorities, or reservations, within that process cannot be a circumvention of the
mandatory enrollment priority requirements.

Agreement #7: One of the agreements in the OE| Exchange’s “Exchange Colleges Reciprocity
Agreements” says:

Students will register for afl home and teaching college courses, based on home college priority
designation or next avgilable enroliment.

Issue: College admission and attendance, and therefore priority registration, is district based. Should
priority designation be based on the home or teaching college?

Recommendation: The agreement needs to be revised so the teaching college accepts the home
colleges assigned registration dates, consistent with California Code of Regulations {CCR) title 5. After
the home college has categorized students by priority levels and assigned a registration date, the
student registration date and their designated priority enrollment status will be made available to the
teaching college. The teaching college will make Exchange courses available starting on the teaching
college’s first day of registration.

iModlﬁed agreement #7. The teaching college agrees to accept the home college’s designation of priority
registration, which must be consistent with title 5 Section 58108 registration and enroliment procedures
As such, students will register for all Exchange courses based on home colflege priority designation and
next available enroliment. Therefore, students taking courses n the consortia will receive registration
dates and/or times based on their Priority Enroliment status at their home college 1)

In conclusion, the three consortia agreements analyzed in this memo do not directly violate any existing
statutory or regulatory requirements but, as outlined above, the Chancellor’s Gffice recommends that
Agreement #5 and #7 be amended to clarify that residency and priority registration must be determined
and verified by the college providing the course of instruction, including the teaching college. Further,
the Chancelior’s Office recommends that a technology solution be developed to help colleges manage
the transfer of student data under Agreement #6. The Online Education Initiative (OEl) Exchange is a
unique opportunity for students and colleges, but the agreements need to be consistent with
established rules and regulations to ensure equity to all students in the system.



Relevant California Education Code and California Code of Regulations, title 5

Education Code section 68017

A "resident” is a student who has residence, pursuant to Article 5 (commencing with Section 66060), in
the state for more than one year immediately preceding the residence of determination date.

Education Code section 68018

A “nonresident” is a student who does not have residence in the state for more than one year
immediately preceding the residence determination date.

California Code of Requlations, title 5, section 54002

“Residence determination date” is that day immediately preceding the opening day of instruction of the
quarter, semester, or other session as set by the district governing board, during which the student
proposes to attend a college.

Education Code section 68041

Each student enrolled or applying for admission to an institution shall provide the information and
evidence of residence as deemed necessary by the governing board or district governing board, as
appropriate, to determine his or her classification. An oath or affirmation may be required in connection
with taking testimony necessary to ascertain a student’s classification. The determination of a student’s
classification shall be made in accordance with this part and the residence determination date for the
semester, quarter ar term for which the students proposes to attend an institution.

Education Code section 68044

The Board of Governors of the California Community colleges shall adopt regulations that permit the
governing board of a community college district to allow applications for admission, residency
determination forms, and other document to be submitted electronically. The regulations shall require
that applicants and students be informed of the relative security of the information they submit
electronically.

California Code of Requlations, title 5, section 54012(a)

Each community college district shall use a residence questionnaire in making residence classification

California Code of Requlations, title 5, section 54616

A community college district may, when a student has provided consent, permit access to the student
record pursuant to Education Code section 76242. Such consent must be signed and dated by the
student.






Exchange MQU Questions and Answers FAQS
1. Defining Home College

Question/Comment— The MOU states that a “Home College” is defined as “An accredited California
Community College from which a student can access the OEl Exchange to take classes from other
California Community Colleges participating in the OEl Exchange”.

Should it be specified that for the purposes of the pilot, only colleges in the pilot may be home
colleges?

Answer — For the purposes of the pilot and the fully implemented OEI Exchange, the only colleges that
can be involved in any way, home or teaching, are colleges that are Consortium members. Only those
colleges that choose to participate and agree to the terms that permit facilitated course access across
colleges will ever be home colleges — this is not limited to the pilot.

2. Signing Authority

Question/Comment— There should be clarity about what these signatures mean. The senate president
signature should mean that there was collegial consultation on the academic and professional matters
within the MOU, while the CEO signature represents final approval of college participation.

What do the other college-level signatures represent?

Answer — In support of the shared governance process, the signatures on the MOU represents
agreement by the leadership of each division that are going to be directly affected by the technological
development and piloting of the Exchange. It is imperative that not only are these decision makers
informed, but in agreement. Since this particular MOU is specific to the 8 full launch colleges, there will
be meetings with those colleges to explain the process, which will include why the various signatures

are required.

3. Exchange Courses in the CCMS

Question/Comment— The MOU states that courses to be offered in the Exchange must “.have already
been offered in the CCMS to Home College students using Online Student Readiness (with assessment),
Online Tutoring and Online Proctoring for at least one term”.

What exactly does that mean?

Answer — Prior to participation in the Exchange, a course must have been offered in Canvas at the
college with local students and with the integration of the specified OE| support services. In other
words, the initial offering of a course in Canvas (the CCMS) with OEI support services must happen
prior to Exchange participation.

4. Exchange Course Enroliment Limitation

Question/Comment— Has already enrolled in two Exchange Courses in the current term., | think this is
an unnecessary restriction that will result in incomplete data about student demand for courses. Also,
what if students actually need that third class in a term to complete a degree? That is not good for
students.

Why are students being limited to two Exchange Courses?

Answer — As the intent of the Exchange is to provide courses not available at the local level to a limited
extent, this limit is in place to ensure that students are not seeking to obtain a full online load of



courses through the Exchange. This limit has been proposed for the 8 full Launch pilot and will be
revisited at the end of the pilot.

5. Courses with additional Prerequisites
Question/Comment—- Why does the MOU prohibit the inclusion of courses in the Exchange that have
prerequisites in addition to those specified by C-ID?

Answer — This was the approach agreed upon at the reciprocity summit. Since the purpose of the
Exchange is to provide courses to students that are not available locally, it would be problematic to
include courses with prerequisites that might exceed those in place at the local level. Students might
find themselves prevented from taking a class that they need due to not meeting the prerequisites on
that unique offering of the course. In other words, students may then not only be unable to access the
course locally due to a lack of availability, but not be able to access the course via the Exchange due to
additional prerequisites that are not consistent with those of the home college {and the C-ID
descriptor).

Additionally, at this point in the development of the Exchange trying to incorporate courses with
unigue prerequisites provides an additional layer of complexity for the technical development team
which would require more time and research than is allotted for this phase of the pilot. As with all
other elements of the MOU, this element will be revisited, at which time the data and outcomes of the
initial pilot colleges experience will help to inform any changes.

6. Future MOU Modifications

To successfully accomplish the goals of the OEI Course Exchange, the Participating College shall agree
that, through collaboration between the OEl management team, Tech Center, and Pilot Colleges, the
Reciprocity Policies and Business Processes in attachments A and B may be updated from time to time
as needed. The Participating College designates its SPOC with the authority to approve such updates.

Question/Comment— Should the authority to approve changes to the MOU be a SPOC- related
responsibility or should it require College -executive level designation?

Answer — The point is well taken. With this particular MOU, this is an issue that will be discussed with
the 8 Full Launch Colleges leadership and the SPOCs for additional input, and it is a change that can be
made prior to the signing of the MOU by the 8 colleges. Also prior to the issuing of any new MOUS,
which would include all the colleges in the Consortium, this issue should be discussed by that group for
a broader perspective and agreement on consistency.

7. Same course but different number of units
Question/Comment: Is there an issue with variable units for individual courses? In the Exchange
what happens if a Home College's C-ID course is worth more units than the same C-ID course

at a Teaching College?

Answer: There are no issues here that are appropriately flagged as Exchange issues. Per SB 1440,
colleges are required to make the courses o student has taken towards an ADT "work”, C-ID
operationalizes one aspect of this - even if a teaching college C-1D'd course was 6 units and home
college course was 3, the home college would be obligated to accept teaching college’s course. it is
then left to the home college to determine how to account for the "missing” units. Given that C-1D
establishes the content and objectives that both colleges are teaching, "finding” those other units
within the other courses already completed by the student would be the student-friendly way to handle

2



- and would be consistent with the intent of the legisiation. The Home College’s ultimate obligation is to
award an ADT that is consistent with the TMC - without adding in any focal graduation requirements.
There should never be a "gotcha” as students move between colleges.

The articulation between the CCCs that has been established by C-1D is the reason that C-ID courses are
necessarily our focus. A local receipt of a C-ID designation has already obligated the college to accept
the 3-unit courses that are the norm - whether or not there is an Exchange. This does not impact focal
curricular choices - it just impacts how a college counts courses that a student brings from elsewhere.
How a college handles these discrepancies is a focal matter - as is their messaging to students
regarding how such things would be handled. One would hope that colleges that have these sort of unit
discrepancies would be finding a student-friendly means of honoring the coursework completed
without creating more work for the student.






»——“A Academic Senate
(&  or California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP., EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Local Curriculum Committee Visits and the Role of SACC Month: January | Year: 2016
Itern No. 1V E.
Attachment: NO
DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will discuss the Urgent: NO
implementation of the curriculum technical Time Requested: 20 minutes

assistance program and the role of SACC in
local curriculum visits.

CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: J. Freitas Consent/Routine
First Reading
_STAFF REVIEW*: “ Jufie Adams Action X
| Information

Please note: Staff will bbmpiete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

Given some recent challenges that local curriculum committees have had with completing their SB
1440 ADT obligations, it has been suggested by Vice Chancelior Pam Walker that SACC could send
teams to colleges that may need technical assistance with curriculum. However, given that
providing technical assistance with curriculum matters is properly the role of the Academic Senate,
this may cause confusion in the field about the role of the Academic Senate in providing such
assistance. Furthermore, in March 2015 the Executive Committee approved, in concept, the
establishment of a formalized curriculum technical assistance program in partnership with CCCCIO
that is analogous to the existing ASCCC—~CCLC technical assistance program. Given this, it is
probably the time to start work on implementing the curriculum technical assistance program as
soon as possible, which among other things would include getting acceptance of this concept of the
CCCCIO Executive Committee (if that hasn’t been done yet). Input is sought from the Executive
Committee on next steps in implementing this program.

! staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






EA Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges
LEADERSHIP., EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.
Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Attendance Accounting Issues

Month: January | Year: 2016

KemNo v G

Attachment: YES

DESIRED OUTCOME:

The Executive Committee will provide guidance
on how to proceed with discussions about
attendance accounting issues.

Urgent: YES

Time Requested: 20 minutes

CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Davison/Freitas Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW?: T Jufie Adams Action X
Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

In spring 2013, the body adopted Resolution 13.03 513 on aligning attendance accounting for distance
education classes with that for in-person classes:

Whereas, There is significant attention to the potential for online and distance education to improve
access to California community colleges from both the Governor and the Legisiature;

Whereas, Title 5 §58003.1(f)(1) requires that the weekly student contact hours (WSCH) for credit
distance education (DE) courses be determined by the credit units awarded for the course, not the actual
student contact hours used for attendance accounting for the equivalent on-site credit courses;

Whereas, Using credit units instead of actual student contact hours for attendance accounting results in
less FTES generated by DE courses offered at colleges on compressed calendars than FTES generated by
their equivalent on-site courses, resulting in less apportionment received per DE course for the same cost
of instruction as the equivalent on-site credit courses; and

Whereas, This resuiting disparity in apportionment to colleges on compressed calendars may result in de
facto financial penalties for those colleges, and discourages the offering of sections of distance education
courses needed to meet the demand of the communities they serve;

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges support regulatory changes that
allow attendonce accounting for all credit distance education courses to be based on the student contact
hours stipulated in the course outline of record rather than on the credit units, in alignment with the
attendance accounting methods for the equivalent onsite credit courses.

Uniess a college offers the online classes in synchronous mode with regularly scheduled meeting times,
colleges use the independent study accounting method for calculating FTES for online courses in which
credit hours (units), rather than student contact hours, are used in the FTES calculation. At issue is the

1 Staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.



disparity in FTES generated for courses in the online versus in-person modalities at colleges that use
compressed calendars. For example, consider an offering a 3-unit lecture sociology course meeting in
both the online and in-person modalities, with the course outline specifying that this course meets 3
standard hours per week. For a college on a standard calendar with the 17.5 term multiplier, there is no
difference in the FTES generated for this 3-unit class because the lecture hours and the units are
identical. For a college on a compressed calendar, however, the 3-unit course offered online will
generate less FTES than the in-person counterpart, and it has been reported anecdotally that CIOs at
compressed calendar colleges are reluctant to expand their online offerings because of this disparity.
For example, at a college with a 16.5 term multiplier, the 3-unit online sociclogy course with 40 students
generates 3.771 FTES while that same course offered in-person generates 4,274 FTES. This is because
the online course uses 3 units as its contact hours while the in-person course uses 3.4 for its contact
hours in the FTES calculation. {The Chancellor's Office 2008 addendum to the SAAM...

However, this attendance accounting FTES disparity between standard calendar and compressed
calendar colleges is larger than just distance education. It turns out that while compressed calendar
colleges are penalized in FTES for their online courses, they actually generate more FTES for that same 3-
unit lecture class than the standard calendar counterparts. This has to do with the fact that weekly
contact hours have to be expanded for colleges on the compressed calendars because the students still
must be scheduled for the same number of classroom minutes per term as they would be on a standard
calendar. For the 3-unit lecture, the weekly contact hours would be 3.0 hours at a standard calendar
college, but at a compressed calendar college, it would be more, with how much more depending on the
term multiplier used by the college. For example, the Chancellor’s Office recommends that for colleges
using a 16.5 term multiplier, a course that meets for 3 hours per week on a standard calendar meets for
3.4 hours on the compressed calendar. This would result in the standard calendar college generating
4.000 FTES for the 3-unit lecture class with 40 students, while the compressed calendar college {16.5
term multiplier) generates 4.274 FTES. The cause appears to be the fact that despite the adjustment
upward in weekly contact hours in the FTES formula for compressed calendar colleges, the denominator
of 525 WSCH/FTES is not adjusted. As a result, the compressed calendars colleges get the benefit of
additional FTES because they have a larger numerator without any change to the 525 denominator.

It has been said, also anecdotally, that administrators at colleges on compressed calendars are reluctant
to raise the issue about distance education attendance accounting because they fear that the
methodoiogy wiil be adjusted so that they no longer generate additional FTES than they would on a
standard calendar. However, this creates a disincentive to expand online offerings at compressed
calendar colleges, even if there is a demonstrated need for more online course sections. In January
2015, the Online Educaticn Committee brought forward a draft proposal te revise Title 5 to align the
distance education attendance accounting with in-person attendance accounting (WSCH/DSCH). This
was supposed to be brought forward to SACC for discussion, but wasn’t resolved. Before it is brought
back to SACC for discussion, guidance from the Executive Committee is sought on how to proceed.



COMPRESSED CALENDAR SCHEDULING PATTERNS
FOR WEEKLY CENSUS PROCEDURE COURSES

These examples should not be construed as being the only scheduling patterns available to a college that
compresses its academic calendar. They are provided only to illustrate the interactlon of a compressed
calendar with various contact hour computations and as examples of how a district may wish to schedule its
semester length courses. The goal of these examples Is to generate contact hours that are as close to what
the actual target contact hour calculation would be without going under it. Term Length Multipliers (TLM) are
inclusive of all days of instruction, final exam days, and approved flex days (the TLM for a college is deter-
mined as part of compressed calendar application process). Scheduling patterns apply to beth lecture and
laboratory courses or any combination thereof.

3-Hour Per Week Ciass {(TLM = 16.0-16.7

Although the minimum total semester hours of instruction specified in Title 5, Section 55002.5 is
48 hours (3 hours per week X 16 weeks), a common model used to maximize instruction is 54
hours (3 hours per week X 18 weeks). In conversion to a compressed calendar, dividing 54
hours by these term length multipliers yields the following “target” weekly contact hours:

TLM Target WCH
16.0 3.375
16.1 3.350
16.2 3.333
16.3 3.310
16.4 3.290
16.5 3.270
16.6 3.250
16.7 3.230

For all of these examples, the closest appropriate and practical WCH for scheduling purposes
would be 3.4. It is necessary to round up to 3.4 because under a compressed calendar 3.3
WCH cannot be scheduled using 5 minute increments. This can be achieved through the fol-
lowing time pattern (1.7 contact hours per day X 2 days per week):

8:00 a.m. to 9:25 a.m. MW
(includes no breaks; excludes passing time at the end of the class)

In scheduling one class meeting per week, the closest possible WCH would be 3.4. This can be
achieved through the following time pattern (3.4 contact hours per day X 1 day per week):

8:00 a.m. to 11:10 a.m. F
(includes two 10-minute breaks; excludes passing time at the end of the class)

In compressed calendars, it is not possible to schedule a 3-hour class for three equal meeting
times per week. (A time pattern of 8:00 a.m. to 8:50 a.m. MWF results in only 3.0 WCH, falling
below the target. A time pattern of 8:00 a.m. to 9:05 a.m. MWF results in 3.9 WCH, inappro-
priately exceeding the target for apportionment purposes.) However, if it is instructionally desir-
able to schedule three class meetings per week, this can be achieved through the following time
pattern (1.0 contact hour per day on 2 days per week plus 1.4 contact hours on the third day,
totaling 3.4 WCH):

8:00 a.m. to 8:50 a.m. MW
8:00 am.to 9:10 a.m. F
(includes no breaks; excludes passing time at the end of the Friday class meeting)

September 2008 9




COMPRESSED CALENDAR SCHEDULING PATTERNS
FOR WEEKLY CENSUS PROCEDURE COURSES

These examples should not be construed as being the only scheduling patterns available to a college that
compresses its academic calendar. They are provided only to illustrate the interaction of a compressed
calendar with various contact hour computatlons and as examples of how a district may wish o schedule its
semester length courses. The goal of these examples is to generate contact hours that are as close to what
the actual target contact hour calculation would be without golng under it. Term Length Multipliers (TLM) are
inclusive of all days of instruction, final exam days, and approved flex days (the TLM for a college is deter-
mined as part of compressed calendar application process). Scheduling patterns apply to both lecture and
laboratory courses or any combination thereof.

3-Hour Per Week Class (TLM = 16.8-17.0)

Although the minimum total semester hours of instruction specified in Title 5, Section 55002.5 is
48 hours (3 hours per week X 16 weeks), a common model used to maximize instruction is 54
hours (3 hours per week X 18 weeks). In conversion to a compressed calendar, dividing 54
hours by this term length muitiplier yields the foliowing *target” weekiy contact hours:

TLM Target WCH
16.8 3.210
16.9 3.195
17.0 3.176

For all of these examples, the closest appropriate and practical WCH for scheduling purposes
would be 3.2. This can be achieved through the following time pattern (1.6 contact hours per
day X 2 days per week):

8:00 a.m. to 9:20 a.m. MW
(includes no breaks; excludes passing time at the end of the class)

In scheduling one class meeting per week, the closest possible WCH would be 3.3. This can be
achieved through the following time pattern (3.3 contact hours per day X 1 day per week):

8:00 am.to 11:05a.m. F
{(includes two 10-minute breaks,; excludes passing time at the end of the class)

In compressed calendars, it is not possible to schedule a 3-hour class for three equal meeting
times per week. (A time pattern of 8:00 a.m. to 8:50 a.m. MWF results in only 3.0 WCH, falling
below the target. A time pattern of 8:00 a.m. to 9:056 a.m. MWF results in 3.9 WCH, inappro-
priately exceeding the target for apportionment purposes.) However, if it is instructionally desir-
able to schedule three class meetings per week, this can be achieved through the following time
pattern (1.0 contact hour per day on 2 days per week plus 1.3 contact hours on the third day,
totaling 3.3 WCH):

8:00 a.m. to 8:50 a.m. MW
8:00 am.to 9:05a.m. F
(includes no breaks; excludes passing time at the end of the Friday class meeting)

September 2008 10




California Community Colleges

Term Length Multipliers
Fiscal Years 2014-15

Term Length

District College_ Multiplier
Allan Hancock Joint CCD Allan Hancock Coliege 17.0
Antelope Valley CCD Antelope Valley College 17.0
Barsiow CCD Barstow College 17.5
Butte-Glenn CCD Butte College 17.5
Cabrilio CCD Cabrillo College 17.0
Cerritos CCD Cerritos College 17.5
Chabot-Las Positas CCD Chabot College 17.5
Las Positas College 17.5
Chaffey CCD Chaffey College 17.5
Citrus CCD Citrus College 16.2
Coast CCD Coastline Community College 16.0
Golden West College 16.0
Orange Coast College 16.0
Compton CCD Compton College 16.4
Contra Costa CCD Contra Costa College 17.5
Diablo Valley College 17.5
Los Medanos College 17.5
Copper Mountain CCD Copper Mountain College 17.5
Desert CCD College of the Desert 16.4
El Camino CCD El Camino College 16.4
Feather River CCD Feather River College 17.5
Foothill-De Anza CCD De Anza College 11.67
Foothill College 11.67
Gavilan CCD Gavilan College 17.0
Glendale CCD Glendale Community Coltege 16.5
Grossmont-Cuyamaca CCD Cuyamaca College 17.5
Grossmont College 17.5
Hartnell CCD Hartnell College 175
Imperial CCD Imperial Valley College 16.0
Kern CCD Bakersfield College 16.3
Cerro Coso Community College 16.3
Porterville College 16.3
Lake Tahoe CCD Lake Tahoe Community College 11.67
Lassen CCD Lassen College 17.5
Long Beach CCD Long Beach City College 16.3
Los Angeles CCD East Los Angeles College 16.5
Los Angeles City College 16.5
Los Angeles Harbor College 16.5
Los Angeles Mission College 16.5
Los Angeles Pierce College 16.56
Los Angeles Southwest College 16.5
Los Angeles Trade-Tech College 16.5
Los Angeles Valley College 16.5
West Los Angeles College 16.5
Los Rios CCD American River College 17.0
Cosumnes River College 17.0
Folsom Lake College 17.0
Sacramento City College 17.0

1



California Community Colleges

Term Length Multipliers

Fiscal Years 2014-15

Term Length

District College Multiplier
Marin CCD College of Marin 17.5
Mendocino-Lake CCD Mendocino College 17.5
Merced CCD Merced College i7.5
MiraCosta CCD MiraCosta College 17.0
Monterey Peninsula CCD Monterey Peninsula College 17.5
Mt. San Antonio CCD Mt. San Antonio College 16.2
Mt. San Jacinte CCD Mt. San Jacinto College 17.5
Napa Valley CCD Napa Vailey College 175
North Orange County CCD Cypress College 16.0
Fullerton College 16.0
School of Continuing Education Not Applicable
Ohlone CCD Ohlone College 16.4
Palo Verde CCD Palo Verde College 17.5
Palomar CCD Palomar College 175
Pasadena Area CCD Pasadena City College 16.0
Peralta CCD College of Alameda 175
Berkeley City College 17.5
Laney College 17.5
Merritt College 17.5
Rancho Santiago CCD Santa Ana College 16.6
Santiago Canyon College 16.6
Redwoods CCD College of the Redwoods 16.4
Rio Hondo CCD Rio Hondo College 16.7
Riverside CCD Riverside Community College 16.4
San Bernardino CCD Crafton Hills College 17.5
San Bernardino Valley College 17.56
San Diego CCD San Diego City College 6.5
San Diego Mesa College 16.5
San Diego Miramar College 16.5
San Francisco CCD City College of San Francisco 17.5
San Joaquin Delta CCD San Joaquin Delta Coliege 17.5
San Jose-Evergreen CCD Evergreen Valley College 16.3
San Jose City College 16.3
San Luis Obispo County CCD Cuesta College 175
San Matec County CCD Cariada College 17.5
College of San Mateo 17.5
Skyline College 17.5
Santa Barbara CCD Santa Barbara City College 17.0
Santa Clarita CCD College of the Canyons 17.0
Santa Monica CCD Santa Monica College 17.0
Sequoias CCD College of the Sequoias 17.5
Shasta-Tehama-Trinity Joint CCD  Shasta College 17.5
Sierra Joint CCD Sierra College 17.0
Siskiyou CCD College of the Siskiyous 17.5
Solano County CCD Solano Community College 175
Sonoma County CCD Santa Rosa Junior College 17.5
South Orange County CCD Irvine Valley College 17.5
Saddleback College 17.5

2



California Community Colleges

Term Length Multipliers
Fiscal Years 2014-15

Term Length

District College Multiplier
Southwestern CCD Southwestern College 17.5
State Center CCD Fresno City College 17.5
Reedley College 17.5
Ventura County CCD Moorpark College 17.5
Oxnard College 17.5
Ventura College 17.5
Victor Valley CCD Victor Valley Ccllege 16.0
West Hills CCD West Hills College Coalinga 17.5
West Hills College Lemoore 17.5
West Kern CCD Taft Coliege 17.5
West Valley-Mission CCD Mission College 16.2
West Valley College 16.2
Yosemite CCD Columbia College 16.4
Modesto College 16.4
Yuba CCD Woodland Community College 17.5
Yuba College 17.5

CCD = Community College District
Fiscal Services CCCCQ, 5-4-15






—’é’ Academic Senate
(.-ﬁ. for California Community Colleges

LEADERSH!P. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Iltem

SUBJECT: 2016 Spring Plenary Session Schedule Month: January | Year: 2016
Item No. V. H
Attachment: NO

DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will discuss the Urgent: YES / NO

changes in the 2016 Spring Session program to | Time Requested: 20 mins.,
accommodate the other organizations in the
joint program.

CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Julie Adams Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEWY, Julie Adams Action X
Information/Discussion

Please note: Staff will complete tl;é—gre y areds.

BACKGROUND:

The Executive Committee approved holding the 2016 Spring Plenary Session in conjunction with
several other California community colleges — ClO, CS50s, CCCAQOE, and other. Given the different
schedules of all groups, the ASCCC will need to adjust many of its regular sessions such as speeches,
area meetings, etc. The Executive Committee wilf consider for approval the changes so that the
field can be updated on the structural modification prior to the event.

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.



Thursday/Friday Joint Event
Draft Agenda

Theme: Aligning Partnerships for Student Services

Wednesday, April 20, 2016 {Cl0s/CSSO/CCCAOE) - -

Time Event Type # Presenters
People
12:00 —1:30 pm Lunch 670 Keynote
1:45—3:15 pm Breakouts
3:30-5:00 pm Breakouts
5:30-7:00 pm Reception
e | el Thursday, April 21, 2016 {ASCCC/CI0s/CSSOs/CCCAOQE) T
Time Event Type # Presenters
People
7:30—8:15am Breakfast 870 None
8:20-9:30am Keynote 970 Invite Brice Harris to open event
9:45-11:45 am Group Meetings:
CCCAOQE Meetings 7 B/O rooms (75 each)
ASCCC - Breakouts 6 B/O rooms (75 each)
CiOs —one meeting room 1 room (120)
CS50s- large meeting room 1 room (120)
12:00-12:45 pm Lunch 1000
12:45~2:00 pm Panel discussion 1000 Board of Governors Workforce TF:
invite Jim Mahler, Tim Rainey, Sunny
Cook, Lynn Shaw
2:15-3:45 pm Regional meetings 1000 10 B/O rooms
4:00-5:30 pm Breakouts Possible topics:
¢ Chancellor’s Office (larger
room)
¢ Dual enrollment (larger room)
e Hot topics
5:30 - 9:00 pm Foundation Fundraiser 450
) apoges) e - Friday, April 22, 2016 {ASCCC/CIOs/CSSO/CCCAOE)
7:30—8:30 am Breakfast 770 None o
8:30-10:30 am Keynote 1000 Chancellor’s Office General Session
10:45 - 12 noon Keynote 1000 TBD- Invite: Governor Brown and
Lieutenant Governor Newsome
1:00—3:00 pm ASCCC Elections Speeches 200
3:00-5:00 pm ASCCC Area Meetings 200




CE:/% Academic Senate

S,  for California Community Colleges
LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBIJECT: Basic Skills Definitions

Month: January | Year: 2016

tem No: V. L

Attachment. NO

DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will provide guidance | Urgent: YES
to the Curriculum Committee on how to best Time Requested: 10 minutes
address Resolution 7.05 F14.
CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: J. Freitas Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW™: Jufie Adams Action X
Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

In fall 2015 the body adopted resolution 7.05 F14 that calls for a separate definition for ESL courses
that distinguishes ESL from English, reading and math:

Whereas, Data regarding basic skills are critically important for making decisions for funding
allocations, as well as for assessing student success;

Whereas, The Basic Skills Initiative identifies basic skills courses as those courses necessary for
students to succeed in college-level work and that are identified as such on the Basic Skills

Cohort Tracking Tool;

Whereas, Title 5 §55502 indicates specifically that basic skills courses cannot be degree
applicable, yet some courses below transfer can be degree applicable {for example,
Intermediate Algebra is the degree applicable course for math for the California community
colleges, and at some colleges ESL is not basic skills and can be transferable and degree

applicable); and

Whereas, The Board of Governors Scorecard identifies remedial courses as those below transfer;

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges urge the Chancellor’s
Office to work with the Academic Senate to develop and use one standard definition for basic
skills courses that can be applied to math, reading, and English and a separate definition for ESL
courses that acknowledges that ESL can be non-degree applicable, degree applicable, or

transferable.

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.




There is no current “official” definition of basic skills for the California Community Colleges, nor
is there one for ESL. There is a working definition of basic skills that was developed by the
team that wrote the “Poppy Copy” and is also incorporated into the ASCCC 2008 basic skills
handbook:

“Basic skills are those foundation skills in reading, writing, mathematics, and English as a
Second Language, as well as learning skills and study skills which are necessary for students to
succeed in college-level work.”

Since this working definition was introduced, much work was done through the Basic Skills
Initiative that resulted in the creation of a multitude of resources for the system, including the
development of CB21 rubrics that allow curriculum committees to identify whether or not a
course is a basic skills course, and if it is what level below college/transfer level it is. Any
definitions of basic skills and ESL should probably acknowledge the CB21 rubrics.

One of the confusing issues regarding basic skills courses is raised in the third whereas, which
points out that Title 5 states that basic skills courses are non-degree applicable, yet exceptions
are allowed for certain basic skills courses such as elementary algebra, English composition or
reading one level before transfer (Title 5 section 55062). Furthermore, section 55062(c) states
that “English as a Second Language (ESL) courses which teach composition or reading skills are
not considered to be English composition or reading courses for purposes of this subdivision.”
Another complicating factor is that the Chancellor’s Office won't allow courses that are degree
applicable to be coded as basic skills courses. Finally, there is the philosophical debate about
whether ESL courses are really basic skills courses or if they are really equivalent to foreign
language courses, which makes what is called for in the resolution a sensitive undertaking.

The Curriculum Committee discussed this resolution at its December 16 meeting. Questions
that need to be answered include:

1. Is this resolution feasible, and if so, then should it be a SACC effort, as the resolution implies
since it calls for the Chancellor’s Office to woik with the Academic Senate, or shouid it really be
an Academic Senate effort led by the Curriculum Committee?

2. Should any definition(s) developed be accompanied by a statement of principles on how
colleges should apply the definition, such as the role of local curriculum committees and
senates and the proper application of CB21 rubrics?

Before the committee does any significant amount of work on addressing this particular
resolution, some guidance on how best to proceed is requested of the Executive Committee.



’A‘ Academic Senate
(@S for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHI|P., EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Workforce Task Force Recommendation Implementation Month: January | Year: 2016
Mem No: V. ).
Attachment: YES (via email)
DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider for Urgent: YES

approval the Board of Governors Task Force on | Time Requested: 40 mins.,
Workforce, Jobs, and a Strong Economy
implementation strategies including those
recommendations that the ASCCC should lead,
advise, or monitor.

CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Julie Bruno Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW™: 1 dulie Adams | Action X
L | C wd ™ | Information/Discussion

Please note: Stt_Jff will cloniplete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

The Board of Governors approved the recommendations from the Taskforce on Workforce, Job
Creation, and a Strong Economy (WFTF} at its November 2016 meeting. The Chancellor’s Office is in
the process of assigning vice chancellors to lead the implementation teams, Attached is a draft
document listing the WFTF recommendations with the 10+1 area each recommendation falls under,
policy or guidance needed, ASCCC positions, system and statewide partners as well as possible
actions indicating that the ASCCC should |lead, advise, or monitor specific recommendations. The
Executive Committee will review this document and be prepared to discuss and include additions to
policy or guidance needed, positions, and gaps in positions. Finally, the Executive Committee will
determine the ASCCCs level of involvement for each recommendation and consider for approval the
revised document.

Note: The attachment to this item will be emailed on Thursday and posted on the ASCCC website.

1 staff will review your iterm and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






A A H
= Academic Senate
SN for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENTY., VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Dual Enrollment Frequently Asked Questions Month: January | Year: 2016
Itam No: V. I
Attachment: YES
DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will review a draft Urgent: NO
from the Educational Policies Committee Time Requested: 15 minutes

regarding frequently asked questions for dual
enroliment and implementation.

CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Dolores Davison Consent/Routine
First Reading X
STAFF REVIEW": | Julie Adams Action X
Discussion

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

With the passage of AB288 (Holden, 2015), many colleges are beginning or continuing discussions
about dual enroliment. The Educational Policies committee has been assigned several resolutions
regarding this issue, most notably 6.03 (515) which states:

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges support the legislative
intent of AB 288 (Holden, as of March 23, 2015) to increase or improve dual enrollment
opportunities for all high school students, especially for struggling and at-risk high school
students; and

Resolved, That the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges work with the
Chancellor’s Office and other system partners to draft guidelines for the field on the
implementation of dual enrollment that promote collegial consultation with local senates in the
development of dual enroliment agreements, assert community college faculty primacy in all
curricular matters involving dual enroliment course offerings, provide a clear system-wide
interpretation of the requirements and conditions for the college and school districts to receive
apportionment that includes a clear definition of the meaning “instructional activities” in the
proposed new Education Code §76004(1), and promote the fulfillment of accountability
requirements and incentives for both college and school districts.

To this end, the Educational Policies committee has developed the attached draft Frequently Asked
Questions to distribute to the field. Other groups, including the RP Group, are also in the process of
providing information to the field, but there is currently nothing that specifically addresses the
issues that senate presidents and other faculty leaders will need to know.

L Staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






Dual Enrollment: What Local Senates Need to Know

With the passage of AB288 (Holden, 2015), many colleges have begun to explore the usage
of dual enroliment on their campuses. Due to the nature of dual enrollment programs,
academic senates need to be familiar with these programs and prepared to be involved with
their creation and promulgation. So, what do local senates need to know about dual
enrollment?

First, what is dual enrollment, also referred to as concurrent enrollment? In very basic terms,
California Education Code allows K-12 students to take college classes. While there are
several nuanced versions of this, the most common type of dual enrollment involves K-12
students taking a college class offered on a K-12 campus, typically during the school day.
This partnership should have a formal agreement between the two institutions, although such
an agreement is not legally required. The other common form involves the K-12 student
enrolled in a college class as a student, usually involving speczal admission. This type of
student enrollment can accomplished through a forn‘gd pmemhpﬁ! by individual K-12
students registering and enrolling as special adnnsmm college ﬁl;dems

---'.—'\ /- ,

Dual enrollment has existed for many years, with som® fmiy spec1ﬁc wq:uremeﬁts that both
the K-12 institution and the college must fulfill. In 2003, the California C(mm!ﬁmty Colleges
Chancellor’s Office investigated these partnerships and tha\fmy of them were out of
compliance with these requirements. While blamewas not placed bn specific institutions,
varying degrees of repercussions were enacted, xot" ﬁ& Jeast of wheeh'wiis legislative action
that added nuanced restrictions. After the C(I CO’s 1Ijmmgauon ami findings, many
community college districts discontinued thé:g dual enrolIt;mt al;rangements and have
remained hesitant to enter into new om This may: ;,hange’ with this passage of new
legislation designed to aid dlstnci;s A1 fhe creation c;f dual ;m-ollment programs. AB288
(Holden, 2015) allows districts g;,Mhsh an Optlom\w enrollment program that operates
under special rules spellad out in thelugtslatmn While the new law creates an entirely new
option, there is wﬂiihg M@ms a cql%gge to exercise the option. There is also nothing
that preveqﬁﬁ college from' epacting the peavision and eliminating its current dual
enrollmemmgmm thereby m gffect mov ing’the existing program into the new provisions.

This new law essqahhhy "mdcls what started as a onc-time cxception made for one district
{Long Beach City Ccihge) that allgwvs the college district and local K-12 school to create
dual enrollment opporlw!:es thatrlo not require open access to the public. Parts of the new
regulations parallel the exm ‘dual enrollment requirements and others are completely new.
Similar to the existing provlyons in Ed Code for dual enrollment, this new law has numerous
implementation nuances, some of which have not been completely worked out at the policy
levels; as a result, the Department of Education and the Chancellor’s Office may need to
implement additional regulatory changes as well as develop a variety of guidelines.

Unlike the existing requirements, this new law requires a formal agreement between the
institutions. It also makes very clear that both institutions can only collect FTES and ADA
apportionment as long as they are not duplicating “the same instructional activity.” This will
essentially mean that a college course offered under the new College and Career Access
Pathways (CCAP) may not directly repeat an existing school class. It will also mean that both
institutions will need to meet their respective apportionment requirements with the exception
of providing open access.

At this time, Winter 2016, colleges without dual enrollment programs who are also not
meeting their growth targets should be seriously considering these new provisions. Colleges

1



can begin by engaging in the development of academic pathways while building partnership
rapport with their respective K-12 partners. Those colleges that currently have dual
enrollment offerings should work closely with their academic senates, K-12 partners and the
CCC Chancellor’s Office to help implement this new and exciting option for students.

Frequently Asked Questions
Who develops dual enrollment agreements and how often should they be updated?

Community college faculty must be the central component to the development and
maintenance of dual enrollment courses since they are college classes. This does not mean
that other stakeholders are not critical to the success of these partnerships. The K-12 faculty
and administrators from both institutions need to be active participants to ensure that both
institutions remain compliant with all requirements,

The initiation of any program would requlre both unmedlate a‘lli WIar review and
evaluation. As the program continues it is likely thak only unumal wircumstances will require
immediate attention, and the program could easily folhw thefsmne‘iumlme as the rest of the
college’s program review processes. IR

Are dual enrollment classes an academic and profession® giatter?
Yes — This is not debatable. §51023.3 and §§53208+53205 make & perfectly clear that
curriculum and program development are stmﬂ!y éc&ﬂumc and pwﬁmmal matters, as a
minimum condition for apportionment. {f- g\ p N

S S N ‘4
What are the minimum gualificati dual engoliment class?
The minimum qualifications to teach'any college class, credt or noncredit are found in both
law and regulation (§§87350- 873&!’ %nd §§53400- 534313 #espectively.) The CCC Board of
Governors and Aiadamic Senate. ﬁn :California Community Colleges maintain a list of
minimum qualffications ﬁt{hsmphnes'ﬂﬂtqs updated every two years. This list defines the
minimum gﬁhﬁcatwn for eaqix discipliné; gl gvery college course, including any dual
enrollmedt- me must be assxped to one cu‘more of these disciplines.
How do students !U«ﬂﬁll college aiid degree requirements with dual enrollment, credit b
examination and amatlon" " I
Entry and graduat:lon mﬁﬂ:emenh for college courses and programs are established by
individual colleges. Thesa: m@fwements do not need to honored by any other college, agency,
licensing board or entity. Wliﬂe the certificate or degree conferred might be recogmzed and
honored, the student’s transcript is typically what other colleges and universities review and
can choose to honor or not based upon individual courses and grades. If it has been
determined that an entering student meets the college’s requirements, the college is not
obligated to make the student re-meet the requirement by taking a course or engaging in some
other evaluation process. This reasonable determination should be accomplished with a high
degree of rigor. Military records of training or other employee records or recognized
certifications would all potentially meet these standards and college faculty could agree to
waive a particular requirement. The waiver would be acknowledged in the student’s
transcript; however, no credit would be conferred. A waiver could potentially be a problem
for the student if (s)he later needs the units of credit, or help if the student later runs into unit
limitations. Dual enrollment classes are regular college courses and therefore meet college
and degree requirements without additional exams or certification.

!./'




Is the credit on a student transcript for a dual enrollment class different from other

college credit?

No, a dual enroliment class is a college class. The credit listed cannot be differentiated from
any other credit contained in the student’s transcript.
As a result, students must be allowed the same options allowed in any college course.

Are dual enrollment classes basic skills classes?

The provisions for dual enroilment are generally silent on the type of courses to be offered, so
they can be specifically tailored to meet remedial needs. However, research shows that
students who finish high school with some college credit already on their transcripts are more
likely to continue in college. This would infer that the credit earned through dual enroliment
is degree-applicable college level credit. Any pathway being designed should ensure that
students are prepared in an academically logical manner; eveniif that pathway includes pre-
college level coursework. It also does not prohibit sound pedagogy‘where a course typically
builds on prior, possibly pre-college level learning by reviewing t¢ both refresh and make
entering expectations clear to students The new CCAP.does dress specific requirements
for basic skills dual enrollment courses, including thatﬂw )agreement must includé processes
to certify that the students in remedial classes need the rbmedxatlon to be Quweﬁsﬁll in
college. “

What type of counseling and other studegg servncesygmlld be pmwded for dual

enrollment students? 3 4

Because dual enrollment offerings are usually not mere than a. few courses, the structural
pathway is typically not difficult te establish. But thx‘. means by which students can receive
futoring, counseling, academic @dwsmg, library serv{&e ‘and all other services specific to
those courses mustbé warked out m.advance The new CCAP does not require high school
students to bq,fpmwdedﬂ:@sc *;emces,‘npr does it require the high school students to submit a
Student Edlﬁ:atlon Plan; however, students. wiw -graduate from high school and then enter a
community cojlege will be reqmred to do so







A Academic Senate
G for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Launchboard Expansion Month: January I Year: 201
RemNo:W.L
Attachment: YES
DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will consider Urgent: YES
partnering with other groups to enhance the Time Requested: 10 mins.,

Launchboard dashboard and increase its
usability across all 113 colleges.

CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Julie Adams Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEWE | ulie Adams ' 1 Action X
(] L | Information/Discussion

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND: The Chancellor's Office is planning to kick off a massive outreach campaign for the
LaunchBoard starting in January (see descriptions attached). A number of groups - WestEd, RP Group,
Regional Consortia, and other constituent groups will be leading this work. The ASCCC has been asked
to partner with these groups to get this work done. The general outline of the program has been
established by the Chancellor's Office, and staff would like the Senate to be involved in the following

tasks:
During the first half of 2016, the ASCCC would:

¢ work with WestEd and RP to develop documents that explain on how LaunchBoard data can be
integrated into local program review and curricular processes;

¢ work with WestEd, RP Group, Educational Results Partnership, Santa Rosa Junior College, and
Centers of Excellence to develop a day-long advanced training that helps people become more
proficient in using the LaunchBoard; and

¢ work with WestEd and RP to develop a LaunchBoard Fellows program (we will need about 10 data
savvy faculty} who can do LaunchBoard training and technical assistance during 2015-16.

Timeline:

Buring the second half of 2016: ASCCC will help provide the super user training (7-10 regional
trainings).

First half of 2017: ASCCC will help interpret findings from 10 reports that integrate various college and
regional labor market data on particular occupational clusters, plus support 10 regional meetings
where college, K-12, and employer representatives discuss the findings.

The Executive Committee will consider a possible partnership with the Chancellor’s Office, WestEd, RP
Group, an others to expand the LaunchBoard expansion.

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






Bujuuoyd jpuoibal so jam sp
* Bupuuoyd paynibajui pup ‘Bujuunyd
Axnba ‘uonoipadn ‘Manas
wosboud fo nd so proogyounoy
ays Buisn aup ffo3s ¥y puo

‘Supsp 313 501D S03D *INOILNOe

apimaie1s Asaing

$8WO2INQ 317 Y3 SIUSWBdw
9851103 Jojun[ esoy euegs

s9L021N0 dacidus)

03 591831B435 BAREL4O]E(|0D AJJUDp]

pue ‘s334n0saJ BIEP qe|leAR

Inoqe aiow wea| ‘spodaa 3y

aulwexa sisAoidwa pue ‘suauped

ZT-) ‘s98s)|00 asaym sSuluaAuod
1504 BILIOSUO) [euciSay e«

elep ASang sawosng

wawAojdw3 319 10z pue

‘212p PIROGYIUNET ‘UOIIRULIONI

19)Jew Joge| s3esdsiul

1BY1 J3ISN)D jRUOIIEUNII0 PBIDD[aS

yaea Joy spodas aJedaid s33jj0)

Jojun[ eSOy EJUES pue ‘3jeuag

JlWapEIY 3Y3 ‘Wes) pieogyoune]
33 ‘20UB||3IXT JO 518U e

01op
3qofionp Buflardialus up sansst
Aay fo aipmp 3.4p pup S3RIAIID
3403 03u] piDogyIuUND] ayl
2104633U1 03 MOY PUDISIBPUN SUDID
31D pun ‘sdai 330U3S NBPHIY
‘Ho1s yi 012 :TNOIINO

5iSA|BUE JOJ 131SN[D [RUDIIEANIZO
2U0 AJIuspl BIIOSUC) jeucigDYe
5289)|00 pue ‘5101995
‘sUQIFad LWOIY S51IR JBY) SpadU
ssaippe 03 s3ulule} |euouppe
apiaoud smoj|34 ¥ pieogyoune]
puE Wea} pieogyaunes
sl uoneuawajdun
000°05$ Buisn uoioe axel s889||0)e
888)|00 J2d s0UR)SISSE [EIUYID]
pasnooy Jo sinoy QT ©3 dn
apaoad smo||94 ¥ precgyoune
pue wea} plecgyaounee
vo)esdsul erep
woddns 01 5j00) pue soLleuads
adesn pseogydune pajlesp
uo pasnooy s8ujuiely Jasn-Jadns
|euci3as spjoy weaj pieogyounets

_ 3uljuo }Yjoo] plecgyaune]

\ € 51500 Wea} pIeogyiunes

4 R

UORDAP3JI00

pup ‘Butuupid paipnibaiut ‘manas

wosbosd 3y suopounf puonsul

$S34ppY 0) W3 dizy unI

pA0OgUIUNDT 3y1 104 pUBISIApUN
jouuosiad 3831102 AaX :JNOILNO

SO3pIA pue ‘syu%o0} ‘soping ‘asinca
paded-jjas e Buipnjaul 1Y|003
e 5$2d0jaASp Wea) pieogydune]s
SMO||24 DIuelsISSy
|e2IUYIZ] pieogyauney suiesy
pue slo9[as Weal pieogyiungie
PIOYS3JY1 UOIIedIED Y1 13 1BY)
5282|102 404 53ueIS uojIrIUBUIB dW)
pue DUEINISSE [EDJUYIS
pasnsoy Jo) suoiedde pajes
PUB M3IADL BILOSUOY) |eUCISDYe
Sulpuny pue y) 10} g2
2831102 45Yy1 saxew 1Byl 25peq
e 123 siuedidiued ‘pieogyoune
Y] pUB JI3W pJedsiosg
13P[ING-5[|13S MBU YY) SsDippe
Jey) sdoysyiom [euoidal sploy |d]|e
S20UBIBJUCD
dnou8 Aouanyisuca je Sujuen
sapiaosd weos) pieogyounets
s3inled) anjea-ysy uo soapia
PopRIGWS YUM S|IELUI YdBIINO
puas sdnos3 Aouaniisuode
s9se3 o8esn uo 3ndu)
Jay1e8 o] sdnouB aasn-Jamod sdey
Pue (sO5S) ‘peas y| ‘sueap 3.0
503D 'SQID) sdnoud Asusninsuod
Jo diysiapes| ayl o3 pseogysune

93 SOWap Wes] pieogyiunee

N

§ 107 G dRg arg2asniny dionuer

£IpZ aungAignug

allesn (uoigay yioddng adesn adalie) woddng SsausIEMY pI(ng.

ue|d ayeidn pieogydune



L

I-tl-- -



CTE Data Uniocked: Find It. Understand It. Use it.

Partner Roles

In the recommendations put forward by the Board of Governor’s Task Force on Workforce and a Strong
Economy, the Chancellor’s Office for California Community Colleges was urged to help colleges improve the
quality, acce55|b|I|ty, and utility of student outcome and labor market data to support career and technical
education (CTE} program development and improvement efforts. The CTE Data Unlocked initiative offers a
suite of tools, training, technical assistance, and convenings to support this goal.

This document outlines the roles of the ten entities that will be involved in implementing the initiative,
including:

CENDUH WM R

California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office
Academic Senate for California Community Colleges
Centers of Excellence

Delta College/Educational Results Partnership
Institutional Effectiveness Partnership Initiative
Regional Consortia Chairs

RP Group

Santa Rosa Junior College/CTE Outcomes Survey
Sector Navigators

10 WestEd

All ten partners will be involved in the following activities:

Initiative planning and management
Review content for spring 2016 awareness trainings

Participate in the development of tools that integrate LaunchBoard and labor market information
into college processes like program review, integrated planning, and accreditation

Support the development of curriculum for LaunchBoard Fellows, super-users, and an online
LaunchBoard course

Support the development of the RFP for college access to grants and technical assistance

Support the development of a statewide technical assistance plan based on grants and technicai
assistance requested hy colieges

Support the development of the regional occupational cluster reports

Additional roles will be carried out as follows:

Cafifornia Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office

Provide oversight regarding initiative implementation

Partner Role Summary Document | December 23, 2015 | Page 1



CTE Data Unlocked: Find It. Understand It. Use it.

e Provide training at ten regional workshops in spring 2016 to raise awareness about revisions to the
CTE metrics on the Scorecard (TRIS division)

e Attend training for LaunchBoard Fellows

Academic Senate for California Community Colleges
¢ Take a lead role in curriculum development
e Attend training for LaunchBoard Fellows
e Participate in training on how to use CTE data
e Coordinate travel for LaunchBoard Fellows
e  Provide training for super-users

e Participate in regional convenings

Centers of Excellence

o Provide training at ten regional workshops in spring 2016 to raise awareness about the
LaunchBoard

e Take alead role in curriculum development

e Provide training for LaunchBoard Fellows

e Provide training to technical assistance providers on how to use CTE data
e Provide training for super-users

» Provide technical assistance to colleges

s Lead the development of the occupational cluster reports

# Participate in regional convenings

Delta College/Educational Results Partnership

e Provide training at ten regional workshops in spring 2016 to raise awareness about the
LaunchBoard

¢ Provide training for LaunchBoard Fellows
¢ Provide training for super-users

e Provide technical assistance to colleges

Partner Role Summary Document | December 23, 2015 | Page 2



CTE Data Unlocked: Find It. Understand It. Use it.

Institutional Effectiveness Partnership Initiative

Manage logistics and expenses for ten regional workshops in spring 2016 to raise awareness about
revisions to the CTE metrics on the Scorecard and the LaunchBoard

Manage logistics and expenses for an IEPI team training in summer 2016 to raise awareness about
revisions toc the CTE metrics on the Scorecard and the LaunchBoard

Participate in training on how to use CTE data (IEPI team members)

Regional Consortia Chairs

Market IEPI trainings

Participate in training on how to use CTE data

Disseminate, process, and approve the applications for college grants and technical assistance
Manage and distribute grants to colleges

Manage logistics and expenses for ten regional super-user workshops in fall 2016

Coordinate selection of occupational clusters for regional reports

Lead thirty regional convenings on occupational clusters in spring 2017

Manage logistics and expenses for thirty regional convenings on occupational clusters in spring
2017

Evaluate effectiveness of local assistance and regional convenings

RFP Group

Lead curriculum development for spring 2016 trainings

Provide training at ten regional workshops in spring 2016 to raise awareness about the
LaunchBoard

Provide training for LaunchBoard Fellows

Provide training to technical assistance providers on how to use CTE data
Provide training for super-users

Provide technical assistance to colleges

Participate in ten regional corivenings on occupational clusters in spring 2017

Santa Rosa Junior College/CTE Outcomes Survey

Partner Role Summary Document | December 23, 2015 | Page 3



CTE Data Unlocked: Find It. Understand tt. Use it.

e Provide training for LaunchBoard Fellows
e Provide training for super-users

e Administer the CTE Qutcomes Survey for all colleges in the state

Sector Navigators/Deputy Sector Navigators
s Participate in training on how to use CTE data
e Manage logistics and expenses for Key Talent training workshop in summer 2016
» Participate in selection of occupational clusters for regional reports

s  Participate in thirty regional convenings on occupational clusters in spring 2017

WestEd
e Serve as project manager for the initiative

» Provide training at ten regional workshops in spring 2016 to raise awareness about the
LaunchBoard

s Develop videos about the LaunchBoard and labor market information

e Design all collateral materials

¢ Take a lead role in curriculum development

e Provide training for LaunchBoard Fellows

¢ Manage logistics and expenses for LaunchBoard Fellows training retreat

e Manage and distribute funding for the LaunchBoard Fellows

» Provide training to technical assistance providers on how to use CTE data

¢ Provide training for super-users

e Provide additional trainings throughout the state (with the LaunchBoard Fellows)
¢ Provide technical assistance to colleges

¢ Participate in ten regional convenings on occupational clusters in spring 2017

Partner Role Summary Document | December 23, 2015 | Page 4



(_=_~4 Academic Senate

. for California Community Colleges
LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOILE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Open Educational Resources Month: January | Year: 2016
Attachment: YES
DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will be updated Urgent: NO
about the activities of the California Open Time Requested: 20 Minutes

Educational Resources Council, will consider
next steps to inform local senates regarding AB
798, and will consider the exploration of a
community college specific OER initiative.

CATEGORY: Action TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Aschenbach/Davison/Morse Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW" ulie Adams Action X
Information

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

in 2012, SB 1052 created the California Open Educational Resources Council, a joint effort of the
CCC, CsU, and UC systems under the administration of ICAS. The council has been meeting regularly
for almost two years with the intent of creating a plan to expand the use of Open Educational
Resources (OER) in all three segments of post-secondary education in California. The council’s work
on SB 1052 concludes in December, although the council will be working on the new OER bill, AB798
(Bonilla, 2015). AB 798 established a program for the CCC and the CSU systems to promote OER use
through a grant program. The ASCCC has for many years encouraged the use of OER and passed a
resolution supporting AB 798 in Spring 2015. However, the program created by the final version of
AB 798 has a number of problematic limitations in terms of both funding level and requirements. In
addition, concerns have developed regarding the leadership and activities of the council and
differences in the ways our three systems view and use OER materials.

Current ASCCC appointed council members Cheryl Aschenbach, Dan Crump, and Dolores Davison
will update the Executive Committee regarding the work of the council and the council’s next steps.
Executive Committee members will consider for approval next steps for informing local senates of
opportunities as noted in the legislation.

In addition to the efforts of the intersegmental council created under SB 1052, the Executive
Committee will consider the possibility of an OER effort specific to the community college system.
The Governor’s Office has shown clear interest in the promotion of OER materials, and recently the

L staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.



Community College League approached the ASCCC regarding the same matter. For these reasons,
the Executive Committee will explore the possibility of creating a community college program for

the promotion of OER, whether through legislation or other means. CCLC and the Student Senate
have expressed interest in joining the ASCCC in such a venture, and support from the Chancellor’s
Office seems likely.

The eventual goal of this conversation is to determine what a more productive OER initiative would
involve and look like if we could design it ourselves. For this meeting, however, the immediate
question is whether we wish to pursue such an initiative of our own on OER and if so how to
proceed. Possibilities for further exploration might invelve assigning this topic to one of our
standing committees or creating a task force specific to this issue, possibly with representation from
CCLC.



Assembly Bill No. 798

CHAPTER 633

An act to amend Section 69999.6 of, and to add and repeal Part 40,1
(commencing with Section 67420) of Division 5 of Title 3 of, the Education
Code, relating to postsecondary education.

[Approved by Gevernor October 8, 2015. Filed with
Secretary of State October 8, 2015.]

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL’S DIGEST

AB 798, Bonilla. College Textbook Affordability Act of 2015.

(1) Existing law establishes the segments of the postsecondary education
system in the state, including the California State University, administered
by the Trustees of the California State University, and the California
Community Colleges, administered by the Board of Governors of the
California Community Colleges.

This bill would establish the College Textbook Affordability Act of 2015
to reduce costs for college students by encouraging faculty to accelerate the
adoption of lower cost, high-quality open educational resources, as defined.

The bill would create the Open Educational Resources Adoption Incentive
Program to provide incentives and reward campus, staff, and faculty efforts
to accelerate the adoption of open educational resources. The bill would
require that specified moneys for the program be used by campuses to create
and support faculty and staff professional development, open educational
resource curation activities, curriculum modification, or technology support
for faculty, staff, and students, as specified. The bill would authorize the
local academic senate of a campus of the California State University or the
California Community Colleges to (A) adopt a local campus resolution to
increase student access to high-quality open educational resources and
reduce the cost of textbooks and supplies for students, and (B) upon adoption
of the resolution, develop a specified plan, in collaboration with students
and the administration, that describes evidence of the campus’ commitment
and readiness to spend grant money from the fund to support faculty adoption
of open educational resources. The bill would require the California Open
Education Resources Council to review and approve the plan, and, if it
meets these and other specified requirements, would authorize the Chancellor
of the California State University to award an initial grant of up to $50,000
to the campus from the fund. The bill would require additional bonus grants
to be distributed to participating campuses if certain benchmarks are met.
The bill would cap the number of initial grants that may be approved by the
California Open Education Resources Council each award year at 100, The
bill would require the California Digital Open Source Library, also known
as the California Open Online Library for Education, in consultation with

90



Ch. 633 —2—

the Intersegmental Committee of Academic Senates, to report to the
Legislature before September 1 of each year, commencing in 2018, as to
whether the grants are increasing the rate of adoption of open educational
resources and decreasing textbook costs for college students.

The bill would make these provisions inoperative on September 1, 2020,
and would repeal them as of January 1, 2021.

(2) Existing law appropriates, from specified funds, $5,000,000 to the
Chancellor of the California State University to fund, among other things,
the establishment and administration of the California Open Education
Resources Council and the California Digital Open Source Library.

This bill would specify that $3,000,000 of those funds are reappropriated
for allocation for the Open Educational Resources Adoption Incentive
Program. Of the remaining $2,000,000, the bill would specify that up to
$200,000 may be used for the California Open Online Library for Education
and up to $27,000 may be used for stipends to members of the California
Open Education Resources Council, as specified.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Part 40.1 (commencing with Section 67420) is added to
Division 5 of Title 3 of the Education Code, to read:

PART 40.1. COLLEGE TEXTBOOK AFFORDABILITY ACT OF 2015

67420. This part shall be known, and may be cited, as the College
Textbook Affordability Act of 2015,

67421, (a) The College Textbook Affordability Act of 2015 is hereby
established to reduce costs for college students by encouraging faculty to
accelerate the adoption of lower cost, high-quality, open educational
resources. Faculty development shall be a key component of this acceleration
initiative. This initiative shall use, in addition to any other appropriate
resources, those identified, housed, produced, and otherwise found
appropriate pursuant to the California Open Education Resources Council
established in Section 66409 and the California Digital Open Source Library,
also known as the California Open Online Library for Education, established
in Section 66408,

{b) The Open Educational Resources Adoption Incentive Program is
hereby established to carry out the purposes of this act. Unless context
otherwise requires, “program” in this act means the Open Educational
Resources Adoption Incentive Program.

67422. (a) (1) Moneys appropriated in subdivision (f) of Section
69999.6 for the program shall be used by community college and California
State University campuses to further the purposes specified in subdivision
(a) of Section 67421, including any of the following purposes:

(A) Faculty professional development, which shall include learning about
the California Open Online Library for Education established in Section

90



—3_ Ch. 633

66408. Faculty who participate in this professional development shall be
reimbursed in accordance with their campus® approved plan pursuant to
paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 67424,

(B) Professional development for staff whose work supports providing
students with open educational resources.

(C) Open educational resource curation activities. All new open
educational resources developed and available that are adopted as course
material pursuant 1o this program shall be added to the California Open
Online Library for Education established in Section 66408.

(D) Curriculum modification and requisite release time for faculty in
accordance with a campus’ approved plan pursuant to paragraph (2) of
subdivision (a) of Section 67424 related to the adoption of open educational
resources as course materials.

(E) Technology support for faculty, students, and staff whose work
furthers the goals specified in a campus’ approved plan pursuant to paragraph
(2) of subdivision (a) of Section 67424.

{2) Moneys appropriated in subdivision (f) of Section 69999.6 for the
program shall not be used for direct compensation for faculty members who
adopt open educational resources, except as provided to compensate for
professional development pursuant to subparagraph (A) of paragraph (1),
or for purchasing new equipment.

(b) For the purposes of this act, a “community college campus” is a
community college campus site that has a local academic senate.

67423, Asused in this part, “open educational resources” are high-quality
teaching, learning, and research resources that reside in the public domain
or have been released under an intellectual property license, such as a
Creative Commons license, that permits their free use and repurposing by
others, and may include other resources that are legally available and free
of cost to students. “Open educational resources™ include, but are not limited
to, full courses, course materials, modules, textbooks, faculty-created content,
streaming videos, tests, software, and any other tools, materials, or techniques
used to support access to knowledge.

67424. (a) In order to participate in the program, the local academic
senate of a campus of the California State University or the California
Community Colleges shall do both of the following:

(1) Adopt a local campus resolution to increase student access to
high-quality open educational resources and reduce the cost of textbooks
and supplies for students in course sections for which open educational
resources are to be adopted to accomplish cost savings for students.

(2) Approve a plan, in collaboration with students and campus
administration, that describes evidence of the faculty’s commitment and
readiness to eftectively use grant funds to support faculty adoption of open
educational resources.

(A) The plan may detail technological or staff support to increase the
adoption of open educational resources. The plan shall describe how the
faculty will learn about the California Open Online Library for Education
and other existing open educational resources.

90



Ch. 633 —4—

(B) The plan shall include the number of academic departments expected
to be involved in the plan’s implementation, the number of course sections
in which open educational resources will be adopted, the percentage of cost
savings for students anticipated on account of the adoption of open
educational resources for each of these course sections, the ways existing
faculty development programs will be enhanced by the plan’s
implementation, and the mechanisms that will be used to distribute adopted
open educational resources to students.

(C) At their discretion, faculty may choose, for courses that are to adopt
open educational resources under the plan, appropriate resources for any of
the 50 strategically selected lower division courses identified by the
California Open Education Resources Council pursuant to subparagraph
(B) of paragraph (1) of subdivision (¢) of Section 66409. Other open
educational resources may also be used.

(D} The plan shall describe how the campus will provide access to open
educational resource materials for students, including how the campus will
make hard copies of these materials available for students who lack access
to these materials off campus and make it possible for students with such
access to print hard copies.

(E) The plan will identify the amount of the grant requested. The amount
of the grant requested shall be equal to, or less than, the number of course
sections in which both open educational resources will be adopted and cost
savings for the course section will be greater than 30 percent, multiplied by
one thousand dollars ($1,000). The amount requested shall not be greater
than fifty thousand dollars (850,000). A plan shall commit to achieving
greater than 30 percent cost savings in at least 10 course sections.

(F) (i) The plan shall include the percentage of cost savings for each
course section calculated as follows:

(ii) The percentage of cost savings shall be the estimated decrease in the
costs of books and supplies for a course section in the current term resulting
from the adoption of open educational resources for that course section,
divided by the costs of books and supplies for that course section in the
immediately preceding academic term.

(b) The California Open Education Resources Council may provide
expertise on available open educational resources and best practices for the
adoption of open educational resources for existing courses to assist in the
development of the plan.

(c) (1) The local academic senate of a campus of the California State
University or the California Community Colleges may submit the resolution
and the plan developed pursuant to subdivision (a) to the California Open
Education Resources Council as its application for an initial grant no later
than June 30, 2016.

(2) (A) The California Open Education Resources Council shall make
an Initial grant to a campus within 60 days of the council’s receipt of the
campus’ application if the campus has satisfied the requirements of
subdivision (a). The California Open Education Resources Council may
award up to 100 initial grants.

950



—5— Ch. 633

(B) If the total amount requested in applications received pursuant to
subparagraph (A) is equal to or less than two million dollars ($2,000,000),
the California Open Education Resources Council shall make grants for
each approved application equal to the amount requested in the application.
If the total amount requested in applications received pursuant to
subparagraph (A) exceeds two million dollars ($2,000,000), the California
Open Education Resources Council shall make grants for the full amount
requested in approved applications on a competitive basis based on the
strength of the evidence provided of faculty commitment to the adoption
of open educational resources.

(3) Each application approved by the California Open Education
Resources Council shall be submitted by the council to the Chancellor of
the California State University no later than 30 days after the council
approves the application. The chancellor shall award grants to recipients in
accordance with this section.

{4) Administrative support may be provided to the council by the
California Open Online Library for Education to help the council carry out
its duties in accordance with this part,

(5) (A) No later than June 30, 2018, a campus may apply for a bonus
grant equal to the amount of its initial grant, The application shall include
evidence that the campus has met or exceeded total cost savings of greater
than 30 percent for the required number of course sections specified in the
approved plan for the campus’ initial grant in the 2017-18 academic year.

(B) (i} A campus may also compute the total cost savings for each course
section and include that figure in ifs application for a bonus grant pursuant
to subparagraph (A).

(ii) The total cost savings for each course section shall be the number of
students enrolled in a course section multiplied by the per-student decrease
in the costs of books and supplies for the course section in the term resulting
from the adoption of open educational resources.

(6) Bonus grants specified in paragraph (5) shall be used to further the
goals of the campus’ approved plan for its initial grant. It is the intent of
the Legislature that bonus grants support each campus’ adoption of open
educational resources for at least double the number of course sections, and
with at least 30 percent cost savings for each of these course sections, as
accomplished by the campus’ approved plan for its initial grant.

(7) ifthe total amount requested in applications for bonus grants exceeds
the total amount of funds available, the California Open Educational
Resources Council shall award grants on a competitive basis to approved
applications for the full amount of the initial grant based on the overall
percentage savings achieved by the initial plan in the courses covered by
the plan.

(8) It is the intent of the Legislature that initial and bonus grants provide
the impetus for campuses to adopt, and continue to use, open educational
resources as course materials.

(d) The California Open Online Library for Education, in consultation
with the Intersegmental Committee of Academic Senates, shall report to

90



Ch. 633 -_6—

the Legislature, in accordance with Section 9795 of the Government Code,
before September 1 each year, commencing in 2018, as to whether the grants
are increasing the rate of adoption of open educational resources and
decreasing textbook costs for college students.

67425. This part shall become inoperative on September 1, 2020, and,
as of January 1, 2021, is repealed, unless a later enacted statute, that becomes
operative on or before January 1, 2021, deletes or extends the dates on which
it becomes inoperative and is repealed.

SEC. 2. Section 69999.6 of the Education Code is amended to read:

69999.6. (a) In enacting this article, it is the intent of the Legislature to
accomplish all of the following:

(1) Provide explicit authority to the board to continue to administer
accounts for, and make awards to, persons who qualified for awards under
the provisions of the Governor’s Scholarship Programs as those provisions
existed on January 1, 2003, prior to the repeal of former Article 20
(commencing with Section 69995).

(2) Provide for the management and disbursement of funds previously
set aside for the scholarship programs authorized by former Article 20
(commencing with Section 69995).

(3) Provide a guarantee should additional funds be needed to cover awards
authorized and made pursuant to former Article 20 (commencing with
Section 69995).

(b) The board may manage and disburse the funds previously set aside
for the scholarship programs authorized by former Article 2( (commencing
with Section 69995). ‘

{c) If a person has earned an award under the Governor’s Scholarship
Programs on or before January 1, 2003, but has not claimed the award on
or before June 30, 2004, he or she still may claim the award by a date that
is five years from the first June 30 that fell after he or she took the qualifying
test. An award shall not be made by the board after that date.

(d) The board shall negotiate with the current manager of the Governor’s
Scholarship Programs and execute an amended or new management and
funding agreement, before January 1, 2013, which shall include, but not be
limited to, all of the following:

(1) Terms providing for the return to the General Fund by no later than
January 1, 2013, of moneys appropriated to the Governor’s Scholarship
Programs that are not anticipated to be needed to make awards pursuant to
paragraphs (1} and (2) of subdivision (a}.

{2) Provisions that authorize the board to pay agreed-upon early
withdrawal penalties or fees.

{3) Terms that extend to the final date upon which the board may
withdraw funds for a person who earned an award under the Governor’s
Scholarship Programs.

(e} (1) If funds retained in the Golden State Scholarshare Trust after
January 1, 2013, are insufficient to cover the remaining withdrawal requests,
it is the intent of the Legislature to appropriate the necessary funds to the

90



—7— Ch. 633

Golden State Scholarshare Trust for the purpose of funding individual
beneficiary accounts.

(2) The board shall notify the Department of Finance and the Legislature
no later than 10 working days afier determining that a shortfall in available
funding described in paragraph (1) will occur.

() (1) (A) Of the funds transferred to the General Fund pursuant to
paragraph (1) of subdivision (d), five million dollars ($5,000,000) is hereby
appropriated to the Chancellor of the California State University, without
regard to fiscal years, to fund the establishment and administration of the
California Open Education Resources Council and the California Digital
Open Source Library, and the development or acquisition of open education
resources, or any combination thereof, pursuant to legislation enacted in
the 2011-12 Regular Session of the Legislature, provided that the chancellor
may provide reimbursement to the California Community Colleges and the
University of California for costs those segments, or their representatives,
incur in association with the activities described in this paragraph.

(B) Effective January 1, 2016, three million dollars ($3,000,000) of the
moneys appropriated pursuant to this paragraph are hereby reappropriated
pursuant to paragraph (4).

{2) Except those moneys allocated pursuant to paragraphs (3) and (4),
moneys, or a portion of moneys, appropriated pursuant to paragraph (1)
shall not be encumbered unless at least 100 percent of that amount
encumbered is matched by private funds and, if not matched by private
funds, shall revert to the Golden State Scholarshare Trust for purposes of
the Governor’s Scholarship Programs.

(3) Ofthe unencumbered amount appropriated pursuant to paragraph (1)
as of June 30, 2015:

(A) Up to two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) may be used for
administration of the California Cpen Online Library for Education. These
funds may be used by the California Open Online Library for Education to
continue developing and updating its services to provide faculty, staff, and
students convenient access to open educational resources as course materials
and to provide administrative support for the California Open Educational
Resources Council. These funds may be used by the California Open Online
Library for Education for purposes of the Open Educational Resources and
Adoption Incentive Program until September 1, 2020.

(B) Up to twenty-seven thousand dollars ($27,000) may be used for
stipends to members of the California Open Education Resources Council
for these members fo carry out their duties in accordance with the Open
Educational Resources Adoption Incentive Program.

(4) Of the funds transferred to the General Fund pursuant to paragraph
(1) of subdivision (d) and appropriated pursuant to paragraph (1), three
million dollars ($3,000,000) is hereby reappropriated to the Chancellor of
the California State University, without regard to fiscal years, for allocation
for the Open Educational Resources Adoption Incentive Program.

%0



Ch. 633 —8—

{g) The board may adopt rules and regulations for the implementation
of this article.

90



EK:A Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP., EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBIECT: Chancellor’s Office Liaison Discussion Month: January | Year: 2016
lamNa: VLA
Attachment: NO
DESIRED OUTCOME: A liaison from the Chancellor’s Office will Urgent: NO
provide the Executive Committee with an " | Time Requested: 45 min.
update of system-wide issues and projects.
CATEGORY: Discussion TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: David Morse/Julie Bruno Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW!: Julie Adams Action
Discussion/Information | X

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:

A Chancellor’s Office representative will bring items of interest regarding Chancellor’s Office
activities to the Executive Committee for information, updates, and discussion. No action will be
taken by the Executive Committee on any of these items.

t Staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






)" A H
= Academic Senate
SN for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Board of Governors/Consultation Council Meetings Month: January | Year: 2016
Ttem No: V. B
Attachment: YES

DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will receive an Urgent: NO

update on the recent Board of Governors and Time Requested: 10 minutes
Consultation Council Meetings.

CATEGORY: Discussion TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: David Morse/Julie Bruno Consent/Routine

First Reading
STAFE REVIEW™: Juhe Adarns Action

Information/Discussion | X

Please note: Stoff will complete the grey areaqs.
BACKGROUND:

President Morse and Vice President Bruno will highlight the recent Board of Governors and
Consultation meetings. Members are requested to review the agendas and summary notes
(website links below) and come prepared to ask questions.

Full agendas and meeting summaries are available online at:

http://extranet.cccco.edu/SystemOperations/BoardofGovernors/Meetings.aspx

http://extranet.cccco.edu/SystemOperations/ConsultationCouncil/AgendasandSummaries.aspx

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






STATE OF CALIFORNIA Brice W. Harris, CHANCELLOR

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGES

CHANCELLORS OFFICE
1102 Q STREET

SAcRAMENTO, CA 95811

{916) 445-8752

http://www.cccco.edu

AGENDA
Consultation Council
Thursday, November 19, 2015
Hyatt Regency San Francisco Airport, Room: Regency A
9:00 a.m. to 1:30 p.m.
1333 Bayshore Highway
Burlingame, CA 94010

The items on this agenda will be discussed at the upcoming Consultation Council Meeting.

1. Associate Degrees for Transfer Update

2. Accreditation

3. DSPS regulation

4. Equal Employment Opportunity Fund Allocation (EEO Fund)
5. Minimum Qualifications

6. Long-Range Master Plan Update

7. Other

Future 2016 Meeting Dates:

January 21, 2016
February 18, 2016
March 17, 2016
April 21, 2016
May 19, 2016
June 16, 2016
July 21, 2016
August — No Meeting
September 15, 2016
October 20, 2016
November 17, 2016 (Riverside)






C,

NOTICE OF MEETING

of the
Board of Governors of the California Community Colleges
Chancellor Search Consultant Committee

Thursday, December 10, 2015
3:00 p.m. — 5:00 p.m. (Pacific Standard Time)

NOTE: The meeting locations listed below are open to the public.

Estolano LeSar Perez Advisors
448 South Hill Street, Suite 618
Los Angeles, CA 90013

And, at the

Aspen Institute
One Dupont Circle, NW, Suite 700
Washington, DC 20036
(Teleconference Location)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Chancellor Search Consultant Committee will hold a
meeting on Thursday, December 10, 2015. The meeting will commence at 3:00 p.m. (Pacific

Standard Time). The agenda is as follows:

1. Overview of Search Consultant RFP Process — Thuy T. Nguyen, Interim General Counsel

(Informational Item)

2. Evaluation of Proposals by Search Consultant Committee (Action Item)

The Search Consultant Committee will discuss, evaluate and score proposals submitted in
response to the RFP for California Community Colleges Chancellor Search Consulting
Services issued on November 17, 2015. Consistent with the RFP, the Search Consultant
Committee will schedule interviews on December 18, 2015 with respondents whose

proposals achieve a passing score of 75 or higher,

3. Public Comment




All Board of Governors meetings are held in locations that are wheelchair accessible. Other
disability-related accommodations such as alternate media materials, sign language interpreters,
or real-time transcription will be provided to persons with disabilities upon request. Persons
requesting such accommodations should contact Christina N. Castro, 1102 Q Street, Sacramento,
CA, 95814-6511, ccastro@cccco.edu, (916) 323-5889, no less than five working days prior to
the meeting. The Chancellor’s Office will make efforts to meet requests made after such date, if
possible.

For further information, call
Christina Castro, Board Liaison
California Community Colleges

(916) 323-5889

This Notice is available online at www.cccco.edu




®

NOTICE OF MEETING

of the
Board of Governors of the California Community Colleges
Chancellor Search Consultant Committee

Friday, December 18, 2015
10:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m.

NOTE: The meeting location listed below is open to the public.

Estolano LeSar Perez Advisors
448 South Hill Street, Suite 618
Los Angeles, CA 90013

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Chancellor Search Consultant Committec will hold a
meeting on Friday, December 18, 2015. The meeting will commence at 10:00 a.m. The agenda

is as follows:

1. Overview of Search Consultant RFP Process — Jacob Knapp, Deputy Counsel
(Informational Item)

2. Interview and Evaluation of Respondents by Search Consultant Committee (Action Item)

The Search Consultant Committee will interview those respondents to the RFP for
California Community Colleges Chancellor Search Consulting Services whose proposals
achieved a passing score during the initial evaiuation on December 10, 2015. The Search
Consultant Committee will evaluate, discuss and score interviews and proposals
submitted in response to the RFP.

The Chancellor’s Office respectfully requests that representatives of competing firms
wait outstde of the interview room during the interviews of other candidates.

3. Ranking of Respondents and Award of Contract (Action Item)

The Search Consultant Committee will discuss, evaluate and rank proposals submitted in
response to the Search Consultant RFP. The Search Consultant Committee will direct the
Chancellor’s Office to post a “Notice of Intent to Award Contract” and direct the Interim
General Counsel to negotiate and finalize a contract with the responsible bidder with the

highest overall score.

4. Public Comment




All Board of Governors meetings are held in locations that are wheelchair accessible. Other
disability-related accommodations such as alternate media materials, sign language interpreters,
or real-time transcription will be provided to persons with disabilities upon request. Persons
requesting such accommodations should contact Christina N. Castro, 1102 Q Street, Sacramento,
CA, 95814-6511, ccastro(@cccco.edu, (916) 323-5889, no less than five working days prior to
the meeting., The Chancellor’s Office will make efforts to meet requests made after such date, if
possible.

For further information, call
Christina Castro, Board Liaison
California Community Colleges

(916) 323-5889

This Notice is available online at www.cccco.edu




A Academic Senate
S====% for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Part Time Faculty Priorities Month: January | Year: 2016
MemNo V- C.
Attachment: Yes
DESIRED QUTCOME: The Executive Committee will discuss Urgent: No - Spring
recommendations from the Part Time Faculty Time Requested: 30 minutes
Task Force regarding part-time faculty
priorities.
CATEGORY: Discussion TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: North/Freitas/Adams Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW?® “Julie Adatns Action
Discussion X

Please note: Sta)ff will complete the grey- areas.

BACKGROUND: In Spring of 2015 the body adopted the following: “Resolved, That the Academic
Senate for California Community Colleges create a taskforce with no less than 50% part-time faculty
membership charged with studying how to increase part-time participation in college governance.” The body
has also sought several other options related to part time faculty matters to include the updating of long past
papers. A task force last year struggled with this assighment for several reasons. This year's taskforce is
similarly struggling with the above revised charge for the following reasons:

From the 1980’s through 2002 the ASCCC, the BOG and even the Legislature were actively engaged
in trying to address PT faculty concerns. The ASCCC’s 2002 paper captured everything and then
some. All of what it captured is still relevant today because no action has occurred to implement its
recommendations. The simple fact is we are able to offer more classes by heavily relying on part
time temporary employees, and, as individuals and institutions we are all complicit in this. These
matters fell to the wayside as they were overshadowed by the extreme conditions arising from the
02-05, and then 07-13 budget crises. As such the state’s stakeholders have voiced concerns here and
there but no coordinated effort has risen among the intensely competing problems of severe cuts.

The collective work of the ASCCC lists over 80 recommendations and positions relating to part time
faculty matters. We do not need more, we need action, and that action needs to be coordinated
with other ASCCC priorities. The ASCCC is poised to be that coordinating agent among our many
stakeholders, if we are willing to commit to the enterprise.

Implementing the charge of forming a committee of part time faculty is very problematic because
they are typically not available for extra-curricular activities. This problem was observed among the
ranks of CTE faculty as well and the ASCCC was able to create a mechanism to more directly support

! staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.



these extra-curricular leadership activities for CTE faculty. A similar model needs to be developed if
we want to effectively engage our part time colleagues. Without this simple tasks like finding a
meeting time are impossible — someone always gets dealt out because “full-load” PT faculty typically
teach seven to eight classes across multiple districts. Even with resources we may have to rethink
how we orchestrate these efforts. While the PT Task Force will be recommending the ASCCC create
a Part Time Faculty standing committee {in May/June,} holding traditional meetings will always be
challenging for this collective and the lucky chair(s) trying to manage it.

Because there is so much work to be done the Executive Committee needs to be more engaged in
providing direction, commitment and priorities for this task force/committee. Based upon our many
papers there are two macro foci: eliminating System reliance on part time faculty through funding
and legislative action, and ameliorating the existing conditions being faced by our colleges due to an
over reliance on part time faculty. It is important to note that this affects every program and service
we provide. It is also important to note that the California Dept. of Education does not exceed 5%
reliance on part time faculty for K12 operations. There are many things to be done in this latter
focus, such as professional development and policy modifications to ensure PT faculty are paid and
treated as colleagues equal to and on a par with any full time facuity.

While much research has been done there are still very many questions that need answering. Thus
one of the ASCCC’s priorities should be to include part time faculty research needs into its research
agenda. By exampie, there are some PT faculty who do not want to become full time, we need to
know more about what those numbers are and where this plays out among divisions and disciplines.
Another perennial argument that needs to be debunked is the notion that reliance on part time
faculty allows colleges to have expansion/contraction flexibility. The ASCCC's 2002 paper shows this
to not be what we actually do, but this needs to be further researched. A third research area is we
contract two distinctly different issues into one when we use the term “part time faculty.” We are
really saying they enly work part time, and they are only ever going to be temporary employees. We
need solid research that shows they are not temporary employees and that shows this is abused
more in some disciplines than others.

On the formerly mentioned state level focus, the ASCCC needs to begin a strategic advocacy effort
by building a consensus group among the State’s stakeholders. Several BOG members have
indicated strong interest in these matters. Prior BOG positions and both prior and current legislators
have indicated things need to be improved. FACCC and bargaining groups consistently strive to
resolve these issues. Yet, it is unrealistic to expect this type, level and scale of work to emanate from
a task force or standing committee who can barely find a time to meet. Ultimately, reform of this
magnitude and scale will require a gargantuan commitment on the part of the ASCCC's time and
resources.



To effectively accomplish some of the goals within both foci will require the ASCCC Executive
Committee and Officer’'s Committee to deliberate and develop priorities, plans and strategies for
moving these agendas forward. The goal of this agenda item is to begin this discussion.






Note: Pgi refers to the 2002 paper, which did a cemprehensiva Job of capturing all prier work and identifying where it came from. EERA is the Educational Employee Relations Act {negotiable
Items) Comrnients - Potential next steps are for the Exacutive Committee to prioritize and commit to, and some are being worked on now within the total seope of ASCCC's activities.

Task/Need/lssue/Recommendation/Position

Permanent classification for part time faculty authorized

BOG limited PT credit use in principle to 2535 [along with a policy statement calling for equal
work/pay)

ASCCC study comprehensive solutions to the problerns and issues developing out of the
current system use of part-time temporary faculty

AB 420 {Wildman) 1998-1299 Equal pay for egual work, led to CPEC study

Hourly wages versus professional salary affects professionalism

Shift in faculty to student productivity 1:20 - 1:37 from 1960-2015

87482.5 60% |law created in 1967, increased to 67% in 201X

3 resolutions legislation to make equal remuneration, ensure equal student learning
experience and include PTF in local senate activities.

AB 1550 {Vasconcellos) 1975-1580 - voicing legislative concern on the excessive use of PTF,
required BOG reports

AB 1725 (Vaseencellos} 1987-1088 Voiced significant eoncern that declslons to use PTF
should be academic not financial. Established FON and 75:25% expectations.

Hiring practices should be equal for PTF and FTF, but sometimes are not,

Review and manitor hiring polices and improve per 1989 paper

Systematic review of local hiring processes to ensure approptiatensss

2002 paper chserved that 1992 paper's observations and recommendations are unchanged
and unresclved,

1995 COFO Statement adopted by ASCCC: Right to participate equally, right to equal pay
and benefits, hetter consideration for full time positions, seniority rights, paid office hours
1996 ASCCC Paper adopted

A full time corps of faculty is essential to educational excellence

Local senates ensure climate of mutual respect between PTF and FTF

The decislon te hire PTF should be academic not financial

FON and 75:25 should be met and the numbers of counselors and librarians should be
appropriate,

Support and Integration of PTF into the college Is essential

Hiring procassas far PTF and FTF should reflect equal rigour and requirernents

Evaluation processes for PTF and FTF should reflect equal rigour and requirements

Office space, technology, professional development and cther resources should be equal for

PTF anf FTF.

ASCCC to seek leglslation to require comparable access for students 1o theit faculty with
comparable instltutlonal support for PTF and FTF,

1998 ASCCC Paper adopted

ASCCC Bylaws facllitate PTF participation at State level

State and Iocal recruitment and mentaring processes should be developed

ASCCC Bylaws modificatlons to Increase potentlal far PTF on Exec

Reassigned time for PTF when elected te serve on ASCCC Exec

Stipend for PTF If slected to serve on ASCCC Exec and already at 60%

1998 ASCCC Paper specifically did not recernmend a dedicated PTF pasition on Exec

AB 3099 {?77) Funding for PTF benefits

Increasing need for health benefits for PTT

Students should have access to PTF comparable to FTF

AB 301 (2??) Funding to cover 5075 of PTF office hourz

ASCCC work with BOG/Consultation te develop mechanisims that give students comparable
access to PTF.

Urge |ocal compensated office hours and include alterntive means for access - phones, DE
technology

BOG and CCCCO working paper "Important historical data, trends, and analysis relevant to
full-time/part-time issues"

Joint Legislative Audit Committee report on over use of PTF

CPEC report - define minimum funttions and expectations of faculty

CPEC report - define comparable salary schedules for PTF

CPEC report - local review of compensation distribirtion between PTF and FTF

CPEC report - local review of banefits provisions

CPEC report - ongoing data and research

CPEC and Auditor's reports presume PTF are not paid to participate in governance and
leadership

ASCCC Concern that PTF are unable to fulfill non-teaching professional ebligations such as
prafesslonal development and gaverance participation. This was tied ta a funding
conversation attempting to ensure districts negotiate definitions of parity and the specific
respansibllites for faculty both in and out of the classreom.

ASCCC Paper on faculty hiring - orientation and mentoring should be eomparable for PTF
and FTF

ASCCC Paper on academic freedom recognizes that academic freedom is not the same for
PTF and FTF.

Provisions for sepiority rights should not usurp provisions to Increase diversity,

2002 ASCCC Paper multipte calls for additional and ongpong research, particularly in the
area of diversity, equity, parity, hiring practices, and contractual requirements.

AR 1245 {Alquist} 2001-2002 PTF re-hire rights (requires the issue to be EERA}

Lack of commitment to PTF for the sake of enrollment flexibility

Ed Codes changes could reduce reliance on PTF

AAUP 1973 Report - extend tenure priviladges to PTF

ASCCC Should also work to ensure all faculty have academic freedom, potentlally through
tenure

Adopted 2002 Paper

Year Paper Pg# Res 10+1 EERA Issue

1987
1977

1989
1999
2002
1967
1974

1940

1988

1989
1989
2002

2002

1996

1996
1996
1956
1996

1996

1996
1996
1996

1996

1996

1998
1598
1598
1958
1958
1958
1998
1996
2002
2002
1597

2002

2002

1999

2000
2001
2001
2004
2001
2001

2002

2002

2000

1998
2002
2002

2002
2002
2002
1873

2002
2002

x

o X oM o® oM ox X - Hom M

=

1
1

[N N R

B

[ TR N Y [t

10
10
i
10
10

1
11
11

11

11

12
12
i2
12
12
12
12
14
14
5
16

17

17

17

19
19
13
19
19

19

26

26

27
28
29

32
33
34
35

36

x

® X X X

x om oW w

X X X X

Oviiclal asccc
Position  Action

X

K
%
%
®

x

X

X

x

W

»

K

.

"

]
X
"
X
.
*

X

X
X
X
X
x
X
X

Aol

X

X

Comments - Potential Next Steps

19.02 599
Potential language

19,065



In¢tease number of tenured FTF

ASCCC afflrms COFO statement

ASCCC Reaffirm 1989 paper

ASCCC Undertake PTF and FTF hiring practices review - as defined therein

ASCLC develop medels for mentoring and evaluation of PTF

ASCCC wwork with BOG to ensure effective contact between PTF and students
ASCCC reaffirm ABL725 hire PTF for academic needs not fiscat

ASCEC work with BOG and legislature to ensure professionalism and employment security
ASCCC seek long term solutions to tenure and academic freadom

Local senates to work with stakeholders to achieve pay equity

Local senates to work with stakeholders to achieve office hours

Local senates to work with stakeholders to seek alternative office hour options
Resolve to make excessive PTF grounds for accreditation sanction

Qppose use of PTF for fiscal reasons

1980-2015 Numerous resolutions to increase FTF to PTF ratio

1880- several resolutions seeking the replacement of FTF by FTF when they retire or depart,
versus shifting the FTEF to PTF.

Make the 75:25 ratio apply to colleges versus districts

Urge STRS benefits for PTF

ASCCC Develop a program to rectify lack of squity for PTF

ASCCC create a PTF Standing commitiee

Clarify 60% limitation as It appliss ta pay far noh-teaching duties

ASCCC study possibility of eliminating the allowance of PTF

ASCCC Provide Rostrums to PTF

ASOCC research credit units per disicpline taught by FTF and PTF

ASCCC develop unified postions among stakeholders an PTF issues

ASCCC develop means to assure all facully have access to COR and other materials
ASCCC te madify T5 to require office space for PTF and in¢lude in accreditation standards
Update ASCCC 2002 Paper

Create Part Time Faculty Task Force

Support FT hiring of PT and PT offlce hours - endorse AB 626

Promote Prof. Dev, For PT faculty

Coneerns with SB 373 - hiring ratios and overload

2002
2002
2002
2002
2002
2002
2002
2002
2002
2002
2002
2002
1976
1976
1980~

1980-

1994
1997
1998
1998
1999
1999
1999
1959
2001
2001
2001
2013
2015
2015
2014
2015

KoMK om oMM MW X XK XX

oMK MK MK KX MM s X KX

XX X = oM oMM Om oM MM o= M XMo@

KX KM K X MK M ON M o oX X K

= oM X oW om X X X X

L]

XX X X X

XX o® X X oM omoX ¥ M ox X X X M

»

»

WX om m

=

oM OH MM MMM MWK E K oE M om

X

19.08F
LOZF

109 F

17018
19.01%
1.01F

19.08F
19.015
9.02F

19.01F
19.07 5
01.04§
06.04§
1202F
065065



B

—— Academic Senate
(@S ., California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE. Executive Committee Agenda Item
SUBJECT: Academic Senate Audit Month: January | Year: 2016
[ item No. V. D,

Attachment: YES

DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will discuss the 2015 | Urgent: NO
Fiscal Year audit. Time Requested: 10 minutes
CATEGORY: Discussion TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Julie Adams Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW": Julie Adams ' Action
Discussion/Information | X

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

Each year the Academic Senate undergoes an audit of its finances. This year is no different. The purpose of
the audit as noted in their engagement letter is “to express an opinion about whether the consolidated
financial statements prepared by management with your [the board’s] oversight are fairly presented, in all
material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.” In September, the
auditors conducted an audit of the Senate financials. The follow excerpt is a snapshot of their report:

“Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by The Academic Senate for California Community Colleges are
described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted
and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2014. We noted no transactions entered
into by the Organization during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
All significant transactions that have been recognized in the consolidated financial statements are in

proper period.”

The Executive Committee will review and discuss the audit so that Executive Committee members are
familiar with the audit and the Senate’s finances.

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






] Jehn Waddell LFAs

December 13, 2015

To the Executive Committee
The Academic Senate for California Community Colleges

Sacramento, California

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Academic Senate for
California Community Colleges for the year ended June 30, 2015, and have issued our
report thereon dated December 13, 2015. Professional standards require that we
provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Qur Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated June 15, 2015, our responsibility, as described
by professional standards, is tc express an opinion about whether the consolidated
financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in
all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Our audit of the consolidated financial statements does not relieve you or management of

your responsibilities.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope previously communicated to
management. The audit field work, which was scheduled to start August 14, 2015, was
postponed three days at management's request. Unfortunately, we were unable to
reschedule those three days until December 2015.

Significant Audit & Accounting Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.
The significant accounting policies used by The Academic Senate for California
Community Colleges are described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. No
new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed during 2015, except fort the fixed asset capitalization threshold, which was
increased to $5,000. We noted no transactions entered into by the Organization during
the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions that have been recognized in the consolidated financial statements are in

the proper period.

3416 American River Dr.
Suite A

Sacramente. CA, 95564
916/488/2460

Fan/ 488/ 2466

& Fratasiondal Corpasddoly



To the Executive Committee
The Academic Senate for California Community Colleges
December 13, 2015

Page 2

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates
are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from
those expected. We noted no particularly sensitive estimates affecting the consolidated
financial statements during our audit.

The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements were drafted by us with
management's oversight.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate
level of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements, which were

as follows:

Correct opening net assets $ 2,016
Record accrued payroll (16,991)
$ (14,975)

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting,
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report
that no disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated December 13, 2015.




To the Executive Committee
The Academic Senate for California Community Colleges
December 13, 2015

Page 3 Jahn Wadtlﬂli EPAs

A Professivasl Coo wma:

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

To our knowledge, there were no consultations about accounting and auditing matters
with other independent accountants during the course of the audit.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting
principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the
Organization’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our
professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of Executive Committee and management

of The Academic Senate for California Community Colleges and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

%Aﬁuﬁz)am v« G, Crte/



--_—



] John Waddell EFAS

December 13, 2015

¥ Pralenniooal Ferpiiraias

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Executive Committee
The Academic Senate for California Community Colleges
Sacramento, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Academic
Senate for California Community Colleges (a nonprofit organization) and affiliate, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2015, and the
related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

3416 Ameritan River Dr,

Suite A

Sacramento, CA 95864

916/488/2460 10f 9
Fax/488/2456



To the Executive Committee

The Academic Senate for California Community Colleges

December 13, 2015 ]
J

Page 2

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of The Academic Senate for California
Community Colleges and affiliate as of June 30, 2015, and the changes in their net
assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter

We have previously audited The Academic Senate for California Community Colleges
2014 consolidated financial statements, and in our report dated October 15, 2014,
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014 is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements

from which it has been derived.
%‘(‘/dm v 5 C/Aﬂ/

20f9

uhn WﬂdﬂEH EFAs



THE ACADEMIC SENATE FOR CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2015
(with comparative totals for 2014)

ASSETS
2015 2014
Cash and cash equivalents $ 394,060 $ 635,934
Accounts receivable 699,584 500,291
Prepaid expenses 46,304 42,201
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
of $6,328 and $5,131in 2015 and 2014 1,498 2,695
$ 1,141,446 $ 1,181,121
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 393,882 $ 194,610
Accrued expenses 51,209 46,209
Deferred revenue 201,213 197,064
Deferred lease incentives 13,895 4277
Total Liabilities 660,199 442,160
Net Assets
Temporarily restricted 4,700 4,700
Designated for reserves 300,000 300,000
Unrestricted and undesignated 176,547 434,261
Total Net Assets 481,247 738,961

$ 1,141,446 $

1,181,121

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

3of9



THE ACADEMIC SENATE FOR CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGES

Consolidated Statement of Activity
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
{with comparative totals for 2014)

Temporarily 2015 2014
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Revenue
College dues $ 318755 § - § 38755 $ 289,565
College event fees 643,612 . 643,612 489,079
State of California Academic Senate grant 468,000 - 468,000 468,000
Chancellor's Office SB70-SCP 263,100 - 263,100 669,357
Chancellor's Office Course 1D 192,308 . 192,308 211,538
Federal grants 200,000 - 200,000 46,875
Private foundation and other grants 282,976 - 282,976 46,260
Investment income 332 - 332 396
Other income 11,773 . 11,773 6,181
Total Revenue 2,380,856 - 2,380,856 2,227,251
Expenses
Program Services
Academic Senate 748,938 . 748,938 515,012
Common Course ID 320,382 - 320,382 272,560
SB70 career pathways 290,427 290,427 672,039
Perkins IV Title 1, Part B leadership 328,947 - 328,947 -
Online education, common assessment &
education planning initiatives 165,369 - 165,369 -
Other programs 20,738 - 20,738 2,468
Total Program Services 1,874,801 - 1,874,801 1,462,079
Supporting Services
Management and administration 747,066 - 747,066 563,632
Fundraising 16,703 - 16,703 450
Total Supporting Services 763,769 - 763,769 564,082
Total Expenses 2,638,570 - 2,638,570 2,026,161
Change in Net Assets (257,714) - (257,714) 201,090
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 734,261 4,700 738,961 537,871
Net Assets, End of Year $ 476547 § 4700 § 481,247 § 738,961

See accompanying notes io consolidated financial statements.

40f9




THE ACADEMIC SENATE FOR CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
(with comparative totals for 2014)

2015 2014
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ (257,714) § 201,090
Moncash ltems included in change of net assets:
Depreciation 1,197 1,534
Loss on disposal of assets - 368
Change in certain operating assets and iiabilities:
Accounts receivable (199,293) 65,452
Prepaid expenses {4,103) (21,629)
Accounts payable 199,272 37,165
Accrued expenses 5,000 18,070
Deferred revenue 4,149 43,394
Deferred lease incentive 9,618 (10,265)
Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities (241,874) 335,179
Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash {241,874) 335,179
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 635,934 300,755
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 394,060 $ 635,934

See accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements.

50f9




THE ACADEMIC SENATE FOR CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The Academic Senate for California Community Colleges (the Academic Senate) is a
California non-profit corporation established October 2, 1970 whose purpose is to promote
the best interests of higher education in the State of California and to represent the faculty in
all California community colleges at the State level.

The general purpose and powers are:
a. To strengthen local academic senates and councils of community colieges;

b. To serve as the voice of the faculty of the community colleges in matters of statewide
concern;

¢. To develop policies and promote the implementation of policies on matters of
statewide issues; and

d. To make recommendations on statewide matters affecting the community colleges.

On August 11, 2008, the Academic Senate formed The Foundation of The Academic Senate
for California Community Colleges (The Foundation), a California charitable corporation
whose purposes are:

a. To benefit, support and enhance the excellence of California community colleges;

b. To support, design and implement professional development for California
cammunity college faculty;

c. To research, develop and communicate effective practices to promote effective
teaching and learning in the California community colleges; and

d. To promote a variety of activities and strategies to advance teaching and learning.

All significant inter-company transactions have been eliminated in these consolidated
financial statements.

Estimates
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing consolidated financial
statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and
expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

60of9



THE ACADEMIC SENATE FOR CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

Prior Period Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient
detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with The Academic Senate for Califomia Community Colleges’ consolidated
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits in checking and money market
accounts. Cash in excess of FDIC limits was approximately $89,000 as of June 30, 2015.

Accounts Receivable

Accountis receivable, which consist primarily of grants receivable, are stated at the amount
management expects to collect from outstanding balances. Management believes all of the
receivables are collectible; accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been
established. Receivables are determined to be past due based on contractual terms. After
all attempts to collect receivables have been exhausted, receivables are written-off on a
case by case basis.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment purchased in excess of $5,000 are stated at cost. Depreciation is
provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assefs,
generally five years.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.
Contributions that are temporarily restricted are then reclassified to unrestricted net assets
upon satisfaction of the restrictions. Contributions whose restrictions are met within the
reporting pericd are recorded as unrestricted.

Income Taxes

The Academic Senate is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c}(6) of the Internal
Revenue Code and Section 23701(e) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. The
Foundation is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) and Section 23701(d).
The federal and state tax returns are generally subject to examination for three and four
years, respectively, from the date they are filed.

7cf9




THE ACADEMIC SENATE FOR CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGES

NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Statement of Activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and activities benefited.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date the financial siatements
were available to be issued, which was December 13, 2015.

CONCENTRATIONS & CONTINGENCIES

A significant portion of the grant revenue is from the State of California, most of which is
passed through various community college districts. Similarly, approximately 90% of the
accounts receivable are due from the State of California, either directly or through
community college districts. Claims for reimbursement are subject to audit and possible
disallowance by awarding agencies.

LEASE OBLIGATION

The Academic Senate leased office space effective November 2014 and expiring February
2020. The lease provided for a free rent period for a portion of the space. Accordingly, rent
expense has been recorded on a straight-line basis, and the difference between rent
expense and rent paid is recorded as deferred lease incentive. Future minimum lease
payments under this lease are as follows:

2016 $ 61,340
2017 62,688
2018 64,041
2019 65,392
2020 44,120

$ 297,581

Rent expense totaled $80,487 for the year ended June 30, 2015.

8of9



THE ACADEMIC SENATE FOR CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY COLLEGES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 4 RESTRICTIONS ON ASSETS

NOTE 5

Temporarily restricted net assets are restricted for the Freedom Fighter Award.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

Qualified employees are eligible to participate in the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS). CalPERS is a cost sharing multiple employer defined
benefit pension plan that provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to Plan members
and beneficiaries. The risks of participating in a multiple employer plan are different from
single employer plans. Specifically, Academic Senate may be liable, on termination or
withdrawal from the plan, for allocated shares of the plan’s unfunded vested benefits. The
Academic Senate currently has no intention to terminate or withdraw from the plan.

Active employees are required to contribute 7% of their annual covered salary. Academic
Senate contributes an amount that is actuarially determined by CalPERS. The required
employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2015 was 10.523%. Total
contributions by Academic Senate amounted to $51,668 for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Because Academic Senate has less than 100 employess, it is required to participate in a
Risk Pool within CalPERS. The Academic Senate's contributions represented less than 5%
of total Risk Pool contributions per the Risk Pool's most recent actuarial report, which was
as of June 30, 2012. As of June 30, 2012, total Risk Pool assets were $701,224,211, the
Pool's accrued liability was $736,231,913, and the Pool was 70.7% funded. The projected
required contribution rate for the year ending June 30, 2016 is 11.2%.

9of9







Y .
cademic Senate
E&. for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE. Executive Committee Agenda Item
SUBJECT: 2015 - 16 Budget Performance Maonth: January | Year: 2016
ltem No: V. E,
Attachment: YES
DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will discuss the Urgent: NO

budget performance for the first half of the

Time Requested: 10 minutes

fiscal year.
CATEGORY: Discussion TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Julie Adams Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW!: Julie Adams Action

| Information/Discussion | X

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

In August, the Executive Committee approved the 2015 - 16 budget. The Executive Committee will
review the budget performance.

! staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.







W D SRR e TR U T T LTI L st U T BT LS STRSE L TRETE ki

ey (00688'28) ~ Teons9ss Bupug - S1988Y 1oN

1501 LYy 000 LSE0L 1 BuuiBag - sesey 18y + sead weslag -,
BB'545'202 (00'658'28) 9gr9e2'ss1 1985y JoN U) obueyn
(06"} 19%8E") 00'1S6'E0H'2 _ 00682807 _ saJnypuedxs lo)
{19°612'962) 00'S61'862'1 6E'S28'005 sesuadig SABASIUAPY PUB [eIBUSE)
M_m i vaa 00'082'9.8 696581 884 _Mcaﬂee.u
84°169'5) 000002 qeere'ic nazg ; L
(zzc1621) 00000°91 8LYR0'E saxe] Hd Bulcoci uig .28
(oF 26€'4E) 00'e9l'29 0g'4C8'¢E SHjeusg Hqd
(86'222'202) 00’ LOE'8EY g0'8/5'0EE sefepm pue Aejeg ; .
o o e sempued se duysiaquisy; -~ - gruaney Wrig
TlhyssoEm) ___ O0eso'sse’s | esegowill e anusaay Buiiessdg eio)
(08pst'2) 00007 02 05'SkEZL 8y - enueasy ) i
(r6'08%"Y) 00'21E'828 80'968°E2e $688J Jaquiow BLaeaQ -
(00'5509'8:.5) 00628258 00'022'EE snusaals weuboly
{00apy’150) 00027 pSL'L 00'S20'E08 SNUIASY (RIS
enueAsy Gupeisdg
JQ 1efipng 1ebpng lenoy
9102/0£/90 Si0gnert e
Guipus Jeo) ybneayr sLoz/L0/0 :
2631 SHT0ZRL 2521 51050221
190png sA [emoy - SslAOY Jo uswBlRlS & T O anusAsy Jes ) [e0SI4 Jolud
(26°629'2LE) B85 A65'00L"L LYELE LTS 19958 16U CUe Sejliqer) [eieL
Sg9egveL  _  Igeofiek  Je0elGes . BIOSSY 19N
weroteizs) T 777 poweb'ase A T Teereels RS 0L
(BLO1E'228) ~  pover'sse 0L ZEL SORIEIT WIS-LOUS (elo)
(0050904} 0zEIZ 08 0Z'869°9€ BNUOASY PLIBIIA
(05 °€80'02) E0T9L'96 V6L SR DOUIOY
{eg'129'zve) SHLIS9E 46'568'8L oh_ﬂ,__ﬂm aw__csﬁﬂ%! ) SUEUE BUB SHLEES
Sa(Iaer]
#|oSYE 16U DUE SORNGETT
(26 E2azLe) 8526500L'L I9CI6LTL s1985Y 810, '
B R T S T SI958Y WIBl-LL [BI0) wduaIeduCy)
000 - AT el 6yt wawdinb3 ¥ Auado:d .
1985y wuei-Buon e )
leorroze)  owoov'seos  sewyeer 1858y 1UBHNY [€10) umstos
(6E'524°05) BUgvE0g 64'221°08 SIBBSY 1UBLNY JBLI() '|I0),
(68°522°02) gL'ave'oR BLZEL'0S BIRESY JUBLNG JBLHO r
SIB56Y WUSIND OO
(92'961'662) o8 205089 9T LLO'LBE 12N "9[qBARIRY SUN0DIY [BI10] £4_Noax3
(92 '96v'662) 2805039 95 LLO'E8E HaEAEDeY STUNODDY Vo3RI
18N "B1QEAIB0SY SIUNCOTY _
(2 eov'ey) Otrvrl lEE 6L 2pE'S62 SUS{BAINGT YsSeD) PUB used
51988y JWoNND)
se95y
ausiamg mei Joud sauB|EY IBBA wauny
BLOZA0E/90 SLOZ/0R90 9102/0€/90
Buipug ieo, Bupuz Jees Buipug reep
LT Swdeneer 2026 SICZOER )
W UCHISOd [eIDUBUIL JO JUBWaIRIG . - AioBere) Aq asuadxg Bugelad -

9T - STOZ — dUeW.L0Id 193png






Item VL A. 1.

A
(==

LEADERSH!P, EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Academic Senate
for California Community Colleges

Faculty Development Committee
Saturday September 26%, 2015
9:30 AM - 2:00 PM
West Los Angeles College

Members Present: J. Adams, A. Foster, K. Oborn, C. Rutan, K, Schaefers

1. Order of the Agenda: Agenda was approved as presented.
2. Minutes from the August 16, 2015 meeting were approved as presented.
3. Clarification of the Charge of the Committee:

The committee discussed the new committee charge. The newly approved charge of the
committee is:

The Faculty Development Committee creates resources to assist local academic senates to
develop and implement policies that ensure faculty primacy in faculty professional development.
The committee assess the Academic Senate s professional development offerings and makes
recommendations to the Executive Committee on policies and practices for faculty professional
development at a statewide level and on the development of new faculty professional
development resources to ensure effectiveness and broader access and participation. Through
the Professional Development College, the committee supports local faculty development and
provides guidance to enhance facully participation in the areas of faculty development policies,
community college faculty professionalism, innovations in teaching and learning, and other
topics related to academic and professional matters. The committee advocates for the
importance of faculty development activities related to-student success, quality faculty teaching
and learning, academic and professional matters, and for appropriate levels of funding for such
activities.

The new charge emphasizes that the committee is focused on statewide issues related to faculty
professional development. The committee will focus on identifying issues that affect all colleges,
creating a professional development plan for the ASCCC, evaluating the professional
development offerings of the ASCCC, and suggesting additional professional development
options for ASCCC and the Professional Development College (PDC)

4. ASCCC Professional Development Plan

The Executive Committee has tasked the FDC with developing a professional development plan
for the Academic Senate. The plan needs to be tied to the ASCCC’s Strategic Plan that was
adopted at the Spring 2015 Plenary Session. Areas proposed for the plan include strategies to
recruit diverse faculty locally and for statewide service, evaluation of current ASCCC
professional development offerings, explore new options for ASCCC professional development
beyond regional meetings, institutes, and plenary sessions, developing new modules for the PDC,

1



Item VL. A. i
exploration of partnerships with other groups like the Institutional Effectiveness Partnership

Initiative (IEPI), and propose strategies to position the ASCCC as the leader for community
college faculty professional development. C. Rutan will compile the ideas shared at the meeting
into a preliminary draft for the committee to work on at the next meeting.

5. Strategies to Assess Effectiveness of ASCCC Professional Development Events

The ASCCC sends out surveys following each professional development event to all attendees. J.
Adams reported that very few surveys are completed and the majority of the responses focus on
things that the senate does not control like the quality of the food or the temperature in breakout
rooms. In order to make the surveys more effective, the committee discussed having outcomes
for each session that would be listed in the online program. A possible template for breakout
descriptions was suggested. The template would include 1) issue/context (resolutions, legislative
update, CCCCO priorities, etc.) 2) content of session, and 3) expected outcome/take-away from
the session. That would help orient attendees as well as ensure that presenters are equally
mindful of outcomes for attendees. There was also discussion about including overall outcomes
for events to help market them. This would be particularly helpful when creating new events like
the Instructional Design and Innovation (ID]) Institute. C. Rutan will bring this idea to the
November Executive Committee meeting and if it is approved, the IDI will be the first ASCCC
event to include outcomes.

6. Discuss Possible Future Topics for the Professional Development College (PDC)

C. Rutan and J. Adams presented the plan for the PDC to include modules that interested faculty
would be able to access at any time. The first module will be the recently completed Curriculum
Basics 101 that is being prepared by the vendor for final posting. The committee discussed
several possible modules that could be developed. The suggested modules were:

Rights and Responsibilities of Academic Senates

Laws and Regulations Governing Public Groups: Brown Act and Robert’s Rules of Order
Minimum Qualification and Equivalencies

Inmate Education

Being an Academic Leader

Improving Collaboration and Inclusivity through Better Communication

Hiring of Diverse Faculty

Community College Budgets

Pertinent and Relevant Sections of Title 5 and Education Code

The History, Mission, and Goals of the ASCCC

A partial list of these possible topics will be brought forward to the November Executive
Committee meeting for discussion. Additional modules will continue to be discussed by the
committee and a list of possible modules will be included in the draft professional development

plan.

7. Discussion of Fall Plenary Breakout

The FDC has one breakout at Fall Plenary. The breakout will include a discussion with the
audience about the effectiveness of ASCCC at meeting their PD needs. The breakout will also
include a discussion of new ways of offering professional development other than an in person
presentation. These methods will include the medules of the PDC, webinars, podcasts, and
recording ASCCC presentations and posting them to the web. K. Oborn and K. Schaefers will
both join C. Rutan and J. Adams at the presentation. In addition to the presentation, members of

2



Item VI, A. i.
the FDC will be asked about to provide feedback on the sessions that they attend at the FDC

meeting following the plenary session,
8. Scheduling Future Meetings

The next FDC meeting will be on October 29, 2015 from 10 AM until 12 PM via Zoom. C.
Rutan will send out an agenda and login information for the meeting.

The meeting adjourned at 1:40 PM

Respectfully Submitted,

Craig Rutan

Approved December 3, 2015.






A’ Academic Senate

LEADERSHIP,

Item VI. A. ii.
G —__t for California Community Colleges
EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.
Executive Committee Agenda Item
SUBJECT: TASSC Minutes 12-11-2015 Month: January | Year: 2016
ltemNo:VIA ©. u

Attachment: NO

DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will be informed of Urgent;
the work of the TASSC. Time Requested: N/A
CATEGORY: Reports/Information TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: May Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW: Julie Adams [ Action
IS © - -~ | Information X
Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:
w Academic Senate

==

LEADERSHIP.

for California Community Colleges

EMPOWERMENT.

VOICE.

Transfer, Articulation, and Student Services Committee (TASSC)

December 11, 2015 — 10:00-3:00
Long Beach City College

MINUTES

Members Present: Ginni May (Chair), Dolores Davison (2°%), Michael Wyly, Trevor Rodriguez, April
Pavlik (phone), Shuntay Taylor (phone), Vicki Maheu

Guests: Cleavon Smith, EDAC Chair (phone)

1. Call to Order — 10:17am

2. Select note taker -- Dolores

3. Approval of the Agenda -- Approved

4. Approval of the Minutes from October 14, 2015 — done by email

5. Survey on Services for Disenfranchised Students
* Review Rostrum Article, Survey (see attachments): approved by Exec at our
November meeting; next Rostrum due date is January 18, article will be published

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.

1



Item VI. A. ii.

in February, we can then send out our survey. Ginni will work with Juliec Adams
and the office to send the survey out.
o Will include link to article in survey email so that people have the
information to refer to while taking the survey
o Include students on survey?
o How long should people have to respond to survey? Getting the survey to
the disenfranchised students is challenging
o Goal is to summarize data from survey, share it with Exec along with
recommendations with goal of setting up plan for next year’s committee,
and then presenting it to CCCCO and BoG, among others. No deadline in
resolution, so we can get information to them by the end of the year; work
in progress.
» Brief results at March Exec with a plan for going forward
=  Robust results and recommendations at April Exec
» Continue work through May and then hand off results and plan to
next year's TASSC

6. Instructional Design and Innovation Institute (IDI) 2016 —update
¢ Program is largely set, TASSC is not presenting

7. Academic Academy 2016 — EDAC and TASSC
¢ Call for proposals Submission Form
o AA Dates need to be corrected on the proposal Submission Form
o Extend Deadline for submitting proposals
e Discuss Submitted Proposals

o There are about 13 proposals at this time

© Consider asking Veronica Neal and Mayra Cruz to present at General
Session and follow up in a breakout

o Supplement current proposals with suggestions: see below

e Theme: Living a Culture of Equity, Student Success, and Empowerment:
Implementing and Embedding Equity Across the College
e Create Program Draft Academic Academy 2015

o Chairs and seconds will work with Julie for the program and will place
presenters/facilitators in place;

o who is aftending from committees and what can they commit to

=  For TASSC: Trevor, Vicki, April, Shuntay, Michael will be there
all day Friday/Saturday; Cleavon will check with his committee to
confirm

o Ginni and Cleavon will craft opening letter/statement

¢ Ideas from last meeting and more from today:

o Veronica Neal (and Mayra Cruz?) would make an excellent keynote
presenter — make the De Anza presentation a general session (Lead the
Choir: Senate and Equity)

o Building the bridge between student services/counseling and instruction;
integration of counseling faculty into senate discussions; removing the
sense of isolation from counseling

o Sac City — Creating the Village: Bringing Services Together and Making
Equity Part of the College Culture

2



o

o
o]

Item VI. A. ii.

Really Subverting Silos
Start dialogue about equity and the disenfranchised students; what do they
have (or not have) that we have to connect them to?
Rooms with an exec member inviting faculty to talk about how to fill out
these ideas; now that you’ve been to the IDI and the CCCCO conferences,
what are other ideas? Bring your team together with a facilitator from
exec/committee members to help work this in shared governance bodies
and discuss topics; working breakout to develop plan to do or continue to
do to live equity in their colleges
* Modeling good teaching by giving them an opportunity to work
things through and to create a relationship with ASCCC and the
local senates
e Set up these rooms themed/geography/assigned groups?
Teams of people
Provide faculty with ideas that can make changes that are small but useful;
OER, Starfish, etc, EPI, OEI can come into play and be part of the equity
agenda
= Theme of academic senate integral to this work; how do we
implement these ideas and take advantage of these tools
e Organization module; time management
* Presenting something on what OEI has to offer in helping
faculty achieve their equity goals
Recognition that the academy must offer ideas of some actions that
participants can take back with them
= Change is not one thing; grow and modify; it’s continuous
Subsequent conversations on equity and student success should continue
to focus on kow to integrate successful strategies into our college
communities.
Bring students to the AA; transferred to local colleges (make sure that we
have various profiles)
*  Work with students (SSCCC}); reaching out and including students
in the discussions
e Equity and foster youth/formerly incarcerated students
How to achieve equity should/could continue to be a focus, including
measuring for equity as well as developing programs/tools which reach all
students, not only isolated, program-specific cohorts.
How do we correlate disaggregated equity data with SLO assessment
results? Successful strategies on this front could be an appropriate
discussion through the combined lens of equity and student success. (reach
out to RP, Andrew LaManque, James Todd?)
Focus on a different audience (counselors) than the CCCCO’s Academic
Academy
Curricular focus
Sierra College and Starfish

e Next Steps — Cleavon and Ginni will submit theme ideas to Exec

8. TASSC Meetings



Item VI A. ii.

e Set up future meetings -
o Dolores, Ginni, Cleavon, and Cheryl will schedule meeting in January
© Wednesday, 27 January, 2-3:30pm (CCC Confer)
o Monday, 22 February, 12-1:30pm (CCC Confer)
o Monday, 7 March, 12-1:30pm (CCC Confer)
o Monday, 11 April, 12-1:30pm (CCC Confer)
e Future Agenda Items
o Academic Academy
o Disenfranchised Students (Survey and Rostrum)
o Starfish
= Possible breakout at AA (Sierra College/Tech Center); see what is
offered at IDI and possibly use that as well
= Present at AA on disenfranchised students
o Possible new resolutions from January Exec meeting

9. Events
CTE Curriculum Academy — January 14-15, Napa Valley Marriott
Instructional Design and Innovation — January 21-23, Riverside Convention Center
Accreditation Institute — February 19-20, Marriott Mission Valley San Diego
Academic Academy — March 18-19, Sheraton Sacramento
Spring Plenary Session — April 21-23, Sacramento Convention Center
CTE Institute — May 6-7, Double Tree, Anaheim



Iterm W1 AL 1

I
@

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE,

Academic Senate
for California Community Colleges

CURRICULUM COMMITTEE
Wednesday, November 11, 9:00 AM
CCC Confer
888-886-3951, www.cccconfer.org
Passcode: 133648
(Meet & Confer Access Available, Closed Captioned)

MINUTES

Members Present: John Freitas, Ginni May, Ryan-Carey; Tiffany Tran,-Vivian Varela, Michael Heuman, Lori
Bennett, Gereld-Siretnak, Sofia Ramirez Gelpi, Diana Hurlbut

Guests: Cheryl Aschenbach, Erik Shearer, Dolores Davison, Julie Bruno, Kim Schenk

Minutes by Ginni May

I Call to Order and Adoption of the Agenda — John called the meeting to order at 9:06 in his Tom
Brokaw voice.

. Approval of the October 21, 2015 Minutes

11, Regional meetings planning

a.

Deadline for finishing breakout presentations — TODAY, November 11: send to John, John listed
the breakouts that have come in and indicated those that needed to be submitted still.

Final review of program — John reviewed the program, the program online is slightly different
than the one John printed up, so John will follow up.

Logistics and sign-in — all presenters arrive between 8:30 and 9:00 to help set up, Edie Martinelli
will be sending materials to colleges: name tags, sign in sheets, etc. There will be no ASCCC staff
at the meetings; the committee is setting up. Dolores will bring some materials from last year in
case materials do not make it to the colleges. It was suggested that some arrive earlier than
8:30. John will send the set up list to the committee members.

John has room assignments.

Solano requires a parking permit so print it ahead of time — Student Parking Lot 2

Mt. SAC does not require a parking permit — Parking Lot G

Sign-ins: John will print several copies and those of us who are not part of the morning sessions
will subdivide and sign folks in.

Internet Access: has been requested, and John will do some checking for access codes, etc.
Dolores is doing the alphabet signs.

Curriculum Regionals Reminders:

If you are bringing a MAC, bring your adaptors in order to be able to plug them into the projection
system.

Individual breakout groups can talk between now and Friday regarding their presentations.

I, Effective Curriculum Processes —Paper {(Resolution 9.01 $15}

a.

Final outline — Exec comments, John revised the outline a bit to reflect the comments from Exec
Committee.




ltem VI A. i1 1

External Forces instead of Accreditation, so John merged stuff together at the beginning with

work force?

Curriculum Committee area: added stuff about including counselors, librarians, etc.

There is a slight rearganization.

b. Paper section assignments
Section Assigned to...
I, 1A, I1.B Ginni, John
I.C.1, Il.C.2 Michael
I.C.3,1.C.4 Sofia and Diana
I.C.5 Ginni
I.D Michael and Vivian
Il.E Tiffany
lil. John and Ginni
v, All
V. John and others as appropriate
Editing Michael, Tiffany, Ginni

c. Timeline for bringing to spring plenary — need sections to have drafts written before December
holidays by December 16 meeting, first draft to John and Ginni by January 4, to get feedback
from Exec at the January Exec meeting, first reading by Exec February 5, second reading by Exec
March 4

V. Meeting calendar for spring — we will continue on Wednesdays at 2:00. John will send a doodle poll
for us to respond with dates that we cannot attend.

Vi Other items on the radar
a. CTE Curriculum Academy
b. Instructional Design and Innovation Institute
c. Regional coordination survey results — survey ends November 1
d. Curriculum Institute planning

Wil Announcements
a. Next meetings — Wednesday, December 2 and Wednesday, December 16, 2 PM; Monday,
January 11, 2016, 10-3 at Moorpark College

b. CTE Curriculum Academy, January 14-15, Napa Valley Marriott
¢. Instructional Design and Innovation Institute, January 21-23, Riverside Convention Center
d. Accreditation Institute, February 19-20, Marriott Mission Valley, San Diego
e. Academic Academy, March 17-19, Sacramento Grand Sheraton
Wil Adjournment —9:51 am

Status of Previous Action ltems:

a. Meeting calendar — in progress. The committee approved the calendar through January 11,
2016. The spring calendar still needs to be determined.

b. Regional coordination survey —in progress. The survey was distributed to the field on October
8. The deadline for responding is November 1.

c. Effective curriculum processes position paper —in progress, The white paper will be
incorporated into the position paper. The paper outline needs to be approved by the Executive
Committee at its 11/4 meeting, with draft paper going to Exec for a first reading in February and
action in March for approval by the body in April.

d. COR paper revision —in progress. A workgroup will review the 2008 paper and identify which
parts need to be updated. The outline should be submitted to the Executive Committee for
approval by it's February meeting.




ltem VI. A. iii. 2.

“‘ﬁ‘i’ Academic Senate
=== for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

CURRICULUM COMMITTEE
Wednesday, December 2, 2015, 2:00 PM
CCC Confer
888-886-3951, www.cccconfer.org
Passcode: 133648
(Meet & Confer Access Available, Closed Captioned)

Minutes

1L,

Members Present: John Freitas, Ginni May, Ryan-Carey, Tiffany Tran, Vivian Varela, Michael Heumann, Lori

Bennett, Sefia-Ramirez-Gelpi, Diana Hurlbut, Bernard McFadden

Minutes by Ginni May

Call to Crder and Adoption of the Agenda — meeting called to order at 2:06, John welcomed us to
our umpteenth curriculum committee meeting this year

Approval of the November 11, 2015 Minutes — approved as sent out

Effective Curriculum Processes —Paper (Resolution 9.01 515)

d.

Review of progress — Folks have been sending sections to John. Send everything to John by
December 14 or earlier so that we can have a rough draft, real rough draft ready for December

16,
Timeline for bringing to spring plenary —first draft to committee January 11, first reading by

Exec February 5, second reading by Exec March 4

Assigned resolutions — review status

d.

Resolutions that still need to be addressed — 7.05 F14; 9.04 F12

PCAH comes out in January and hopefully finally approved in May.

Send comments on the units worksheet to John and he will send them to Erik and Jackie.

John went through all of the other resolutions.

We will give some guidelines for the next curriculum committee on maintaining the curriculum
website.

Survey is done on regional coordination of course offerings.

Pam Walker is working on compiling some information on what colleges are doing on veteran
education. There is some stickiness with the law and Jehn will report back.

So, now for 7.05 and 9.04...
7.05 F14 — Basic Skills Definition: In January, we will come up with a draft recommendation to

take to SACC. The RP Group might be a resource on this with the Poppy Copy. Is there an official
system definition? Probably not, just that we will know it when we see it. Let’s start looking for

definitions and bring back to January meeting.

9.04 F12 - Availability of major preparation, add to Curriculum Institute, maybe Accreditation
Institute, maybe bring to ClO institute, John and Ginni will write Rostrum Article, John and Ginni
will talk to Randy about the Accreditation Institute

BTW —register for Spring Plenary now and make your hotel reservations




Item VI. A. il 2.

V.

VI

VIl

VL.

IX.

Meeting calendar for spring — Mull these over and we will finalize on December 16.
Monday, January 11, 10-3, Moorpark College
Wednesday, January 28, 2:00

Wednesday, February 10, 2:00

Wednesday, February 24, 2:00

Wednesday, March 9, 2:00

Wednesday, March 30, 2:00

Wednesday, April 13, 2:00

Wednesday, April 27, 2:00

Wednesday, May 11, 2:00

Wednesday, May 25, 2:00 (or perhaps in-person?)
Wednesday, June 22, 2:00

Wednesday, June 29, 2:00

Important Fall/Winter dates

CTE Curriculum Academy — January 14-15 (Napa Valley Marriott)

instructional Design and Innovation Institute — January 21-22 (Riverside Convention Center)
Spring Plenary Session — April 21, Sacramento Convention Center/Grand Sheraton Hotel
Curriculum Institute — July 7-9 (Doubletree Anaheim)

Spring curriculum regional meetings — initial brainstorming, more brainstorming will take place on
December 16. John, Ginni and John Stanskas exchanged some emails about focusing on
baccalaureate requirements: GE, double counting, etc. Look at out of state CC o see how they have
structured their GE, John Stanskas has done this already.

John will talk with Julie and David to see if these are feasible in light of all the events that are
occurring in the spring.

Other items on the radar

a. Curriculum Institute — start thinking of ideas! Let’s not just roll over ideas from last year. We
need to offer some new breakouts. Past Cl programs are online, It was suggested that we might
have a basic session explaining IGETC and CSU GE-Breadth, etc. We will talk more about this at
our January meeting.

b. CTE Curriculum Academy - Ginni or John may be presenting

instructional Design and Innovation institute — nothing for cormmittee io do

d. Regional coordination survey results — will start locking at results and next steps

o

Announcements

a. Next meetings — Wednesday, December 2 and Wednesday, December 16, 2 PM; Monday,
January 11, 2016, 10-3 at Moorpark Coliege

CTE Curriculum Academy, lanuary 14-15, Napa Valley Marriott

Instructional Design and Innovation Institute, lanuary 21-23, Riverside Convention Center
Accreditation Institute, February 19-20, Marriott Mission Valley, San Diego

Academic Academy, March 17-19, Sacramento Grand Sheraton

® oo

Adjournment — great meeting ended at 3:09

Status of Previous Action ltems:

a. Meeting calendar —in progress. The committee approved the calendar through January 11,
2016. The spring calendar still needs to be determined.

b. Regional coordination survey — in progress. The survey was distributed to the field on October
8. The deadline for responding is November 1. Staff will compile the results and draft a
summary report.

c. Effective curriculum processes position paper —in progress. The white paper will be
incorporated into the position paper. The paper outline needs to be approved by the Executive
Committee at its 11/4 meeting, with draft paper going to Exec for a first reading in February and

2




item V1. A. 1 2. action in March for approval by the body in April.

d. COR paper revision — in progress. A workgroup will review the 2008 paper and identify which
parts need to be updated. The cutline should be submitted to the Executive Committee for
approval by it’s February meeting.







item VI. A.

iv. 1. ‘A
("

LEADERSHIP.

Academic Senate
for California Community Colleges

EMPOWERMENT. VOICE,

Accreditation and Assessment Committee
Tuesday, September 1, 2015

1:00 - 2:00 PM
CCC Confer

1-913-312-3202 or 1-888-886-3951

Passcode: 692480

Minutes

Item

Time

Presenter

Cail to order

2 minutes

Beach

Present:

Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College);
Gerri Santos (Fresno City College);
Stephanie Curry (Reedley College);
Jarek Janio {Santa Anna College);

Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College);
Kelly Cooper (West Valley College)

Introductions

5 minutes

Beach

Committee members introduced themseives and
explained their interests.

Accreditation Paper

5 minutes

Beach

The committee wrote a paper on effective
practices in 204-2015. We will submit a resolution
for FA 15 plenary to have the body approve the
resolution. Randy will send to committee with
minutes.

CCCCO's Task Force Report
on Accreditation

S minutes

Beach

The committee discussed initial responses to the
task force’s report.

Accreditation [nstitute

10 minutes

Beach

Committee discussed potential partners and
breakout topics for the Al. Discussed partnering
with RP Group or Lumina Foundation. Randy will
take to Exec which decides partners with ASCCC,
Potential topics include:
1. BA degrees pilot and accreditation
2. Institutional Effectiveness Partnership
3. Past Resolutions that have not been
addressed. Randy will send outstanding
resolutions to committee with minutes.

Potential Workshops for Fall
Plenary {November 5-7)

15 minutes

Beach

General Session: The CCCCO’s Task Force on
Accreditation Report

This general session would discuss the report and
its implications. Ideally this would be with the
CCCCO. This would be accompanied by a
breakout on the same topic for deeper discussions.

Breakout: “Effective Practices in Accreditation
Paper”

This workshop will highlight the major components
of the paper authored by the ASCCC Accreditation

Committee Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College); Gerri Santos (Fresno City College); Stephanie Curry
(Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Anna Coliege); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley

College)




ltem VI. A. iv. 1.

and Assessment Committee prior to the body’s
action on a resolution in spurt of the paper on
Saturday.

Breakout; Accreditation Hot Topics

Focus on data disaggregation, the continued roll out
of the new standards, recent Commission policy
actions, CCSF, etc..

What’s On Your Mind? Local Challenges in
Accreditation

The purpose of this workshop is to solicit from the
field major challenges locally with accreditation
and the standards. These discussion will inform the
creation of the Accreditation institute in February.

The Institutional Effectiveness Partnership
Initiative

This workshop would update the ficld on the IEP]T,
what’s happening with the initiative and how they
can benefit. Possibly a collaboration with Theresa
Tena and the CCCCO.

8. Other Priorities and 10 minutes Beach Postponed to future meeting
Resclutions
9. Future Meetings 10 minutes Beach Committee will meet face-to-face September 26 at
Woest Los Angeles College. Alice will secure room
and Randy will send travel information.
Guests:

Notes:

The Accreditation and Assessment Committee informs and makes recommendations to the Academic Senate Executive Committee and the faculty regarding
accreditation and assessment issues. The committee supports faculty in the creation of self-evaluation reports by gathering and disseminating effective
practices for accreditation, institutional evaluation, and accountability. The committee distributes information regarding faculty roles in accreditation via
listservs, publications, and institutes, and collaborates with outside groups to provide information to faculty throughout the state. The committee provides
input to the President regarding interaction with accrediting commissions and other approptiate organizations. The committee advises the President about
concerns regarding regional and federal accreditation policy and processes. Under the direction of the president, the chair and/or members of the committee
provide assistance to local academic senates and the faculty in general who request assistance with accreditation and/or assessment issues. The committee
gathers effective practices for assessment and supports faculty in evaluating and improving the assessment process.

Past Accreditation and Assessment Committee meeting agenda and approved minutes can be found at the committee’s website:

http://sscee.org/directory/accreditation-and-assessinent-committee

Committee Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College); Gerri Santos (Fresno City College); Stephanie Curry
{Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Anna College); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley

College)




Item VI. A iv. 1.

MEET & CONFER PARTICIPANT INVITATION

Meeting Details

Status: Active

Title: ASCCC Accreditation and Assessment Committee Meeting
College/Group/Crg: Southwestern College

Closed Caption: No

Date Starttime  End time Duration Closed Caption
9/1/2015 1:.00 PM 2:00 PM 60 No

Is Your Computer Ready?
How to Connect with Your Mobile Device

Participant Details

Telephone conference line: 1-913-312-3202 *
Participant passcode: 692480

*Toll free number: 1-888-886-3951

Go to www.cccconfer.org

Click Meet & Confer Participant Log In
Locate your meeting and click Go
Passcode: 692480

Telephone Conference Feature
*6 - Mute/unmute your individual line

FOR ASSISTANCE

CCC Confer Client Services - Monday - Friday between 8:00 am - 4:00 pm
Phone: 1-760-744-1150 ext 1537 or 1554

Email: clientservices@cccconfer.org

Committee Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College); Gerri Santos (Fresno City College); Stephanie Curry
(Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Anna College); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley
College)







Item VI. A. iv. 2.

é Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

Accreditation and Assessment Committee
Saturday, September 26, 2015
Student Services Building {(SSB), Room 440 {4th Floor)
10:00 AM - 3:00 PM
West Los Angeles College

Minutes
Members Present: Randy Beach (Southwestern College), Chair; Jarek Janio (Santa Anna College); Alice
Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley College)

Item Time Presenter | Notes
1. | Call to order 1 minutes Beach Agenda was adjusted to include an item
“Past ASCCC Resolutions Related to
Accreditation”. The agenda was
renumbered.
2. | Approval of minutes of | 1 minute Beach Approved
9-01-2015
3. | Public Comment 3 minutes No Public Comment
4. | Workshops for Fall 30 minutes | Beach The ASCCC Executive Committee
Plenary (November 5-7) approved the fall plenary program
and Instructional Design including several workshops related to
and Innovation Institute accreditation. Randy will contact any
(Jan 21-23). committee members who are planning to
be at Plenary if they are needed to
participate in any workshops as a
presenter. Stephanie and Jarek are
planning to attend. The committee
recommended that Joanne Waddell be a
member of the panel on the CCCCO Task
Force panel at fall plenary. The committee
discussed the IDI Institute and suggested
several workshops. Randy will prepare
these and forward to the Exec Committee
for consideration.
5. | Upcoming Plenary 15 minutes | Beach Randy presented the final versions of the
Resolutions fall plenary resolutions. These have been
forwarded to the ASCCC Executive
Committee.
6. | CCCCQO’s Task Force 45 minutes | Beach The committee agreed to write a rostrum
Report on Accreditation article in response to the CCCCO Task
Force Report and provided input for that

Committee Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College); Gerri Santos (Fresno City College); Stephanie Curry
(Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Anna College); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley
College)




ltem VI. A. iv. 2.

article. Randy will put together a draft
using that input and send to the committee
for further vetting. The deadline for the
November Rostrum is October 12.

=

Lunch

60 minutes

Past ASCCC
Resolutions Related to
Accreditation

The committee discussed outstanding
resolutions related to Accreditation and
made plans to address:

FAOS5 3.01: “Accreditation and Equity
Planning” / Randy will discuss the
Diversity and Equity Committee’s timeline
for revising its paper. Also, the committee
will consider creating a presentation
showing links between student equity
planning and accreditation for potential
webinar or breakout.

SP 14 2.03: “Explore Use of Simulated
Accreditation Site Visits” / The committee
requests Executive Committee
concurrence that this resolution has been
addressed by the creation of the CCCCO’s
TEPI Initiative. Randy will seek guidance
from the ASCCC Exec at a future meeting.

FA 14 2.03: “Faculty Participation on
ACCIC External Review Committees™ /
The committee recommends writing a
letter to ACCJC stating the
recommendation of resolution 2.03, and
requesting the information requested in the
resolution. The committee recommends
sending the letter or reading the letter at a
future ACCIC meeting during public
comment.

SP15 2.01 “Disaggregation of Learning
Outcomes Data” / The committee will
investigate establishing a participatory
research project-work with the ASCCC
Foundation and create recommendations or
a white paper for colleges on the value of
disaggregated data.

Accreditation Task
Force Updates at Area
Meetings

30 minutes

Item was integrated into item 6. Decision
was made to write a rostrum article rather
than make a document or presentation for

Committee Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College); Gerri Santos (Fresno City College); Stephanie Curry
(Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Anna College); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley

College)




Item VIL A. iv. 2.

the area meetings.

10. | Accreditation Institute | 90 minutes | Beach The committee discussed a theme for the
institute and agreed to focus that theme on
peer review as a process for positive
change. The committee developed two
potential titles for the Al

1. The Optimistic Power of Peer Review,
Collegiality and Collaboration to Achieve
Excellency

2. Peer Review: Optimism and Excellence

The committee brainstormed many
breakouts and general sessions. Randy will
compile into a draft program for review
and approval at the next mecting.

11. | Future Meetings 25 minutes | Beach No discussion. Next meeting to be
arranged.

Guests: none
Notes:

The Accreditation and Assessment Committee informs and makes recommendations to the Academic Senate Executive Committee and the faculty regarding
accreditation and assessment issues, The commiitee supports faculty in the creation of self-evaluation reports by gathering and disseminating effective
practices for accreditation, institutional evaluation, and accountability, The committee distributes information regarding faculty roles in accreditation via
listservs, publications, and institutes, and collaborates with outside groups to provide information to faculty throughout the state. The committee provides
input to the President regarding interaction with accrediting commissions and other appropriate organizations. The commuttee advises the President about
concerns regarding regional and federal accreditation policy and processes. Under the direction of the president, the chair and/or members of the committee
provide assistance to Jocal academic senates and the faculty in general who request assistance with accreditation and/or assessment issues, The committee
gathers effective practices for assessment and supports faculty in evaluating and improving the assessment process.

Past Accreditation and Assessment Committee meeting agenda and approved minutes can be found at the committee’s website:
hitp:,''ascce.org/directory. accreditation-and -assessment-committee

Committee Members; Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College); Gerri Santos (Fresno City College); Stephanie Curry
(Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Anna College); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley
College}







Item VI. A. iv. 3.

A
Eie=

LEADERSHIP.

Academic Senate
for California Community Colleges

EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.
Accreditation and Assessment Committee

Monday October 12, 2015

4:00-5:00 PM

CCC Confer

1-719-785-4469 or 1-888-450-4821

Passcode: 402171

MINUTES

Item

Time

Presenter

Notes

b=

Call to order

1 minute

Beach

3. Chair Update

10 minutes

Beach

Randy attended the ACCJC Special Meeting in
Sacramento on October 9, 2015. Many speakers voiced
support for the task force report. Some criticized the
report’s methods, but called on ACCIC to make
changes and listen.

Accreditation Rostrum Article

There was some concern on the second paragraph of
the rostrum article that the list of participants may be
misleading since mostly there was only one rep from
these areas.

SLO Disaggregation Research Project: Randy spoke
with Matt Wetstein and RP is interested in
collaborating. Kelly and Jarek will work on the
disaggregation project.

4. Fall Plenary Workshops

5 minutes

Beach

General Session: Accreditation Task Force Report
8:30, 11/5

Accreditation Task Force Report Follow Up Breakout
10 AM, 11/5

Hot Topics in Online Ed Breakout 11:20 AM, 11/5
Institutional Effectiveness Partnership Initiative
Breakout 9:15 AM, 11/6

And the Beat Goes On: Effcclive Practices for Meeting
the 2014 ACCJC Accreditation Standards 2:30 PM,
11/6

1. Potential IDI Workshops

5 minutes

Beach

The titles below have been forwarded to the Executive
Committee for inclusion in the IDI draft program.

Title: Program Review and SLO Assessment Data: The
Stepping Stones to Classroom Innovation

Title: The Distance Ed Classroom, Online Student
Services, and Standard II: Putting Your Best Feet
Forward

Stephanie may be at DID

2. 2016 Al Program

30 minutes

Beach

Discussion focused on the draft AI program and the
breakouts. It was suggested that the descriptions be
augmented to include references to CTE when

Committee Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College); Gerri Santos (Fresno City College); Stephanie Curry (Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Anna
College); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley College)




tem VL. A. iv. 3.

appropriate. It was also noted that the ASCCC Exec
can add or remove breakouts when it reviews the
program in November for first read. Randy will bring
back revised program after November Exec meeting.

3. Next Meeting 5 minutes Beach 11/19/15 at 3 PM

Guests: Julie Adams, Executive Director ASCCC
Notes:

The Accreditation and Assessment Committee informs and makes recommendations to the Academic Senate Executive Committee and the faculty regarding
accreditation and assessment issues. The committee supports faculty in the creation of self-evaluation reports by gathering and disseminating effective practices for
accreditation, institutional evaluation, and accountability. The committee distributes information regarding faculty roles in accreditation via listservs, publications, and
institutes, and collaborates with outside groups to provide information to faculty throughout the state, The committee provides input to the President regarding
interaction with accrediting commissions and other appropriate organizations. The committee advises the President about concerns regarding regional and federal
accreditation policy and processes. Under the direction of the president, the chair and/er members of the committee provide assistance to local academic senates and the
faculty in general who request assistance with sccroditstion snd/or assessment issues. The committee gathers effective practices for assessment and supports faculty in

evaluating and improving the assessment process.

Past Accreditation and Assessment Committee meeting agenda and approved minutes can be found at the committee’s website: hitp://ascec.org directory/accreditation-
and-assessment-committee

Committee Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College); Gerri Santos (Fresno City College); Stephanie Curry (Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Anna
College); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper {West Valiey College)




MEET & CONFER PARTICIPANT INVITATION

Meeting Details

Status: Active

Title: ASCCC Accreditation and Assessment Committee Meeting
College/Group/Org: Southwestern College

Closed Caption: No

Date Starttime  End time Duration Closed Caption
10/12/2015 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 60 No

Is Your Computer Ready?
How to Connect with Your Mobile Device

Participant Details

Telephone conference line: 1-719-785-4469 *
Participant passcode; 402171

*Toll free number: 1-888-4504821

Go to www.cccconfer.org

Click Meet & Confer Participant Log In
Locate your meeting and click Go
Passcode: 402171

Telephone Conference Feature
*6 - Mute/unmute your individual line

FOR ASSISTANCE
CCC Confer Client Services - Monday - Friday between 8:00 am - 4:00 pm

Phone: 1-760-744-1150 ext 1537 or 1554
Email: clientservices@cccconfer.org

Committee Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College); Gerri Santos {Fresno City College); Stephanie Cutry (Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Anna
College); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley College)




II—:‘.



3

LEADERSHIP.

ltem VI. A. iv. 4. (—— Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.
Accreditation and Assessment Committee

Thursday, November 19, 2015
3:00-4:00 PM

CCC Confer

1-913-312-3202 or 1-888-886-3951
Passcode: 509019

AGENDA

[—

Item

Notes

2. Call to order

Present: Craig R, Alice T, Randy B. Also in attendance was
Maria Biddenbeck who is considering joining the committec.

(8]

Approval of Minutes 10/13/2015

Postponed

4. Chair Update

All fall plenary resolutions submitted were approved by the
body. The general session on the accreditation task force
report and the workshops conducted by committee members
were well attended and the feedback given was very positive.
Randy thanked Craig and Stephanie who both jumped in and
took his place on workshops since he wasn’t able to attend.

Kelly and Jarek are spearheading the SLO Disaggregation
Research Project. Randy emailed with Matt Wetstein, Mike
Howe, and Bob Pacheco of the RP Group and they are
interested in working with the committee on the project and on
breakouts for the Al in February. Randy will set up meetings
with RP on these issues.

IDI Workshops

-

The committee is responsible for the following two breakouts
at the Instructional Design and Innovation Institute January
21-23, 2016 in Riverside.

“Institutionalization: Program Review and SLO Assessment
Data: The Stepping Stones to Classroom Innovation”
“Counseling: The Distance Ed Classroom, Online Student
Services, and Standard II: Putting Your Best Feet Forward”

Paul Steenhausen of the EIPI should be involved in any
breakouts involving SL.Os, and Randy will contact him about
IDI. Any committee members who intend to attend the
institure and wouid be willing fo present, should let Randy
know as soon as possible

2. 2016 Al Program

The committee reviewed recommendations made by the
ASCCC Exec Committee on the draft program and made
adjustments. The committee must review the new draft again
and changes made before the December 17 deadline for

Committee Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College); Gerri Santos (Fresno City College); Stephanie Curry (Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Ana
College); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley College)




) agenda items for the January ASCCC Executive Committee
tem VI. A. iv. 4. meeting. The program must be approved by Exec at the
January meeting.

During the discussion Maria asked how many faculty have
been asked to serve on ACCJC site teams and Alice pointed
out that she has been volunteering for many years and has
never been selected. The committee would like to ask ACCJC
for numbers on faculty volunteerism and the number of faculty
who have served recently. Randy will consult with Exec to
determine the best way to request this information.

8 Next Meeting TBD

Guests:
Notes:

The Accreditation and Assessment Committee informs and makes recommendations to the Academic Senate Executive Committee and the faculty regarding
accreditation and assessment issues. The committee supports faculty in the creation of self-evaluation reports by gathering and disseminating effective practices for
accreditation, institutional evaluation, and accountability. The committee distributes information regarding faculty roles in accreditation via listservs, publications, and
institutes, and collaborates with outside groups to provide information to faculty throughout the state. The committee provides input to the President regarding
interaction with accrediting commissions and other appropriate organizations. The committee advises the President about concerns regarding regional and federal
accreditation policy and processes. Under the direction of the president, the chair and/or members of the committee provide assistance to local academic senates and the
faculty in general who request assistance with accreditation and/or assessment issues. The committee gathers effective practices for assessment and supports faculty in
evaluating and improving the assessment process.

Past Accreditation and Assessment Committes meeting agends and approved minutes can he found at the committee’s website: htip:/'ascec.org/directory/accreditation-
and-assessment-committee

Committee Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College); Gerri Santos (Fresno City College); Stephanie Curry (Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Ana
College); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley College)




ltem VI. A. iv. 4.

MEET & CONFER PARTICIPANT INVITATION

Meeting Details

Status: Active

Title: ASCCC Accreditation and Assessment Committee Meeting
College/Group/Org: Southwestern College

Closed Caption: No

Date Starttime Endtime Duration Closed Caption
11/19/2015 3:00PM 4:00PM 60 No

Is Your Computer Ready?
How to Connect with Your Mobile Device

Participant Details

Telephone conference line: 1-913-312-3202 *
Participant passcode: 509019

*Toll free number: 1-888-886-3951

Go to www.cccconfer.org
Click Meet & Confer Participant Log In

Locate your meeting and click Go
Passcode: 509019

Telephone Conference Feature
*6 - Mute/unmute your individual line

FOR ASSISTANCE
CCC Confer Client Services - Monday - Friday between 8:00 am - 4:00 pm

Phone: 1-760-744-1150 ext 1537 or 1554
Email: clientservices@cccconfer.org

Committee Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College); Gerri Santos (Fresno City College); Stephanie Curry (Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Ana
College); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley College)







Item VI A. iv. 5.

(E{‘;’ Academic Senate

for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.
Accreditation and Assessment Committee
Monday, December 7, 2015
4:00-5:00 PM
CCC Confer
1-913-312-3202 or 1-888-886-3951

Passcode: 652684

AGENDA

Item Time

[r—y

Notes

2. Call to order 1 minute

Il 3. Approval of Minutes 1 minute

11/19/2015

Approved with minor revisions.
Randy will send unapproved minutes from prior
meetings electronically for approval.

4. Chair Update 3 minutes

Randy described the workshops related to
accreditation that are being offered at the
Instructional Design and Innovation Institute and
who will be the presenters. Stephanie and Kelly will
present different breakouts.

L3 SLO Disaggregation Project | 5 minutes

Update

Kelly, Jarek, and Randy make up a small task group
for the project. They met with representatives of RP
Group and discussed the type of project we would
like to pursue. The project will include a paper on
effective practices for conducting student learning
outcomes research and an interactive presentation
for future events that highlights the ways data
analysis can be meaningful and what can be learned
by reviewing disaggregated data. The group wiil
meet again to continue work on the project. This
item will be a standing agenda item. Committee
members asked if funds will be needed and the task
group will report back on that in the future. Craig
mentioned that ASCCC Foundation may be able to
support if funds are needed.

6. 2016 Al Program 45 minutes

The committee reviewed and approved the program
with revisions. Everyone agreed that the outcomes
statements need clarification and the description of
the SLO disaggregation breakout should better align
with standard L. B.6. Also, Randy asked everyone to
send his or her first and second preference for each
breakout session by Thursday December 10 if
possible. The program is due to the ASCCC

Committee Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon Cellege); Gerri Santos (Fresne City College); Stephanie Cury (Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Anna
College); Alice Taylor {West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley College}




Item VI A.iv. 5.

Executive Committee by December 16. The
Executive Committee will review and approve the
program and presenters will be finalized.

7. Next Meeting 5 minutes January 11 at 3:30

Guests:
Notes:

The Accreditation and Assessment Committee informs and makes recommendations to the Academic Senate Executive Committee and the faculty regarding
accreditation and assessment issues. The committee supports faculty in the creation of self-cvaluation reports by gathering and disseminating effective practices for
accreditation, institutional evaluation, and accountability. The committee distributes information regarding faculty roles in acereditation via listservs, publications, and
institutes, and collaborates with outside groups to provide information to faculty throughout the state. The committee provides input to the President regarding
interaction with accrediting commissions and other appropriate organizations. The committee advises the President about concems regarding regional and federal
accreditation policy and processes. Under the direction of the president, the chair and/or members of the committee provide assistance to local academmic senates and the
faculty in general who request assistance with accreditation and/or assessment issues. The committee gathers effective practices for assesstent and supports faculty in
evaluating and improving the assessment process.

Past Accreditation and Assessment Committee meeting agenda and approved minutes can be found at the committee’s website: hitp:, /ascce.org/directoryraccreditation-
and-assessment-commitiee

Committec Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Canyon College); Gerri Santos (Fresno City College); Stephanie Curry (Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Anna
College); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley College)




ltem VI. A. iv. 5.
MEET & CONFER PARTICIPANT INVITATION

Meeting Details

Status: Active

Title: ASCCC Accreditation and Assessment Committee Meeting
College/Group/Org: Southwestern College

Closed Caption: No

Date Start time End time Duration Closed Caption

12/7/2015 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 60 No

Is Your Computer Ready?
How to Connect with Your Mobile Device

Participant Details

Telephone conference line: 1-913-312-3202 *
Participant passcode: 652684

*Toll free number: 1-888-886-3951

Go to www.cccconfer.org

Click Meet & Confer Participant Log In
Locate your meeting and click Go
Passcode: 652684

Telephone Conference Feature
*6 - Mute/unmute your individual line

FOR ASSISTANCE
CCC Confer Client Services - Monday - Friday between 8:00 am - 4:00 pm

Phone: 1-760-744-1150 ext 1537 or 1554
Email: clientservices@cccconfer.org

Committee Members: Craig Rutan (Santiago Cenyon College); Gerri Santos (Fresno City College); Stephanie Curry (Reedley College); Jarek Janio (Santa Anna
College); Alice Taylor (West Los Angeles College); Kelly Cooper (West Valley College)







Item VL A. v.

-
C

Academic Senate
for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP. EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.

LEGISLATIVE AND ADVOCACY COMMITTEE

Monday, October 19 2015
11:00am - 1:00pm
MINUTES
L Call to Order: 11:02am
II. Members present: Julie Bruno, Dolores Davison, Sam Foster, Kelsey Iino, David Morse,

Stacey Searl-Chapin

<<H

Approval of the Agenda --approved
Approval of the September Minutes (Attachment: September 28, 2015 minutes)-- approved
Discussion items, with action as needed

a. Legislative Agenda (Attachment: Legislation Report) — Committee members discussed
clarifying the ASCCC’s role in advocacy regarding legislation. Once clarified, it would
be useful to include a statement on website.

i. ASCCC Legislative Topics:

1.

Audit Fee — the audit fee has long been considered an option for colleges
to serve students who may not need course credit but would benefit from
practice to prepare for a licensure or certification exam or as a refresher
prior to taking a subsequent course. However, the Iow fee of $15 per unit
(Ed Code 76370) frequently acts as a deterrent and many colleges have
eliminated auditing. An increase in the audit fee will to allow colleges to
recover some cost of serving this student population.

Stand Alone course approval — Sunset date January 1, 2014. There is
system-wide interest in restoring stand-alone course approval.

Mental Health Services — possibly partner with FACCC and other system
partners to work with on this issue.

Campus safety — issues around safety of students and staff.

Online Educational Resources (OER) - perhaps legislation specifically for
the CCCs or depending on what happens with AB 798, possibly follow up
legislation.

Additional proposals brought forward at the State Legislative Program
Task Force meeting included a proposal to address part time issues from
CFT (revisiting of AB 1010 from the last legislative session, which the
CCCCO s inclined to look at as a bargaining issue) and a proposal to add
stakeholders in the adult education consortia (some Task Force members
voiced concerns that it would slow processes down with too many
people, but the ASCCC supports including representation from a variety
of interested groups, as appropriate).

LAC to recommend to the Executive Committee the initial legislative
agenda to include the following topics: audit fee, stand-alone course
approval, mental health services, campus safety and OER.




Item VL. A. v.
b.

o

Resolutions (Attachment: LAC Priorities and Resolutions) - Members review the
resolution spreadsheet and agreed that the loan forgiveness resolution; 6.05 (515) is
completed. Bruno and Davison are researching 9.04 (599).
Plenary Legislative and Advocacy Breakout — Members agreed that the breakout will
provide a legislation update. Mike Magee, Director of CO State Government Relations,
and Shaaron Vogel, President of FACCC, have agreed to serve as presenters. The
breakout will also cover ASCCC advocacy work including the legislative liaison position
and legislative update webpage.
Instructional Design and Innovation Institute
i. Civic Engagement Proposals — The Civic Engagement and Citizenship

Workgroup (Julie Adams, Manuel Baca, Julie Bruno, Dolores Davison, Stacey

Searl-Chapin, and Patty Robinson) proposed a 15-minute general session

presentation and then breakout session for the IDIL

ii. No other proposals suggested

Legislative Liaison Position (Attachment: Legislative Liaison Position Draft)— Bruno
contacted Paul Setziol (De Anza) and Curtis Martin (Modesto) for feedback on the
position expectations and both provided edits and suggestions. Committee members
discussed new considerations including the notion that the position may be a group of
faculty rather than just one person. Members suggested a Rostrum article to publicize
the position. Bruno will edit the draft based on members’ feedback and bring the
position guidelines to the ASCCC Executive Committee in November for approval.
ASCCC Advocacy Day: Members discussed the different formats this type of event
might take such as traveling between offices to speak to legislative aides or reserving a
room in the capital for legislators and aides to meet with ASCCC (both formats have
positives and negatives) as well as meeting with other groups (DoF, LAQ, etc). Who will
be involved in the visits will be determined and may include LAC members, ASCCC
Executive Committee members or a combination of the two committees. Members
thought that an April visit might be useful. Bruno will bring a proposal to the ASCCC
Executive Committee in November for approval. Members will discuss specifics of the
visit during the December LAC meeting and requested an invitation for Jonathan
Lightman from FACCC to attend, if possible.

VI. Events: Members were reminded of the upcoming ASCCC events.

d.

b.

m e oo

Execulive Commiittee — November 4, Marrioti Irvine
Area Meetings — October 23, North
Cctober 24, South
Fall Plenary — November 5-7, Marriott Irvine
Curriculum Regional (North) — November 13, Solano College
Curriculum Regional (South) - November 14, Mt. San Antonio College
Instructional Design and Innovation — January 21-23, Riverside Convention Center

VIL Other in person meeting December 9, 2015 at the ASCCC office.
VII. Adjournment—12:23pm




Item VL. B.i. 1.

System Advisory Committee on Curriculum (SACC)
Qctober 17, 2015
Co-Chair Report

SB 440: As of today 1968 ADTs, 12 more coming.

Baccalaureate Update:
o Met with legal on Title 5 regs, will be developing handbook to provide guidance
rather than making changes to T5 at this point.
o Pilot needs to run before changes to regs happen. Will develop separate
submission process and criteria with MIS. Will be included in next gen of CI.
o RFP for Bac pilot grant management out to field. 10 colleges made deadline for
sub change to ACCIC for offering Bac. ‘

Non-Sub Course Approval Change
o CO will no longer conduct reviews of non-substantial changes.
o 41 colleges with non-subs in queue received notifications and will have non-subs
returned for local review prior to resubmission.
o Memo to entire field to be distributed soon

Military Credit
o Pam would like to create a workgroup.
¢ Need ASCCC representatives.
o ClO Reps, and perhaps rep from ACE.
o Interested in coming up with recommendations that would come through SACC for
review and endorsement.

Inmate Education
o Folsom, Lassen, Chaffey, and Antelope Valley: pilot colleges.
o Request for more information and presentation to SACC

Pre-requisites:

o Local colleges are required to submit report to CO in August of each year, under the
changes to title 5 regs to Pre-regs.

o €O Question: Do we still need to collect this information? Its’ not being used in
any way. Do we ask for a t5 change to no longer require this reporting —OR— Do we
change the reporting to include disproportionate impact? What is the connection to
student equity plans? SSSP?

Stand Alone Course Approval:
o Academic Affairs: put forward a legislation proposal at Consultation Council. One
glitch — is the reporting. Lebaron: CTE, Basic Skills, and Counseling Related...Lebaron
advocated for a broader interpretation.

PCAH:
o Teams still writing, potential of final draft to SACC in December.



Item VI.B.i. 1.

Non-substantial Changes to Program:
o Process being reviewed in light of change to non-sub course review.

New SACC Membership:
© SACC discussed potential addition to committee for Curriculum Specialist
representation. Will discuss appointment with CCCCS to ensure that mechanism for
appointment would be consistent with other members of SACC.

Low Unit Certificates:
© Workgroup met and discussed recognition of sub-12 unit certificates. For scorecard

reporting: 8 units lower limit, one course in A, B, or C SAM code. Next steps: Report
from Data Mart ~ Request for query from MIS on award of low unit certificates with
specific data elements

Non-Credit Progress Indicators

o Updates: workgroup recommended grades for CDCP courses in non-credit.

o Require colleges that offer CDCP courses to award grades for those courses.

o Satisfactory Progress: allowing SP grades to come through, but they do not exist
legally. Notin Title 5. CO allowing them to be recorded, but just to store that
information.

o Unfunded mandate: put together one-time monies to create a funded mandate to
help those college shift to recording this category.

o Title 5 change proposal: as a condition of participation in CDCP, colleges would have
to use and submit grades.

o For SACC and ASCCC: if we go the route of requiring this as a condition of
participating in the CDCP program, what does this do to non-credit repetition?
Would the same logic from credit apply to non-credit? Concerns were expressed
about the seven big programs being used as the basis for analyzing feasibility of
implementing this. Huge impact for smaller programs.



Item VI. B.1. 2.

System Advisory Committee on Curriculum (SACC)
November 20, 2015
Co-Chair Report

POST Academy Pre-requisites: POST programs at local colleges have introduced pre-requisites
that conflict with title 5 requirements for open courses. Courses that restrict enrollment in
these areas are not eligible for apportionment. The CO has produced new guidelines for the
implementation of pre-requisites for these courses that will bring them into compliance. SACC
reviewed the draft language and requested a couplie of edits to ensure that the language
deferred to local pre-req challenge policies and processes. The CO accepted the edits.

SB 440 Update: total 1973 active ADTs. 57 met SB440. 27 that are 1 away, 19 that are two
away, 3 are 4 away.
e May need some visits to local colleges from faculty: Siskyous, Laney, LA Southwest
e Top ihree most difficuit: ComScience, viusi, Chem

Baccalaureate Update
*  One application for the 750,000 implementation support grant.
¢ Guidelines / Handbook: establishing guidelines for pilots only. Reviewed by
consultation.
Some concern from pilots about ASCCC resolutions re: GE
RT Pilot program has 890 applications so far.

Approval Process Update: the CO implemented a change to how they handle non-substantial
changes for courses. The implementation has gone well so far, but there was some concerns
from CIC about the requirement to have CIOs certify that the non-sub submissions had been
reviewed and approved in accordance with all regs and standards. The CO decided that they
would ask for a once-yearly certification from CIOs to be submitted each year by July 1. The CIO
reps on the committee felt this was appropriate.

Military Credit and AB 2462: the CO would like SACC to help in the creation of guidelines for
Military Service Credit. Dolores Davison and Jolena Grande volunteered to help with this
process. Additional faculty are being sought to serve as resources for this group.

Credit / Community Service Class Guidelines: the SACC co-chairs have decided to keep this item
on every agenda until we get some direction for the field on this. No new developments at this
time, but CO staff will be gathering all work done to date and working with legal on guideline
documents.

Stand Alone Course Approval: The CO has submitted a leg proposal for the return of local
approval of stand-alone courses that should be going to the BOG. Prior report on stand alone
was insufficient. SACC workgroup will work with CO staff to develop new guidelines for local
stand alone approval based on the data collected for prior report. Earliest implementation
would be January 1, 2017.

Collaborative Programs Guidelines: This item has been on the SACC radar for along time and
will be on every agenda until something comes forward. CO staff is working with SACC



Item VI B.1. 2.

members to review work to date with the intent of bringing something to SACC in the near
future.

Low Unit Certs: The SACC workgroup on low (under 12 units) unit certificates provided updates
from workgroup and proposed next steps, including a review of current practices and analysis of
CO data with the intent to bring forward a specific recommendation to SACC in the near future.

Membership and Bylaws: SACC has decided to spend time in early Spring reviewing the
membership, name, and charter of SACC to determine if any changes are warranted. One
membership change that has been endorsed is the inclusion of a classified Curriculum Specialist
on the committee.

PCAH Update and Discussion: PCAH writers submitted final Program Goal Type document to
SACC for endorsement. (see attached) SACC endorsed this document as accurately reflecting
previous action by the committee. SALC also finalized timeline for PCAH:

=  PCAH writers holding final reading with CO staff in December.

s Final draft to SACC for endorsement at January 14 meeting.
Distribution to the field for review and comment period.
Two readings by BOG in Spring.
Distribution to the field after final approval from BOG.
The work of the writing team will be complete after December meeting. If edits need to be
made after field review, two volunteer members of the writing team will work with CO staff to
make needed edits.

Curriculum Inventory Implementation: CO staff brought concerns to the SACC co-chairs about
the design and implementation of the new Curriculum Inventory currently under way. in
particular, they felt that they needed more eyes on it as decisions about technology would likely
affect curriculum submission processes and standards. David Shippen attended the meeting to
answer questions and outline areas where broader input could produce a better product. To
this end, SACC has asked the CO that ASCCC and CIO reps both be included in the process,
beyond the pilot colleges who volunteered to test the system in spring 2016. Vice Chancellor
Walker and Dean of Instruction, Jackie Escajeda, both agreed to broader input. Craig Rutan has
volunteered to serve for the ASCCC reps on SACC to ensure that data integrity checks, timelines,
and migration from the old system doesn’t inadvertently create new curriculum deadlines and
standards.



ltem VI. B. 1. 3.

System Advisory Committee on Curriculum (SACC)
November 20, 2015 Meeting Summary

Committee Members Present: ASCCC: Dolores Davison, David DeGroot,

John Freitas, Craig Rutan, Erik Shearer
CCCCIO: Terry Giugni, Kathleen Rose, Virginia Guleff

CCCCIO Liaisons: Kim Schenk (CCCAOQOE),
Erica LeBlanc {ACCE)

Chancellor’s Office: Jackie Escajeda, Pam Walker

Committee Members by Telephone ASCCC: Stephanie Droker, Jolena Grande
CCCCIO: Kelly Fowler
Guests: Technology Center: Barbara Fountain, David Shipman

Chancellor’s Office(by phone): Erik Nelson, LeBaron Woodyard

Meeting Chair: Erik Shearer

Meeting Location: Skyline College, San Bruno, CA

Meeting Summary from October 16, 2015—The October 16, 2015 Meeting Summary was approved with
changes noted.

Chancellor’s Office Update:

Advanced Course Prerequisites for Police/Fire Academy Courses — Forty of the 113 CCCs have
police and/or fire academies. Prerequisites for advance courses that require agency-specific, in-service
training — such as Police Officer Standards & Training (POST) or basic firefighting that are only available
for members of those agencies — conflict with Title 5 requirements that apportionment-generating courses
must be open to all students. A workgroup, whose members included police and fire fighting academy
directors, Commission on POST representatives, attorneys and Chancellor’s Office representatives,
developed an updated Instructional Services Agreement as an alternative prerequisite for the advanced
courses (i.c., students would have to possess a set of skills, rather than the agency-specific training, as a
prerequisite for the advanced courses). In reviewing the draft language, SACC determined that the ISA
language needed to reflect faculty/counselor input in the assessment of students’ skills. SACC developed
and agreed upon alternative language after the meeting.

Baccalaureate Degree Pilot Program — One application was received for the $750,000 implementation
support grant. The Baccalaureate Degree Workgroup is developing a handbook that will address issues
such as student services, application acceptance parameters, and minimum qualifications for faculty. The
Board of Governors would like to have a first reading of the handbook in January with the goal of having
it effective March 2016. The Academic Senate passed all of its resolutions regarding baccalaureate
degree programs at its recent plenary session. Several colleges will be offering upper division courses
this fall which will require MIS and curriculum inventory changes.

ADTs — The total number of active ADTs is 1,973. Fifty-seven colleges have met SB 440 requirements.
Of the 56 colleges that have not yet met the requirement, 27 colleges are one degree away, 19 are two
degrees away, six colleges are three degrees away, three colleges are four degrees away, and one college



Iltem VI. B. i. 3.

is six degrees away from meeting their respective ADT requirement. By discipline, the three most
difficult degrees to develop ADTs for are Computer Science (28 degrees outstanding); Music (19 degrees
outstanding); and Elementary Teacher Education (12 degrees outstanding). Chemistry and Biclogy are
also a challenge. Colleges that are one or two degrees away from meeting their obligation cite five-unit
mathematics courses as an obstacle because these courses put the degrees over the 60-unit limit. SACC
discussed sending teams of experts to work with colleges that need help. Teams will include Articulation
Officers who are experts in C-ID and ADT requirements. The Chancellor’s Office will identify the
specific challenges faced by each college to help focus the teams’ efforts.

Inmate and Reentry Education — A summit is scheduled for December 7-8 at the Sacramento Hilton,
Arden West and has more than 200 registrations.

Military Credit and AB 2462 — A survey was sent to the field to determine the extent for which military
credit is requested. Responses indicate that requests are relatively minor and infrequent, and typically in
areas such as physical education and mechanics. In addition to AB2462 which was authored several
years ago and requires the use of ACE guidelines (which do not always rely on content experts and the
units don’t always match), the Online Education Initiative also addresses credit for prior learning,
specifically with veterans in mind. Some colleges offer alternatives to awarding credit such as
prerequisite challenges and courses that include credit for military experience or exams but the system
lacks a common method for awarding credit. The awarding of credit also needs to consider the impact on
students’ financial aid. The Chancellor’s Office (Academic Affairs and Government Relations) will have
a discussion with Senator Block’s office. Another Veterans Summit will be held next summer.

Credit / Community Service Class Guidelines — The Chancellor’s Office and ACCE will review the
draft guidelines.

Stand Alone Course Approval — The timeline for implementing a legislative request to restore
standalone course approval is to add it to the legislative language that was recently submitted to the Board
of Governors, have it approved in September 2016, and implemented in January 2017. SACC will
cstablish a subcommittee to develop talking points to support the passage of new legislative language. In
the meantime, standalone courses can be offered, but have to be submitted to the Chancellor’s Office for
approval. Courses submitted for approval are in the queue for long periods. The original report included
a random sample of courses, 20% of which are now part of programs (i.e., no longer standalone). There
is nothing wrong with courses migrating from standalone to program applicable, but the colleges should
change the record for these courses. Also, if the intent is for a course to be program applicable, it shouid
be coded thusly from the very beginning. SACC noted that the proposed legisiative language submitted
to the BOG addressed changes to title 5 relative to anditing courses, but it still ties the auditing rate to the
per unit credit rate rather than leaving it with language that would allow the colleges to set the fees at a
rate that reflects the true cost of instruction.

Articulation of High School and Cooperative Work Experience courses — The Chancellor’s Office
will address this at future SACC meetings.

Curriculum Inventory — A correction will be issued to the field regarding recent announcements
regarding the Curriculum Inventory and Stand Alone courses. The Chancellor’s Office will ask for a one-
time signature from the CIOs in December with an annual renewal at the beginning of the year. The
Chancellor’s Office is working on a new curriculum inventory system.

Constituent Group Reports: CI0, ASCCC, CCCAOE

CIO0s: The CIOs conference was largely attended and very successful. The Chancellor’s Office and
Academic Senate representatives’ participation was appreciated. The spring conference will be held
jointly with the other groups at the Sacramento Conference Center. Sessions provided by the CIOs will
include those that are legislatively driven (e.g., dual enrollment, ADT implementation).

ASCCC: The Academic Senate’s Plenary was held in early November and all baccalaureate degree
resolutions were approved, including one urging colleges to support their programs with appropriate
resources. Curriculum regionals were held at Solano and Mt. SAC, with more than 100 attendees at each



ltem VI. B. i. 3.

event. Upcoming events include the Instructional Design Institute January 21-23 in Riverside; the CTE
Curriculum Academy in Napa, also in January (this event requires an application); the Accreditation
Institute at the Marriott Mission Valley (San Diego) in February; the Online Education Regional meetings
in April; and the Spring Conference in Sacramento. Program for Instructional Design and Innovation
Event will include topics on basic skills, technology integration, student services, innovations and mobile
learning; colleges can use their Equity funds to support travel costs for this event.

o CCCAOE: The fall conference was a sell-out and included sessions on the integration of Economic and
Workforce Development efforts with CTE programs. The CCCAOQE spring conference will also take
place in Sacramento along with the CIOs, ASCCC and other groups. The organization has established a
paid executive director position to provide leadership consistency.

¢ ACCE: The one-day workshop at NOCCCD’s School of Continuing Education was well attended and
the Chancellor’s Office support was greatly appreciated by the attendees. The spring conference will be
held in Monterey, CA (February 24 — 26).

Collaborative Programs: Guidelines — This will be addressed at future meetings. SACC will consider its
original recommendations and where this language might be incorporated into the PCAH guidelines.

Curriculum Inventory Implementation — The transition from the old Curriculum Inventory system to the new
one was discussed with representatives from the Technology Center. Ensuring that a working system exists
before the transfer takes place is essential. SACC discussed the perception that if a course isn’t included in the
inventory that it can’t be taught or that apportionment can’t be collected for those courses. There are also issues
where courses were approved prior to the implementation of certain requirements (e.g., LMI, narrative, minutes,
etc.). Other issues to be addressed include the interaction between technology systems (i.e., ASSIST, C-ID, CI);
the interaction between planned system architecture and approval process/timelines; and concerns from field
about data transition goals and timeline. A pilot testing period wili take place to ensure a smooth transition from
the current inventory system to the new one. Similarly, colleges who are moving to the Canvas learning
management system for their online programs are allowing for an 18 month transition period, leaving their old
system up and running to ensure a seamless migration. SACC discussed having its members be beta testers for
the new curriculum inventory system. SACC and the Chancellor’s Office will develop a message for the field
regarding the new inventory system and a definition of what needs to be on the Course Outline of Record.

Low Unit Certificates — SACC reviewed notes from the workgroup which addressed the kinds of data to request
from the field in a survey and how the data would be used. Data to be collected include the areas where low unit
cerlificaies are needed (e.g., auiomoiive and bookkeeping), the need for transcription of the low unit certificates,
and the lower unit limits. SACC also discussed scaffold certificates that would allow students to build their skill
sets with multiple certificates. Colleges can report certificates that are 12 units and higher; the workgroup will
determine how many colleges have low unit certificate programs but don’t report them. The Chancellor’s QOffice
will distribute the survey once it is finalized by the workgroup.

Membership and Bylaws — SACC continued its discussion on adding a Curriculum Specialist as a liaison
representative on SACC and the possibility of having representatives from groups “rotate in” to SACC on an as
needed basis.

PCAH Update and Discussion — The timeline for the fourth draft is to have it reviewed and endorsed by the
Chancellor’s Office and SACC by January so that it can be submitted to Consultation in February and to the
Board of Governors in March for the first of two readings. SACC members will also solicit input from their
respective constituent groups and will craft a survey to guide input from the field.

Next Mceting: December 10, 2015



*



Item VI B.ii. 1.

Minutes, CA-OER Meeting
October 19, 2015

10:00 am - 11:00 am

via Collaborate

Attendees

ccC

Dolores Davison {Foothill College)
Cheryl Aschenbach (Lassen College)
Dan Crump {American River College)

uc

Peter Krapp (UC Irvine) — absent
Chikako Takeshita (UC Riverside)
Bruce Cooperstein (UC Santa Cruz)

Ccsu

Diego Bonilla (Sacramento)
Larry Hanley (San Francisco)
Ruth Guthrie (Pomona)

Katherine D. Harris (SJSU), Chair

Guests
Leslie Kennedy

Minutes (Agenda available here)
1. Approve Minutes from 10/5 meeting
a. Approved, 10/19/15
2. Press Release
AB 798

i. Council to create its own press release covering Council’s role in Open
Educational Resources Adoption Incentive Programs and how it will fit with AB 798.
Concentrate on Council's progress to date - Larry & Dolores working on dratft PR -
due Nov 23
a. Congressional bill
. The bill is supported by: The Affordable College Textbook Act is support by
U.S. PIRG, Scholarly Publishing & Academic Resources Coalition, National
Association of College Stores, Young Invincibles, American Federation of Teachers,
National Education Association, Service Employees International Union, American
Association of Community Colleges, Association of Community College Trustees,
UNCF, Creative Commons, Association of Research Libraries, Association of
College & Research Libraries, OurTime.

i. The bill was introduced by: U.S. Senators Dick Durbin (D-IL), Al Franken (D-
MN) and Angus King (I-ME). A companion bill to the the House of Representatives
was introduced by U.S. Representatives Rubén Hinojosa (D-TX) and Jared Polis (D-
CO)

i What is the official pathway for the Council to communicate feedback to
Legislators and Representatives? - Leslie o determine _

3. Faculty Ambassadors Program - Discuss draft of program (to be finalized for
11/9 mig)




[tem VI. B. ii. 1.

CCC feedback: Unsure how to find OER Ambassadors on each campus, and
with so many campuses. Need to get a better sense of how each campus is using
OER before CCC members can weigh in.

a. CSU feedback: Leverage existing ALI (Affordable Learning Initiative) or ALS
(Affordable Learning Solutions) programs; add requirement that Ambassadors
participate in an OER conference; and include Librarians
b. UC feedback: Include Librarians: cannot see Faculty participating in this
program on their own without help from Librarians; on-campus and systemwide
services are very limited at the UC level; Learning Technology Center (e.g., at
UCSC) would perhaps be a better advocate than faculty
c. Other ideas discussed:
Program customized for each segment

i. Take into consideration how this program will werk in conjunction with AB 798
and deadlines

i Under OER Ambassador Criteria and Selection, revise to include: Full time
faculty, librarian, or other appropriate full time staff

ifi. This program will be funded through external grants — KH, GH & 1 K t5 further
discuss

iv. Funding needed: 1) Stipend for Ambassador (appropriate for workload) and
2) money to support Ambassador engagement in OER activities
V. Start program as a Pilot before full roll out; select 2-3 CCC, UC, and CSU

campuses with the best chance for success; determine what's needed, refine the
program, and then scale it up
d. Present final draft of OER Ambassador Program rolled out as Pilot and
addressing feedback above - Larry, Chikako, Cheryl, 11/9
4 Draft of Final Report due 12/1 to ICAS
Final Drraft due 11/9 meeting «+.
a. Authorship Assignments (see draft for detalls) - UPDATES
y Update infographic and results of faculty & student surveys - Ruth
i. Reading practices research - Diego
i. OER Glossary: flush out, especially definition of OER and low cost - Chikako
ii. Governance structure - Peter
iv. Overall participation by each segment (intemally and intersegmentalily;
specifically address what worked and what didn't)
1. CSU - Larry
2. CCC-Cneryl
3. UC - Peter & Bruce
V. Work on overview - KDH
5. CCC November Plenary - Resolution to be submitted that opposes part of AB
798 (notably the compensation); CCC shared proposed resolution
6. See Action Item Punch List
7. Calendar of Meetings, Fall 2015
Face-to-Face Meetings (10:00 am - 3:00 pm)
. November 9, 2015: CSU Chancellor's Office
i December 7, 2015: CSU Pomona
a. Conference Calls (10:00 am - 11:00 am)
. November 23, 2015
i. December 21, 2015
ii. January thd {to work on research addendum to final report)




Item VI. B. ii. 2.

Minutes, CA-OER Meeting
November 9, 2015
10:00 am - 3:00 pm

CSU Chancellor's Office
401 Golden Shore Avenue
Long Beach, CA 90802

Attendees

CCcC

Dolores Davison (Foothill College)
Cheryl Aschenbach (Lassen College)
Dan Crump (American River College)

uc

Peter Krapp (UC Irvine)

Chikako Takeshita (UC Riverside)
Bruce Cooperstein (UC Santa Cruz)

Csu

Diego Bonilla (Sacramento)
Larry Hanley (San Francisco)
Ruth Guthrie (Pomona})

Katherine D. Harris (SJSU), Chair

Guests
Leslie Kennedy

Minutes (Agenda available here)

1. Approve Minutes from 10/19/15 meeting

a. Approved, 11/9

2. Reviews (master list)
: Council reviewed disciplines still in need of reviewers per segment
a. Year end deadline quickly approaching to complete all reviews

3. UPDATE: Focus Groups

Transcription & analysis: Analyzing from readability perspective - Diego to share

resu!ts 11/23

4. Final Report
. Council reviewed draft, discussed, and suggested revisions
i Summary of what Council achieved - Chikako, 11/16 I
i. Summary of ICAS and Council relationship - Larry. Bruce & Dolores, 11/16
iil. CCC Perspective: Reach out to Kevin, Cheryl & Diana - Cheryl, 11/16

iv. Summarize Foundational Research and Ongoing Projects, and provide links to
further details - KH ‘ _

V. Quality of textbooks: UC perspective - TD to check _

vi. Include at end of report final takeaways and sustainability - Larry, 11/16
a. Submit to Gerry Hanley for review (Pl, Gates & Hewlett) - KDH, 11/16
b. Discuss any changes from Hanley at 11/23 call and approve final draft

1



Item V1. B.ii. 2.

Submit to ICAS by 12/1

Legislation

Press Release draft - Larry & Dolores, 11/23

In support of congressional bill? Need Leslie's feedback

Faculty Ambassadors Program

Draft of program

Council reviewed and discussed

CCC: Ambassador program needs to be regionalized

ASCCC Online Education Regionals, April 2016 - CCC to research submitting

proposal to present OER

b.

a.

7.

Council approved to send to G. Hanley for review- KDH to send
AB 798
Infrastructure - Council reviewed proposed infrastructure
Proposed Timeling
Proposed CA-OERC Role
Proposed RFP {contents)
1. Flesh out rubric - Ruth, Dolores & Bruce, 11/20
Rubric should include scoring system (measurablllty) and how to resolve any

conflict of interests

b.
c.
d.

a.

8.

Along with cost savings, obtain numbers of students affected
Need to determine cut off point if RFP process becomes competitive
How many council members required to review each RFP? ‘
2. Flesh out funding rules - Larry & Peter, 11/20
3. Write introduction and goals - Cheryl, 11/20
4. Defining role and expectations of campus coordinator -
Dan & Chikako, 11/20
5. Tool Kit: Videos - Diego (o be sent with RFP in February)
6. Does a CSU campus-wide resolution on QER exist? If so,
collect and share with Council (save in AS Resolutions
template folder) - Ruth
Meeting schedule for Spring: Further discuss at 12/7 meeting
Discussed future of CA-OER Council
See draft of Final Report for 2016-2017 (p.19} continuation of outreach &

education

9.

See Action ltem Punch List

10. Calendar of Meetings, Fall 2015

Face-to-Face Meetings (10:00 am - 3:00 pm)

December 7, 2015: CSU Pomona

Conference Calls (10:00 am - 11:00 am)

November 23, 2015

December 21, 2015

January tbd (to work on research addendum to final report & AB 798)

Topics for Dec Meeting:

a.
I

ii.
iii.

1.

2.

Addendum/MWhite Paper topics

Publication: Ruth

Write up textbook competition and entry barriers using Porters model?
Paper on sustainability

Paper on OER adaptive learning

Cont. Outreach & Education



Item VI. B. ii. 2.

Working with bookstores
CSU is already working with bookstores - leverage this for UC & CCC?
1. C8U bookstore advisory committee/liaison - (TD to make
contact)
CCC all different (how to resolve?) — Council’'s goal this fall
1. Beta test on 10 campuses
2. Use faculty ambassadors to contact Iocal bookstores’?
3. Council of Chief Librarians & i
3. PR Plan to do list - work to be done by each segment - moot w/AB 7987
. UPDATE: revise CCC PR plan
a. UPDATE: CSU plan
b. UPDATE: UC plan
Video short for UC campuses - (Bruce)
4. OER Authorship - not supported by AB 798 or grant funders
leverage congressional bills?
5. 2016-2017 Activities for Council







"A Academic Senate
E: for Catifornia Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.
Executive Committee Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Open Education Resources Conference Report Month: January | Year: 2016

[Ttem No:-VI. B, .

Attachment: YES / |§|o

DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will be updated on Urgent: YES / NO
the Open Education Resources Conference, Time Requested: N/A
CATEGORY: Information/Discussion TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Dolores Davisaon Consent/Routine
First Reading
STAFF REVIEW™. Jufle Adams | Action
Information/Discussion | X

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.

BACKGROUND:

The Open Education Resources Conference was held in Vancouver, BC, November 18-20. Members of
CAOERC, including one CCC faculty member (Dolores Davison) and three CSU faculty presented on the
CAOERC model and the progress that had been made in OER in California, as well as the challenges that
have arisen in working with the three major segments {UC, CSU, and CCC) on a project such as this. The
presentation was attended by faculty and administrators from the CSU and CCC systems, including the
chair of the Open Education Resources Consortium, Una Daly. Many of the questions centered around
the recent ASCCC resolution regarding compensation for adoption of materials, with several members of
the audience commenting that they would not be able to have a discussion about OER without including
compensation for reworking compensation. It was ciear from the interest in the council and the lack of
information that CAOERC needs to be more publicized going forward.

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.






tem VI. B. iv. 1.

Student Services Portal Steering Committee Meeting
Wednesday October 21, 2015
Zoom Cnline

SSP SC Attendees: Angela Baucom, Barbara Fountain, Brianna Hays, Brook Oliver, Caryn
Albrecht, Cynthia Rico, Dave Dillon, David Shippen, David Barnett, Debbie Nichols, Don Webb,
Doris Griffin, Freyja Pereira, Gary Thompson, Gerald Sirotnak, Grace Hanson, Ireri Valenzuela,
Jon Fanucchi, Keith Franco, Leigh Ann Unger, Lucinda Over, Margie Carrington, Maria Gonzalez,
Mia Keeley, Mike Caruso, Marissa lliscupidez, Olivia Light, Pedro Avila, Rick Snodgrass, Robert
Burnie, Robyn Tornay, Sarah Tyson, Stephanie Dumont, Tim Calhoon, and Tim McCarthy-Smith.

Welcome/Roll Cali:
Mike Caruso called the meeting to order at 3:04 pm.

Meeting Minutes Approval:
The minutes for September 9, 2015 were approved by consensus with the corrections Rick made.

Portal Status- Current Development:

The first few months of portal development were focused on infrastructure, including building out
the log in and authentication, as well as the service that will allow the portal to communicate with
users. The focus has now shifted to core feature functionality, which is easier to demonstrate.
The last month or so has been heavily focused on portlet content delivery tools to populate the
SSP. This includes building templates for customized elements or ones that can be built from
scratch without the need to refy on IT staff. It will enable portal administrators or other
designated staff to: design an informational page, create a checklist, develop a smart form, or
customize student orientation elements. A user guidebook for the portal and temptates will be
developed by Diana Bishop from the Technology Center.

The information portlet will probably be used the most frequently and will allow users to stand up
content and basic media. The checklist allows for building as many different lists as needed to
guide students to complete particular work inside or outside the portal and they can be linked to
smart forms. As the student clicks through to finish forms and tasks, the checklist will update
itself. It provides for a highly prescribed user experience so that the student doesn’t get lost, and
fs directed to what they need to do. The smart form will allow users to put a branching set of
questions in front of a student to ask questions and guide the student based upon his or her
answers, like helping the student to figure out which financial aid form they should fill out. The
fourth portlet is an online orientation solution that will allow for content modules to be displayed
and quiz questions to be asked. These modules will lead to acceptance of orientation steps, and
the portlet will log those actions. It will move students through an ordered series of tasks to get
them ready for priority registration, and it will produce an artifact that can be consumed by local
systems to update the status of those orientation pieces in your system. The team is in talks to
determine how record completion of those elements ahead of SIS integrations, so that there is an
interim solution in place. The project does not want to be waiting on future integrations; it needs
to work for colleges. The Online Crientation work group is doing a fantastic job providing
templates for those orientation modules. Institutions could also create additional modules of their
own and stand them up easily, and while there probably won't be a template for that, the system
should support it.

In the area of User Interface, there has been a lot of work within the administrative interface, the
app launcher iconography has been implemented using a purchased set of icons that match the
portal really well, and the search bar has been moved to the top of the page for ease of use. All
of the items from recent development fit into the roadmap and the services layer, data acquisition,
and building the modifiable portlets, are all complete or underway. Mike Caruso felt that all of the
recent work demonstrates that the project is on target to meet the deadlines for pilot launch.

[ Tm o F Ly
SSP SC Zoom October 21, 2015 Page 1




Item VI. B. iv. 1.

Action Item:

Margie asked if a short roadshow could be planned for an upcoming gathering of the California
Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators {CASFAA) that the Chancellor's Office is
running; there could be 40-80 financial aid and student services professionals in attendance.
Rick will follow-up with Margie.

Understanding MVP:

Traditionally, product development was oriented around a leng period of planning, setting up
requirement, and then a year or so later, development followed by delivery of the completed
product, and there wasn't much opportunity for change and revision built into the process. Now it
is more common to use an Agile development methodology which is oriented around an ongoing
development process leading to a Minimum Viable Product (MVP) which can then be presented
to the users for further feedback, ideas, and requirements to improve the product. The current
goal for the portal is to get something out as a MVP by January and then continue to iterate and
improve from there. The first version is not going to be anywhere close to finished, but the
iterative development process allows for, and expects, change and revision. Unicon works on
one week development sprinis and iwo week reviews. David Shippen welcomed and encouraged
the committee to join the sprint reviews every two weeks to see the process of development and
provide feedback. The MVP will be a minimal functional product, much like a car with an engine,
wheels, and a steering wheel, but not yet having seats and upholstery. This is an open source
tool, so colleges will also eventually be able to contribute to the development, if desired.

Pilot Phases Letter:

The project wants to have an equitable way of recruiting colleges to help with two phases of
piloting the portal. The first is basically a pre-pilot phase for testing really fundamental aspects of
the portal during development, like authentication into the system through the CCCID common
identity and how to do the installation.

Don Webb noted that Santa Rosa’s intent is to replace their current portal that was developed in
house, but all the code is written In ASP.NET and it will be a significant programming task to
make the change, and will require them to have Java programmers. They are struggling with
that, and can't do a lot with existing resources. Their goal is to have one portal for students, but
they are running into significant impacts on the implementation at Santa Rosa. Mike explained
that one of the main purposes of developing the MVP is to be able to put the portal out according
to the JSR standard and allow colleges to play with it using the content tocls. That is why the
team wants to work with some pre-pilot schools like Santa Rosa to work out issues that need to
be resolved before the piloting of the MVP after January. Mia noted that the funding for getting
programmers might be covered from SSSP funding because of how the work is directed.

David explained that the letter being sent out to the committee is a request for guidance from
schools that might be able to help the project test the fundamental properties and to provide
feedback into what it would take to build something for other schools like those four pre-pilots.
The pre-pilots represent four different college personas. Mt. San Jacinto has an existing
Shibboleth integration, Santa Rosa has an existing advanced portal support environment,
Bakersfield is a Luminis school, and Fresno is a multi-college district environment.

In contrast, for phase two, David would like all colleges that are participating in this SSP Steering
Committee or EPT DAS to be eligible for participation, since those stakeholders understand the
requirements and know how to work together. It will be important to produce documentation of
the work that is done for implementation. The documentation will be a record of the processes
followed and experiences in working with the portal, which the project and later colleges will be
able to use in their implementations. This pilot phase is not an early path to production release;
colleges will not deploy the portal into a production role, with staff or student facing use, without
approval from the Program Director. Pilot colleges will be asked to test particular features and
must also be available for live demonstrations for the Technology Center and developers to
provide feedback.

e . . . S - S W — T T S ——
SSP SC Zoom October 21, 2015 Page 2



ltem VI. B. iv. 1.

The pre-pilot phase will occur before the end of the year, the pilot group will work through the first
quarter of 2016, and production implementation with the rest of the CCC system will begin in the
second quarter of 2016. Toward the end of 2015, the project team will start sequencing the
colleges that will start after the beginning of the year and will bring them on as quickly as
possible, probably in groups.

Action ltem:

Members were asked to read and respond to the letter sent out by email by Friday of this week, if
there are any objections or concerns. They are also asked to bring questions from IT staff to the
November face-to-face meeting.

Admin Ul Prototype Development:

Gary Thompson provided a demonstration of the Admin Prototype so that members could see the
progress on its development and get a feel for how far the user interface has come since the last
meeting. He also provided a quick review of the new set of icons for use in the app launcher.
Mike explained that right now the icons are not necessarily related to the particular app, they can
be changed into whatever is desired.

The team is assuming that admin personnel will log into a different experience from that of the
student, and this demo showed a sample placeholder of one possible look. It would have a
dashboard related to that person’s day to day work to provide for a cohesiveness of experience.
The sample had a blue bar denoting the overarching umbrella of the CCC brand and overarching
functions. Then a college bar was provided to represent the specific college brand and within that
area was a sub-menu of tabs, including an admin tab taking the user to a separate space which
would be dynamically generated based on that person’s role in the system and his/her
permissions.

The goal within the admin environment was to create an area that made the process as simple
and easy as possible. For that reason there are a reduced set of choices offered, with less
options available to begin with. One option is preview mode allowing the user to see how the
student view would look, but with a gray bar at the top and edging controls. Several pieces have
outlined boxes to help indicate that they can be edited. Efforts were made to simplify the process
by combining prompting with clickable items to avoid overwhelming the user. Editing prompts
can also be hidden or revealed as desired by the user during the process. The library of available
portlet content is stored in a “drawer” that can be pulled onto the page from the side. This side
pull provides a better way to show the list of available portlets to pull in and also allows for
scrolling through the rest of the view more easily. Admins with greater privileges can add content
to the drawer.

Gary demonstrated how to change the color scheme in the banner from within a set of particular
color options. Cynthia expressed concern about ADA compliance with the flexibility that is being
provided, and Mike explained that the only things are changeable now are colors and images
which should not be a problem. Additionally, the actual code on the front end is set up so that it
can be consumed by screen readers, so it is fine.

Setting up a new app can be done by putting in a URL, typing a description, and choosing an
icon. The team is assuming some defaults, (like “available to all students”) which could be
changed by unclicking if desired, but otherwise simplify setting up the layout for standard pages.
There could be finer grain permissions or defaults set up allowing for more specific selection of
particular groups of students (like Veterans or EOPS) if desired. In that case, if the default box
was unchecked, an expanded view would open up allowing for more specific selection. These
elements have been set up so that there are fewer decisions, or the choices are set to be more
“bite sized” with defaults that can be unchecked if desired.

The ability to publish and un-publish content is in the requirements, and Gary noted that at this
point the admin user can look at the student view to see what changes would look like without
. - . . e e
SSP SC Zoom QOctober 21, 2015 Page 3



ltem VI. B. iv. 1.

pushing it out live to students. That is part of that element, but the fuil ability would be a separate
action. Anything the user does which is saved would be saved across the appropriate admins
and pushing the content out to students is a separate action. This allows for lower permission
admins to develop content and then have it reviewed by someone with higher permissions before
it is pushed out to students.

Mike and Gary would like feedback from the committee by email or on Basecamp regarding the
demonstration. The geal is for it to be easily accessible to staff who are going to be dealing with
it; it should not be necessary for a person to be “IT staff-y" to be able to use it.

Career Workgroup Update:

Since the committee last met, the Career Workgroup rewrote the RFP with Dr. Cooper, refining
the requirements and priorities. That revised RFP was published on September 23" and was
due October 15". It is now being reviewed and scoring will be finished this weekend. Angela
expressed thanks to everyone who helped with that.

Orientation Workgroup Update:

The group had a workshop last week and got a lot done. They started with eight major areas
required for Orientation under the Title 5 rules, with small groups of people, and built out to a total
of fourteen areas. The content developed was very global, and then details were added, like quiz
questions for colleges that wanted to ask them. Dave Dillon synthesized the work of the smaller
groups into a single voice. He is reviewing it all to see if there are at least some quiz questions
and answers for colleges that might want them. Dave expressed amazement at the amount of
work accomplished by the group in six hours, and thanked everyone for that effort.

Ryen brought the original lengthy list of topics to the workshop and the group suggested which
content would be the most important to inciude in the phase one MVP. There will be additional
content needed later, and Angela is capturing requirements for phase two. There are sub-groups
working on video scripts in areas of education planning and financial aid. The group looked at
where the use of videos would be desirable; they wanted to make sure that the portlet is
interesting and engaging. David did good initial work in developing a relationship with people
who are willing to do videos for the project, but it would have to be on a pretty tight timeline. For
that reason, a separate group was broken out to develop the script for the first one. In addition, if
members have videos they are proud of, or have seen videos done at other schools that might be
used or adapted with permission, it would save the project time and money if those were shared
Sarah volunteered Margie and Kira fo help provide a perspective from Financial Aid in looking at
those financial aid videos. The project is still in negotiation with the company to make the videos,
so there is time to work on those scripts.

Stephanie emphasized the importance of getting clarification on how the different portiets will talk
to each other, because it will help avoid duplication of information. As the portlets are built it is
important not to dump the same information into five different portlets because it will overwhelm
students and it inefficient silos information. Rather than putting five paragraphs of text into a
financial aid medule, a link can be provided instead, and students can follow it when they are

ready.

Next Steps and Closing:

For the overarching EPI Steering Committee, Cynthia is looking at trying to educate the field
about the EPI project and all of its elements through a speaker series. She will be tapping into
the expertise of committee members in particular stakeholder groups. It is important to work on
getting the marketing message out for the project and its elements.

There was a great presentation at the RP Group Conference recently from the EPI team.

. T 1 2 e ——
SSP SC Zoom Octeber 21, 2015 Page 4



ltem VI. B. iv. 1.

Next Meeting:
The next meeting will be a face-to-face meeting on November 17" in Sacramento. There will be

an Orientation workgroup meeting prior to that, on the 16™. Rick asked members to check the
room block list sent out by email, for accuracy. Date adjustments in those reservations can be
made. He also reminded members that if they missed the deadline for reservations, they can
make their own and submit them later for reimbursement.

Adjourn:
The meeting was adjourned at 4:45pm.

SSP SC Zoom October 21, 201 Page 5






ltem VI. B. iv. 2.

EPI Pilot College (EPT/DAS) Steering Committee Meeting
Thursday Qctober 22, 2015
Zoom Online

EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Attendees: Andy Chang, Arleen Hollosy, Barbara Fountain,
Benjamin Mudgett, Bernadette Flameno, Caryn Albrecht, Cynthia Rico, David Shippen, Dipie
Patel, Gary Bird, Jay Field, Jon Fanucchi, Kayla Mannon, Lidia Jenkins, Kelly Kilby (Hobsons),
Michelle Stricker, MaryLou Leyba, Rick Snodgrass, Robert Burnie, Robin Armour, Robyn Tornay,
Sabra Sabio, and Tim McCarthy-Smith.

Welcome/Roll Call:
Cynthia called the meeting to order at 3:03 pm. Attendance was taken.

Meeting Minutes Approval:
There were no additions or corrections to the minutes from September 10, 2015, The minutes

were approved by consensus.

Sample Senate Motion:

Ben talked about what their campus has done to get support for the EPI from their Academic
Senate. They did a presentation and toward the end they proposed the idea of a motion to
support the EPI through a taskforce. It was a very simple recommendation that a task force be
formed with broad faculty representation to provide feedback and guidance for implementation.
The motion was carried with overwhelming support. The faculty appreciated being brought into
the conversation. Then the team did the same thing for their sister college Senate, and that
motion for a task force has been put on the agenda and should also pass. Ben noted the
importance of looking at a change management piece since this project has transitioned into a lot
of organizational structure work. Relationship building is important. Cynthia noted that every
campus has its own culture, so it is important to be aware of your own campus structure and look
into what works for your college. It is important to keep the Academic Senate informed as the
project moves along. Ben explained that it was very helpful on their campus that Robert McAtee
is on the Senate; they have regular updates, sometimes short and simple, and at others more in

depth.

Best Practices- Hobsons:

Kelly polled the implementation specialists to get a global perspective on starting point advice
about transition and best practices. Over time as more advice is gathered the suggestions will
continue to accumulate and be posted on the Basecamp space to help conversation about
transition and hest practices. With respect to group work in teams:

« ltis helpful when organizing your teams to have someone with
experience with WebEx and Google.

« |tis a good idea to make sure that you have all of the implementation
team members together before you start meeting so that you can get
to working together.

¢« Have a large enough room that allows you to work together
effectively

* Audio that can be heard like a speaker phone and access to the
Google Drive is important

= If possible have someone set up the technology early before the
meeting time so that you make the best use of the 60-90 min
appointment time with the implementation folks

Best practices from a Degree Planner standpoint:
» |tis a good idea for everyone to be assigned responsibility for
reviewing and testing so that everyone has a little bit of homework
and meat into it when they come back together for the meeting

R R R R R B R  —"——]
EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Zoom Online October 22, 2015 Page 1




item VI. B. iv. 2.

* Remember that the tracking document posted by the specialists is a
shared document; be conscious and cognizant of not making
changes to it other than the columns each person is responsible for

* Make sure that everyone has designated time each week for
reviewing, testing, and editing the programs that have been
completed during implementation to make sure that items are
identified before the meeting to provide for the best conversations
about those items

Kelly will post these suggestions and others that come up in the future.

Almost everyone is close to being in some aspect of the implementation phase at this point.
Santa Rosa had their kick-off and technical kick-off last week and Santa Barbara is going to be
doing their pre-planning and then hopefully their kick-off shortly thereafter. San Bernardino is still
waiting on their IPA at this point.

Marketing Resources Update:

Robert Burnie updated the committee on the work on marketing resources that have been
produced, and provided an overview of ways that those resources might be used. He also
showed samples of print and web resources that have been developed. The student facing
materials to inform about the education planning tocl are 90% complete and include a press
release, website template pages, and banners to support the school website; only the haif page
adverts are left to be done. Robert has contacted all of the PIOs and had in depth discussions
about everything that the colleges have used to advertise to students in the past.

The template that was developed has been included in the college style sheets. It has gotten
good reviews and contains beautiful campus shots; it will be rolled out to PIOs to support the
fnitiative in the spring. Robert showed the committee sample posters and fliers and explained
that everything has been coordinated with the school colors and so on, so that it looks like the
school. Website templates include copied HTML style sheets, and the EPI webpage can be
slotted right into the campus website in the location desired by the campus. (It can also be
stripped of code to go into a system like the Adobe CQ one that Jay has a San Francisco, if
needed.) Every effort has been made to make it as easy as possible to use the resources.
Cynthia praised the way that the materials captured the lock and feel for each of the colleges to
make it “their own.”

There has been a lot of contact and communication with the college PIOs, while also trying not to
bombard them with too many emails. The majority of school pictures Robert worked with are
from the internet, so the team is still in need of high resolution images for large banners or
posters; he wants the school to look beautiful in those larger images and not pixilated. He asked
members to follow-up with their PIOs regarding the school photos, if that help is requested.
Robert also noted that logos that were provided in Becker format were great, and if more of the
PIOs can send in that format, it would be wonderful.

Steering Committee members and PIOs should let Robert know by email if they need more fliers
for staff or faculty; just let him know what you need. One member noted that there are materials
that say "Education Planning Initiative” and wondered if similar materials could be prepared that

are specifically for Starfish Early Alert that could be given out to faculty highlighting features and
possibilities for use. Several members agreed that would help to grow buy-in from the faculty.

Action Item:
Robert will develop requested materials related to Starfish Early Alert for faculty. He can develop
materials if he is given at least a week; there needs to be time to get the necessary approvals.

Five different social media platforms are being used to support the TechEDge newsletter that is
sent out. A Steering Committee Spotlight was done on Jay, it looked great and received good

e = O = = = - |
EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Zoom Online October 22, 2015 Page 2



Item VI. B. iv. 2.

feedback as well. Further spotlights will cover other members and colleges. The social media
platforms that are being used are: Facebook, Twitter (@CCCEdPlan), Instagram, LinkedIn, and a
YouTube page (which doesn't have very much on it right now, but more items are coming).

Evety single college has a schedule of resources that the marketing team is planning to use and
the last step is to create a marketing plan. This will include a schedule and everything to expect
step by step; those will be created per school, not per district, since there are differences between
schools. Each college will have unlimited access through Google Drives (or whatever resource is
decided upon) to support the effort on campus. If a campus is using a marketing resource and
runs through the print resources, it will be available in that location. That will also allow for
individual campus changes to the resources, if desired; those resources will be accessible to
Steering Committee members and PIOs. The folder will also hold the schedule and marketing
plan. David Quintanilla took some wonderful photos of Santa Resa when the project team visited
recently that will be able to be used in materials for Santa Rosa. Members asked if different sites
within campuses could have materials that were site specific, and Robert acknowledged that
could be done if needed.

When Robyn or Barbara visits a college, the vast majority of the time Robert is along with them,
which can provide for a great opportunity for him to meet with PlOs, if they are available. That
kind of meeting, if it can be coordinated, really helps in finding the person who has the time to
dedicate to answering questions and working with the marketing team.

There is a schedule and timeline coordinating press releases with the college spotlights every
other week, which will be put out soon. The Technology Center PR team is in the process of
setting up services with Meltwater, which has resulted in a short delay to that schedule. They
should be ready to go in the next week or two. Robert will send a message to the Steering
Committes and PIOs when those services are set up, to let them know about the press release
and timeline. Meltwater is an incredible service to use to hit every news outlet and website. The
marketing team did an impression off of a trial run and generated 29,000 impressions for the
Fresno area, (although the Fresno Bee did not show up, which was puzzling) it is not a
completely sure thing, but it did hit 87% of media in that region, so it is worth waiting for.

College Report QOut:

In an agenda item that will be a standing item moving forward, Cynthia asked pilot colleges to
report out on kudos, unknowns, and burning questions they have come across so far in their
implementations.

Lidia reported that San Francisco has been meeting weekly with Naocmi, Emily and a lot of folks
on their calls; they have been very responsive and good. Erin was helpful in figuring out student
attributes and working through it with them. There are a lot of unknowns right now, most recently
on setting up relationships in the Starfish Admin test sites: counselor roles, instructor roles, and
other areas, so that people will have access to different cohorts of students. When they started
they wanted the Degree Audit and Degree Planner to be their primary focus to get away from
their homegrown EF, but as they go through the phone calls and setting up the system the way
that they want with respect to the level of access an employee is geing to have, they are really
starting to see how the Degree Planner is connected to the Starfish Early Alert and other
components. The differences in what types of information a counselor sees versus what an
English teacher sees about a group of students, is becoming more apparent. They are
wondering whether to tum on some of the Early Alert features, which they hadn’t wanted to do
right away, but they know they want to get buy-in from faculty at some point. With the Degree
Planner right now, they are trying to understand all the different language and what it means to be
a cohort and so on. It can be challenging because the language of the community college is
different from the vendor vocabulary. For example, “cohort” sounds like it would be a special
population like DSPS or some other group, but they are still working through how to set up those
special populations so that there aren't too many to manage later. Their team records the weekly
phone conversations and has a scribe summarize; they also debrief in the room as a group after

L - ________— _____— ___________~ _— ]
EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Zoom Online October 22, 2015 Page 3



Item VI. B. iv. 2.

the Hobsons team hangs up. Cynthia emphasized how helpful those notes will be to the third,
fourth, and fifth colleges to come on; this is great work helping the later “siblings.”

Every week they learn something new, but at this point it is still hard to see how all of the puzzle
pieces will fit together since they are seeing them right now in isclation from AgileGrad. It is like
looking at all of the ingredients for a cake in isolation, you know it will someday be a cake, but
right now you can't tell how many ingredients it will take. Naomi and Kelly try to help saying
things like, “If this were a real live student, you would see the academic history here,” but it is
hard trying to imagine what it will look like when it all fits together. Now they have 150 programs
and the student attributes, and they are working on cohorts, but it is hard to picture because it has
been some time since they saw the program in action. Lidia is hoping that they have selected
their attributes, roles and so on, correctly. There is always the opportunity to go in and add items
and make adjustments, but it feels like it is important to get the initiaf set-up correct,

Robin Armour from Los Medanos echoed Lidia's comments. Their group is meeting as a district
wide group with representatives from each college; the other two colleges are listening in and
paying aitention since they plan to move through the process one at a time. They found a way to
load up the college degree audit directly into Hobsons; after Los Medanos is done they will move
on to DVC and CCC. They have a core group that is certain representatives from each college
and not the entire group from all of the colleges which would have been too unwieldy. However,
as they have gone along, they have added other people who decided that they needed to be
involved. At Los Medanos they are doing Degree Planner first, and then adding Early Alert later,
and one of the other colleges also wanted to get Early Alert as soon as possible, so they have
two teams, one for Degree Planner and one for Early Alert. (The Early Alert people are feeling a
little held back, but that is an internal thing.) Tomorrow Los Medanos will start meeting as a
college team outside of the weekly district meetings. They will be going through their
relationships, cohorts, and attributes, to make sure that they have everything identified. They
have also been trying to understand what each of those terms means; Robin noted that they have
cohorts at Los Medanos, but they don't necessarily mean the same thing as they do in Hobsons.
She appreciated that Emily and Naomi have been very patient in explaining things more than
once. They just got into the front end of Starfish Administration to look at, play with, and touch it,
which Robin as a hands-on person finds very helpful to her comprehension.

In building the Degree Planner, they ran into a few hiccups. Itis a little bit complex because
Hobsons isn't building their programs; Los Medanos is uploading them directly from Colleague.
Robin and the team are working with their IT department in what is being uploaded and defining
what they are uploading. Los Medanos developed the system with Hobsons to upload the
Degree Audit, but what they are seeing on the Hobsons side is not consistent with what is in
Colleague. So now Robin has four evaluators working on taking the catalog and the pdf that
uploaded automatically and comparing them. There may be up to four pieces of information they
are comparing including the 2014/15 catalog and the 2015/16 catalog, to see where each item is
coming from. It has been a little challenging on the college end because at first her people didn't
understand what she needed them to do, but now they are trying to list everything out, and they
have a sheet they are working from. Her staff has been emailing Satish and saying “they’re not
including the print text” and he is responding “we're including it in what we send them, so thatis a
Hobsons’ thing.” Once everything looks like is supposed to it will be good. Right now that
process is aimost complete; she is hoping to have it done tomorrow, so that they will be able to
give Hobsons some feedback. They just got the app enabler loaded up, so it means that Los
Medanos’ IT team can begin loading in student data; which is really exciting and they are just
about ready to start doing that.

For the Degree Planner, they have two counselors who will start with a small slice consisting of
brand new EOPS students. They hope to have the Degree Planning tool up and working by the
time they go on break, so that they can do some heavy duty testing with their counselors. Then
those counselors are going to be training the other EOPS counselors so that any one of them can

———— e — e e —————— . ——- - y—
EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Zoom Online October 22, 2015 Page 4



ltem VI. B. iv. 2.

see an EOPS student; there are about 350 brand new EOPS students that they are hoping to do
education pfans with in January.

Overall, it is working really well. The meetings are great and Los Medanos has asked a ton of
questions. The district has done many pilots but they are not used to doing it this way with a lot
of IT involvement and the weekly meetings. It is just different from other implementations they
have done. It is going well and every week they learn something new. They will be having the
core LMC team mect tomorrow, so she should have more to report out after that. They are
kicking into high gear to get up and running.

Robin explained that Satish is willing to share the code for how the programs are uploaded,
college can contact him, but should be very specific in leiting him know that they need the code.
Los Medanos will report out when they figure out what happened with the data integrity. It didn't
happen on all degrees. Satish said that it is Hobsons, and Robin hasn't talked to Hobsons about
it yet because they have still been going through the degrees. Apparently Satish uploaded
everything, but they found out that 2015/16 hadn't been done for some degrees. The evaluators
are now doing the Degree Audit for 2015/16 and once that is done, Satish will re-upioad them and
some majors will end up with 2014/15 and 2015/16. They aren’t going back any further. They
found that uploading the degrees cut out a lot of work, and Los Medanos knows that they don’t
want to be running two Degree Audit systems.

Michelle reported that Fresno is In the process of getting their degrees and it is going really well.
They are trying to pilot all three schools together, so Hobsons is developing a multi-district
component which, unfortunately, they don’t think will be ready until January. Fresno City will
definitely be piloting in March. Clovis and Reedley may be piloting in March, but they may end up
only piloting in Starfish and then piloting the Degree Planner part next fall. They had some issues
getting their atfributes set up because they had way too many. Their discussions with Hobsons
have been about trying to figure out a way to group their attributes, but they may bring a
recommendation to the committee meeting in November regarding increasing the attributes
because they don't feel that having less attributes is really the answer. Atfributes were the
biggest issue for them. Fresno did get started on the Starfish product on Monday and they
thought it was nice to play around with it and see how the different pieces work, as well as what
the relationships would be.

Cynthia confirmed that other colleges felt the same way about the attributes. Colleges knew
about the limit to 150 programs, but were surprised about the limit to ten attributes. She felt that
having a unified focus on that conversation in November would be a good idea. Lidia explained
that Hobsons may be treating the restriction on attributes differently between Banner and
Colleague schools; she thought that Colleague schools might be able to have more attributes.
Erin had told Lidia that she would go back to the programmers to find out what they could and
could not program for the colleges. For San Francisco, they were frying to figure out where those
pieces of information are stored in Banner; Lidia thought that there were fifteen attributes they
were asking for, and they might end up with twelve or so. The biggest issue was the element of
surprise in finding that there would be a limit on the atiributes. The colleges knew that the
programs would be limited to 150, but they would have liked to know what the parameters and
limitations would be on relationships, cohorts, attributes, and so on before going into it.

Crafton Hills had nothing to report today.

E! Camino has been meeting weekly on Wednesdays, with Erin and Emily, both the Torrance
campus and the Compton Center. They have worked on the attributes so far. They also had
kudos for cleaning up their SIS in order to load what was needed for Starfish. El Camino is
starting off with Starfish first and then doing Degree Planner after that. They also had kudos for
Fresno and San Francisco for what they have posted on Basecamp. El Camino was able to use

a lot of their attributes and the Dean also spoke to Lidia about how the process is going. They

are very grateful to other for colleges sharing their experiences. Right now they are just in the
- N - S * - WS~ WS W— N - N ——— v S ——
EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Zoom Online October 22,2015 Page 5



ltem VI. B. iv. 2.

beginning phases, with Hobsons having loaded about seven degree programs. They meet as a
team for half an hour after the Hobsons meeting, to debrief, and parcef out the homework; then
again right before the next meeting with Hobsons.

El Camino practitioners also find it hard to visualize what the system will look like and to imagine
something different from what they are seeing. For example, in the formatting they asked
Hobsons to change the credits to units and were told, “Yes, that will be fixed later,” but they really
want to see those changes now. They know that when this is presented to faculty, it has to be
good, because that is when the commitment will happen. Cynthia agreed that change
management is important, and blind faith can be challenging, building that trust relationship is
critical. The El Camino team meets weekly and has: evaluators from both campuses, the Vice
President of Academic Affairs, the Vice President of Student Services, and all or most of [T there;
there is really good representation from the people who will be advertising this to the rest of the
campus, and that is wonderful. However, the blind faith is scary.

Victor Valley is not on the phone right now.
Santa Barbara had to leave.

Tim McCarthy-Smith from Santa Rosa reported that they had their technical kick-off last week.
He provided kudos because it went very well. Their IT, counseling, and A&R have been working
very closely together for the last year on Education Planning/Degree Audit. They have key
stakeholders and a team that planned a marketing plan that made the kick-off very smooth. No
one was surprised that this was happening; faculty, IT, and staff were already aware it would be
happening and many had in depth knowledge. The kick-off was from 8:30- 12:30 and was split
into two sessions of an hour and a half each. The first session was a high level discussion about
what the program was doing and how it would help the college. Everyone who attended could
get information directly from the team; it was good, short, and all the key people were there.
Robyn agreed that the kick-off went well for Santa Rosa with good gquestions coming back to
Hobsons; as the last one so far, it was probably one of the smoothest ones. The second half was
the technical part and it went well also. Their lead programmers were there which is important
because Santa Rosa is implementing multiple initiatives simultaneously including moving te the
Canvas LMS product. The lead programmer who has done uploads for Canvas from their SIS
will be on this project as well. That means they will be able to take some of the core knowledge
from the lessons learned from the Canvas uploads into working with the bigger set of
requirements with Hobsons; it helps to have the same team. They are working on locking at
everyone's schedules now to set up the weekly meetings.

Tim explained that a feedback tool from Hobsons back into the SIS still needs to be developed.
The way Santa Rosa's SIS is built, everything goes into Amazon Web Services and nothing
comes out. Hobsons is working on a return path for getting that back. All of the colleges noted
that it is critical to be able to get that information back out of Hobsons. Barbara emphasized that
Hobsons knows this is something that all of the colleges need. and that they need it “yesterday”
Hobsons had committed to having it by December, but the project let them know that was too
late. Members felt this was another huge example of blind faith

CCCID Interaction/Other Initiatives:

Jay and other members expressed concem about how the CCCID would be connected into the
EPI tools, and how old students who did not apply through the new CCCApply with OpenCCC
could or would be assigned ID numbers. Robyn explained that there are peopie working on how
to handle that issue of existing students and the project will be reporting back on it. Jay
suggested that it could not be a voluntary process; it will have to be mandatory to make sure that
it happens.

Tim McCarthy-Smith also requested that in the interest of transparency in information the
committee also be updated regularly on what is happening with the other initiatives, especially on

L - ]
EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Zoom Online October 22, 2015 Page 6



tem VI, B. iv. 2.

their potential connections to this initiative like CAl and the Portal. He thought that perhaps it
could happen on Basecamp, but emphasized that some kind of communication chain was critical.

Action ltem:
Have an agenda Item at the next meeting to provide updates with respect to how other initiatives
connect to the Education Planner/Degree Audit tools.

Future Presentations/General Discussion:

There are quite a few presentations that are coming up, and the project team will be trying to
reach as many conferences as possible. Kudos went to the group that did a panel at the RP
Group with Ireri, and explained how implementation of this initiative will benefit both the student
and the practitioner. It was a great group effort. Cynthia would like to carry that dynamic forward
into future presentations; she asked group members to consider providing expertise at Academic
Senate Plenary events in the fail and spring, the first is a breakout on November 5™ at Irvine.
She asked members who live in the south to consider being part of the presentation.

Hobsons Team Member Change:

Anu Bums has replaced Erin Novak as the West Coast representative with Hobsons. Everyone
is working hard on making that transition as smooth as possible. Anu has been with Hobsons for
quite a while. She was at Hobsons University, and she and Keith will both be at the November
meeting in Sacramento.

Implementation Grant:

Members had an extensive discussion about their concerns regarding the lack of progress on the
Implementation Grant which is reported as “still sitting with legal”. Tim McCarthy-Smith noted that
it came back to the issue of blind faith only lasting so long; the committee needs more information
than just hearing that it is with legal. Robyn and Cynthia indicated that they have no further
information on what the holdup is, and David is the only one who might know at this time and he
is not here.

Members were adamant that if David Shippen does not or is not able to provide more information
in November, they would like to have someone from legal at the meeting to explain what the
delay is.

Action item:
Committee members would like a report from David Shippen or legal, regarding reasons for the

delay in the Implementation Grant.

Next Meeting:
The next meeting will be a face-to-face meeting in Sacramento on November 18"

Adjournment:
The meeting was adjourned at 5:02 pm.

B CR I s ) N 15 0 T 1 M I B T L 5 T o = T 1 =0 T SO W e W — = -
T o W W M O S O 1 0 S O St W W— s N == W —

EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Zoom Online October 22,2015 Page 7






tem VL. B. iv. 3

Student Services Portal Steering Committee Meeting
Tuesday November 17, 2015
Sacramento Holiday Inn Capital Plaza

SSP SC Attendees: Aeron Zentner (online), Amanda Davis, Ana Ogaz, Angela Baucom, Barbara
Fountain, Brianna Hays, Brook Oliver, Caryn Albrecht, Chelley Maple, Courtney Cooper, Cynthia
Rico, Dave Dillon, David Quintanilla, David Shippen, Diane Berkland (online), Don Webb, Gary
Bird, Gerald Sirotnak, Grace Hanson, Henry Chen (online), Ireri Valenzuela, Janet Fulks, Jay
Field, Jon Fanucchi (cniine), Lisa Romano, Lucinda Over, Margie Carrington, Maria Gonzalez,
Marissa lliscupidez, Mia Keeley, Mike Caruso, Mike Plant, Olivia Light, Pedro Avila, Richard
Loucks, Rick Snodgrass, Robert Burnie, Robert Kim (online}, Robyn Tornay, Ryen Hirata,
Stephanie Dumont, Tim Galhoon, Tim McCarthy-Smith {online), Victor DeVore, and Yamonte
Cooper

Welcome/Roll Call:
Cynthia Rico called the meeting to order at 10:03.

Meeting Minutes Approval:
The minutes for October 21, 2015 were approved.

David Shippen thanked Victor DeVore for his help with a recent conference presentation, and
presented him with a hat in recognition of his effort.

Portal Status- Current Development:

Mike Caruso provided an update on portal development. There is a large quantity of
requirements that the development team could spend the next three years working on, so one of
the first tasks was to prioritize the list and come up with those items that were the most important
to have in the first launch version referred to as the “Minimum Viable Product” (MVP). This does
not reflect what the final version will be, after the MVP Is released in January the development
teamn will continue to work on additional features; the MVP just represents the most basic starting
version. The development team has been working on: architecture to support student data,
Shibboleth to allow for pilot schools to do single sign-on (SS0), email communication service and
an audit log so that staff will be able to determine whether or not an email was received, search
functionality to make it easier to navigate all of the content, modern user interface, and a basic
administrator interface which is functional but visually not as attractive as it will be later. There
are also three tools for staff and administrators to use to stand up content: an information portlet
for setting up a simple web page of content; a smart form portlet which allows for a branching
series of questions which based upon responses will take students to different information, like
might be used to determine which financial aid form a student needs to fill out; and checklist
portlets like explore, apply, college, and financial aid, which will allow for sefting up a sequence of
steps for students to follow and also allow progress to be tracked on the checklist and a progress
bar. Eventually, there will be a state branded portal for unattached students to get basic
information to help them get started. At some point the development team and Steering
Committee will need to determine who will be responsible for that state branded portal; it will
probably end up being administered by something like the ongoing CCCApply work group.

The development team is building the toolbox that can then be used to build the other items and
elements that colleges need for their students. The Orientation component will have a framework
for basic information which can be modified; the focus is on providing a toolset. One member
thought that it would be easier for colleges to have basic tools which could be edited, rather than
starting with an empty toolbox; it would be useful to give colleges somsthing to start with which
could then be moved and edited as needed. Mike and David Shippen explained that there is a
strong commitment to open source with the portal, which will allow colleges {o add to resources
and to use resources developed by others.

e e - |
SSP SC Sacramento November 17, 2015 Page 1



tem VI. B. iv. 3

Dave Dillon asked about the cost for the portal after the five year pilot, and David Shippen
explained that he can provide an approximate idea of the cost for different features when the
contract is done. Stephanie noted that districts that are looking at updating their portal will
assume that the price is too high if no cost is shared. From the information David Shippen has,
the cost should be comparable or cheaper. There are not costs associated with the portal, so the
question really relates to the post grant costs for the specific features (career tools, education
planning tools, and so on) after 6/30/2019. He will put together an FAQ document to share
answers to these important concerns.

Don explained that the largest issue will be the cost to IT to implement, and the cost to build out
the portlets. Some of them will just be web links but for example, in the case of Santa Rosa, haif
of the links are embedded to the SIS. The framework is in Java, which means they need to have
people trained up in Java to write the portlets to connect up to the SIS database, so there will be
quite a bit of development time and cost associated to actually implement and replace their
current system.

Action ltem:
David Shippen will put together a FAQ document to answer:
1) License costs for career planning, Hobsons, etc. after 6/30/2019
2} Costs for ongoing support and maintenance
3) Wil there be training available for college IT people to help with full implementation
4) What are the common portlets that will be developed that can be customized to interact
with college systems

Jay noted that all of the colleges have similar needs that they would like to accomplish, but the
backend will be different. Mike explained that in the first phase the team has been looking at
developing customizable content that does not require IT staff to do the customization. As the
team moves into the pilot phase and starts having discussion with schools about backend
systems, the team will start to develop a target inventory for those items. There probably won’t
be a one size fits all system, but they will look at what can be done. Right now they are starting
to look at Bakersfield and how to help them avoid needing to buy Luminis 5. Mike felt that it was
realfly helpful to know what integrated style portlets people would really like to see.. The whole
system is based on uPortal architecture.

Bakersfield is not the only college that is locking at upgrading to Luminis 5, although Stephanie
has tried to communicate with her district about the work of the portal project, they are still looking
at spending rescurces to go from Luminis 4 to Luminis 5 and she feels that many colleges are
getting that pressure. The project needs to communicate to those colleges so they don't spend
resources for something that is being developed for the system. Stephanie tries to spread the
message, but she feels that since she is faculty and not IT her perspective is not seen as
credible. Tim Calhoon thought that colleges could keep Luminis 4 in the background until the
SSP is ready. Mike admitted that the project needs to do a better job of communicating what is
coming, but also acknowledged that one-to-one functionality with Luminis will not be available on
day one; however, eventually it should be possible.

Tim Cathoon emphasized that building Java portlets is not a trivial thing, and most of the colleges
don’t have Java programmers. Ellucian is not going to provide help with that, so there will need
to be work done to build portlets that do things like registration. Victor also noted that interaction
with the SIS is an important piece for the colleges; if a student does a checklist and goes through
the SSSP steps, and the portal can track that completion, it would be a big pull for colleges. Mia
also reminded members that colleges can use their SSSP money to make implementations.
Colleges can hire the IT staff that they need to get the portlets up and running; it just has to be
focused on technology and websites for S8SSP. Victor noted that feeding the completion of
orientation and a simple education plan into the SIS connects to SSSP.

e e e — ———————
SSP SC Sacramento November 17, 2015 Page 2



ltem VI B. iv. 3

It is important to facilitate colleges’ development of tools collaboratively so that everyone isn’t
building things separately and duplicating efforts. Jay agreed that combining knowledge and
resources when building portlets, like what San Francisco is doing with Hobsons as a Banner
school making it easier for future Banner schools will help. The project should be looking at the
kinds of 8IS specific portlets that are needed, and then try to build once and have the
configuration be different as needed. That is an important strategy.

Action Item:

Draft resolutions for SIS specific portlets that are needed.

Crystalize a strategy to communicate what is happening with Portal development to Banner
colieges considering moving to Luminis 5 and bring it back to the SSP Steering Committee.

Integration to the Starfish product is also important and the team is also working with CAIl on how
to accommodate their project timeline. For OEIl the colleges are currently linking to Canvas
directly, but they know they need to get the single sign-on set up with Shibboleth which will
enable the portal to pass authentication as well.

Janet noted that CAl is asking everybody to pilot non-cognitive variable testing, and it would have
been nice to be able to use the Smart form tool instead of having to pay Accuplacer for each
question. That could be a great benefit going forward.

Mia noted that while you probably couldn’t use SSSP funding for moving from Blackboard to
Canvas, it would be justifiable and reasonable to charge a percentage for putting your orientation
onto Canvas.

EPI will travel to CCCDUG in January with more than one speaker. The Chancellor's Office also
has a SSSP Student Equity conference in March. Tim Calhoon emphasized that the goal of the
grant as it was written is to help students identify their goals and develop educational plans;
Veterans and foster youth are two of the target populations for that work, but registration, and
general email are not really the focus. Mike Caruso explained that a lot of portlets like those do
exist in the uPortal inventory.

November portal development will be focused on: completing the checklist functionality,
completing work on responsive design, bullding user access flow for the college website (the
unattached student view will happen after January), complete the branding control for the user
interface, and if possible, complete Hobsons integration work.

New Pilot Program Timeline:

Phase one of the portal development goes through the end of this calendar year. The first phase
of portal pilots are Mt. San Jacinto, Bakersfield, Santa Rosa, and Fresno which were selected
because they had characteristics that were representative of four kinds of colleges and they were
able to work with the project team on Shibboleth integration. As soon as those first four colleges
are up the project will collect user feedback. Then a rolling implementation of the second phase
of pilot colleges will occur throughout the winter, spring, and into the summer. The criteria for the
second phase of the pilot is membership on one of the EPI committees and a willingness to work
with the project providing implementation feedback, demonstrations, and presentations to
improve the portal and the implementation process for future colleges that will use it.

Phase 1 is everything that leads up to the Minimum Viable Product in January. After that work
will continue on improving the product throughout the rolling implementation. in the long run

there are three possible levels of use that cofleges might have with respect to the portal: no
implementation (students could just go into the state branded portal); partial implementation using
some customized portal elements along with the college’s own portal; or full implementation
where the project portal becomes fully integrated into the school for all its portal needs. There is
a lot of flexibility with respect to how colleges could use the portal/portlets. Everything is being
written to the JSR286 standard.

T~ - N S B |
SSP SC Sacramento November 17, 2015 Page 3




Item VI. B. iv. 3

Victor thought that the portal could be largely oriented toward the new student and could be used
as the gateway to gather initial information. It would be beneficial to colleges to gather data in
the portal for Academic Progress/Probation data and follow up services (Mia noted that colleges
are still reporting zero even though they certainly have services). Colleges need to track SS11
data, so it would be a great marketing message for the value of the portal. Janet agreed that the
ability to close the loop on probation would be very useful, since what the system has now isn't
working. Robyn highlighted that closing the loop is also a feature with Starfish, including the
ability to do reports to the SIS.

Workgroups- Regroup, Refresh:
The committee generated a list of possible new work groups including:
1) SS8SP Services- including bringing in people that are well versed in Basic Skills to see
what might be needed in that area to balance or complement SSSP
2) Follow-up services with Starfish
3) IT Admins of portlet development
4) Implementation workgroup to track lessons learned
5) Cross product integration with OEI, CAl, and EPI
6) Predictive Analytics (ideas from the former “Dashboard” work group)
7) Communications and marketing (maybe from EPISC, CAl and OELl)
B) Categorical reporting (EOPS, DSPS, etc.)
9) Create a data catchment or finding a way to harvest the data that schools can use (this
may be included in different work groups and Ireri will do some of that tracking as well)

Members were concerned about the possibility of creating too many work groups since everyone
is already stretched pretty thin for time with the number of meetings. Mike assured members that
their time will be respected. Additionally, some of the work groups have gone away, or will
eventually.

Ireri will be focused on the metrics for the portal project and looking at both qualitative and
quantitative measures to track how students are being helped, so those will not be forgotten.

Productization, Subgrant, NDA, Pilot Ops:

David Shippen discussed the process that will be followed as this group continues forward with
portal development toward productization with the phase two pilot colleges. He discussed the
responsibilities and requirements of pilot colleges with respect to providing feedback and input
into ongeing portal development, as well as willingness to present findings in work group and
Steering Committee meetings.

Several members asked how they would let the project know that they are interested in being in
the next phase of the pilot. David will write an IPA type agreement like the one for the Education
Planning/Degree Audit tool. There is an interest survey on the CCCEdPlan.org website where
colleges can provide information about their interest in participation in the portal pilot, as well as
interest in the Education Plan/Degree Audit tool, and/or the Starfish Early Alert tool. Colleges
should fill out that survey by the end of the Zoom meeting on December o including if they are
interested in implementing the portal later than spring. The survey was posted on the website in
connection with the recent statewide webinar presented by EPI to communicate the good news of
EPI and determine level of interest in participation in piloting; it is @ one hour session with a lot of
good information. The webinar and survey are both posted on the website. The project team is
also working on getting the message out at meetings and regional conferences throughout the
state.

Sub-grant:
There will be an implementation sub-grant available to colleges that implement any of the EPI

projects, including the portal. Colleges that participate in the pilots and ones that implement more
components will have larger sub-grants for their efforts.

. — e e S ——
SSP SC Sacramento November 17, 2015 Page 4



ltem VI. B. iv. 3

The goals are to:
= Accelerate adoption of EP! tools and workflows
*  Support an atmosphere of learing and sharing
*  Support diversity in early adopters by reducing financial barriers
*  Support long term institutional change
-Flexibility for investment in local solutions
-Coupled with CCCTC staff support for Tech, marketing, and project management
*  Support completion of project implementations

The benefits to institutions include significant resources of up to $70K for colleges, with additional
funds for pilots. These funds will give colleges flexibility in finding local solutions. The phase one
program milestones are: discovery documentation, providing a project team and budget for the
grant, having kickoff meetings, and providing a project schedule. At the end of phase one, the
institution will receive 50% of their grant. The other 50% will be received at the end of phase four
when the institution has: gone live with students using the system for the purpose intended,
provided usage reports, and provided project status inputs, including actual grant expenditures.
The institution will need to complete phase four within one year. The intent is to study the
implementation processes and experiences of the colleges so that improvements can be made
for later colieges.

Next steps for the mstltutlons are to retrieve the seven grant documents from Basecamp after 4
pm on November 19" and review then with their institutional board, legal, or other governance
bodies, as needed. Questlons should be addressed on an individual institutional basis with the
Technology Center and then the college should submit the agreement and the first invoice.

David introduced Michael Plant who is coming onto the project to help craft the implementation
guide. This will help to set up a framework so that all the succeeding institutions will have a

process lo follow.

Crientation Workgroup Update:
The Online Orientation work group met yesterday to continue their work on the first level content

for the student Cnline Orientation for the Student Success Portal. At their first workshop on
October 12™, the group drafted the first level content consisting of all eight Title 5 Standards and
some quiz questions and answers. Yesterday, the group worked on refining some of the
segments including Registration and Fees, Financial Aid, and completing quiz questions and
answers for the shell. The group also began to define and prioritize the second level content.
They are not designing; they are just looking at scope to ensure compliance with Title 5
requirements. A lot of work has been done on defining and refining what the content should be.
First level content (that is the “must have” content for alignment with Title 5) is being done now,
and then the second level content (that college “may have, but is not mandated) will be
completed after the start of the year.

The group provided examples of the current work in progress and noted that items in black are
standard template material, while red are starting points that campuses will need to customize.
Each college will need to identify or recommend someone to be in charge of this task. It won't be
possible to have something that is automatically ready and available, there will need to be
campus people to figure out and choose what to include and then to put itin. The questions may
need to be modified as well, depending upon what the college chooses to include.

Each module will include three elements: the content itself (text, images, embedded videos, etc.),
a checkbox for completion, and questions for the student to answer. For questions that the
student answers incorrectly, the school will also be able to determine the next step, like having

the student take another try at the question that they missed and then move on once the
guestions have been completed successfully. The student has two tries to answer the question
correctly before they can go on to the next section.

8w o= __________0pn " p

SSP SC Sacramento ' November 17, 2015 Page 5




temVI. B.iv. 3

The committee discussed the merits of different ways of handling what happens when a student
misses a question whether providing a nudge to go back to review the material or sending the
student directly to the section, and then answering the same question or another question related
to the material. Providing another question would require having a test bank. Chelley felt that it
was also important to know what items students do not understand, and whether it is content or
format; then it could be evaluated for disproportionate impact and clarity and so on. David
suggested making the process simpler with no questions, but members felt that it was neither too
complicated nor too simple with true/false and multiple choice answers, while also providing
valuable information.

There was a question related to wording regarding registration, fees, and whether to instruct
students to check dates with their campus, versus saying that the fees were due at time of
registration. Victor suggested directing students to know and understand the Academic Calendar
at the college. Another member noted that the statement “you may be dropped from your
courses” shouid be at the top of the page so that students don't miss seeing it. For information
that occurs in more than one section, like Satisfactory Academic Progress, BOG loss of fee
waiver and so on, there could be links for them. Additionally, Victor suggested using wording that
says "refer to the resources or glossary” section for your college’s policy or definition for those
terms.

Subgroups worked on scripts for videos for the more complex and sometimes dry information for
Financial Aid and Education Planning. There are several videos that are planned, and it is
important that they be professionally done, but also have high quality accessibility; Windseng is
the company that was selected. The selection didn't rise to the level of needing to involve an
RFP. ltis possible to have English dialogue with English captioning, or English dialogue with
Spanish captioning, and so on, as needed. The overall goal is not necessarily to provide all
encompassing content, but to ensure that the base level content would be available that colleges
would then be able to enhance and incorporate.

Two sample videos were shown to give an idea of the kind of work that could be done with live
action as well as with Ydraw. Various members thought that the Ydraw might be especially
useful for developing engaging video that could present more information in a shorter period of
time and would be less likely to become “dated” in appearance over time, but also emphasized
the importance of showing the diversity of system In the characters represented in any videos.
David thought that it would be helpful to use the persona card to make sure CCC diversity was
represented. In the samples the speaking speed might be too fast for comprehension for ESL
students. Stephanie suggested testing the videos in front of student audiences and Chelley
suggested that perhaps there could eventually be the option of offering a video with a persona
that matches how the student identifies themselves.

The timeline involves completing scripts this month and then doing video drafts next month. In
January the videos would be refined and ready, with completion and feedback in February. Tim
Calhoon suggested that the team should also meet with Sean Keegan to make sure that the color
contrast on captioning and other accessibility concerns were addressed.

Career Explorer Demo and Update:
After an initial unsuccessful vendor RFP process, this work group went back and condensed and

revised their requirements down frem eighty-three to eighteen questions and then renewed the
RFP process. They were able to narrow the selection down from four vendors to two, and then
down to one after one of the vendors did not meet the very important accessibility guidelines.
The final vendor selected was EMSI with their Career Coach product. Career Coach allows for
either a shorter series of six questions or a more in depth series of forty to fifty questions, which
help to determine the student’s area of interest and abilities. The student can use the product if
they come in with a career in mind; or when a major has been selected, to pick a career or job; or
if they want to go to college and have no idea what they would like to do. Career Coach uses

e
SSP SC Sacramento November 17, 2015 Page 6



tem V1. B. iv. 3

local employment data which will need to be set up and updated regularly, but the company
already does that in other markets. Updating of information could potentially be pulled from
Chancellor’s Office Curriculum Inventory program information. Career exploration is a key
element of the system wide aspect of the portal and a focus of the legislature so it might make
sense to put in information for all 113 colleges at one time and to put the maintenance into the
contract.

This product does not have videos of people speaking about particular careers (that video
element of the other company was what caused accessibility issues). This is a simple and
focused product to help a student make an informed decision about their career path. Angela
explained that the single sign-on (SSO) and application interface would still need to be
developed, but those are easier to develop than accessibility elements. Second language
capability will also need to be developed. The team will be working on an abbreviated contracting
process and hopes to have something in place before the end of the year.

The committee went through a sample of the short form for questions from a website. Members
felt that it seemed easy to navigate, and wouid be good to use in a one-on-one session with a
student, who would then be able to investigate further on their own. It could be a good tool for
school career counselors to use to engage with students. The committee also found it helpful to
have both short and long version question options. Cynthia also thought it could be used as a
preliminary tool which could then be refined further once the student gets to their campus. Others
agreed and thought that it might help students to use more factual information to make more
informed initial decisions about what they might want to study. This might help avoid the student
who selects a career based solely on the salary with no other information.

Yesterday Paul Feist, the Vice Chancellor for Communications asked that members of this
committee in the area of workforce would connect with and work with others who are part of the
Workforce Task Force. They want to develop a comprehensive program to be able to message
students, and to message them through the portal.

Action ltems:

Connect the Career Exploration work into Curriculum Inventory, and possibly align it with Industry
Sectors for the state of California (which includes "Media™).

Connect with the Workforce Task Force Recommendations.

Next Steps and Closing:
Members were reminded to complete the interest survey by December o™,

There will be various presentations over the next several months and members were asked to
bring their expertise whenever possible, and were thanked for being open to that,

Next Meeting:
The next meeting will be December 9, 2015 3-5 pm on Zoom.

Adjourn:

The meeting was adjourned at 2:53 pm.

0w 0 0§ 00000 § 8 =& e o s 2« & 28 000 p = 0
SSP SC Sacramento November 17, 2015 Page 7



SSP SC Sacramento November 17, 2015 Page 8



ltem V1. B. iv. 5.

EPI Pilot College (EPT/DAS) Steering Committee Meeting
Thursday November 18, 2015
Sacramento Holiday Inn Capital Plaza

EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Attendees: Amanda Green, Andy Chang (online), Arleen Hollosy,
Barbara Fountain, Benjamin Mudgett (online), Ben Partee (online), Bernadette Flameno (online),
Caryn Albrecht, Chelley Maple, Cynthia Rico, David Quintanilla (online), David Shippen, Doris
Griffin, Freyja Pereira, Gary Bird, Gerald Sirotnak, Gwyer Schuyler {online), Ireri Valenzuela, Jay
Field, Jon Fanucchi (online), Kayla Mannon, Laura Subio, MaryLou Leyba (online), Mia Keeley,
Michelle Stricker, Pedro Avila, Renee Craig-Manus, Rick Snodgrass, Robert Burnie, Robin
Armour, Robyn Tornay, Sabra Sabio, and Tim McCarthy-Smith,

Welcome/Roll Call:
Cynthia called the meeting to order at 10:00 am and attendees introduced themselves.

Meeting Minutes Approval:
There were no additions or comrections to the minutes from Qctober 22, 2015. The minutes were

approved by consensus.

Whatcom Community College:

Dave Knapp, Tawny Townsend, and Ward Naf from Whatcom College answered questions from
the committee regarding their business practices and experiences using Hobsons AgileGrad tool.
Whatcom College is in northern Washington just south of the Canadian border, in a semi-rural
midsized city that mostly serves transfer students. They have about 3500 FTEs with an annual
head count of around ten to eleven thousand students. The response from their students with
respect to the degree planning tool has been very positive with students becoming more
comfortable with the tool as counselors have become more familiar with it. Their rollout took
place under an iPASS grant with a really ambitious timeline; their timeline was about half of what
it would typically take, and in retrospect, they felt they might have rolled cut to students a little.
earlier than they should have; they were taking data and files from a really antiquated system
when they made the move to AgileGrad. Since the transition, students have responded very
positively to the new system with its very logical drag and drop interface. One student in
particular appreciated the fact that they degree planner really helped her see what her academic
obligations were, which helped to keep her from becoming overwhelmed. Students also
appreciated the access and ownership they feit with the ability to log in when it was convenient
for them, even at 2am. This access allowed them to make adjustments to their schedule as
changes at home and in their work life impacted their school schedule.

Students have that ownership, but still have the critical ability to check in and confirm that
everything is right, or to check if anything is missing. For general information, Whatcom's
advising model is not usually faculty advising, they have professional staff who are advisors and
others who are personal counselors. They have staff dedicated to Veterans’ advising and a
couple of others, but for the most part they have one full time transfer advisor and a couple of
other part time advisors; most students are not assigned to a particular advisor. The guests from
Whatcom have the most expertise with the Degree Planner; there are other features in the
Hobsons tool, but those are in Whatcom's long term plans, they aren't there yet.

Early adopters have noticed an improvement, not necessarily in their workioad, but in the short
and long term advising conversation with students. It is not so much an efficiency tool but more a
quality tool for advising. For example, in a planning appointment with a student who eventually
wants to apply to Whatcom's two year nursing degree, before using AgileGrad, a lot of time was
spent writing out the plan and penciling in course sequencing; whereas with AgileGrad, they are
spending the same amount of time, but more of the time is spent in the larger conversation with
the student. This allows for more of a shift from course selection and degree requirement
planning, to more of a holistic approach to advising with time to look at second and third choices,

. N — X
EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Sacramento November 19, 2015 Page 1



ltem VI. B. iv. 5.

and time to explore strengths and weaknesses, and how those might align with the degree the
student is interested in.

The functionality of the product does make it easier to use, it is fairly intuitive with a graphic
layout, drag and drop capability, and so on makes sense to students. Additionally, instead of
giving out advising sheets or degree planning sheets with course requirements and then various
graduation options which ends up feeling like fine print requirements, now those items are all built
in behind the scenes so that concerns about missing something, or flagging items if they are in
the wrong order, or having a course not be available in a particular term, are all addressed.
AgileGrad keeps the historical course data which Whatcom uses to project out three to four years
based on that history how often and when each course is offered, this allows students to look
ahead and see when they will probably be able to take a particular course. Thisis a
supplemental feature for enroliment management which can be pulled up to provide some
information; it is not a sole source, but it can be helpful.

Regarding challenges they faced they felt it would have been really helpful to hire a full time
Client Resource Manager {CRiM) to be the hub of wheel for the project for consistency. Their
implementation was done with staff members under “other duties as assigned,” and it was hard to
anticipate the workload. Tawny also felt that it would have been useful to have one person
responsible for building out the Degree Planner and taking charge. Their grant was very limited
in what it funded; it paid for most of the software, but there was no money for personnel. They
also felt that it would have been helpful to have some support on the IT side as well, not around
Hobsons, but around adapting to the weird archaic ways of Washington CC’s old system. Their
system uses something that is part of a consortium of CCs in the state, it is not PeopleSoft or
Banner, but is instead an old HP system written in COBOL. The archaic system obviously has no
notion of cell phones, etc. so new fields are needed. Most of the issue technology wise has been
around getting correct data to Hobsons it has been challenging. The other piece involved getting
famitiar with the technology and the tools. When they applied for the grant, they were looking for
a resource primarily for transfer students, there was a lot for workforce, but not much available for
transfer. As a result, they struggled initially on how to build out the degree plan conceptually, and
ended up essentially identifying each degree plan as a major pathway mapped onto the actual
transfer degree. That was more of a conceptual piece and they ended up going back and
recreating some of the degree plans in hindsight in terms of how they decided to use the tool.

The team felt that championing the project went beyond the CRM and should be cross-divisional
because AgileGrad touches so many different areas. The CRM is a position that focuses about
75/25 beiween the product/project and is mostly dealing with the technoiogy, for example, course
sequencing of developmental education. The CRM would be a position in student services with
reporting there, but would aiso interface and collaborate with IT. Dave Knapp essentially acts as
their CRM now. It needs to be a person who is on the ground and can hear from advisors
immediately with an understanding of the advising component, but at the same time there is a
need for a strong technology background. To write the job description, they borrowed one from a
neighboring institution that was a technical college with a dedicated CRM. This person interfaces
with [T all the time; when a bug is found in the system, they need to verify where it is (typically it
has been on the Whatcom side) and then is able to give it to Hobsons in a logical way. Most of
that work needs to live in Student Services they just need to have a good working relationship
with IT.

Whatcom had a pretty ambitious timeframe for implementation and rollout. They started with a
couple of trials with student sample groups. Then what they ended up doing was working with a
small group of students and an informal AgileGrad “super user” group, who agreed to be early
adopters, use the product regularly, and meet regularly to talk about technical issues and
opportunities. Since then there are just periodic updates. They feel that they might have had
more success if they had tried a “train the trainers” strategy. For those who were ready to take it
on, it was great, for those advisors and counselors that were a little more apprehensive it was a
little overwhelming for them. It might have made more sense to have the “super user” group dive
EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Sacramento November 19, 2015 Page 2



ltem VI. B. iv. 5.

in, and then come back and do the training for everyone else. If they had done that, there might
have been more adoption early on. Now two years on, there are varying levels of comfort but,
pretty much everyone has come around.

Tawny noted that the roll out was a general promotion to students, out to the website, targeting
particular groups, and also through a first year student course with a career interest assessment
within that course. The only group that was consistently targeted was brand new students who
were registering for the first time. Whatcom is now developing workshops that are both general
to AgileGrad and then also specific to different major areas. The only consistent target has been
first year students. Now they are starting to have more targeted conversations regarding which
groups to reach out to; but there are some institutional limitations when things are wide open
without any mandatory nature around it. One of the targets for the iIPASS grant was to have
AgileGrad plans for 50% of their full time students, but with all of the transitions in the team, there
were many on the team who didn’t know that was the target. Therefore, realistically the team felt
they hit 51% largely by accident. Now they are at a point where they are looking at strategy.

Waid shared a sample student plan with blocks for each quarter and the courses for each one. |t
is very clean and not cluttered in appearance. The form is semi-customizable with a few different
boilerplate blocks for general advising, as well as different text and hyperlink fields. Those kinds
of changes in language and where it shows up on the report can be adjusted locally. Whatcom
made a decision to use certain classes to prepopulate the plan based on what most of the
universities want. Essentially, it maps the major degree recommendations onto the requirements.
They set up AgileGrad so that the 15 humanities credits are split into a total of three different five
credit placeholders.

Whatcom had their Dean of Instruction involved from the very beginning which was really nice.
Over time some of those on the instruction side have moved out, and there have been more
student services people involved, but the instructional side has been involved when needed, or
when there are questions. Some divisions have had the implementation team come in to do
presentations.

Sierra College:
Beth Ervin and Julia Arreguy gave a detailed presentation about the Starfish implementation that

they were involved in at Sierra College (the presentation is posted on Basecamp). Beth, the
Student Support Center Coordinator, explained that they purchased the system and then
impiemented three months later. They learned a lot the hard way and wanted to help others to
experience victories and avoid pitfalls in the process. They started with a small team to get the
system up and running. Julia started as an unofficial member of the team, and is now involved in
much of the technical and logistical work. The SIS at Sierra is Banner, their LMS is Canvas, and
Starfish is housed in Canvas. Sierra is now starting their second year with the product.

Facuity buy-in is really important. When they began, there was no early alert system in place, but
they did have some very old OCRs which were used with the International students; the use of
those forms was not valuable to students. Right now 68% of faculty has created a profile in
Starfish, and 85% of faculty who opened a survey completed that survey. Students are able to go
online and set up an appointment. The process seems to really help faculty get in contact with
the students that really need the help; when the flags go out, it helps to start a conversation.
Flags are raised to indicate to students that a response or a change in behavior is needed. The
flags they have at Sierra are for: academic concern, attendance concern, and in danger of failing.
Beth explained that they set up their system so that it requires a faculty comment to set up the
flag, and that seems to be what really makes students change their behavior. She did note the
need for a training piece with faculty on how to give comments that are helpful and let the student
know what they want them to do.

Their surveys are timed based on feedback from faculty: two weeks into the semester, one
toward midterm time, and one at the end; the timing is very important. it is critical to listen to
| = L] s . _ . wm ______ 00— 4y gy

EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Sacramento November 19,2015 Page 3




ltem VI. B. iv. 5.

faculty on what they want. The flags and kudos are designed to allow for specific kinds of
feedback at different times in the term. The early flags are: early attendance concerns, early
academic concerns, and kudos (good start, etc.). The system then creates an email which starts
the process. Julia explained that the set-up of the system requires classes, enroliments, and
instructors. Beth noted that they did not initially find the “help me” flags to be useful, students did
not use them, but now they have added one which allows a student to ask for information to be
sent, which seems to be used more. If a student requests tutoring information, they now send out
the information, and an employee also calls to ask if there is anything else the student wants
information about. Students who are flagged are engaging more with faculty. The flags at Sierra
are designed to direct students back to the faculty and instructors first; if the student does not
contact the faculty member and the issue continues there are six Early Alert Counselors set up to
address flags.

Beth reported that it is difficult to know the percentage of faculty members that use Canvas, since
DE folks are protective of their Academic Freedom regarding when and where they put their
courses; she thinks it is probably 30-45%. The implementation process involved counselors,
A&R and student services, then faculty and students were brought in. With respect to paid work
specific to Starfish: .2FTE for Beth, .5 FTE for a student worker, and .2 FTE for Julia as the
programmer analyst. Implementation included: the Starfish data pump (must have), automatic
S18-Starfish data transfer nightly, sign-in via Canvas, and batch upload. Further plans include:
single sign-on via the Luminis 5 portal, data exporter to ODS (store Starfish reports in data
warehouse), and feed Starfish data back to SIS to clear holds and to report SSSP services for
MIS.

The Sierra team provided an overview of: technology and infrastructure requirements; integration
with Banner; the creation of roles, relationships, and permissions; and the integration with
Canvas. They noted that if particular roles have access to some attributes, they have access to
all of them, not just one attribute. They now have twenty attributes in their system and are
working on “degree applicable units completed.” Criginally Starfish built them for Sierra, but not
they can build them on their own which is nice because they can provide consistency in who has
access. Some attributes are based on a term and others are not. The attributes in Starfish are
not one-to-one with those in Banner; they don't necessarily have anything to do with each other.
Recently they had a staff member who wanted to use an attribute to track DSPS students who
received a certain kind of support. Attention needs to be paid to the roles and the college culture
regarding who sees what student information; that is important in creating the roles, relationships,
and permissions. At Sierra they started with reflecting the existing culfure based on existing
relationships; for example counselors have access to almost everything, and coaches also have
access to almost the same things as counselors. In their culture coaches act as counselors, not
for education planning, but the coaches get to the students first when a flag is raised. That
needed to be taken into consideration when their system was set up

Early Alert implementation features include:
* Creation of flags, kudos, help me (student- raised flags), to —dos and
referrals.
» Design surveys: content and timing
s Development of student communication
= Design services: kiosk and remote check-in
« Effective practices: development and evaluation

They provide outreach and training to faculty, staff, and students. They developed and
implemented a Starfish advisory team, created website resources, and designed and evaiuated
the work flow for faculty, students, and Early Alert counselors.

There can be issues with the timing of the SIS extract, the data pump upload, and the Starfish
import. At Sierra those are all scheduled and there can be a delay of up to 24 hours. If a step
fails, no data is imported, which will extend the delay another 24 hours; this will extend

= Bl 000 9 = e 00 = 2 % 4l % U

EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Sacramento November 19, 2015 Page 4




ltem VI. B. iv. &.

implementation time and may require calling support for a manual import. If a user is missing,
usually due to data inconsistency, the user will also not receive the survey.

Time will need to be spent defining how roles will be assigned, where that data is kept in your
SIS, and whether or not job descriptions and so on, are consistent. There will need to be a
process for determining if roles in Starfish match or violate current access to student data. At
Sierra some instructors were confused and concerned about which notes are shared with the
students. Instructors who raise a flag will see comments or responses from the counselor with
respect to that flag. The flags are cleared at the end of the term, so that once a student is no
longer in an instructor’s class, the instructor will no longer have access to that information.

Beth also emphasized that in addition to acquiring faculty buy-in, making the survey easy to
access and complete really helps to increase faculty participation. They worked on getting
Academic Senate approval for the wording in the emails that were sent to students. They also
make the emails accessible for faculty to review, and make accessing student information easier
for counselors,

Subgrant Discussion Portal Pilot Participation:

Baseline data:

Ireri has been working on baseline data for the EP! and will visit all of the pilot colleges; she still
needs to visit Santa Rosa). She thanked everyone who has hosted her and helped with focus
groups with: counselors and others involved with students on education planning; A&R and
evaluators who do degree audits; and colleges with early alert programs. Ireri has been learning
a lot and is looking at transcripts in order to summarizing what each college looks like and will
then provide a summary across the pilots. In about a year or so, she will go back to the colleges
to see what has happened. She hopes to be able to provide very useful data to the project.

Sub-grant:
There will be an implementation sub-grant available to colleges that implement any of the EP!I

projects, including the portal. Colleges that participate in the pilots and ones that implement more
components will have larger sub-grants for their efforts.

The goals are to:
+ Accelerate adoption of EPI tools and workflows
= Support an atmosphere of learning and sharing
s  Support diversity in early adopters by reducing financial barriers
*  Support long term institutional change
-Flexibility for investment in local solutions
-Coupled with CCCTC staff support for Tech, marketing, and project management
e  Support completion of project implementations

The benefits to institutions include significant resources of up to $70K for colleges, with additional
funds for pilots. These funds will give colleges flexibility in finding local solutions. The phase one
program milestones are: discovery documentation, providing a project team and budget for the
grant, having kickoff meetings, and providing a project schedule. At the end of phase one, the
institution will receive 50% of their grant. The other 50% will be received at the end of phase four
when the institution has: gone live with students using the system for the purpose intended,
provided usage reports, and provided project status inputs, including actual grant expenditures.
The institution will need to complete phase four within one year, which should be very feasible
since the Hobsons schedule estimate in 24-36 weeks. The intent is to study the implementation
processes and experiences of the colleges so that improvements can be made for later colleges.

Next steps for the institutions are to retrieve the seven grant documents from Basecamp after 4
pm on November 19™, and review then with their institutional board, legal, or other governance
bodies, as needed. Questions should be addressed on an individual institutional basis with the

_________— - ___—_ ___ ____________ =& & % a4
EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Sacramento November 19,2015 Page 5



ltem VI, B. iv. 5.

Technology Center and then the college should submit the agreement and the first invoice.
There should be one invoice for each institution, not one per district.

College Report Out:

Pedro reported that State Center is doing implementation across the district with Fresno,
Reedley, and Clovis all coordinating at the same time. On the functional side, all of the colleges
have identified cohorts for piloting including: TRIO, Honor, Math and Athletes. The cohorts will
cover a group of over 300 students. They have a fairly extensive list of atiributes but would really
like to be able to group them so that it is easier to view them in a full screen. The desire is to
avoid the need for counselors to go back and forth between Hobsons and Colleague. They are
still on target to pilot in March. They are still working on finalizing user roles, and Reedley is
identifying flags. Pedro also thinks that a CRM position could be helpful to them in managing the
system. On the technical side, Hobsons has finished setting up programs for Fresno City
College. It was really helpful that Doris is involved with IT but has A&R background; Hobsons
has been great about answering her questions about the fields. Other colleges might find it
useful to team up someone familiar with the data and with an IT person to work together on some
kind of quality check on the data that is being exported, o decrease clean-up. They have
completed twenty-four or so programs and have about seven more to go. They are struggling
somewhat with the prerequisite file. Pedro noted that when they implement, they plan to abandon
Colleague’s Degres Audit, so they thought it best to allow Hobsons to set up the programs, they
are also doing Canvas and the Portal, so they are ail in and very excited. For old calendar years
they might look at doing a data dump later, or paying Hobsons to hefp them. Mia reminded him
that SSSP can be used for that.

Anu noted that making the attribute list more consumable in layout seemed to be a reasonable
request; users want a more friendly view. She will need to look into whether Hobsons is
accepting the request for this feature, and if so where it would be in the hopper and when it would
be delivered.

Today everyone at San Francisco is very busy with a number of issues. Barbara reported that
they are making progress even with their unique variables, the accreditation challenges, and now
the added challenge of losing Lidia for a little while. They have a large counselor component on
their weekly calls which makes for a large number of people in the room. The logistics of working
with such a large group has made for some frustration around communication, not always feeling
well-heard, and challenges around logging into calls. Despite the challenges they are moving
forward and on this week's call agreed to a set of attributes (they do have the same concern as
Pedro with the display of attributes), and they have just begun role assignment. The counselors
very much want to be part of the hands-on work, and want to each be able to be logged onto a
station. However, that can result in challenges with maintaining focus as different issues come
up and participants get pulled down different paths. They are well into their testing process on
the programs that are built so far. A concern with twenty counselors in the room is that it is hard
to stay on the agenda topics and finish the training, the counselors feel frustrated with needing to
wait a week or a month on some of the issues that are not on the agenda. Additionally, some of
the frustration may have to do with differing communication styles and wanting to have the ability
to see the person who is taiking, like the face-to-face element in Zoom; they are going to try to
have a couple sessions like that so that the counselors can see Emily and Naomi which may
help.

Robin reported that Los Medanos has a simitar path to Fresno, but not exactly the same. Their
district colleges are going one at a time for the Degree Planner, but for the retention piece they
are going all at once. When they are on the calls, the other two colleges have been listening in; it
helps to have everyone on the calls. Currently they have a different Degree Planner but they
assume they will be switching at the end of this, that decision will be made district wide. Two
weeks ago they met and talked for two hours straight about attributes, flags, and everything.
Robin explained that Hobsons has been very good, but they have had some of the frustration

- ]
EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Sacramento November 19, 2015 Page 6



Iltem VI. B. iv. 5.

experienced by others with regard for knowing their existing product really well and not knowing
Hobsons as well; as they go through the weeks of implementation, it is getting better and better.

It has been helpful to them to go bigger; they started with a core group but have added a few
others which made for a slightly larger group, but it has been helpful to them. They also have a
separate group working on Starfish including a project manager who has been hired to work with
probation and retention. That group started taking about flags and realized that they need to get
more faculty involvement. Fortunately, when they sent out the information, many faculty said
“count me in,” which is good. On the Degree Planner side of it, they are uploading directly into
Hobsons. There are some problems with loading things up from Colleague; it appears that
Colleague is not quite correct. The evaluation team has done extensive work, and having the
upload is convenient, because they have to maintain their degree audit system because they
have another education plan system in place that they use, and the backbone of that is their
Colleague system.

Attributes seem to be hard for people to understand, so Robin reported that they had a district
wide discussion about attributes and reaily got engaged. They wanted & streamlined system to
avoid performance issues that came up with another education plan system, so their focus
changed to what really needs to be seen about the student. Now with district wide input they
don’t have that many attributes. Next they will be working on roles and responsibilities and sees
what.

Santa Rosa had their kick-off meetings, and just started their weekly meetings. They have
tagged on the half-hour technical meeting after that. Freyja felt that for them having the core
team together (some counselors, but not all of them), in their meetings, including the involvement
of curriculum seems to be working. The biggest issue for Santa Rosa right now is the number of
elements they are implementing: the portal, all three EPI, pieces, CAl, and OEI; so IT is very
busy. With several implementations happening simultaneously they don't have enough
programmers to do everything. Freyja thinks they will probably be adding some more team
members on soon as well.

Gwyer reported that Santa Barbara is only implementing the Starfish Connect and Early Alert.
The campus made a decision early on to move forward with DegreeWorks and are in the midst of
implementing that product which has increased the challenge of finding the tech savvy peogple to
help them move forward since many are busy with the other implementation. Additionally, Santa
Barbara has an existing Early Alert product which will need to be removed to put Starfish in.
They had their pre-planning meeting, and Gwyer has been approached about being the lead with
Starfish, however although she would like to be an active member of the team, the full team and
leadership have not yet been identified. She also believes that it is important to identify a lead
from within the instructional faculty to really move the Early Alert module forward and feels this is
a critical time to get their implementation team defined. They would like to move forward after
winter break. Gwyer thinks that the Academic Senate needs to be educated about the value
added with Starfish, they have already been convinced about the value add of Canvas Robyn
noted that she will be there with Beth at the Academic Senate on December 2™ so hopefully that
will help.

Crafton signed the IPA. Ben Mudgett reported that they have been very busy in the background,
and the work hasn'’t stopped. They've been busy working on the change management piece and
on identifying both early adopters and activators on the instructional and counseling side of the
house. The task force has been created that will mainly be guided by the Academic Senate and
they have identified a couple of lead counselors who will be taking on the counseling faculty piece
in the early activation and adoption side for the Education Planner/Degree Audit and Early Alert.
On the instructional faculty side, two very strong early activators have been identified who they
believe will get people behind them and will help generate interest in what this is about. Their
campus is coming on late, but a lot of work has been done behind the scenes. There is a lot of
change happening at Crafton, and Ben is leaving to take on the Articulation Officer role at

- — ]~ N - N | | S— I T S - S ¢ S

EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Sacramento November 19, 2015 Page 7




Item VI. B. iv. 5.

Palomar College. Robert McAtee will become the project manager and the additional changes on
the instructional and counseling side will be joined in to the core team.

Bernadette from El Camino reported that they are working on the Degree Planner. Technically
their first system for implementation was Starfish, but it seems like they are implementing both at
one time. For the Degree Planner they are working on attributes and getting their course
descriptions in. As they were looking through their programs, they realized that some were not
programs on their SIS, so they are continuing necessary editing on their end and uploading with
Haobsons. They are a Colleague school, but they believe the issue is on their campus side.

With Starfish they are doing a lot of training and working on flags, roles, and cohorts, including
redefining what a cohort means in Starfish. One member of their instructional faculty really
expressed concern about the extra work for faculty and whether it would be difficult to get buy-in.
Bernadette was therefore very encouraged to hear about Sierra’s experiences and the ability to
get faculty buy-in.

Sabra reported that they decided their student cohort would first be some sections of Basic Skills
classes in English and math so they could train faculty. Therefore they are starting with a few
sections of each of their Basic Skills courses, and they will have counselors assigned to sections

as well.

Hobsons Update:
Keith Renneker and Anu Burns explained some of the history of Hobsons and the suite of

products that have been brought together under the brand. Keith is a Vice President of Sales
who has been with Hobsons for about ten years. His work has principally focused around
admissions, and now has come to include the addition of Starfish. Anu has been with Hobsons
for almost seven years. She started in an implementation role with AgileGrad/Degree Planner
and recently stepped into more of a management role for the western region. Keith and Anu felt
that today the college report out was a great opportunity for them to get feedback on what the
colleges.

Keith presented an overview of the Hobsons personnel structure, but noted that all of the roles
roll up to the same place; they are all encapsulated in the same team. The Hobsons product
portfolio includes: College and Career Planning, Admissions and Enrollment Management, and
Advising and Student Success. Their products include Naviance, ActiveMatch, Radius, Starfish,
and Degree Planner (which was originally called AgileGrad). From the perspective of Hobsons,
the objectives of the pilot are to develop: standard configuration, validated timeline, domain
expertise with the CCC, product needs (for the degree plan versus advising}, process engineering
and design, and vision. Cynthia noted that the CCC is very different from four year universities in
how colleges are bounded by Education Code and Title 5 as well as how funding is done.

There is a need for Hobsons to understand how those differences impact the implementation and
how the products are used. Keith explained that their goal is not to write individual code for each
school, but to develop a configurable system so that implementations are repeatable. Hobsons
would like to come out of their work with the CCC with a vision of what their focus will be for the
next three to five years. Currently about 45% of graduating seniors from high school in the state
of California are in Naviance using it for career college and planning and 22 of the 23 CSUs are
actively using the CRM products. They envision a day when a high school student in their
Naviance system can have a very similar experience as they move along that pathway to college,
and all that data and experience will move along with them. In the same way, the CSU
Chancellor's Office is very excited about the opportunity to enhance the transition from two year
to four year institutions, it is not relevant now, but will be down the road. Cynthia noted the long
term opportunity in locking more rigorously at the twenty-two requirements from the Student
Success Task Force and how it might be possible to build a K-20 model that enables us to follow
California students from cradle to graduation.

S —
EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Sacramento November 19, 2015 Page 8



Item VI. B. iv. 5.

Some of the key themes that Anu noticed are issues related to nomenclature, knowledge of the
CCC, responsiveness, resource availability, vision, and standardization versus “what the
individual colleges may want.” Keith emphasized that this is a publically available product which
is marketed in the US and abroad which means that it isn’t really realistic for them to change the
nomenclature related to counseling versus advising since those terms are used differently other
places. There is a great opportunity to bring people into other systems and onboard into the
project if the focus remains on what the relevant content actually is.

It is important to have information that is relevant to the daily implementation team. One element
is around greater availability. There are currently conflicts in being in different time zones and
wanting people to listen and actually hear you; that is an issue Hobsons hopes to address in the
next couple of months. Currently both Keith and Anu are in Cincinnati and the company is based
in Washington, DC. Starfish also originated on the east coast. As resources are interchanged, it
is important to have baseline knowledge so that implementation isn’t slowed down, that needs to
be addressed and will be. Anu agreed that there is a growing list of items to address, but they will
work to address them. She asked committee members to remember that “no” isn’t always a
“hard no,” but more often simply means thal it is not available today. Hobsons is interested in
knowing the goal for the end features, and is interested in being a partner in addressing those
issues. Robyn encouraged members to speak with their implementation specialist on where
configurable templates and forms could be changed to better reflect the local nomenclature.

Letter of Interest\Webinar/Subgroups of Steering Committee:

The project team held a very successful webinar on November 16™ and colleges were asked to
provide feedback via a survey regarding interest in the next round of piloting. The EPI Steering
Committee will determine what the rubric or filter will be for the colleges that come on next. There
is currently no exact deadline for the start of the next phase, but vetting will probably begin
around mid-January.

Gwyer thought that it might be helpful to have one more sub-group of EPT/DAS specific to
Starfish. She thought that maybe some concentration across the pilot colleges among DSPS and
EOPS groups, in order to look at common issues for those groups would be a good idea. Robin
agreed and noted that they are piloting with EOPS, so she can help with getting Gwyer in touch
with those people.

Action Item:
Robyn will look into Chelley suggestion that as the process evolves past the more global issues,
the committee consider having more regular moderated webinars locking at particular issues.

Cynthia announced that she put in two proposals for the ASCCC Innovation and Instructional
Design Conference at the Riverside Convention Center from Thursday January 21% to Saturday
the 23", She believes that presenters have a reduced registration cost so she will send that out
to interested presenters. She encouraged those members to make reservations at the Riverside
Marriott soon. Chelley noted that she would need an invitation and email to get approval to go.

Action Item:
Robyn will send out invitations as needed to Chelley and other presenters regarding dates, etc.

EPI will pay costs.

Early Alert Supports an Engaged Classroom Thursday January 21 at 10 — 11:45 am.
Presenters:

Cynthia Rico

Beth Ervin

Sabra Sabio

Chelley Maple

Gary Bird

Alice van Ommeren

2 - e - W = 1. i ——— e | R
EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Sacramento November 19, 2015 Page 9




Iltem VI. B. iv. 5.

Working Holistically with your Students Using Starfish and Degree Planner

Presenters:

Renee Craig-Marius

Robyn Tornay

Cynthia Rico

Lidia Jenkins (or Jay will get one more counselor from San Francisco if Lidia can’t make it)

Next Meeting:
The next meeting EPT/DAS meeting will on Zoom December 10" from3 = 5 pm.

Adjournment:
The meeting was adjourned at 2:50 pm.

Lo = = .__ . |
EPT/DAS Pilot College SC Sacramento November 19, 2015 Page 10



Item V1. B. v.

Online Education Initiative Steering Committee Meeting
Friday November 13, 2015
Hilton Garden Inn Sacramento

Voting Members: Christina Gold {online}, Clinton Slaughter, Cynthia Alexander, Dave Stephens,
Fabiola Torres, Greg Beyrer, Jasmine Ruys, Joe Perret, Kelly Fowler (onling), Lisa Beach,
Meridith Randall, Morris Rodrigue {online}, and Ray Sanchez

Other Attendees: Alyssa Nguyen (online), Barbara lllowsky, Bonnie Peters, Bruce Racheter,
Caroi Lashman (online), Caryn Albrecht, Dana Hipchen, Debbie Sheldon, Gary Bird, Jayme
Johnson, Joe Moreau, John lttelson (online), John Makevich, John Sills, Jory Hadsell, Lisa Wang,
Michelle Pilati {(online), Pat James (online), Steve Klein, and Tim Calhoon

Welcome:
Fabiola opened the meeting at 9:35am and attendees introduced themselves.

Minutes:

There were no changes to the minutes of October 9, 2015. Joe Perret moved approval and Greg
Beyrer seconded the motion. The minutes were approved with four members abstaining since
they were not at that meeting.

Academic Integrity RFP: Action
Jory Hadsell reviewed the goals and process followed for the Academic Integrity RFP which
consisted of two parts; one for online exam proctoring and a second for online plagiarism
detection. The selection committee had eleven members including representation from the
Steering Committee, pilot colleges, and additional ASCCC faculty experts. There was also
resource expertise provided by the Technology Center, Fogthill-DeAnza, and the Foundation.
The RFP was extensively advertised including solicitations sent directly to 102 vendors. The RFP
launched to vendors on September 29 and was due on November 2. Submissions were then
reviewed, followed by vendor demonstrations, and evaluation. None of the submissions were
advanced to the committee unless they passed vetting for the requirements in accessibility,
technology, and basic functionality. The goal has been to implement the product in January.

There were no proposals received for the plagiarism detection component. The team is now
looking into pursuing a single source contract or piggybacking on top of another contract using a
new law that goes into effect January 1% allowing the CCC to adopt contracts signed by the CSU
or UC. Discussions are underway with CSU regarding possible renewal of their system wide
master enabling agreement with Turnitin.com; this is significant since Community Colleges are
currently paying twice as much as the CSUs. The speculation seemed to be that Turnitin didn't
think that they needed to submit a proposal because of their size; they thought we would come to
them. The current contract for the CCC was negotiated through the League, but the terms and
conditions are so unfavorable that none of the districts have used it. Therefore, another
possibility is for the Foundation to try for renegotiated terms. Joe Perret was concerned that if the
process took too long, it would be detrimental to adoption. Jory assured the committee that they
should know within a couple of weeks whether the structure with the CSU will work out, and if not
they will move forward with another coption.

There were 5 responses to the Online Proctoring component, and Proctorio with an automated
machine based proctoring system was selected. The company is based in Scottsdale Arizona,
and was founded in 2013 by former Arizona State University online employees. They have no
overseas staff or tech support; all of their staff is located in the United States. Some of the key
features of Proctorio are: it works with Canvas, provides various browser lockdown options,
documents student identity authentication {plus additional metadata), and has a dynamic range of
variables and behavior settings that can be tracked for suspicious behaviors. The evaluation
committee did have extensive discussion about the strengths and weaknesses of the different
methods for machine or human proctoring that were available. This is a pilot for the CCC system
Online Education Initiative Sacramento November 13, 2015 Page 1




Item VI. B. v.

and most colleges have little or no online proctoring available now. The group discussed the
differences between machine and human based proctoring, and also between live online human
proctoring and face-to-face proctoring. The goal is to find both a workflow and experience that is
right for our students and simultaneously to werk on linking testing centers in the system because
faculty does prefer face-to-face proctoring. This machine based solution was selected for a
variety of reasons: concerns about scaling human proctoring, the dynamics of test taking and
existence of student anxiety about testing in general, the somewhat tedious/awkward process of
scheduling human proctoring online, and the difficulty of scoring online. At this point the goal is to
keep faculty involved in the process as much as possible with Proctorio while also developing
linked testing centers. Proctorio uses algorithms to analyze the data and puts that information in
the hands of faculty with a host of tools to help detect and document possible cheating both for
single students and across all students who took a particular test.

Today Jory is seeking a Steering Committee vote of support for the Notice of intent to Award to
Proctorio. The aim is for implementation of online proctoring beginning in January 2016 with an
initial contract period of 18 months. The technical implementation is fairly simple. Faculty and
students will need professional development resources and those are available. Machine
proctoring uses a combination of algortithms and machine learning to basically monitor the
student during the test. This includes an automated hardware check and is optimized for very low
bandwidth. The student is required to show identification and the session is captured in video
that monitors the room, looking away from the screen, other voices in the room, etc. It is browser
based and could be used at home as long as the student has audio input and camera, or the
student could go to a library or lab for testing. Greg explained that the product empowers
individual faculty members to decide how important each risk factor is for each exam. An
unknown is that we don’t yet know what Congress will do when they reauthorize the Higher
Education Act with respect o how student authentication happens, so in the future there may be
changes that require a different process.

After a test the instructor receives a list of students color coded red, yellow, and green, along with
percentages. The colors are also indexed to the video, so that the instructor can look at the
portion(s) of the session that are flagged. It is also possible to readjust elements after the fact
and the codes and percentages will be recalculated. Shibboleth is used to authenticate into
Canvas and any controls for password settings would also occur through Canvas. The product is
hosted on Amazon Web Services with scalability, so they have the ability to spin up new servers
if needed. The backend is cloud based with strict FERPA compliance.

The contracting process will attempt to address the volume needs of the CCC with a favorable
agreement, and the goal is to not only serve the students in our pilot courses, but also to make it
available institution wide through the twenty-four pilot colleges using OEIl funds. The hope is that
the volume will allow for pricing that other interested institutions will be able to make use of, if
desired, once the contract is in place.

A motion to approve the recommendation to move forward in issuing the Intent to Award the
Online Proctoring RFP to Proctorio was made by Dave Stephens, and seconded by Cynthia
Alexander. The motion passed unanimously.

Policies Subcommittee: Action

The Steering Committee was asked to establish a policies subcommittee with representatives
from the Steering Committee. The group would come up with draft documents for policies that
would then be brought back to the Steering Committee for final approval. The immediate need is
for the Policy Subcommittee to work on the policies for “Use of Proprietary Materials” and
“Minimum Use of CMS.”

Cynthia Aiexander made the motion to form the Policies Subcommittee and Greg Beyrer
seconded the motion. The motion to form the subcommitiee passed with Joe Perret abstaining.
Volunteers for the subcommittee were: Cynthia Alexander, Greg Beyrer, and Christina Gold.

- ]
Online Education Initiative Sacramento November 13, 2015 Page 2



Item VL. B. v.

Report on the Cal State University Learning Platforms and Services Taskforce:

Since OEl was working at a similar pace as the CSU system with respect to the RFP for the
CMS, the project had been working in tandem with CSU partners early on in that process and
found their insights helpful. Similarly, the CSUs have been working on a number of issues
including plagiarism detection and the management team has been following their work. CSU
has now held a number of live events about the taskforce, and there are a couple more that are
coming up, one on Thursday December 10%. The purpose of that taskforce is to review LMSs
and the environment, develop and execute an RFP for master funding, and develop a plan to
manage the current contracts to make for a successful transition. While the CC system was
looking for one particular tool or sets of tools to be used by the system, the CSU is instead
looking at master contracts to enable agreements with the decision about what to adopt and how
to adopt, being done on a campus by campus basis. They are using a process of vetting to
qualify the products that will be available to their system through those master agreements.
Rather than looking at a single tool, their focus is on best practices. Joe Perret expressed strong
concern about the need for the CSU system to more heavily include and involve faculty in their
process. The CSU representative noted that faculty is involved in the process, and felt that the
requirements were less stringent since they were looking at a group of offerings and not just a
single product.

The management team felt that it was important to be aware of the work of the CSUs because
under new legislation coming into effect in January, any contract negotiated by the CSUs will be
able to be used by the CCCs and vice versa. The combination of students and the strength of
more than one system will help allow for stronger negotiating positions leading to better prices.

Repori on RP Group Findings on NetTutor Pilot:

The pilot colleges began using NetTutor near the beginning of the spring 2015 term for tutoring in
something of a pre-pilot. Additionally, the WorldWideWhiteboard platform was provided free of
charge to both the pilot colleges and the rest of the CCCs. Summer 2015, the tutoring pilot was
expanded to include a combination of some readiness and some full launch pilot colleges along
with the original tutoring colleges. Fall 2015, all 24 pilot colleges were included, and expanded
tutoring was also offered to the eight original tutoring pilots; seven of those original eight were
able to offer free tutoring for all of their online courses, not just for the OEI courses. Finally,
spring 20186, tutoring will be offered free to all online courses for all 24 OE| participating colleges.

Services offered included: live tutors with subject matter expertise in the subject areas taught,
asynchronous tutoring where students could submit a question 24/7 and get an answer back, and
essay/paper review services oh a 24/7 basis. The tutoring sessions were 20-25 minutes each.
Materials and effective practices provided to the colleges by NetTutor and OE| were well received
by SPOCs and faculty. Fall 2015 provided access to tutoring services to 858 students, although
a relatively small percentage made use of those services. The majority of students that used
NetTutor felt that: services were easy to access, the platform was easy to use, tutors were
personable and knowledgeable, and they learned valuable skills and techniques that helped them
feel successful in their courses. At this point it is hard to determine the effect of the tutoring on
student outcomes, which can be hard to tease out, but that is something the team is working on
as they move forward. Math and science both offered 24/7 tutoring. Jayme also reported some
successes in moving toward "508 compliance” for tutoring services; the timetable is in the next
couple of weeks.

The post term survey results from 171 out of 810 students reflected that 80% heard about the
services from their instructors, and three quarters didn't use tutoring services. Overall, the
students who utilized online tutoring had a positive experience. Barbara felt that major lessons
iearned were that promotion of services is very important, and getting students to access online
tutoring is a challenge, just as it is for face-to-face tutoring centers. Students who use online
tutoring appreciate it and faculty who introduced an assignment requiring some level of tutoring
participation reported the most dramatic differences in student outcomes. Both faculty and
SPOCs would like there to be sharing of effective practices on a regular basis. Additionally, and

e e e ——— . E— -
Online Education Initiative Sacramento November 13, 2015 Page 3



Item VL. B. v.

very importantly, students still struggle with digital literacy and technology skills, sometimes at a
very basic level.

Starting summer 2015, the team began development of a handbook in two main sections focused
on NetTutor for the pilots, and Basic Skills for all colleges. Faculty members who had high
student use provided screen shots of emails for inclusion in the handbook. The first part of the
handbook is specific to NetTutor, but the rest is oriented around Basic Skills and can be useful to
anyone in the system. For example, faculty within the pilots suggested the need for work on
paraphrasing because studenis have challenges with plagiarism and how to actually paraphrase
correctly. So Barbara developed an assignment on paraphrasing using a two paragraph section
from an OER, where students are asked to paraphrase without using any quotes. This kind of
work on incorporated basic skills resources is engoing as Barbara becomes aware of particular
needs. So far two videos have been developed, but soon there will be seven more. One is being
done on the difference between to, too, and two, and another on the difference between there,
their, and they're,

Monthly SPOC Zoom meetings now provide: mini-presentations with a different topic each month,
time for questions and answers, LSI/NetTutor check-in and support, and Quest Readiness topics.
These greater outreach efforts will continue to be made to build faculty and student awareness as
the pilot moves forward. It was hard to change the culture when the services were only
embedded in three courses on campus, but with expanded services that awareness should
increase.

Ray praised the work so far and noted that there should be more ACTLA involvement, and he will
help work to make sure that occurs. Barbara agreed that is important; she will be presenting at
the ACTLA conference this vear if her proposal is accepted. She also praised the work of some
of the SPOCs who acted as incredible froubleshooters in working with the Management Team on
implementation.

QEI Consortium Update:
October 21t was the first meeting of the Consortium, the body of twenty-four pilot colleges. They

were getting together to discuss primarily implementation and operaticnal issues; policy matters
will be dealt with in the OEI Steering Committee. Since there will be work that overlaps between
implementation and policy, the chairs of both groups will attend both meetings; chairs of the
Steering Committee will attend Consortium meetings, and chairs of the Consortium will attend
Steering Committee meetings.

The Steering Committee did a lot of work on a draft charter for the Consortium and laid out a
membership process focused on the SPOCs for each college. Some colieges have faculty
SPOCs and others do not. As a result SPOCs were asked to invite one person to attend with
them; if they were faculty, they were asked to invite an administrator, and if they were an
administrator, they were asked to invite a faculty member. There was only one college that didn’t
have representation at the first Consortium meeting. Phil Hill helped to moderate the first meeting
and was effective in activating the conversation. The discussion started with a tour of the draft
Charter and through that process OEIl members were able to provide updates and talk about the
governance structure that has been clarified by the Steering Committee. A number of
conversations circled around how implementation will happen at the colleges, and what help will
be provided. The Consortium will develop an agreement that will later help other colleges to
come on and know what to expect. The Consortium will have work groups just as there are with
the Steering Committee, and there is definitely the possibility of joint work groups to deal with
overlapping concerns. Several possible work groups were discussed, and the Charter work
group has been established with the task of polishing the Charter.

A communications work group might be the first joint work group for the important work of helping
to shape the narrative and the conversation. At the next meeting, the Consortium will look at
establishing the Consortium Agreement work group to ook at how the Exchange will operate and

e . B e ———
Online Education Initiative Sacramento November 13, 2015 Page 4



Item VI. B. v.

what it means for a college to sign on and fully commit to being deeply involved with the
Exchange. There is a lot of policy overlap, so that work group might report back to the Steering
Committee, or it might be a joint committee. An Evaluation work group will allow the 24 pilot
colleges to work closely with the RP Group. The Consortium will have their second meeting on
December 11" and will move forward with taking the next steps. That meeting comes on the
same day as the next Zoom meeting for the Steering Committee and OEl members agreed that
the Steering Committee could meet one half hour earlier at 9 am.

Greg expressed the hope that as the groups move forward, the OE| Steering Committee will do
less and less, and the Consortium will do more and more, since they do the important work with
students. John Makevich acknowledged that there will probably be evolution in the groups over
time and eventually a visioning conversation would be appropriate; for now it will start as a
separate group. Ray reminded the Steering Committee of the excitement that was present when
this bedy first met, and noted that he had the opportunity to experience that excitement and
energy again with the Consortium at their first meeting.

Members felt that the Consortium should finish their polishing work and approval of the Charter
before bringing it back to the Steering Committee. John Makevich thought it would not be a
problem to set the next Consortium meeting date to occur after the next Steering Committee
meeting allowing for bringing the Charter back.

Post-Pilot Visioning Discussion and Activity:

John Makevich provided an overview of an activity that will be completed at the next face-to-face
Steering Committee meeting. It will involve looking at which existing opportunities OEI should
pursue next, as well as connecting those opportunities with the big issues colleges are facing.
Existing opportunities include: prior learning assessment, library services, OER expansion,
expanding courses beyond C-ID/ADT, evolution of CVC, dLRN and other grant partnerships,
Early Alert, and advanced analytics. Big issues include: equity funding, SSSP, AB86 funding,
and potentially others. The activity will involve having groups identify the top three existing
opportunities and why those are top priority, as well as identifying two additional opportunities.
Those priorities will be used to inform the priorities for the Management Team.

Tim Calhoon emphasized that “Credit for Prior Learning” and streamlining that process was really
a primary element of the work plan and a focus of the legislature and was therefore critical. John
Makevich felt that all of the elements listed were key components required of the work plan and
noted that the goal would be to determine the shape that they would take and the order in which
they would be addressed. Jory explained that credit for prior learning for Veterans is the focus of
the Management Team and the Chancellor's Office, as well as being the focus of an Assembly
Bill, and they are looking at having something in place by June 30, It is on the radar for the
Management Team and they are looking at putting together some kind of joint work group with
the Chancellor's Office,

Ray brought up existing opportunities within the twenty-four pilot colleges where there is overlap
with colleges participating in the Portal, Education Planning/Degree Audit, Common Assessment,
and other statewide projects. John Makevich will revise the activity to reflect the comments made

today.

OEl Planning Update:
Some of the recent OEl accomplishments are: QUEST Readiness is in Canvas and available to

all twenty-four pilot colleges, tutoring is available to all twenty-four pilots, and OE! courses are
within Canvas at the eight full launch colleges. Additionally there have been a number of @ONE
courses and trainings offered: Applying the OEl Course Design Rubric; Peer Cnline Course
Review (POCR) Training; Introduction to Teaching with Canvas; and Online Education Standards
and Practices.

Online Education Initiative Sacrament November 13, 2015 Page 5




Item VI. B. v.

Canvas implementation efforts are underway at the remaining sixteen pilot colleges including
support calis for OEIl facuity. There are total system-wide Canvas adoption commitments from
twenty-seven colleges. In the spring, all twenty-four pilot colleges will be offering OEI courses
within Canvas. Faculty services being offered include course review in Canvas, and free
instructional design and accessibility support for OEl courses.

All OEI courses will soon have the following integrated resources: readiness modules, tutoring,
embedded basic skills, proctoring, and an online counseling platform. Fall 2016 the eight full
faunch colleges will begin the Exchange pilot; piloting local and Exchange courses in Canvas with
embedded resources. At the same time the sixteen readiness and tutoring colleges will continue
piloting both resources with their courses in Canvas. Spring 2017, all twenty-four colleges will
pilot all OEI embedded resources in the course Exchange and integrated evaluation will occur.
Finally, all pifot phases will close in preparation for Consortium expansion in the fall of 2017 and
beyond.

The Management Team has requested that the Chancellor's Office rerun the course bottleneck
data in preparation for potential discussion of expanding and managing the pipeline of Exchange
courses. Internal discussions are tentatively looking at expanding from nineteen courses to
perhaps twenty-five to address some of the areas within the C-ID/ADT framework. The goal
would be looking longer term at other ways to facilitate completion. Both the Steering Committee
and the Consortium would participate in that conversation.

Lisa Beach felt thal it would be useful to have better communication about which resources are
available to the entire system and which are available only to the pilots; it is not always clear what
is for the pilots and what is for the system now, or at a later date. Canvas is one of the resources
available to the system and Steve explained that once the IPA is issued to a non-pilot college, the
vendor takes it from there. The project has been focused primarily on the pilot, while also
working to extend capacity to the system. Tim Calhoon emphasized that this is still the pilot
phase, and since there are limited resources, the main focus has to remain on the pilot colleges
in order to be successful. Michelle noted that the Train the Trainer course is now open at no cost
to colleges that have made the commitment to move to Canvas. As the January courses fill, new
ones are opened; they are prepared to offer six sections if needed. Pat explained that the
colleges outside of the pilot are coming on in cohorts and are being handled in a well-defined
way. She strongly suggested that colleges take the Canvas training course before the college is
scheduled to move to Canvas.

Steve clarified that there are activities both above and below the surface that need to be
connected. Successful Shibboleth connectivity and integration with larger system wide services
are issues below the surface, while there are also support services above the surface for facuity
training, and for student success and engagement. The pilot is providing a chance to learn how
to support and connect everything together but it is not yet completely figured out. If a college
adopts Canvas now, there may be a need to go back to their IT in the future, to address system
wide integration with farger services that aren't yet completed, but the team is learning how to do
that. Itis a balancing act, but OEI is not getting ahead of itself to the extent that it can’t support
colleges on the technical/below the surface side. That is being done by having a requirement for
the colleges to authenticate using Single Sign-On (SSO) at the time they say they are ready for
Canvas. If they were allowed to authenticate without that a lot of catch up would be needed.
Some of those things might be communicated clearly to colleges that are not in the pilot, so that
their expectations are managed. Those kinds of elements help with the process for non-pilot
colleges and Steve noted that the process for how non-pilot colleges will first be able to offer
courses in the Exchange in fall 2017 has not been fully worked out yet, because the Exchange is
still being developed. Michelle mentioned that there must be alignment and experience in
teaching a course in Canvas with support services before it is a candidate for participation in the
Exchange. Therefore, at the point that the Exchange becemes open to other colleges, there will
need to be one term where the course is in Canvas with the OE| support services before it can be
offered in the Exchange.

e ——
Online Education Initiative Sacramento November 13, 2015 Page 6




Item VI. B. v.

Clinton expressed concern that resources might be getting watered down for the pilot endeavor.
He feit that there was a strategic advantage to having concentrated, focused resources that are
supporting the pilot schools that are going through this process in making sure that they are
supported and that it is done right. Pat felt that concern had been taken into consideration; the
pilot schools are primary. For training pilot schools have preference and they have preference for
vetting the resources. However, Pat felt it was also important to support colleges that are coming
onto Canvas as best as possible. Barbara, Bonnie, and Jory have been doing a great job of
making sure that the pilots get the support they need. When other colleges come on there are a
lot of factors for them to consider, like their timelines with their other CMS. Pat hoped that the
committee would trust that is being managed.

Ray asked whether at one point the committee had discussed having those colleges that weren’t
selected for the pilot become the second phase of colleges brought into the Consortium. Jory
thought he recalled that as well; it is an issue that will need to be revisited. Pat explained that the
timeline for phase two will be based on the results of the pilot, which isn’t known yet. If the pilot
proceeds smoothly, it will speed things up; otherwise things will have to slow down. It is
important to be mindful of what makes sense and be flexible with the timelines. The pilot colleges
have been top priority and they continue to be. The timeline will have to wait until after the results
in the fall and spring.

John Makevich reported new and upcoming services include: online proctoring in spring 20186, an
online counseling network in spring 2016, integration of basic skills support and services into
Canvas, eventual integration into the Professional Learning Network, discipline support groups,
videos for students and faculty, and OER open text book options for faculty. Work is also
beginning on library services, online early alert, and potential student equity support services.

Bonnie explained that student equity has not yet put a lot of focus on online learning, so this year
she would like to start off with a needs assessment and evaluation of student equity and what the
groups are that should be locked at. Once that has been started, it will be possible to look at
what services and support programs can be provided to colleges. It is about building an online
success team for the student. Early alert is also intended to tie in with online counseling. Tim
Calhoon encouraged Bonnie to connect in with the work of the Student Services Portal Steering
Committee and EPI with respect to their work with online counseling and Starfish Early Alert.

Examples of embedding Basic Skills into transfer level courses include: resources for formatting a
paper, how to find a reference, how to find a z-score for standard deviation in a psychology
course and so on. This support provides academic items as "just in time” learning resources.

Action ltem:
The newsletter that goes out to SPOCs will be shared with the Steering Committee on
Basecamp, with the understanding that it just relates to the pilot colleges.

MOU for Fuli Launch Pilot Colleges:
The Management Team shared the Draft MOU that will eventually be the initially baseline

agreement for the eight full launch pilot colleges for the Exchange for fall 2016. The Steering
Committee and Consortium will be developing an agreement for all twenty-four pilot colleges.
Both groups will be working together to make sure that agreement is sound.

The draft MOU shared today just lays the foundation for the eight full launch pilot SPOCs in the
next two weeks, so that they can eventually secure agreements for the Exchange for fall 2016.
The team is sharing it with the Steering Committee for informational purposes so that later work
can begin on the next document of agreement for the full twenty-four colleges.

The process that this document went through began in April with the Reciprocity Summit, with a
liaison work group summarizing the notes that came out of that meeting. Those notes were
brought back in draft form to the SPOCs, who shared them with their campuses for feedback, and
I B
Online Education Initiative Sacramento November 13, 2015 Page 7



Item VI B. v.

the feedback that was received was incorporated. This will not be the first time this information is
being seen by those eight full launch SPOCs for feedback.

After that initial work, the Management Team met with the Technelogy Center to gef a sense of
what would need to be written into code to build the Exchange, then toward the end of that
process, the team worked with the Chancellor's Office to make sure that the agreements would
be sound and meet Title 5 requirements. Now after several months of work the document is
being brought before the Steering Committee as a point of information, in draft, but essentially
complete form. It was brought back to the eight full launch colleges twice, and it has been
through the Chancellor's Office legal department and the Vice President. The intent today is not
to debate it, but to put into the agreement for the twenty-four colleges and refinements and
changes that are needed as we move forward and learn from this one. This MOU is only focused
on those eight full launch colleges.

Meridith noted that as one of the eight full launch colleges, one of the twenty-four, and a member
of the Steering Committee as a CIO, she is concerned about not getting the draft document
earlier. The eight pilot colleges really want to be successful and members take a lot of hits when
they feel they are not able to get information to their campuses in a timely manner. Several other
members were also concerned and disappointed about the Steering Committee seeing the
document for the first time today, and wanted to know if this would be the only opportunity to
provide feedback. Pat explained that it tock a while for the document to be ready, and she took
responsibility for the decision to wait to share it until the meeting when the details could be
explained. The goal for today was to have Bonnie go through the document to explain why
certain elements needed fo be set up a particular way based upon what is possible right now, for
example all of the pilot colleges are not in the same SIS and there are issues about registration.
They have worked very hard, but she wouid like the Steering Committee to recognize that this
agreement is only for the eight full launch pilot colleges coming up in the fall and then the
Steering Committee and Consortium will be able to go through it and look at whether it should be
different for the pilot with all twenty-four colleges. Pat wanted the Steering Committee to see the
document but the timing was off since this meeting is before the SPOC meeting, and the next one
won’t be for a while.

Bonnie went over the draft document. Ray suggested that wording be changed to expand who
would be involved in approving the document beyond the SPOCs to something like “the college
will be involved”, other members agreed.

Joe Moreau explained that the feedback that came back from the SPOCs at the eight colleges
came down to saying, “Yes, if this is legal and agreeable to the State of California, the colleges
are okay with it.” The Chancellor's Office looked at some very specific areas of the agreements
to figure out what was possible under Title 5. The twenty-four reciprocity agreements were
shared with the Chancellor's Office and the Vice Chancellors met and eventually provided
feedback and a memo including suggestions with respect to three areas of the agreements. One
element that changed was that the home college and the teaching college will both need to make
the residency determination. Another item that changed was that if a college has additional
college prerequisites or co-requisites for a C-ID course, that course cannot be offered in the
Exchange. The teaching college will be able to determine when the course becomes made
available, but based upon Title 5 rules, students registration dates will be tied in to the home
college priority designation, and all colleges will follow the same guidelines. The registration
dates will be based upon the priority registration dates at the teaching college, but the home
college priority registration will be maintained by the student. Therefore, the student maintains
the same priority level, but may have to register on a different date based upon when their priority
level is allowed to register at the teaching college. The registration will probably end up occurring
through the student's home college system.

On behalf of ClOs, Meridith was concerned about the ability of schools to protect against students
registering for Exchange courses when there are still spaces available on their home campus.

e —
Online Education Initiative Sacramento November 13, 2015 Page 8



Item VI. B. v.

Joe Moreau noted that is already happening today; Meridith agreed, but explained that the
campus is not facilitating registration now, whereas with the Exchange they would be. If faculty
sees a lot of their students going out to other courses, they will not support the project as we
move forward. Pat explained that the intent over time is to address that issue, but it can't be
included in this iteration of the pilot because it will hold up the project. It will be looked at closely,
she emphasized that everyone is aware of that concern. It is very important to look at how to
support enrcliment in the best way going forward.

Debbie noticed that DSPS and Financial Aid were both addressed; she thought that some kind of
provision should also be included for EOPS as well.

Action ltems:

The Chancellor's Office memo will be posted on Basecamp.

The MOU draft document will be sent to the Steering Committee as an email so that they can
review it. Members are welcome to provide feedback back to Bonnie by the end of the day
Monday for serious major concerns that should be included before the document advances.
Members are welcome to take their time on submitting minor concerns and general feedback to
be included in the next cycle for the twenty-four college agreement.

Closing Comments/Next Meeting:
Greg highlighted the fact that Instructure is now an IPO and therefore a publically traded

company and as we continue our relationship with that company we need to acknowledge that
they will now have responsibilities to their shareholders.

The next meeting will be a Zoom meeting on December 11 at 9 am (note the earlier time based
upon committee discussion regarding the Consortium meeting taking place the same day).

Adjournment:
The meeting was adjourned at 2:50 pm.

e o ) e e e e it Gl L D o) D b ¢ i O el off (I o O]
Online Education Initiative Sacramento November 13,2015 Page 9



44



Iltem VI. B. vi.

SSSPAC Teleconference Meeting Notes
November 30, 2015

Attendees:

David Alisop Greg Nelson

Maggie Baez Amy Nevarez

Nohel Corral Denise Noldon

Li Collier Delecia Nunnaly

Kelly Fowier Lucinda Over

Chris Graillat Margery Regalada-Rodriguez
Christie Jamshidnejad Jasmine Ruys

Tim Johnston

Gwyer Schuyler

Mia Keeley Sabrina Sencil
Mandy Liang Debbie Sheldon
Nilo Lipiz Sarah Tyson
Kimberly McDaniel Denise Whisenhunt

Note: thanks to Sabrina for most of the notetaking! Any errors are my fault. ©-CG

» Welcome, Introductions of New Members, CCCCO Changes

New members were asked to introduce themselves to the committee. Chris also shared
that there are two committee spots that still need to be filled — 1 representing CISOs
and 1 representing CEQs. New members include:

o Maggie Baez

o Christie Jamshednejad

o Gwyer Schuyler

o Sabrina Sencil
Brice’s retirement was briefly discussed as it was assumed most had heard the news
already from press releases. A national search will take place for a new chancelior. Also,
we covered some of the reorganization happening at the CO. Namely, Pam Walker as
the Vice Chancellor of Education Services (over Academic Affairs, Student Services, and
Workforce Development).

e  Student Success Conference, March 14-16, 2016 ~ Doubletree, Sacramento, CA

The conference was announced and they briefly went over the announcement (see
memorandum attached). Conference strands include: Student Success Strategies and
Models, Student Equity, Fiscal Resources, Developing the Workforce, Innovation in
Curriculum and Instruction, Other Areas (Access and Admissions, Assessment,
Collaboration between Academic and Student Affairs, Counseling, Dual Enrollment (Early
and Middle College High Schools), Special Programs (UMOJA, PUENTE, MESA), Financial
Aid, Instruction, Management Information Systems (MIS), Research, Special Populations
{Veterans, Foster Youth, Formerly Incarcerated), and Technology)

$300 per registrant

Conference proposals are due by January 8, 2016

SSSPAC committee will review conference proposals and notify presenters on February
1, 2016. Please let Chris know if you want to review proposals.

1



Item VI. B. vi.

SSSPAC members are encouraged to submit proposals for presentations.

¢  Credit SSSP Allocations for 2015-16 {(Funding formulas and data collection)

The 2015-16 State Budget increased funding for SSSP by $100 million, bringing the
program’s funding available for allocation to colleges for Credit SSSP to a little over $266
million, Colleges were guaranteed at least 80% of their 2014-15 funding with the
application of the new service-based funding formula. The CCCCO was mindful that not
all of the colleges data reporting systems are equally robust and they didn’t want to
negatively impact funding (18 colleges would have been affected). However, only 50%
will be guaranteed for the 2016-17 year. The CCCCO strongly encourages colleges to
review their MIS data, especially $S10 {academic progress/probation follow-up services).
While they’re aware that some may have over reported their numbers (as well as
underreported), they are not going to rerun the 15-16 numbers. Accurate reporting is
critical to the colleges for receiving funding.

Match Requirements: Due to the increase in funding for 2015-16, the match
requirement for credit SSSP has been iowered. Coiieges are required to spend 1.3
dollars of district funds for every one dollar of 2015-16 funds.

Carryover of Funds: The Chancellor's Office has authorized the carryover of 2015-16
funds through Dec 31, 2016. Any 2014-15 carryover funds must be matched at the 2014-
15 required match of 2:1.

e  SSSP Audits
SSSP (credit and noncredit) is in the audit manual for 2015-16, so it is important to ensure
accuracy of data to be sure expenditures are consistent with SSSP funding guidelines.

@  Student Equity allocations

Changes in the formula include Foster Youth, 5% of the formula is dedicated to the
number of Foster Youth served at the college.

The Student Success Center will be holding a training session on collaboration with Basic
Skills, SSSP, and SEP.

=  SSSP and Student Equity Plan Review

SSSP credit/non-credit and Student Equity need reviewers for plans. Faculty will have to
go through Academic Senate. They plan to get through the review process using last
year's format to be held in early Feb. Over the course of one week: the first part of the
week will be for reviewing the SSSP Plans {credit and noncredit} and the second part of
the week will be spent reviewing Student Equity Plans. More information on how to
volunteer for plan reviews will be sent out on the SSSP credit, noncredit and Student

Equity listservs.

¢ Updates for Tech Initiatives

The TechEdge website was used to navigate through some of updates (At this point,
Jennifer Coleman from TechEdge joined the call).
CCC Apply is hosting a workshop, March 22-23 — “Sessions are geared toward promoting
collaboration and interaction by experienced and new users to CCCApply and
eTranscript California—two web-based applications being promoted within the
California Community Colleges (CCC) to streamline student matriculation.” Ben Baird,
steering committee chair, will join us at the next meeting to discuss CCCApply and
answer questions.
EPI updates: Hobson developing electronic degree audit and ed planning tool with pilot
colleges. An issue with the early alert component through Starfish was discussed;
making sure Starfish meets the counseling needs for appeointments. Counselors are



Item VI. B. vi.

used to SARS. Starfish is enhanced for case management. Colleges can sign up for
Starfish separately if they already have ed planning tools in place. There is an EPI 101
archived webinar that is available (http://www.onefortraining.org/node/788). =

CAl updates: See attached timeline. Jennifer Coleman gave the update. Regional
meetings will occur for professional development, including Multiple Measures.
They're asking colleges to start Common Assessment implementation. CAl is looking to
expand the Multiple Measures model to include readily available data points for all
students. They’re directing colleges to the competency maps to help conversations
around which competencies should be met for specific courses. Paper/pencil tests will
be made available at the same time as computerized versions. The CCCCO must
determine when the requirement for CAl will be instituted based on when colleges
adopt the tests,

Li asked about remote proctoring, Jennifer said there may be collaboration with the
OEl on this. Security for this must be investigated.

Jasmine asked about ID numbers for paper and pencil testing, e.g., used at satellite
locations. lennifer said they are investigating a bulk process for ID’s with the platform
developer.

e Wrap Up

Chris will send links and attachments discussed.
The CCCCO is planning a joint noncredit and credit SSSPAC in-person meeting (possibly
including CIOs) in January 2016 (date has not been finalized).






Academic Senate
for California Community Colleges

LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT. VOICE.
Executive Committee Agenda Item

N

SUBJECT: Update on C-ID and Transfer Model Curriculum Month: January | Year: 2016
ftemNo:ViCi

Attachment: -Yes

DESIRED OUTCOME: The Executive Committee will be updated on Urgent: NO

the current work of C-ID and the development | Time Requested:

of new TMCs.
CATEGORY: Information TYPE OF BOARD CONSIDERATION:
REQUESTED BY: Craig Rutan Consent/Routine

First Reading
"STAFF REVIEW™: | Julle Adams Action
~ | Information X

Please note: Staff will complete the grey areas.
BACKGROUND:
New Transfer Model Curriculum

Three new Transfer Model Curriculum (TMC) have been created and new Chancellor’s Office

Templates will be posted on February 1, 2016. The three new templates for ADT development are
Social Justice Studies, Global Studies, and Child and Adolescent Studies. A new TOP code has been
created for each of these templates, so there is no requirement to create ADTs aligned with these

templates.
Finalized C-ID Descriptors

Six new course descriptors in Emergency Medical Services (EMS) have been finalized and courses
may now be submitted against these descriptors.

Fall Discipline Input Group (DIG) Meetings

On October 17, October 30, and December 4, DIG meetings were hosted for development of C-ID
descriptors and model curriculum. The CTE disciplines invited to these meetings were Fire
Technology, Manufacturing and Industrial Technology, Alternative Fuels and Advanced
Transportation Technology, Office Technology/Office Computer Applications, Automotive
Technology, Small Business and Entrepreneurship, Welding Technology, Hospitality, Manufacturing
and Industrial Technology, Addiction Studies, Medical Assisting, Radiologic Technology, and Health

Occupations.

1 staff will review your item and provide additional resources to inform the Executive Committee discussion.



Spring Discipline Input Group (DIG) Meetings

During the spring of 2016, up to seven additional DIG meetings will be scheduled to begin work on
additional CTE disciplines. These additional disciplines include Computer Programming, Dentai
Assisting, Administrative Medical Assisting, Environmental Control Technology, Industrial Systems
Technology and Maintenance, Water and Wastewater Technology, Clinical Medical Assisting,
Machining and Machine Tools, Database Design and Administration, Energy Systems Technology,
Computer Software Development, and Health Information Technology. CTE disciplines that
participated in the fall DIG meetings may be invited to participate in one or more meetings during
the spring.

Basic Skills Descriptors

Basic skills descriptors in mathematics, English, and reading have been developed and distributed
for vetting. Vetting is currently scheduled to close on January 30, 2016. All basic skills descriptors are
marked with an X, for example English 095X, to indicate that the descriptor is for CCC use only.

C-ID Descriptor for Statistics

On October 20, the CSU Chancellor’s Office sent out a memo informing California community
colleges that the CSU would begin accepting statistics pathway courses to satisfy the quantitative
reasoning requirement general education requirement. In November, C-ID sent an email out to
articulation officers that the descriptor for statistics is currently under review by the Math Faculty
Discipline Review Group (FDRG} to determine if alternatives to the intermediate algebra
prerequisite are appropriate and that colleges should aveid making any changes to their statistics
courses until that review is complete. The math FDRG hopes to have a recommendation about
statistics pathway courses during the spring of 2016.

Uc Academic Council

On October 28", representatives from C-ID and the Executive Committee presented information
about C-ID to the Academic Council of the UC Academic Senate. C-ID approval is already being using
by the School of Engineering at UC Irvine and faculty representatives on the council expressed
interest in continuing to look at the possibility of the UC participating in C-ID.



$C-ID

i —— Course Identification Numbering System (C-ID) <=~ > w0 ©o

CSU CORE RECRUITMENT: | DISCIPLINE UPDATES:

) Engineering:
While we welcome and would benefit The Engineering Liaison Council (ELC) met last week on Thursday, October 22. During this
from additional CSU reviewers in most meeting, Engineering course reviewers joined together to review submitted courses in C-ID. We
disciplines, we urgently need additional expect that determinations for college submissions will be delivered shortly. |In addition,

Engineering faculty from across the three public higher education segments (UC, CSU, and CCC)

CSU reviewers to review the indicated ; .
are endorsing the use of the ENGR model curriculum {ISMC) to develop transfer pathways into

descriptors: individual CSU and UC campuses,

AG — Animal Science: 104, 108L, 112L, o

116L, 120L, 124L, 128L, 132L, and Hospitality:

136L A group of intersegmental Hospitality faculty met last week to discuss and draft a potential Transfer

GLST: 101. 102 Model Curriculum (TMC) for Hotel Management. A draft of the TMC, along with draft descriptors

: i | will be available for vetting in the very near future.

FTVE: 100, 105, 110, 120, 125, and 135

MATH: 120,160, and 955 Areas of Emphasis Disciplines — Social Justice Studies & Global Studies:

SJS: 110, 120, 130 Both the Social Justice Studies and Global Studies faculty discipline review group (FDRG)

THTR: 114 completed the work on the Area of Emphasis TMCs for both disciplines. The TMCs are now posted

on the C-ID website, under the “TMC” tab. We anticipate the CCC Chancellor's Office templates for

: . . both will be available February 1, 2016. Descriptors were also finalized and are now available for

Please emall krystinne@asccc.org if course submissions. If you have faculty interested in reviewing for either discipline, please forward

you have CCC/CSU faculty their names to us at support@c-id.net or have them complete the following survey:

recommendations, or are interested

in serving! hitps:/fiwww.surveymonkey.com/r/CORE_Participant_Information

Basic Skills Descriptors Vetting: English and Mathematics

Descriptors are available for vetting for Mathematics basic skills and English basic skills. Please
encourage your faculty to provide feedback on the descriptors by December 31, 2015. Click herg
to access the descriptor review area on C-ID.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:
C-ID Appeal Process: COURSES BY DISCIPLINE

As a reminder, C-ID has an exsting appeal process for colleges fo initiate if they do not agree with a determination granted to a submission.
THe £ Msgggmrg@%t& QuUrsREDae Freeeived determinations (total for approved, conditional, and not approved columns),
with 14,069 courses receiving a C-ID designation (an 82% approval rate).

https:/fe-id. net/docs/C-ID%20Appeal %20Process%20April%2015%20201 4%20FINAL .pdf

When C-ID is contacted by a faculty member at 2 college regarding questions they may have on a determination, our standard protocol is fo
provide an answer to the faculty member inquiring and to copy the campus Articulation Officer on our response. Our goal is fo ensure that the
AQ is aware of any inquiries that come to C-ID. Concerns or questions from the field may also be shared directly with the Primary Reviewer.
In the event that a problem with a review is identified through this process, the Primary Reviewer may initiate a determination change.

C-ID Review Process - Overview:

We recently received an inquiry regarding the reviewer process and the steps by which approvals are given for submissions. As a reminder,
submissions for C-ID descriptors are reviewed by three discipline faculty, one from the CCC, one from a university, and the Primary Reviewer
for the discipline. If you have any additional questions regarding the review process, or specific question regarding submissions for your

college, please contact us at support@c-id.net. Determinations are never made by C-ID staff.

Email Determinations for Resubmitted Courses:

C-ID recently fixed the issue with determination emails not being delivered to Articulation Officers. There Is a continuing probfem with courses
that are resubmitted. Currently, the C-ID system does not resend new determination emails for courses that utilize the resubmit function. If
you have courses that are resubmitted that recently received a determination and you want the emails resent to you, please contact us at
support@c-id.net so we can resend the message. We hope to have these technical difficulties resolved in the near future and appreciate your

patience.

C-ID AO Open Forum — Recording Available:

The recording for the October 14, 2015 AC Open Forum is now available on the C-ID website, under the Art. Oificers Tab. You can also click
here to take you directly to the recording.



KEY:

Drsciplines with < 10 courses in- Disciplines with 11 — 20 courses in- T DISCIPHRES WIth 2 = 41 CEUTSES -
progress ot submitted - .- progress or submitted o I progress o1 submitted

Discipline # Courses | # Approved | # Submitted | # In Progress | Total Submitted & In-Progress Nov 9, 2015
Accounting 245 215 0 1 | - e e s 0 e, MO
Administration of Justice 800 678 1 0 = il 1
Child Development 225 214 0 2 act 2
Giobal Studies - AOE 2 0 2 0 E o L2
Journalism 440 374 0 2 | F 2 2
Nutrition/Dietetics 62 32 3 1 © 4
Social Justice Studies - AOE 4 0 4 0 = 4
Theatre 1256 1070 1 4 5
(Geology 470 372 4 3 - - 7
Political Science 468 397 2 ] . — T 7
Public Health Science 32 8 6 1 > S =
Communication Studies 786 662 1 7 8
Economics 249 214 0 8 - )
Psychology 773 673 1 7 8
Computer Science 384 209 5 4 o
Early Childhood Education 627 577 1 8 = g9
Physics 629 550 5 4 g
| Engligh 1222 1088 0 10 S 10
Biotechnology - CCC 12 0 12 0 12
Sociology 723 . 603 0 12 12
Chemistry 551 412 6 7 13
Kinesiology 179 137 1 12 13
Philosophy 410 338 1 12 13
Business 458 320 4 10 14
Educaticn 70 30 3 12 15
Geography 593 539 | 8 8 16
Music . 1594 1268 12 5 17
History 717 489 18 5| B s TR
Spanish 504 438 5 2 | a1
Biology 459 278 11 22
Art History 550 264 8 27 |
Information Technology and Information Systems 138 74 27 16
Anthropology 449 254 12 36 ¢
Mathernatics 1387 526 16 80 |
| Engineering 180 15 24 132 |
Film, Television and Electronic Media 200 7 74 110 |
Agriculture 262 50 52 136
Studio Arts 1217 604 38 415 |

Total 19327 14069 368 1130




